
913 Advertising expenses. 
This account shall include the cost of labor, materials used and expenses incurred in advertising 

designed to promote or retain the use of utility service, except advertising the sale of merchandise by the 
utility. 

ITEMS 
Labor: 

1. Direct supervision of department. 
2. Preparing advertising material for newspapers, periodicals, billboards, etc., and preparing and 

conducting motion pictures, radio and television programs. 
3. Preparing booklets, bulletins, etc., used in direct mail advertising. 
4. Preparing window and other displays. 
5. Clerical and stenographic work. 
6. Investigating advertising agencies and media and conducting negotiations in connection with the 

placement and subject matter of sales advertising. 
Materials and expenses: 

7. Advertising in newspapers, periodicals, billboards, radio, etc., for sales promotion purposes, but 
not including institutional or goodwill advertising includible in account 930.1, General Advertising Expenses. 

8. Materials and services given as prizes or otherwise in connection with canning, or cooking 
contests, bazaars, etc., in order to publicize and promote the use of utility services. 

9. Fees and expenses of advertising agencies and commercial artists. 
10. Novelties for general distribution. 
11. Postage on direct mail advertising. 
12. Premiums distributed generally, such as recipe books, etc., when not offered as inducement 

to purchase appliances. 
13. Printing booklets, dodgers, bulletins, etc. 
14. Supplies and expenses in preparing advertising material. 
15. Office supplies and expenses. 

Note A: The cost of advertisements which set forth the value or advantages of utility service without 
reference to specific appliances, or, if reference is made to appliances, invites the reader to purchase 
appliances from his dealer, or refer to appliances not carried for sale by the utility, shall be considered sales 
promotion advertising and charged to this account. However, advertisements which are limited to specific 
makes of appliances sold by the utility and prices, terms, etc., thereof, without referring to the value or 
advantages of utility service, shall be considered as merchandise advertising and the cost shall be charged 
to Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work, accounts 416. 

Note B: Advertisements which substantially mention or refer to the value or advantages of utility 
service, together with specific reference to makes of appliances sold by the utility and the price, terms, etc., 
thereof, and designed for the joint purpose of increasing the use of utility service and the sales of appliances, 
shall be considered as a combination advertisement and the costs shall be distributed between this account 
and account 416 on the basis of space, time, or other proportional factors. 

Note C: Exclude from this account and charge to account 930.2, Miscellaneous General Expenses, 
the cost of publication of stockholder reports, dividend notices, bond redemption notices, financial statements, 
and other notices of a general corporate character. Exclude also all institutional or goodwill advertising. (See 
account 930.1, General Advertising Expenses.) 

914--915 [Reserved] 

916 Miscellaneous sales expenses. 
This account shall include the cost of labor, materials used and expenses incurred in connection with 

sales activities, except merchandising, which are not includible in other sales expense accounts. 
ITEMS 

Labor: 
1. General clerical and stenographic work not assigned to specific functions. 
2. Special analysis of customer accounts and other statistical work for sales purposes not a part 

of the regular customer accounting and billing routine. 
3. Miscellaneous labor. 
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Materials and expenses: 
4. Communication service. 
5. Printing, postage, and office supplies and expenses applicable to sales activities, except those 

chargeable to account 913, Advertising Expenses. 

920 Administrative and general salaries. 
A. This account shall include the compensation (salaries, bonuses, and other consideration for 

services, but not including directors' fees) of officers, executives, and other employees of the utility properly 
chargeable to utility operations and not chargeable directly to a particular operating function. 

B. This account may be subdivided in accordance with a classification appropriate to the departmental 
or other functional organization of the utility. 

921 Office supplies and expenses. 
A. This account shall include office supplies and expenses incurred in connection with the general 

administration of the utility's operations which are assignable to specific administrative or general departments 
and are not specifically provided for in other accounts. This includes the expenses of the various 
administrative and general departments, the salaries and wages of which are includible in account 920. 

B. This account may be subdivided in accordance with a classification appropriate to the departmental 
or other functional organization of the utility. 

Note: Office expenses which are clearly applicable to any group of operating expenses other than the 
administrative and general group shall be included in the appropriate account in such group. Further, general 
expenses which apply to the utility as a whole rather than to a particular administrative function shall be 
included in account 930.2, Miscellaneous General Expenses. 

ITEMS 
1. Automobile service, including charges through clearing account. 
2. Bank messenger and service charges. 
3. Books, periodicals, bulletins and subscriptions to newspapers, newsletters, tax services, etc. 
4. Building service expenses for customer accounts, sales, and administrative and general 

purposes. 
5. Communication service expenses. 
6. Cost of individual items of office equipment used by general departments which are of small 

value or short life. 
7. Membership fees and dues in trade, technical, and professional associations paid by a utility for 

employees. (Company memberships are includible in account 930.2.) 
8. Office supplies and expenses. 
9. Payment of court costs, witness fees, and other expenses of legal department. 
10. Postage, printing and stationery. 
11. Meals, traveling and incidental expenses. 

922 Administrative expenses transferred--Credit. 
This account shall be credited with administrative expenses recorded in accounts 920 and 921 which 

are transferred to construction costs or to nonutility accounts. (See gas plant instruction 4.) 

923 Outside services employed. 
A. This account shall include the fees and expenses of professional consultants and others for general 

services which are not applicable to a particular operating function or to other accounts. It shall include also 
the pay and expenses of persons engaged for a special or temporary administrative or general purpose in 
circumstances where the person so engaged is not considered as an employee of the utility. 

B. This account shall be so maintained as to permit ready summarization according to the nature of 
service and the person furnishing the same. 

ITEMS 
1. Fees, pay and expenses of accountants and auditors, actuaries, appraisers, attorneys, 

engineering consultants, management consultants, negotiators, public relations counsel, tax consultants, etc. 
2. Supervision fees and expenses paid under contracts for general management services. 

Note: Do not include inspection and brokerage fees and commissions chargeable to other accounts or fees 
and expenses in connection with security issues which are includible in the expenses of issuing securities. 
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924 Property insurance. 
A. This accouni shail include the cost of insurance or reserve accruals to protect the utility against 

losses and damages to owned or leased property used in its utility operations. It shall include also the cost 
of labor and related supplies and expenses incurred in property insurance activities. 

B. Recoveries from insurance companies or others for property damages shall be credited to the 
account charged with the cost of the damage. If the damaged property has been retired, the credit shall be 
to the appropriate account for accumulated provision for depreciation. 

C. Records shall be kept so as to show the amount of coverage for each class of insurance carried, 
the property covered, and the applicable premiums. Any dividends distributed by mutual insurance companies 
shall be credited to the accounts to which the insurance premiums were charged. 

ITEMS 
1. Premiums payable to insurance companies for fire, storm, burglary, boiler explosion, lightning, 

fidelity, riot, and similar insurance. 
2. Amounts credited to account 228.1, Accumulated Provision for Property Insurance; for similar 

protection. 
3. Special costs incurred in procuring insurance. 
4. Insurance inspection service. 
5. Insurance counsel, brokerage fees, and expenses. 

Note A: The cost of insurance or reserve accruals capitalized shall be charged to construction either 
directly or by transfer to construction work orders from this account. 

Note B: The cost of insurance or reserve accruals for the following classes of property shall be 
charged as indicated. 

(1) Materials and supplies and stores equipment, to account 163, Stores Expense Undistributed or 
appropriate materials account. 

(2) Transportation and other general equipment to appropriate clearing accounts that may be 
maintained. 

(3) Gas plant leased to others, to account 413, Expenses of Gas Plant Leased to Others. 
(4) Nonutility property, to the appropriate nonutility income account. 
(5) Merchandise and jobbing property, io accouni 416, Casis and Expenses of Merchandising, 

Jobbing and Contract Work. 
Note C: The cost of labor and related supplies and expenses of administrative and general 

employees, who are only incidentally engaged in property insurance work, may be included in accounts 920 
and 921, as appropriate. 

925 Injuries and damages. 
A. This account shall include the cost of insurance or reserve accruals to protect the utility against 

injuries and damages claims of employees or others, losses of such character not covered by insurance, and 
expenses incurred in settlement of injuries and damages claims. It shall also include the cost of labor and 
related supplies and expenses incurred in injuries and damages activities. 

B. Reimbursements from insurance companies or others for expenses charged hereto on account 
of injuries and damages and insurance dividends or refunds shall be credited to this account. 

ITEMS 
1. Premiums payable to insurance companies for protection against claims from injuries and 

damages by employees or others, such as public liability, property damages, casualty, employee liability, etc., 
and amounts credited to account 228.2, Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages; for similar 
protection. 

2. Losses not covered by insurance or reserve accruals on account of injuries or deaths to 
employees or others and damages to the property of others. 

3. Fees and expenses of claim investigators. 
4. Payment of awards to claimants for court costs and attorneys' services. 
5. Medical and hospital service and expenses for employees as the result of occupational injuries, 

or resulting from claims of others. 
6. Compensation payments under workmen's compensation laws. 
7. Compensation paid while incapacitated as the result of occupational injuries. (See Note A.) 
8. Cost of safety, accident prevention and similar educational activities. 

Note A: Payments to or in behalf of employees for accident or death benefits, hospital expenses, 
medical supplies or for salaries while incapacitated for service or on leave of absence beyond periods 
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normally allowed, when not the result of occupational injuries, shall be charged to account 926, Employee 
Pensions and Benefits. (See also Note B of account 926.) 

Note B: The cost of injuries and damages or reserve accruals capitalized shall be charged to 
construction directly or by transfer to construction work orders from this account. 

Note C: Exclude herefrom the time and expenses of employees (except those engaged in injuries and 
damages activities) spent in attendance at safety and accident prevention educational meetings, if occurring 
during the regular work period. 

Note D: The cost of labor and related supplies and expenses of administrative and general 
employees, who are only incidentally engaged in injuries and damages activities, may be included in accounts 
920 and 921, as appropriate. 

926 Employee pensions and benefits. 
A. This account shall include pensions paid lo or on behalf of retired employees, or accruals to provide 

for pensions, or payments for the purchase of annuities for this purpose, when the utility has definitely, by 
contract, committed itself lo a pension plan under which the pension funds are irrevocably devoted lo pension 
purposes, and payments for employee accident, sickness, hospital, and death benefits, or insurance therefor. 
Include, also, expenses incurred in medical, educational or recreational activities for the benefit of employees, 
and administrative expenses in connection with employee pensions and benefits. 

B. The utility shall maintain a complete record of accruals or payments for pensions and be prepared 
to furnish full information to the Commission of the plan under which ii has created or proposes to create a 
pension fund and a copy of the declaration of trust or resolution under which the pension plan is established. 

C. There shall be credited to this account the portion of pensions and benefits expenses which is 
applicable to nonutility operations or which is charged to construction unless such amounts are distributed 
directly to the accounts involved and are not included herein in the first instance. 

D. Records in support of this account shall be so kept that the total pensions expense, the total 
benefits expense, the administrative expenses included herein, and the amounts of pensions and benefits 
expenses transferred to construction or other accounts will be readily available. 

ITEMS 
1. Payment of pensions under a nonaccrual or nonfunded basis. 
2. Accruals for or payments to pension funds or to insurance companies for pension purposes. 
3. Group and life insurance premiums (credit dividends received). 
4. Payments for medical and hospital services and expenses of employees when not the result of 

occupational injuries. 
5. Payments for accident, sickness, hospilal, and death benefits or insurance. 
6. Payments lo employees incapacitated for service or on leave of absence beyond periods 

normally allowed, when nol lhe result of occupational injuries, or in excess of statutory awards. 
7. Expenses in connection with educational and recreational activities for the benefit of employees. 

Note A: The cost of labor and related supplies and expenses of administrative and general employees 
who are only incidentally engaged in employee pension and benefit activities, may be included in accounts 
920 and 921, as appropriate. 

Note B: Salaries paid to employees during periods of nonoccupational sickness may be charged to 
the appropriate labor account rather than to employee benefits. 

927 Franchise requirements. 
A. This account shall include payments to municipal or other governrnenlal authorities, and the cost 

of materials, supplies and services furnished such authorities without reimbursement in compliance with 
franchise, ordinance, or similar requirements; provided, however, Iha! the ulility may charge to this account 
at regular tariff rates, instead of cost, utility service furnished without charge under provisions of franchises. 

B. When no direct outlay is involved, concurrent credit for such charges shall be made to account 929, 
Duplicate Charges--Cr. 

C. The account shall be maintained so as to readily reflect the amounts of cash outlays, utility service 
supplied without charge, and other items furnished without charge. 

Nole A: Franchise taxes shall not be charged lo this account bu! to account 408.1, Taxes Other Than 
Income Taxes, Utility Operating Income. 

Note B: Any amount paid as initial consideration for a franchise running for more than one year shall 
be charged to account 302, Franchises and Consents. 

928 Regulatory commission expenses. 
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A. This account shall include all expenses (except pay of regular employees only incidentally engaged 
in such work) properly includible in utility operaiing expenses, incurred by the utility in connection with formal 
cases before regulatory commissions, or other regulatory bodies, or cases in which such a body is a party, 
including payments made to a regulatory commission for fees assessed against the utility for pay and 
expenses of such commission, its officers, agents, and employees. 

B. Amounts of regulatory commission expenses which by approval or direction of the Commission 
are to be spread over future periods shall be charged to account 186, Miscellaneous Deferred Debits, and 
amortized by charges to this account. 

C. The utility shall be prepared to show the cost of each formal case. 
ITEMS 

1. Salaries, fees, retainers, and expenses of counsel, solicitors, attorneys, accountants, engineers, 
clerks, attendants, witnesses, and others engaged in the prosecution of, or defense against petitions or 
complaints presented to regulatory bodies, or in the valuation of property owned or used by the utility in 
connection with such cases. 

2. Office supplies and expenses, payments to public service or other regulatory commissions, 
stationery and printing, traveling expenses, and other expenses incurred directly in connection with formal 
cases before regulatory commissions. 

3. All application fees except those involving construction certificate applications which have been 
approved. (See Gas Plant Instruction 16.) 

Note A: Exclude from this account and include in other appropriate operating expense accounts, 
expenses incurred in the improvement of service, additional inspection, or rendering reports, which are made 
necessary by the rules and regulations, or orders, of regulatory bodies. . 

Note B: Do not include in this account amounts includible in account 302, Franchises and Consents, 
account 181, Unamortized Debt Expense, or account 214, Capital Stock Expense. 

929 Duplicate charges-Credit. 
This account shall include concurrent credits for charges which may be made to operating expenses 

or to other accounts for the use of utility service from its own supply. Include, also, offsetting credits for any 
other charges made to operating expenses for which there is no direct money outlay. 

930.1 General advertising expenses. 
This account shall include the cost of labor, materials used, and expenses incurred in advertising and 

related activities, the cost of which by their content and purpose are not provided for elsewhere. 
ITEMS 

Labor: 
1. Supervision. 
2. Preparing advertising material for newspapers, periodicals, billboards, etc., and preparing or 

conducting motion pictures, radio and television programs. 
3. Preparing booklets, bulletins, etc., used in direct mail advertising. 
4. Preparing window and other displays. 
5. Clerical and stenographic work. 
6. Investigating and employing advertising agencies, selecting media and conducting negotiations 

in connection with the placement and subject matter of advertising. 
Materials and expenses: 

7. Advertising in newspapers, periodicals, billboards, radio, etc. 
8. Advertising matter such as posters, bulletins, booklets and related items. 
9. Fees and expenses of advertising agencies and commercial artists. 
10. Postage and direct mail advertising. 
11. Printing of booklets, dodgers, bulletins, etc. 
12. Supplies and expenses in preparing advertising materials. 
13. Office supplies and expenses. 

Note A: Properly includible in this account is the cost of advertising activities on a local or national 
basis of a goodwill or institutional nature, which is primarily designed to improve the image of the utility or the 
industry, including advertisements which inform the public concerning matters affecting the company's 
operations, such as, the cost of providing service, the company's efforts to improve the quality of service, the 
company's efforts to improve and protect the environment, etc. Entries relating to advertising included in this 
account shall contain or refer to supporting documents which identify the specific advertising message. If 
references are used, copies of the advertising message shall be readily available. 
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Note B: Exclude from this account and include in account 426.4, Expenditures for Certain Civic, 
Political and Related Activities, expenses for advertising activities, which are designed to solicit public support 
or the support of public officials in matters of a political nature. 

930.2 Miscellaneous general expenses. 
This account shall include the cost of labor and expenses incurred in connection with the general 

management of the utility not provided for elsewhere. 
ITEMS 

Labor: 
1. Miscellaneous labor not elsewhere provided for: 

Expenses: 
2. Industry Association dues for company memberships. 
3. Contributions for conventions and meetings of the industry. 
4. Research, development, and demonstration expenses not charged to other operation and 

maintenance expense accounts on a functional basis. 
5. Communication service not chargeable to other accounts. 
6. Trustee, registrar, and transfer agent fees and expenses. 
7. Stockholders meeting expenses. 
8. Dividend and other financial notices. 
9. Printing and mailing dividend checks. 
10. Directors' fees and expenses. 
11. Publishing and distributing annual reports to stockholders. 
12. Public notices of financial, operating, and other data required by regulatory statutes, not 

including, however, notices required in connection with security issues or acquisitions of property. 

931 Rents. 
This account shall include rents properly includible in utility operating expenses for the property of 

others used, occupied, or operated in connection with the customer accounts, customer service and 
informational, sales, and general and administrative functions of the utility. (See operating expense instruction 
3.) 

932 Maintenance of general plant. 
A. This account shall include the cost assignable to customer accounts, sales and administrative and 

general functions of labor, materials used and expenses incurred in the maintenance of property, the book 
cost of which is includible in account 390, Structures and Improvements, account 391, Office Furniture and 
Equipment, account 397, Communication Equipment, and account 398, Miscellaneous Equipment. (See 
operating expense instruction 2.) 

B. Maintenance expenses on office furniture and equipment used elsewhere than in general, 
commercial and sales offices shall be charged to the following accounts: 

Manufactured Gas Production, accounts 708, 7 42 
Natural Gas Production and Gathering, account 769 
Natural Gas Production Extraction, account 791 
Underground Storage, account 837 
Local Storage, account 846.2 
Transmission Expenses, account 867 
Distribution Expenses, account 894 
Merchandising and Jobbing, account 416 
Garage, Shops, etc.--appropriate clearing account, if used. 
Note: Maintenance of plant included in other general plant equipment accounts shall be included 

herein unless charged to clearing accounts or to a particular functional maintenance expense indicated by the 
use of the equipment. 
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~ 

3illfrl.g & payments, v Customer sen.ice v S?-veenergy&money v Safety V 

Pipeline upgrades 

We're improving our infrastructure for the generations to come. 

Spl.!'e~s energy~ e:cists to fuel your busi~esses and warm ·your ho:nes. Oo great~st 

ri::sponsibili.~· is miking sure that energy is safe :and reliable. So ou.r cr~v.·s ar-e al";';'ay-s 

't':Orking to upg!"ad.e our pipelines on your str~ets and in your neighborhoods .. ]f you 

happen to see t!:iem, stop by and say hello. They'll be h.appyyou did. 

\ 1.711at to expect 

Co:-itac: us • 

."-."lytime t.li.ere's work be.ing done i.n your neighborhood, it's nke to bow -,;-hat to e:0)€ct. 

v:,, make sure "'e stay in touch mt.½ tile residem:s and businesses affected by our work, 
pro",tiding upda~,;s along the ~ay. 

Si...,-1ce project ti.mes ,,.__·a.rs,~. ke,ep an eye out :for lettr::-rsr door tags a:id. phone calls tha't ","-"ill 

give you a good feel for how long the project-,;-ill ;:a.l.,e. v:e'll also let you know if t":"e need 

you to reach out to us £0:r a:iy reason.-

Once your ser:..'":ce line has b€e·n upgraded and you:re conn~ctec! tc !.he new gas main:, 

v-:-e~ll wo:rk toge: your life: back to normaL One of Spirt='1s technicians W.11 r--?li.gb:t your 

r,.atural gas appliances~ And., ~e 't't"on·~ ccnsider~:he job cocpleted until all roads~ 

s5d,e;walks and lawns are fuJ!ly r,estored. 

'U·e kno"' you probably still na•:e a lot of questio:lS, so look out for mer,; communications 

from us. In :he memtime .. e,q:,]ore our frequently asked questions below. 

=.."";;p!c::-t s:::=e H~ 
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Chapter 40-Gas Utilities and Gas Safety Standards 

'Illle 20-DEPARTMENT OF 
COMl'YffiRCE ANn JNSUUANCl< 

Di\'islon 4240-Public Service 
Commission 

Chapter 40-Gas Utililirs aud 
Gas Safety Standards 

20 CSR 42•!0-40,015 Affiliate Transactions 

PURPOSE: 111/s rule Is /mended to prea•e11t 
regulaled utilities from s11bsidh.i11g their non­
regulated opemliom. 111 order lo accomplish 
lhis objeclfre, the mle sets forlh jinancial 
standards, evide111iary sta11datds mtd record 
keepi11g requirements appUcab/e lo any 
Missouri Public Sen1ice Commission (cmn• 
mission) regulated gas corporation whem:1•er 
such corpomtio11 participates in 1ra11sactio11s 
with Oil)' affiliated e11ti1y (except with regard 
lo HVAC sen•lces as defined in sec1io11 
386,754, RSMo Supp. 1998, by the General 
Assembly of Missouri). The rule a1td ils effec­
tive enforcemelll will prm'ide /he public /he 
assurance Iha/ /heir rates are 1101 ad)'ersely 
impacted by the utilities' 11011,egulated activ­
ities. 

(J) Defini1ions. 
(A) Affiliated entity means any person, 

including an individual, corporation, service 
company, corporate subsidiary, finn, partner­
ship, incorporated or unincorporated associa­
tion, poli1ical subdivjsion including a public 
utility distric1, dty, town, county, or a com­
bination of political subdMsions, which 
directly or indirectly, through one (1) or more 
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or 
is under common control with the regulated 
gas corporation. 

(B) Affiliale transaction means any trans­
action for the provision, purchase or sale of 
any infom1ation, asset, product or service, or 
portion of any product or service, between a 
regulated gas cmporation and an affiliated 
entity, and shall include all transactions car­
ried out between any unregulated business 
operation of a regulated gas corporation and 
the regulated business operations of a gas 
corporation. ·An affiliate transaction for the 
purposes of t1lis rule excludes heating, \'enti­
lating and air conditioning (HVAC) services 
as defined in sec1io11 386.754, RSMo by U1e 
General Assembly of Missouri. 

(C) Control (including the terms "control­
ling," "controlled by, 11 and "common con­
trol") means the possession, direclly or indi­
rectly, of the power to direct, or to cause the 
direction of the management or policies of an 
entity, whether such power is exercised 
t11rough one (1) or more intennediary enti­
ties, or alone, or in cmtjunction with, or pur­
suant to an agreement with, one or more 

JOHii R. ASllCROH (9/30/19) 
Secretary of Slato 

other entities, w11ether such power is exer­
cised through a majority or minority owner­
ship or \'oting of securities, common direc­
tors, officers or stockholders, voting trusls, 
holding 1rus1s1 affilla1ed entities, co111ract or 
any other direct or indirect meillls, The com­
mission shall presume that the beneficial 
ownership of ten peocent (10%) or more of 
voling securities or partnership I111ercst of an 
entity constitutes control for purposes of this 
rule. This 1novision, however, shall not be 
construed to prohibit a regulated gas corpora­
tion from rebutting the presumption that its 
ownership interest in an entity confers con­
trol. 

(D) Corporate support means joint corpo­
rate oversight, governance, support systems 
and personnel, in\'olving payroll, shareholder 
services, financial reporting, human re­
sources, emplo)'ee records, pension manage­
ment, legal services, and research and devel­
opment ac1ivities. 

(E) Dcrivati\'es means a financial instru­
ment, traded on or off an exchange, Ute price 
of which is directly dependent upon (i.e., 
"derh•cd from") the \'alue of one or more 
underlying securities, equity indices, debt 
instruments, conunodities, other derivdtive 
inslruments, or any agreed-upon pricing 
index or arrangemenl (e.g., the movement 
over time of the Consumer Price Index or 
freight rates). Derivatives involve the trading 
of rights or obligations based on tlie underly­
ing product, bm do nor directly transrer prop• 
crty. They are used to hedge risk or to ex­
change a floating rate of return for fixed rate 
of return. 

(F) Fully dislributed coSI (FDC) means a 
metlto<lology that examines all costs of an 
enterprise in relalion to aU the goods and ser­
vices that are produced. FDC requires recog­
nition of all costs incurred directly or indi­
rectly used to produce a good or service. 
Costs are assigned ei1hcr through a direct or 
allocated approach. Costs that cannot be 
directly assigned or lndireclly allocated (e.g., 
general and administrath•c) must also be 
included in the FDC calculation through a 
general allocation. 

(G) Infom1ation means any data obiained 
by a regulated gas corporation tliat is not 
obtainable by n.onaffiliated entities or can 
only be obtained at a competitively pro­
hibitiYe cost in either lime or resources. 

(H) Preferential service means information 
or treatment or actions by the regulated gas 
corporation which places the affiliated entity 
at an unfair adva.nlage over ils competitors. 

(I) Regulated gas corporation means every 
gas corporation as defined in section 
386.020, RSMo, subject to commission reg­
ulation pursuant to Chapter 393, RSMo. 

CODE OF STATE REGULATIONS 

20 CSR 4240-40 ~CS[) 

(J) Unfair adv-antage means an advantage 
that cannot be obtained by nonaffiliated enti­
lies or can only be obtained al a competili\'C­
ly prohibitive cost in either time or resources. 

(K) Variance means an exemption granted 
by the commission from any applicable stan­
dard required pursuant 10 this ru1e. 

(2) S1andards. 
(A) A regulated gas corporalion shall not 

provide a financial advanlage to an afiiliated 
entity. For the purposes of this rn1e, a regu­
lated gas corporation shall be deemed to pro­
vide a financial advantage to an affiliated 
entity if-

1. It compensates an affiliated entity for 
goods or services abcJ\'e Ute lesser of-

A. The fair market price; or 
B. The fully distributed cost to the 

regulated gas corporation to provide the 
goods or services for itself; or 

2. lt transfers infomiation, assets, goods 
or services of any kind to an affiliated eniity 
below the greater of-

A. The fair market pricei or 
B. The fully distributed cost to the 

regulated gas corporation. 
(D) Exe-0pf as necessary to provide corpo­

rate suppo1t functions, the regulated gas cor­
poration shall conduct its business in such a 
way as not to provide any preferential service, 
information or trealment to an affiliated enti­
ty oyer anotl1er party at any lime. 

(C) Specific customer informalion shall be 
made available to affiliated or unaffilia!ed 
entities only upon consent of tlie customer or 
as otherwise provided by law or commission 
rules or orders. General or aggregated cus­
tomer information shall be made available to 
affiliated or unaffiliated entities upon similar 
terms and conditions. The regulated gas cor­
poration may set r~asonahle charges for costs 
incurred in producing customer information. 
Customer information includes infonnation 
provided to the regulated utility by affiliated 
or unaffiliated emilies. 

(D) The regulaled gas corporacion shall no1 
participate in any affiliated 1ransac1ions 
which are not in compliance with this rule, 
except as otherwise provided in section (10) 
of this rule. 

(E) If a customer requests information 
from the regulated gas corporation. about 
goods or services provided by an affiliated 
entity, the regulated gas corporation may pro­
vide infonnation about its affiliate but must 
inform t11e customer that regula!ed services 
are not tied to the use of an affiliate provider 
and that other service providers may be avail­
able. The regulated gas corporation may pro. 
vide reference to other service providers or to 
conunercial listings, but is not required to do 
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so. The regulated gas corporation shall 
include in its annual Cost A1loca1ion Manual 
(CAM), t11e criteria, guidelines and proce~ 
dures it will follow to be in compliance with 
lhe rule, 

(F) Marketing materials, infom1ation or 
advertisements by an affiliate entily tha.t share 
a1\ exact or similar name, logo or trademark 
of the regulated utility shall clearly display or 
announce that the affiliate entity is not regu­
lated by the Missouri Public Service Com­
mission. 

(3) Evidentiary Standards for Affiliated 
Transactions. 

(A) When a regulated gas corporation pur­
chases jnforma1ion, assets, goods or·services 
from an. affiliated entity, the regulated gas 
corporation shall either obtain competili\'e 
bids (or such information, assets, goods or 
services or demonstrate why competill\-e bids 
were neither necessary no_r appropriate. 

(B) In transactions that invoke either the 
purchase or receipt of information. assets, 
goods or services by a regulated gas Corpora­
tion from au affilia!ed entity, the regulated 
gas corporalion sbaU document botlt the fair 
market price of such information, assets, 
goods and services and the fully dislributed 
cost to the regulated gas corporation to pro­
duce the informalion, assets, goods or -ser­
vices for itself. 

(C) Ii\ transactions that iln-olve the provi­
sion of infonnation, assets, goods or services 
to affiliated entitles, the regulated gas corpo­
.ra1ion must demonslrale that it-

1. Considered all costs incurred to com­
plete the transaction: 

2. Calculaled the cos1s at times relevant 
to the transaction; 

3. Allocated all joint and common costs 
appropriately; and 

4. Adequately determined the fair mar­
ket price of the information, assets, goods or 
services. 

(D) In transactions im-olving the purchase 
of goods or services by the regula1ed gas cor­
poration from an affiliated entity, the regulat­
ed gas corporation will use a commission­
approved CAM which sets fonh cost alloca­
tion, market valuation and internal cost meth­
ods. This CAM can use benctuuarking prac­
tices that can conslitule compliance with lhe 
market value requirements of this section if 
approved by the conunission. 

(4) Record Keeping Rcquitements. 
(A) A regulated gas corporation shall 

maintain books, accounts and records sepa­
rate from those of its affiliates . 
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(B) Each regulated gas corporation shall 
maimain the followjng infommtion in a mutu­
ally agreed-to electronic format (i.e., agree­
ment between the staff, Office of the Public 
Counsel and the. regulated gas corporation) 
regarding affiliate transactions on a calendar 
year basis and shall provide such infonnation 
to the commission staff and tho Office of the 
Public Counsel 011, or before, March 15 of 
the succeeding year: 

J, A full and complete list of all affiliat­
ed entities as defined by this rule; 

2. A full and complete list of all goods 
and services provided to or received from 
aOiliated entities; 

3, A full and complete list of all con­
tracts entered wiU, affiliated en1ities; 

4. A full and complete list of all affiliate 
transactions undertaken wi1h affiliated enti­
ties without a wriucn co111racJ together with a 
brief e:<planation of why there was no con• 
tract; 

5. The amount of all affiliate transac­
lions, by affiliated entity and account 
charged; and 

6. The basis used (e.g., fair market 
price, FDC, etc.) to record each type of aflil­
fatc tr-,m.sac:ica. 

(C) fn addition each regulated gas corpora­
tion shall maimain 1he following information 
regarding affiliate transactions on a calendar 
ye.ar basis: 

I. Records identifying the basis used 
(e.g., fair market price, FDC, etc.) to record 
all affiliate transactions; and 

2. Books of accounts and supporting 
records in sufficient delail to permit verifica­
tion of compliance wit.h this rule. 

(5) Records of Affiliated Entilies. 
(A) Each regulated gas corporation shall 

ensure that its parent and any other affiliated 
entities maintain books and records that 
include, at a mininmm, the following infor-
01alion regarding affiliate transactions: 

1. Documenlatlon of the costs associated 
with afftliatc transactions that are incurred by 
the parent or affiliated entity and charged to 
the regulated gas corporation; 

2. Documentation of the methods used 
to allocate and/or share costs between affili­
ated entities, including other jurisdictions 
and/or corporate divisionsi 

3. Descripllon of costs that are not sub­
ject to allocation to affiliate transactions and 
documentation supporting the nonassignment 
of these costs. to affiliate transaclions; 

4. Descriptions of the types of services 
that corporate divisions and/or other central­
ized functions provided to any affiliated enti­
ty or division accessing the regulated gas cor­
poration's contracted services or facilities; 
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5. Names and job descriptions of the 
employees from the regulated gas coqloration 
that tr.msferred to a nonregnlatcd affiliated 
emily; 

6. E\'aluations of lhe effect on the relia­
bility of services provided l>y the regulated 
gas corporation resulling from the access to 
regulated contracts and/or facilities by affili­
ated entities; 

7. Policies regarding the availnbilily of 
cus1omer infom1ation and the access to ser­
vices a\•.iilable to nonregula1ed affiliated enti­
ties desiring use of t11e regulated gas corpora­
tion's contracts and facilities; and 

8. Descriptions of, and suppor1ing doc­
umentalion related to, any use of derivatives 
that may be related to the regulated gas cor­
poration's operation even though obtailted by 
the parent or affiliated entity. 

(6) Access to Records of Affiliated Entities. 
(A) 1b the extent pcrmi11cd by applicable 

law, and pursuant to established commission 
discovery procedures, a regulated gas corpo­
ration shall make available lhe books and 
records of its parent and any other affiliated 
entities when required in the application of 
tbis mie. 

(B) The commission shall have the au1hor­
ity to-

1. Review, inspect and audit books, 
accounts and otl1er records kept by a regulat­
ed g;:\s corporation or affiliated entity (or the 
sole purpose of ensuring compliance with this 
rule and make findings available to the com­
mission; and 

2. Investigate the operations of a regu­
la!ed gas corporation. or affiliated entity and 
their relationship lo each other ror the sole 
purpose of ensnring compliance with thJs 
rule. 

(C) That this rule docs not modify existing 
legal standards regarding which party has the 
burden of proof in commission proceedings. 

(7) Record Retention. 
(A) Records required under this rule shall 

be maintained by each regula1ed gas corpora­
tion for a periOO or not less 1han six (6) years. 

(8) Enforcement. 
(A) When enforcing these standards, or 

any order of the commission regarding these 
standards, the commission may apply any 
remedy available to the commission. 

(9) The regulated gas corporation shall train 
and advise its personnel as to the require­
ments and provisions of th.ls rule as appropri~ 
ate to ensure compliance. 

(IO) Variances. 

(9/30/19) Jo1m R. ASHCROFT 
Secretary of Stale 
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(A) A variance from the standards in this 
rule may be Oblained by com1>liance wilh 
paragraphs (IO)(A)I. or (lO)(A)2. The grant­
ing of a \"ariance 10 one regulalcd gas corpo­
ration does not consti1111c a \\>.1iver respecting 
or otherwise affect lite required compliance 
of any other regulated gas corporatioll to 
comply with the siandards. The scope of a 
variance will be determined based on the 
facts and circumstances found in support of 
the application-

l. The regulated gas corporation shall 
request a variance upon written application in 
accordance with commission procedures set 
out in 4 CSR 240-2.060(11); or 

2. A regulated gils corporntion may 
engage in.an affiliate lransaction not in com­
pliance with the standards set out in subsec­
tion (2)(A) of this rule, when to its best 
knowledge and belief, compliance with the 
stal1dards would not be in the best intercs1s of 
ilS regulated customers and it complies with 
the procedures required by subparagraphs 
(lO)(A)2.A. and (JO)(A)2.B. of this rule-

A. AU reports and ttcord retention 
requirements for each affiliate transaction 
must be conlplied with; and 

B. Notice of the noncomplying affili­
ate transaction shall be filed with the secre­
tary of the commission and the Office of the 
Public Counsel within ten (JO) days of tl1e 
occurrence of the noncomplying affiliate 
transaction. The notice shall proVide a 
detailed explanation of why the affiliate trans­
action should be exempted from the require­
ments of subsec1ion (2)(A), and shall provide 
a detailed explana1ion of how the affiliate 
transaction was in the best interests of the 
regulated customers. Within thirty (30) days 
of the notice of the noncomplying affiliate 
transaction, any party shall have the right to 
request a hearing regarding the noncomply~ 
iilg affiliate transaction. The commission may 
grant or deny the request for hearing at that 
lime. If the commission denies a request for 
hearing, the denial shall not in any way prej­
udice a pany's ability to challenge the affili­
ate transaction at the lime of the annual CAM 
filing. At the time of the filing of the regulat­
ed gas corporation's annual CAM filing the 
regulated gas corporation shall provide to the 
secretary of the commission a listing of all 
noncomplying afftJiate transactions which 
occurred between the period of U1e last filing 
and the current filing. Any aCfiliate transac­
tion submitted purwam to this section shall 
remain interfo1, subject to disallowa11<::e, 
pending final commission determination on 
whether the noncomplying affiliate transac­
tion resulted in the best interests of the regu­
lated customers. 

JOHH R. ASHCROFT (9/30/19) 
Secrelary of Slate 

(11) Nothing contained in this rule and no 
action by the commission under this rule shall 
be construed to appro\'e or exempt any activ­
ity or arrangement that would violate the 
antitrust Jaws of the state of Missouri or of 
the United States or to limit the rights of aily 
person or enlity under those laws. 

AUlliORITY: sections 386.250, RSMo S11pp. 
1998, mu/ 393. 140, RSMo 1994. • 111is mle 
orig/11ally filed as 4 CSR 240-10.015. 
Original mle filed April 26, 1999, ~fJectlre 
Feb. 29, 2000. Mored to 20 CSR 4240-
40.015, effect/re Aug. 28, 2019. 

•OrigilJ(II 011/hcrity: 386.250, RS.Ha J9J9, omnided 
1963, /967, ·1977, 19SO, 1987. 19M, /991, 1993, 1995, 
1996 and 393.140, RS.\lo 1939, omendtd 19.J9, 1%7. 

20 CSR 4240-40.016 Ma1·kcting Affiliate 
'fim1sacllons 

PURPOSE: 11,is mle sets forth standards of 
co1uluc/, ji11a11cial stmul.ards, evldentiary 
standards and record keeping re'q11ireme11ts 
applicable to all Missouri Public Sen•ice 
Cdmmissio11 (commission) regulated gos cor­
poralio11s engaging it1 marketing affiiiate 
lm11sacllo11s (e.rcept wilh regard to HVAC ser-
1•ices as defined ill sec1io11 386. 754, RSMo 
Supp. 1998, by the General Assembly of 
Misso11ri). 

(1) Definitions. 
(A) Affiliated enlily means any person 1 

including an individual, corporation, service 
company, corporate subsidiary, firm, partner­
ship, incorporated or unincorporated associa­
tion, poli1ical subdivision including a public 
ulility distri<:t1 city, town, county, or a com­
bination of political subdivisions, which 
directly or indirectly, through one (l) or more 
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or 
is under common control with Ute regulated 
gas corporation. This tem1 shall also irn::lude 
"marketing affiliate" (as hereinafter defined) 
and all unregulated business operations of a 
regulated gas corporation. 

(B) Affi.liate transaction means any lrans­
action for_ the provision, purchase or sale of 
any information, assc1, product or service, or 
porlion of any product or service, between a 
regulated gas corporation and an affiliated 
entity, and shall include all transactions car­
ried out between any unregulated business 
opcralion of a regulated gas corporalion and 
the regula1ed business operations of a gas 
corporation. An affiliate transaction for the 
purposes of this rule excludes heating, yenti­
lating and air conditioning (HVAC) services 
as defined in section 386,754, RSMo by the 
General Assembly of Missouri. 
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(C) Control (including the terms "control­

ling, 1' "controlled by, u and "common con­
trol") means the possession, direclly or indi­
rectly, of the power to direct, or to cause the 
direction of ll1e management or policies of an 
entity, wheUter such power is exercised 
through one (1) or more intermediary enti­
ties, or alone, or in co1tjune1ion with, or pur­
:mant lo an agreement with, one (I) or more 
other entitles, wl1cthcr such _power is exer­
cised through a nlajority or minority owner­
ship or \'Oting of securities, common direc­
tors, officers or stockholders, voting tmsls, 
holding trusts, affiliated entities, cotllracl or 
any other direct or indirect means. The com­
mission shall presume that the beneficial 
ownership of ten percent (10%) or more of 
Yoting securities or parrncrshi1, interes! of an 
entity constitutes control for puq>0scs of this 
rule. This provision, however, shall not be 
construed to prohibit a regulated gas corpora­
tion from rebuUing the presum_ption that its 
ownership interest in an enlity confers con­
trol. 

(D) Corporate support means joint corpo­
rate O\'ersight, go\•ernance, support sys1ems 
and personnel, invoMng payroll, shareholder 
services, financial reporting, human re­
sources, employee records, pension manage­
ment, legal services, and re.search and devel­
opment activities. 

(E) Dcriva1ives means a financial instru­
ment, traded on or off an exchange, the price 
of which is directly dependent upon (i.e., 
"derived from") the value of one (1) or more 
underlying securities, equity indices, debt 
instruments, conuitodities, olher derivative 
instruments, or any agreed•upon pricing 
index or arrangement (e.g., the mo\'entent 
over time of the Consumer Price Index or 
freight rates). Derivatives involYe the trading 
of rights or obligations based on Ote underly­
ing product, but dO not directly ttansfer prop­
erty. TJ1ey are used to hedge risk or to 
exchange a floaling ra1e of return for a fixed 
rate of return. 

(F) Fully distributed cost (FDC) means a 
methodology that examines all costs of an 
enterprise in relation to all the goods and ser­
vices that are produced. FDC requires rccog~ 
nition of all cosls incurred directly or indi­
rectly used to produce a good or service. 
Cos1s are assigned eilher through a direct or 
allocated approach. Cos1s that cannot be 
directly assigned or indirectly allocated (e.g •• 
general and administrative) must also be 
iucludcd in the FDC calculation through a 
general allocation. 

(G) Infomtation means any dala obtained by 
a regulated gas corporation that is not obtain­
able by nonaft11ia1ed enlities or cmt only be 
obtained at a competitively prohibitiYe cost in 
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either time or resources. 
(H) Long-term means a transaclion in ex­

cess of tl1irty-one (31) days. 
(I) Marketing affiliate means an affilialed 

entity which engages in or arranges a com­
mission-related sale of any natural gas ser­
vice or portion of gas service, to a shipper. 

(J) Opportunity sales means sales of 
unused contract enti1lemcn1s necessarily held 
by· a gas corporation to meet the daily and 
seasonal swings of its system customers and 
are intended to maximize utiliL1tion of assets 
tltat remain under re2,utation. 

(K) Prefcrcmial servke means informa­
tion, treatment or aclions by the regulated gas 
corporation which pJaces the affiliated entity 
at an unfair advanlage over ils competitors. 

(L) Regulated gas corporation means every 
gas corporation as defined in section 
386.0201 RSMo, subject to commission reg­
ulation pursuant to Chapter 393, RSMo. 

(M) Shippers means all current and poten­
tial trans_por1a1ion cus1omers on a regulated 
gas corporation's natural gas distribution sys­
tem. 

(N) Short-tenn means a transaclion of thir­
ty--0ne (31) days or less. 

(0) Transportation means the receipt of gas 
at one point on a regulated gas corpomtion's 
system and Ute redelh·ery of an equivalent 
volume of gas to Ute retail customer of the 
gas at another point on the regulated gas cor­
poration's system including, without limila­
tion, scheduling, balancing, peaking, slorage, 
and exchange to the extent such services are 
provided pursuant to the regul~ted gas corpo­
ration's tariff, and includes opportunity sales. 

(P) Unfair advantage means an advantage 
that cannot be obtained by nonafiiliated enti­
ties or can only be obtained at a competili\'Cw 
ly proWbiti\'e cost in either lime or resources. 

(Q) Variance means an exemption granted 
by the commission from any applicable slan­
dard required pursuant to this rule, 

(2) Nondiscrimination Standards. 
(A) Nondiscrimination standards under 

this section apply 1n cmtjunction with all the 
standards under this rule and control when a 
similar standard overlaps. 

(B) A regulated gas corpora1ion shall apply 
all tariff provisions relating to transportation 
in the sante manner to customers similarly 
situated whether t.hey use affiliated or nonaf­
filiated marketers or brokers. 

(C) A regulated gas corporation shall uniM 
fonnly enforce its lariff provisions for all 
shippers. 

(D) A regulated gas corporotion sl1all 1101, 
tluough a tariff provision or otherwise, gi\'e 
its marketing affiliate and/or its customers 
any preference over a customer using a non-
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afliliatcd marketer in matters relating to 
transportation or curtailment priority. 

(E) A regulated gas corporation shall not 
give any customer ,,sing its marketing affili­
ate a prefert::nce, in the processing of a 
request for 1ranspor1ation services, o,•er a 
customer using a non"affiliatcd marketer, 
specific.ally including lhe ma1fner and timing 
of such processing. 

{F) A regulated gas corporation shall not 
disclose or cause to be disclosed to its mar· 
keling affiliate or any nonaffiHated marketer 
any information that it receh·es Uirough its 
processing of rcqucs(s for or provision of 
transporlation. 

(G) If a regulated gas corporado11 provides 
information related to trn1isporlalion which is 
not readily available or genera11y known to 
other marketers 10 a cus1omer using a mar­
keting affiliate, it shall provide that informaM 
lion (electronic fonna_t, phone call, facsimile, 
etc.) c<intemporaneoi1sly 10 a]l rionilffiliated 
marketers transporting on its distrmution Sys­
tem. 

(H) A regulated gas corporation shall not 
condition or lie an offer or agreement to pro­
vide a transportation discount to a shipper lo 
any service in which the marketing affiliate is 
im'Ol\'ed. Jf the regulated gas corporation 
seeks to provide a discount for transportation 
to any shipper using a marketing affiliate. the 
regulated gas corporation shall, subject 10 an 
appropriate protective order-

1. File for approval of the transaction 
with the commission and provide a copy to 
the Office of the Public Counsel; 

2. Disclose whether the marketing affil­
iate of the regulated gas corporation is the gas 
supplier or brokc·r serving lhe shipper; 

3. File quarterly public i'eporls which 
provide the aggregate periodic and cumulaM 
tl\•e number of trailiportation discounts pro­
vided by the regulated gas corporation; and 

4. Provide the aggregate number of such 
agreements which hwol\'e shippers for whom 
the regulated gas corporation's markeli.ng 
affiliate is ·or was at the time of tl1e granting 
of the discount the gas supplier or broker. 

(I) A regulated gas corporation shall not 
make opportunity sales directly to a customer 
of its marketing affiliate or to its marketing 
affiliate unless such supplies and/or capacity 
are made available to other similarly situa1ed 
customers using nonaffiliated marketers on 
an idenlkal basis given the nature of the 
lransaclions. 
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(J) A regulated gas corporation shall not 
condition or tie agreements (including prear­
ranged capacity release) for U1e release of 
interstale or intrastate pipeline capacily to 
any service in which the marketing affiliate is 
involved under terms not offered to nonaffil­
iated companies and their customers. 

(K) A regulated gas corporation shall 
mnintain its books of account and records 
completely sepi\rate and apart from those of 
the nmrkcting affiliate, 

(L) A regulated gas corporation is prohib~ 
ited from giving any customer using its mar­
keting affiliate preference with respect to any 
tariff provisions lhat provide discrctionaiy 
waivers. 

(M) A regulated gas corporation shall 
maintain records when il is made a,vare of 
any marketing complaint against an affiliated 
entily~ · 

1. The records should contain a log 
detailing the date the complain! ms rcceh·cd 
by the regulated gas corporation, the name of 
the complainant, a brief description of the 
complaint and, as applicable, how it has been 
resol\'cd. If Ute complaint has not been 
recorded by the regulated gas corporation 
within thirty (30) days, aa explanation for the 
delay must be recorded, 

(N) A regulated gas corporation will not 
communicate to any customer, supplier or 
Utird parties that any advantage may accrue to 
such customer1 supplier or third party in the 
use of the regulated gas corporation's ser­
vices as a result of that customer, supplier or 
third party dealing with ils marketing affiliate 
and .shall rerrain from giving any appearance 
that it speaks on behalf of its affiliated entity. 

(0) If a customer requests information 
about a markeling affiliate, the regulated gas 
corporation may provide the requested inforM 
mat ion but shall also provide a list of all mar­
keters operating on its system. 

(3) Standards. 
(A) A regula1cd gas corpora1ion shall not 

provide a fmancia1 advantage to an affiliated 
entity. For the purposes of this rule, a regu• 
lated gas corporation shall be deemed to pro­
vide a fmancial advantage to an affiliated 
entity if-

1. It compensates an affiliated entity for 
information, assels, goods or services above 
the lesser of-

A. The fair market price; or 
B. The fully distributed cost to 1he 

regulated gas corporation to provide the 
information, assets, goods or services for 
itself; or 

2, It transfers information, assets, goods 
or services of any kind to ;m affiliated entity 
below the greater of-

(9/30/19} JOHH R, ASHCROFT 
Sec,elary of Stale 
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A. The fair mrukct price; or 
D. The fully distribu1ed cost to the 

regulated gas corporation. 
{B) Except as necessary to provide corpo• 

rate support functions, thC regulated gas .cor­
pomtioh shall conduct its business in such a 
way as not to provide any preferl!nlial service, 
inforuiatiOn or treatment to an affiliated enli­
ty over auotJ1er party at any time._ 

(C) Specific customer infonnation_ shall be 
made available to affilialed or unaffilfoted 
entities only upon consent of the customer or 
as otherwise provided by law or commission 
rules or orders. General or aggregated cus­
tomer information shall be made available to 
affiliated or unaffilia!ed entities upon similar 
terms and conditions. The regulated gas cor­
poration may set re.asonahle charges for costs 
incurred in producing customer information. 
Customer infonnation includes infonnation 
provided to the regulaled utility by affiliated 
or unafl11iated entllies, 

(D) The regulated gas corporation shall not 
participate in any affiliated transactions 
which are not in compliance with this rule, 
except as othenvise provided in section (I I) 
of this rule. 

(E) If a customer requests Informalion 
from the regulated gas corporation about 
goods or servkes provMed by an affiliated 
entily, the regulated gas corporation may pro­
vide inforrmHion about the affiliate but must 
infonn the customer that regulated services 
are not tied to the use of an affiliate provider 
and that other service providers may be avail­
able. Except with respect to affiliated and 
nonaffiliated gas marketers wliich are 
addressed in section (2) of this rule, the reg­
ttlated gas corporation may provide reference 
to other service providers or to commercial 
listings, but is not required to do so. The reg­
ulated gas corporation shaH include in its 
annual Cost Allocation Manual (CAM), the 
criteria. guidelines and procedures it will fol­
low lo be in compliance with the rule, 

(F) Marketing materials, infom1ation or 
ad\'ertisements by an affiliate en1ity that sl1are 
an exact or similar name, logo or lradernark 
of lhe regulated utility shall clearly display or 
announce that the affilia1e e111ily is not regu­
lated by the Missouri Public Service 
Commission. 

(4) Evidentiary Standards for Affiliate 
Transactions. 

(A) When a regulated gas corporation pur­
chases information, assets, goods or services 
from an affiliated entity, the regulated gas 
corporation shall either obtain competitive 
bids for such infom1a1ion, assets, goods or 
services or demonstrate why competili\'e bids 
were neilhcr necessary nor appropdate. 

Jom1 R. ASHCROFT (9/30/19) 
Secretary of Stale 

(R) ln transactions that involye either the 
purchase or receipt of information, assels, 
goods or services by a regulated gas corpora­
tion from an affiliated entity. the regulated 
gas corporation shall document both the fair 
market price of such infom1ation, assets. 
goods and services and· the fully distributed 
cost to the regula1ed gas corporation to pro­
duce the information, assets, goods or ser­
vices for itself. 

(C) Jn transactions that in\'olve the provi­
sion of infornlation, asse1s, goods or services 
to affiliated entities, the regulated gas corpo· 
ration must demonstrate that it-

1. Considered all cosls incurred to com­
plete the transaction: 

2. Calculated the costs at times relevant 
to the transaction; 

3. Allocated all joint and common costs 
approprfately; and 

4. Adequately detennined the fair mar­
ket price of the informalion, assets, goods or 
services, 

(D) In transactions_ involving the purchase 
of infomiation, assets, goods or services by 
the regulated gas corporation from an affili­
ated entity, the regulated gas corporation will 
use a commissicn·3IlJlrcved CAM which sels 
forth cost allrn:ation, market valua1ion and 
internal cost methods. This CAM can use 
bench marking practices tl1at can conslitute 
compliance with the market value require• 
ments of this section if approved by the com• 
mission. 

(5) Record Keeping Requirements. 
(A) A regulated gas corporation shall 

111ai111ain books, accounls and records sepa­
rate from those of its affiliates. 

(B) Each regulated gas corporation shall 
maintain the-following informa1ion in a nmtu­
ally agreed-to electronic formal (i.e .• agree• 
ment between the staff, Office of the Public 
Counsel and the regulated gas corporation) 
regarding affiliate transactions on a calendar 
year basis and shall provide such information 
to the commission staff and the Office of the 
Public Cou11sel on, or before, March 15 of 
the succeeding year: 

1. A full and complete list of all affiliat­
ed entities as defined by this rule; 

2. A full and complete list of all goods 
and services provided to or received from 
affilialcd entities; 

3. A full and complete list of all con• 
tracts entered with affiliated entities; 

4. A full and complete list of all a(filiate 
transactions undertaken with affiliated enli• 
ties without a written contrnct together wjth a 
brief explanation of why there \vas no con­
tract; 

5. The amount of all affiliate transac• 
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tions, by affiliated entity and account 
charged; and 

6. The basis used (e.g., market value, 
book value, etc.) 10 record each type of affil­
iate transaction. 

(C) In addition each regulated gas corpora­
lion shal_l maintain the following information 
regarding affiliate transactions ou a calendar 
year basis; 

J. Records identifying U1e basis used 
(e.g., fair market price, fully distributed cost, 
etc.) to record all affiliate transactions; and 

2. Books of accounts and supporting 
records in sufficient detail to permit \'Crifica­
lion of compliance with this rule. 

(6) Records of Affiliated Entities. 
(A) Each regulated gas corporation shall 

ensure that its parent and any 01hcr affiliated 
entities maintain books and records that 
include, at a minimum, the following infor­
mation regarding affiliate transactions: 

1. Documentation of the costs associated 
with affiliale transactions that are incurred by 
the parent or aOiliate and charged lo the reg­
ulated gas corporation; 

2. Documen1a1ion of the methods used 
to allocate and/or share cos!s between affili­
ated entities, including other jurisdictions 
and/or corporate divisions; 

3. Description of cosls that are not sub­
ject to allocation 10 affiliate transactions and 
documenlation supporling the nonassigmnent 
of these costs to affiliate tr-ansactions; 

4. Descriptions of the types of services 
that corporate divisions and/or other central­
ized functions provided to any affiliated enti­
ty or division accessing the regulated gas cor­
poration's contrac!ed services or facilities; 

5. Nanles and job descriptions of the 
employees from U1e regulated gas corponl!ion 
that transferred to a nonregulated affiliated 
entity; 

6. Evaluations of the effect on the relia­
bility of services provided by the regulated 
gas corporation resulling from the access to 
regulated contracts and/or facilities by affili­
ated cntiliesj 

7. Policies regarding the availability of 
customer jnforrna1ion and the access to ser­
vices available 10 nonregulated affiliated enti­
ties de.siring use of the r~gulated gas corpora­
tion's contracts and facilities; a11d 

8. Descriptions of, and supporting doc­
umentation refated to, any use of derivalh·es 
that may be related to the regulated gas car~ 
µoration's operation even though obtained by 
the parent or affilialed entity. 

(7) Access to Records of Affiliated Entities. 
(A) To 0te extent pemlitted by applicable 

law1 and pursuant to established commission 
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discovery procedures, a regulated gas corpo­
ra.lion shall make available the books and 
records of its parent and any other affiliated 
eniities when required in t11e app1ication of 
this role, 

(B) The commission shall have the author-
ity to- · 

1. Review, inspect and audit books, 
accounts and other records kept by a regulat­
ed gas corporation or affiliated entity for the 
sole purpose of ensuring comp1iance with this 
rule and make findings av·ailable to lhe com­
mission; and 

2. Investigate the operations of a regu­
lated gas corporation or affiliated entity and 
their refalionship to each other for the sole 
purpose of ensuring compliance with this 
rule. 

(C) This rule does not 1nodify e.xisti.ng 
fogal standards regarding which party has the 
burden of proof in commission proceedings, 

(8) Record Relention. 
(A) Records required under 1his rule shall 

be maintained by each regulated gas corpora­
tion for a period of not less than six (6) years. 

(9) Enforcement. 
(A) When enforcing these standards, or 

any order of the conunission regarding these 
standards, the commission may apply any 
remedy available to the commission. 

( lO) The regulated gas corporation shall tr-~in 
and advise its personnel as to the require­
ments and provisions of this rule as appropri­
ate to ensure compliance. 

(II) Variances. 
(A) A variance from the standards in this 

rule may be obtained by compliance with 
paragraphs (ll)(A)l. or (ll)(A)2. The grant• 
ing of a variance to one regulated gas coq10-
ration does not constitute a wah·er respecting 
or otherwise affect the required compliance 
of any other regulated gas corporation to 
comply with the standards. The scope of a 
variance will be determined based on lhe 
facts and circumstances (ound in support of 
the application-

!. The regu1ated gas corporation s11all 
reque5t a variance upon wriuen application in 
accordance with conunission procedures set 
out in 4 CSR 240-2.060(1 I); or 

2. A regulated gas corporation may 
engage in an affiliate transaction not In com­
pliance with the standards set out in subsec­
tion (2)(A) of ~,is rule, when to its best 
knowledge and belief, compliance with the 
standards would not be in the best interests of 
its regulated customers and it complies wilh 
the procedures required by subparagraphs 
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(ll)(A)2.A. and (ll)(A)2.B. ofd1is rule­
A. All reports and record retention 

rtquiremcnls for each affiliate transaction 
must be complied with; and 

D. Notice of the noncomplying affili­
ate transaction shall be filed wilh the secre­
tary of the commission and the Office of lhe 
Public Counsel wil.hin ten (JO) days of the 
occurrence of thC noncomplying affiliate 
transaction. The notice shall provide a 
detailed explanation of why the affiliate trans­
action should be exempted from the require~ 
ments of subsection (2)(A), and shall provide 
a detailed explanation of how the affiliate 
transaction WilS in the best interests of Ute 
regulated cuslomers. Within thirly (30) days 
of t11e notice of the noncomplying affiliate 
transaction, any party shall have t11e dght to 
request a hearing regarding the noncomply­
ing affiliate transaction. The commission may 
grant or deny the request for hearing at that 
time. If the commission denies a request for 
hearing, the denial shall not in any way prej­
udice a party's ability to challenge the affili­
ate transaction at 1he lime of the annual CAM 
filing. At the time of the filing of the regulat­
ed gas corporation's annual CAM filing I.he 
regulated gas corporation shall provide to the 
secretary of the conunission a listing of all 
noncomplying affiliate transactions which 
occurred between the period of the last filing 
and the current filing. Any aOiliate transac­
tion submilted pursuant to lhis section shall 
remain lnt~rim, subject to disa1fowance, 
pending final conuuission dc!cnninatlon on 
whether the noncomplying affiliate transac­
tion resu11ed ju the best interests of the regu~ 
lated customers, 

(l2) Nothing comalned in this rule and no 
action by lhe commission under this rule shall 
be construed to appro\'e or exempt any activ­
ity or arrangement that would violate the 
anlilrust laws of the state of Missouri or of 
the United States or to limit the rights of any 
person or entity under those laws; 

AUTHORITY: sections 386.250, RSMo Supp. 
1998 and 393.140, RSMo /994. • This mle 
originally filed as 4 CSR 240-40.016, 
Original mle filed April 26, 1999, efjectil'e 
Feb. 29, 2000. Moi·ed to 20 CSR 4240-
10.016, ~ffectil'e Aug. 28, 2019. 

*OFigi11al awhqrlty: 386,25<), RS.\lo 1939, amended 
1961, 1967, 1977, 19M, 1987, 1988, 1991, 1991, 1995, 
1996 1111d J9J, UO, RS,\lo 1939, (Ulltlldid 19./9, 1967. 
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Affillale Transactions 

PURPOSE: This rule prescribes the require­
mems for H\?tC sen-ices affiliated e1J1ities 
and regulated gas corporatlo11s whe11 such 
gas corpomtio11s participate ill q[Jiliated 
1ramac1lo11s with an HVAC affiliafed_e11tity as 
se1 forth in sec1io11s 386. 754, 386. 756, 
386. 760, 386. 762 and 386. 764, RSMo by /he 
Geneml Assembly of the State of Missouri. 

(1) Definitions. 
(A) Affiliated entity means any entity not 

r~gulalcd by the Public Servke Commission 
which is ow11ed, controlled by or under com­
mon control with a utility and is engaged in 
HVAC services. 

(D) Control (includh1g U1e terms "control­
ling," "controlled by," and "common con· 
trol") means the possession, directly or indi­
rectly, of the power to direct, or to cause t11e 
direction of the management or policies of an 
entity, whether such power is exercised 
through one (1) or more intermediary cnti-
1ies, or alone, or in conjunction with, or pur­
suam to an agreement with, one (1) or more 
other entities, whether such power is exer­
cised through a majority or minority owner­
ship or voting of securities, con:u11on direc• 
tors, officers or stockholders, yoting trusts, 
holding trusls, affiliated entities, contract or 
any other direct or indirect means. The Com­
mission shall presume tl1at the beneficial 
ownership of more than ten percent (10%) of 
Yoting securit_ies or partnership interest of an 
entity confers control for purposes of this 
rule. This provision, however, shall not be 
construed to prohibit a regulated gas corpora­
tion from rebuuing the presumption 1hat its 
ownership interest in an entity confers con­
trol. 

(C) Fully distributed cost means a method­
ology that examines all costs of an enterprise 
in rela1io11 to all t11e goods and services that 
are produced. Fully distributed cost requires 
recognition of all cosls incurred directly or 
indirectly used to produce a good or service. 
Costs arc assigned either through a direct or 
allocaled approach. Costs tliat cannot be 
directly assigried or indirec1ly allocated (e.g. 
general and administrnlive) must also be 
included in the fully dislributcd cost cafc\lfa­
tion through a general allocation. 

(D) HVAC services means the warranty, 
sale, lease, rental, installation, construction, 
modernization, retrofit, maintenance or 
repair of heating1 ventilating and air condi• 
tioning (HVAC) equipment. 

(E) Regulated gas corporation means a gas 
corporation as defined in section 386.020, 
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RSMo, subject to commission regulalion pur­
suant to Chapter 393, RSMo. 

(F) Utility conltactor means a person, 
including an individual, corporntion, firm, 
incorporated or unincorporated association or 
oUter business or legal entity, that contrncls, 
whether in wri1ing or not in writing, with a 
regulated ga_s torporation to engage in or 
assist any entity in engaging in HVAC ser­
vices, but docs not include cmp!O}'ees of a 
regulated gas corporation. 

(2) A regulated gas corporation may 1101 
engage in HVAC services, except by an affil­
iated entity, or as provided in sections (8) and 
(9) ofU1is rule, 

(3) No affiliated entity or utility contractor 
may use any \'ehicles, service tools, instru­
ments, employees, or any otl1er regulated gas 
corporation assets, the cost of which are 
reco\'erable in the regulated rales for regulat• 
ed gas corporation service, lo engage in 
HVAC services unless the regulated gas cor­
poration is compensaled for the use of .such 
assets at the fully distribu1ed cost 10 the reg­
ulated gas corporalion. 

(A) The determination of a regulaled gas 
corporation's cost in this section is defined in 
subsection (I)(D) of this rule. 

(4) A regulated gas corpomtion may not use 
or allow any affiJiated entity or utilily con­
tractor to use the name of such regulated gas 
corporation to engage in HVAC services 
unless the regulated gas corporation, affiliat­
ed entity or mility contractor discloses, in 
plain vie\V and iii bold type on die same page 
as the name is used on all ad\'er1iseme11ts or 
in plain audible language during all solicila­
tions of such services, a disclaimer that states 
the services provided are not regulated by the 
commission. 

(5) A regulated gas corporation may not 
engage in or assist any affiliated entity or uiil­
ity contractor in engaging In HVAC services 
in a manner which subsidizes the activi1ies of 
such regulated gas corporation, affiliated 
entity or utility coritractor lo Uie extent of 
changing the ra(e.s or charges for the regulat• 
ed gas corporation's services above or below 
the rates or charges that would be in effect if 
the regulated gas corporation were not 
engaged in or assisting any affiliated entity or 
utilily contractor in engaging in such aclivi~ 
ties. 

(6) Any affiliated entities or utility co11lrac~ 
tors e11gaged in HVAC services shall maintain 
accounts, books and reeords separate and dis­
tinct from the regulated gas corporation. 

JOHii R. ASHCROFT (9}30/19) 
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(7) The provisions of this rule shall apply to 
any affiliated entity or utility contractor 
engaged in HVAC services lllat is owned, 
controlled or under common control wHh the 
regulated gas corporation providing regula1cd 
services in the state of Missouri or any other 
slate. 

(8) A regulated gas corporation engaging in 
HVAC services in the state of Missouri five 
(5) years prior lo August 28, 1998, may con• 
tinue providing, to existing as well as new 
customers, the same type of services as those 
provided by the regulated gas corporation 
live (5) years prior to August 28, 1998. 

(A) To qualify for this exemption, the reg­
ulated gas corporruion shall file a p1eading 
before the commissloit ror approval. 

1. The commission may establish a case 
to determine if the regulated gas corporation 
qualifies for an exemplion under this rule. 

(9) The provisions of this section shall not be 
construed to prohibit a regulated gas corpora­
tion from providing cm~rgency service, pro­
viding any service required by law or provid­
ing a program pursuant to an exis1ing 1arlff, 
rule or order of the commission, 

AUTHORITY: sectio11r 386.760.J, RSMo 
S11pp. /998 and 393. 140, RSMo 1994. * This 
rule orig/ual/y filed as 4 CSR 240-40.017. 
Original rule filed Dec. 17. 1998, ~ffectfre 
Aug. 30, 1999. Mol'ed to 20 CSR 4240-
40.017, eb'ettire Aug. 28, 2019. 

•original autMri,y: JM.710.1, RS.llo1998011d J9J.1.f(), 
RSMo 1939, ommlt1l 1949, /967. 

20 CSR 4240-40.018 Natural Gas Price 
,ulalility Millga!lou 

PURPOSE: 17lis mle represe111s a sratemem 
of commlss/011 policy that uatuml gas local 
distrib111io11 compan;es should undertake 
dfrersijied 110/ural gas purchasing actMlies 
as pan of a pmdelll e_ffort to mitigate upward 
11awral gas price rolatillty and secure ade­
quate 11arural gas supplies for /heir cus­
tomers. 

(I) Natural Gas Supply Plamtlng Efforts to 
Ensure Price S1ability. 

(A) As part of a prudent planning effort to 
secure adequate natural gas supplies for their 
customers, natural gas utilities should struc­
ture their portfolios of co111rac1s with various 
supply and pricing provisions in an effort to 
mitigale upward natural gas price spikes, and 
provide a level of stability of delivered natural 
gas prices. 

(D) In making U1is planning effort, natural 
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gas utilities should consider the use of a 
broad array of pricing structures, mecha­
nisms, and inslruments, including, but not 
limited to, those items described in (2)(A) 
through (2)(H), to balance market price risks, 
benefits, and_ price stability. Each of these 
mechanisms may be desirnble in certain cir­
cumstanus, but each has i.mique risks and 
costs lhat require evaluation by the natural 
gas utility in each circumstance. Financial 
gains or losses associated with price volatility 
mi1igation Cfforts are flowed through the 
Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) mecha­
nism, subject to the applicable provisions of 
the naturnl gas utilitfs tariff and applicable 
prudence review procedures. 

(C) Part of a natural gas utility's balanced 
portfolio may be higher than spot market 
price at times, and Ulis is recognized as a pos­
sible reSuU -of prudent efforts lo dampen 
upw.1rd \'Olalility. 

(2) Pricing Structures, Mechanisms and 
Instmments: 

(A) Natural Gas Storage; 
(B) Fixed Price Contracts; 
(C) Coll Options; 
(D) Collars; 
(E) Outsourcing/ Agency Agreemenlsj 
(F) Futures Contracts; and 
(G) Financial Sw·aps and Options from 

O\•er the Counter Markets; and 
(H) Olher tools utilized in the market for 

cost-effective management of price and/or 
usage \'olatility. 

AUTHORITY: sections 386.250, RSMo 2000 
and 393.130, RSMo Supp. 2003. • 17,is rule 
originally filed as 4 CSR 240-40.018. 
Original rule filed May I, 2003, ~(fectil'e 
Dec. 30, 2003. Mo1·ed to 20 CSR 4240-
40.018, ejfect/1•e Ang. 28, 2019. 

•otiglnal authority: 186,250, RSMo 1939, anwlde,i 
1963. 1967, 1971, 19P-IJ, 1987, 1988, 1991,/99], 1995, 
JIJ96; J9].IJO, RS.Ho 1939, Qnl-{11(/ed 1967. /969, 2001. 

20 CSR 4240-40,020 lncldenl, Annual, and 
Sarety-Rclatcd Condlllou Reporting Rc­
qulremenls 

PURPOSE: V1ls mle prescribes requirements 
anti procedures for reporllng certain gas­
related i11cidems and safety-related condi­
tions and for filing annual repor/s. It applies 
to gas systems subject to the safety jurisdic­
tion of the Public Senrice Commission. 

PUBLISHER'S NOTE: 17,e secretary of slate 
has de1ermi11ed that the p11blica1ion of lhe 
emire text of th? material which is incorpo­
mted by reference as a porlion of this mle 
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(B) 'fhe reference to "state p-rocedures" in 
section 193.2017 s11ould refer to "commis­
sion procedures" instead; 

(C) The reference in 49 CPR 193.2011 to 
"Part 191 of this subchaptcr" for reporting of 
incidents, safety-related conditions, and 
annual pipeline summary d;ua for LNG 
plants or facilities should refer to 4 CSR 240-
40.020 instead; 

(D) The rererence in 49 CPR 193.2605 to 
"Part 191.23 of this subchapter" for report­
ing requiremenls for safety related conditions 
should refer lo 4 CSR 240-40.020(12) 
instead; 

(E) The reference in 49 CPR 193.2001 lo 
"Part 192 of this chapter" for applicability of 
lite standards should refer to 4 CSR 240-
40.030 instead; 

(F) The reference in 49 CFR 193.2629 to 
"section 192.461 of this chapter" for protec­
tive coatings should refer to 4 CSR 240-
40.030(9)(0)" instead; and 

(G) The references h1 49 CFR 193.2629 
and 193.2635 to "section 192.463 of tl1is 
chapter" for cathodic protection should refer 
to 4 CSR 240-40.030(9)(H) instead, 

(4) The federal pipeline safety regulations for 
liquefied natural gas (49 CPR part 193) 
adopted in section (2) of this rule contain 
subparts on general, siting requirements, 
design, construction, equipment, operations, 
maintenance, personnel qualifications and 
training, fire protection, and security. 

(A) The general subpa'tt contains Sections 
on: scope, applicability, definitions, 
Department of Transportation (DOf) rules of 
regulatory construction reporting, documems 
incorporated by reference, plans and proce­
dures, and mobile and tem1mrary liquefied 
natural gas facilities. 

(B) The siting requirements subpart con­
tains sections on: scope, thermal radiation 
prolecdon, flammable vapor-gas dispersion 
protec1ion, and wind forces. 

(C) The design subpart contains sections 
on: scope, material records, structural 
requiremenls for impoundmcnt systems, 
dikes, covered systems, water removal and 
impoundment capacily, and rcquircmertts per­
taining to nonmetallic membrane liners in 
storage tanks. 

(D) The construction subparl contains sec­
tions on: scope, construction acceptance, cor­
rosion control, and nondestructi\•e tests for 
welds. 

(E) The equipmeut subpart contains sec­
tions on: scope, control center, and sources of 
power. 

(F) The operations subpart contains sec­
tions on: scope, operating procedures, 
cooldown, monitoring operations, emergency 
procedures, personnel safely, transfer proce­
dures, investigations of failures, purging, 
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communication systems1 and operating 
records. 

(G) The mainte1tance subpart contains sec­
tions on: scope, general, maintenance proce­
dures, foreign material, support systen1s, fire 
protection, auxiliary power soUrces, Isolating 
and purging, repairs, control systems, 1esting 
1ransfer hoses, inspecting storage tanks, cor­
rosion protection, almosphcric corrosion 

-control, external corrosion control, internal 
corrosion control, interference currems, 
monitoring corrosion control, remedial mea­
sures, and JU3intenance records. 

(H) The personnel qualifications and train­
ing subpart contains sections on: scope, 
design and fabrication, construction, installa­
tion, inspection and tesling, operations and 
maintenance, security, personnel health, 
operations and maintenance training, security 
training, fire protection trainh1g, and records 
ti-aining. 

(I) The fire protection subpart contains a 
scclion on fire protection. 

(J) The security subpart contains sections 
on: scope, security procedures, protective 
enclosures, protccli\'e enclosure construction, 
-security communications, security lighting, 
security monitoring, alternative power 
i.ources, aud warning signs. 

AUTHORITY: sectiOIIS 386.250, 386. 310, a11d 
393.140, RSMo 2016. • 111is rule origi11al/y 
filed as 4 CSR 240-40.033. E111erge11cy mle 
filed Dec. 19, 2018, ~{fectfre Dec. 29, 2018, 
expired June 26, 2019. Origillal rule filed 
Dec. 20, 2018, ef[eclfre J11/y 30, 2019, Mo1•ed 
to 20 CSR 4240-40.033, ejfectfre Aug. 28, 
2019. 

t-Q,lglllaf 0111ho1ity: 386.250, R,i\fo 1939, onwnded 
196), 1%7, 1977, 19SO, 1987, 1938, 1991, 1993, 1995, 
1996; 386.Jl(), RS.\to /939, nmtndtd 19'79. 1989, 1996; 
ni:d 391.NO, 'llS.1/o 1939, ommtftd 19-19, 1967. 

20 CSR 4240-40.040 Uniro.-111 S)>lem of 
Accounts-Gas Corporalious 

PURPOS&: 1llis mle directs gas compa11ies 
wilhi11 the commission's jurisdiclio11 lo use 
lhe 1111iform system of acco11111s prescribed by 
Ille Federal Energy Regulatory Commissio11 
for major nafflral gas compm1ies, as modified 
herein. Requirements regarding the submis­
s/011 of depreciation sludies, databases and 
propefly unit catalogs are found at 4 CSR 
240-3.235 and 4 CSR 240-3.275. 

(1) Dcginning January I, 1994, eyery ga.'i 
company subject 10 the commission1s juris­
diction shall keep all accounts in conformity 
with the Unifom1 System of Accounts Pre­
scribed for Natural Gas Companies Subject 
to tlle Provisions of the Natural Gas Act, as 
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prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC} and published at 18 
CFR part 201 (1992) and 2 FERC Stat. & 
Regs. paragraph 20,001 and following 
(1992), except as otherwise provided in this 
nJle, This uniform system of accoums pro­
vides instruction for recording financial 
information about gas corporations. It con­
tains definitionsj general instructionsj gas 
plant instructions; operating expense instrnc­
tions; accoums that comprise the balance 
sheet, gas plant, income, operating revenues, 
and operation and maintenance expenses. 

(2) When implementing 4 CSR 240-
40.040(1), each gas company subject to the 
commission's jurisdiction shall-

(A) Keep its accounts in the manner and 
detail specified for natural gas companies clas­
sified as "major" al Part 201 General 
fns1ructions l .A. and paragraph 20,011.1.A.; 
and 

(B) Assemble by July 1, 1996 and maintain 
after that, a properly unit catalog which con­
tains for each designa1ed property unit, in 
addilion to the provisions of Part 201 General 
Jnsuuctions 6. and paragraph 20,016-

1. A description of each unit; 
2. An item list; and 
3. Accounting instructions, including 

instructions for dislinguishing between oper­
ations expense, maintenance expense and 
capitalized plant improvements, 

(3) Regarding plalll acquired or placed in ser­
vice al1er 1993, when implementing section 
(1)1 each gas corporation subject to the com­
mission's jurisdiction shall-

(A) Mahttain plant records of the year of 
each unit's retirement as part of the ucontin­
uing plant inventory records,,. as the' term is 
otherwise defiI1ed at Part 201 Definitions 8. 
and paragraph 20,001.8.; 

(B) Stale the detailed gas plant accounts 
(301 to 399, inclusive) on the basis of origi­
nal cosl, eslimatcd if not known, when imple­
menting the provisions of Part 201 Gas Plant 
Instructions 1.C. and paragraph 20,041.1.C.; 

(C) Record gas plant acquired as an oper­
ating unit or system at Qriginal cost, estimat­
ed if not known, except as othcrwjse provided 
by the text of the intangible plant accounts, 
when implementing the provisions of Part 
201 Gas Plant Instructions 2.A. and para­
graph 20,042.2.A.; 

(D) Account for the cost of items not clas­
sified as units of property as it would account 
for the cost of individual items of equipment 
of small value or of short life, as provided in 
Part 201 Gas Plant Instructions 3.A.(3) and 
paragraph 20,043.3.A.(3); 

(E) Jnclude in equipment accounts any 
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hand or other portable tools which arc specif­
ically designated as units of property, when 
implementing the provisions of Part 201 Gas 
Plant Instructions 9.B. and paragraph 
20,049.9.R; 

(F) Use the list of retirement units con­
tained in its properly unit calalog when 
implementing the provisions of P.art 201 Gas 
Plant Instruclions 10.A. and paragraph 
20,050.10.A.; 

(G) Estimate original cost with an appro­
priate average of'the original cost of the unils 
by vimage year, with due allowance for any 
difforencc in size and character, when it is 
impracticable 10 detemiine the original cost 
of each unit, when implementing the provi­
sions of Part 201 Gas Plant Instructions 
10.D. and paragraph 20,050.10.D.; 

(H) Charge original cost less net salvage to 
account 108., when implementing the provi­
sions of Part 201 Gas Plant Jns1ruc1ions 10.F. 
and paragraph 20,0.10.10.R; 

(I) Keep its work order system 50 as to 
show the nature of each addition 10 or retire­
ment of gas plant by vintage year, in addition 
to lhe other requirements of Part 201 Gas 
Plant Instructions 11.B. and paragraph 
20,051.11.D.; 

(J) Maintain records which classify, for 
each plant account, the amounts of the annual 
additions and retirements so as to shmY the 
number and cost of the various record units 
or retirement units by vintage year, when 
implementing the provisions of P.ul 201 Gas 
Plant Instructions 11.C. and paragraph 
20,051.11.C.; 

(K) Maintain subsidiary records which 
separate account l08. according to primary 
plant accounts or subaccouuts when imple­
menting Ute provisions of .Part 201 Balance 
Sheet Account 108.C. and paragraph 
20,011.108.C.; 

(L) :Maintain subsidiary records which sep­
arate account 111. according to primary plant 
accounts or subaccounts when implementing 
the provisions of Part 201 Balance Sheet 
Accounts 111.C. and paragcaph 
20,114.111.C.; and 

(M) Keep mortality records of property 
and property retirement as will reflect the 
average life of retiring property and will aid 
actuarial analysis of the probable service life 
of annual. addilions and aged re1iremen1s 
when implementing the provisions of P.ut 
201 Income Accounts 403.B. and paragraph 
20,422.403.D. 

(4) In prescribing this syslem of accounts the 
commission does not commit itself to the 
approval or acceptance of any item set out in 
any account, for Ute purpose of fixing rates or 
in detennining other matters before the com~ 

JOHii R. ASHCROft (9/30/19) 
Secretary of Slate 

mission. 111is rule shall not be construed as 
waiving any rccordkccpi11g requirement in 
effect prior to 1994. 

(5) The commission may waive or grant a 
,iariance from the prO\•isions of this rule, in 
whole or in part, for good cause shown, upon 
a ulility's written application. 

AUTHORITY: sectio11s 386.250 and 393.140, 
RSMo 20()(). + 111is rule originally filed as 4 
CSR 240-40.040. Original mlejiled Dec. 19, 
1975, effectil'e Dec. 29, 1975. Amended: 
Filed April 26, 1976, effectfre Sepl. 11, 1976. 
Amended: Filed Feb. 5, 1993, e.ffectl\'e Oct. 
10, 1993. Amended: Filed Marc// 19, 1996, 
effectfre Oct. 30, 1996. Amended: Filed Aug. 
16, 2002, ((feclil'e April 30, 20()3. MOl'ed to 
20 CSR 4240-40.040, effective Alig. 28, 
2019. 

•Otigl11al authority: 186.250, RJj/o 1939, anJtndtd 
J96J, 1967, 1977. 1980. 1987. 1988. 1991, 1993, 1995, 
/996," and J9J.N0, RS..\Jo 1939, a111fndtd 19./9, 1967. 

20 CSR 4240-40,080 Drug nnd Alcohol 
Testing 

PURPOSE: V1is mle atlopts the federal reg­
ulatiom 011 1/lis subject ma11er that apply to 
operators of gas systems. The rule requires 
operators of gas systems to test certain 
employees for the presence of prohibiled 
drugs or alcohol and prO\•ide a,1 employee 
assistance program. /11 addition, the rule pro­
vides a description of the teclmica/ proce­
dures which must be utilil.ed in conductillg 
the dmg aud alcohol testing. The mle applies 
to operators of gas systems subject to lite 
safety jurirdic1io11 of lite Public Sen•ice 
Commirsio11. 

PUBLISHER'S NOTE: 17,e secretary of state 
has detenni11ed Iha/ Jhe publication of lite 
entire le.YI of Jhe material which is iucorpomt­
ed by reference as a portion of Jl1is rule would 
be unduly cumbersome or expemfre. This 
malerial as incorporated by reference h, (his 
rule shall be mailllaiued by the agency al ifs 
headquarters aud shall be made amilable to 
the public for i11spectlo11 anti copying al 110 
more than the actual cost of reproduc1lo11. 
1111s 1I0/e applies 011/y to the reference materi­
al. 111e entire text of the rule is printed here. 

(I) As set forth in the Code of Federal 
Reg11latio11s (CPR) dated October I, 2017, 
49 CPR parts 40 and 199 are incorporated by 
reference and made a part of Uiis rule. This 
rule does not incorporate any subsequent 
amendments to 49 CFR parts 40 and 199. 

CODE OF STATE REGULATIONS 

20 CSR 4240-40 ~csk) 
The Code of Federal Regulaliom is published 
by the Office of the Federal Register, 
National Archives and Records 
Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road, College 
Park, MD 20740-6001. The October I, 2017 
version of 49 CFR parts 40 and 199 is avail­
able at www.g_JX),gov/fdsys/search/showci1a­
tion.ac1ion. 

(2) The comnuss1on adopts the federal 
pipeline safety regulations for drug and alco­
hol testing. 49 CFR part 199, as rules of the 
commission. 

(3) The commission adopts Ute federal proce­
dures for transportation ,,wkpface drug and 
alcohol lesting programs, 49 CFR part 40, as 
rules of the commission. 

(4) fur purposes of this rule, the following 
substitutions should be made for certain ref­
erences in the federal pipeline safety regula­
tions adopted by reference in section (2) of 
this rule: 

(A) The references to "slate agency" jn 

sections 199.3, 199.I01, 199.107, 199.115, 
199.117, 199.231, and 199.245 of 49 CFR 
part 199 should refer to "the commission" 
instead; 

(B) The references to "accident" in sec­
tions 199.3, 199.100, 199.105, 199.200, 
199.221, 199.225, 199.227, an<I 199.231 of 
49 CFR part 199 should refer to a "federal 
incidenJ reportable under 4 CSR 240-
40.020" instead; 

(C) The references to "part 192, 193, or 
195 of this chapter" or "part 192, 193, or 
195" in sections 199.1, 199.3, 199.100, and 
199.200 of 49 CPR part 199 should refer to 
"4 CSR 240-40.030" instead (the commis­
sion regulations contained in 4 CSR 240--
40.030 parallel 49 CFR part 192, but the 
commission does not have any rules pertain­
ing 10 49 CPR part 193 or 195); and 

(D) The references to the applicability 
exemptions for operators of master meter sys­
tems as defined in section i

1191.3 of this 
chapter" in 49 CFR l99.2 should refer to "4 
CSR 240-40.020(2)(0)" instead. 

(5) The federal pipeline safely regulations for 
drug and alcohol testing (49 CFR part 199) 
adopted in section (2) of this rule contain 
subparts on general, drug testing, and alcohol 
misuse prevention program. 

(A) The general subpart contains sections 
on: scope1 applicability, definitions, 
Departmem of To1nsporta1ion (DOf) proce­
dures, srand-down w·ai,•ers, and preemption 
of 5late and lac.al laws. 

{B) The drug testing subpart contains sec­
tions 011; purpose; anti-drug plan; use of per­
sons who fail or refuse a drug test; drug tests 
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2018 highlights 

Fiscal years ended September 30 

Earnings and dividends (milllons,('XCeptpershareamounts) 

Net income 
Diluted earnings per share of common stock 

Net economic earnings* 
Net economic earnings per share of common stock* 

Dividends dec1ared per share of common stock 

Operating revenues (mm1onsl 

Gas Utility 
Gas Marketing and other 

Total operating revenues 

Utility sales and customers (thousands) 

Therms sold and transported 

Customers 

Shareholders 
Common shareholders of record, end of period 

Employees 

Total employees, end of period 
·ror further dl~,:u~ion of tht,,.e nun-GAAP fi ri:H1ci,1! measures, ~c<' p.'.!..g~S 29·30 of vur l'orm 10· K. 

Profile 
At Spire Inc. {NYSE: SR), we believe energy exists to help people's 

lives. It's a simple idea, but one that's at the heart of our company. 

Every day we serve 1.7 million homes and businesses, making 

us the fifth largest publicly traded natural gas company in the 

country. We help people fuel their daily Jives through our gas 

utilities serving Alabama, M:ississippi and Missouri. 

Our gas-related businesses include Spire Marketing, a Houston­

based provider of natural gas marketing and related services 

to a diverse customer base primarily in the central U.S.; 

Spire STL Pipeline, a 65-mile pipeline bringing lower-cost 

natural gas supplies to the St. Louis region; and Spire Storage, 

a Wyoming-based provider of natural gas storage services 

to customers in the western U.S. 

2018 

$ 214.2 

$ 4.33 

$ 183.7 

$ 3.72 

$ 2.25 

$ 1,888.0 
77.0 

$ 1,965.0 

3,330.4 
1,692.8 

3,096 

3,366 

2017 

$ 161.6 

$ 3.43 

$ 167.6 

$ 3.56 

$ 2.10 

$ 1,660.0 

80.7 

$ 1,740.7 

2,968.6 

1,685.5 

3,240 

3,279 

2016 

$ 144.2 

$ 3.24 

$ 149.1 

$ 3.42 

$ 1.96 

$ 1,457.2 

80.1 

$ 1,537.3 

2,565.6 

1,678.7 

3,428 

3,296 

We are transforming our business and pursuing growth through 

1) growing organically, 2) investing in infrastructure, 3) acquiring 

and integrating, and 4) innovation and technology. Learn more 

at SpireEnergy.com. 

SR 
H~iitOJ 
NYSE 
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GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

AOC! 
Accumulated other comprehensive income NYMEX New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc. 
or loss 

APSC Alabama Public Service Commission NYSE New York Stock Exchange 

ASC Accounting Standards Codification O&M Operation and maintenance expense 

ASU Accounting Standards Update OCI Other comprehensive income or loss 

CCM Cost Control Measure OPC Missouri Office of the Public Counsel 

The average of a day's high and low 
Degree days temperature below 65, subtracted from 65, PGA Purchased Gas Adjustment 

multiplied by the number of days impacted 

EPS Earnings per share RSE Rate Stabilization and Equalization 

ESR Enhanced Stability Reserve SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Spire 

Spire A1abama Inc. Alabama 

FERC Federal Energy Regulatmy Commission 
Spire Spire EnergySouth Inc., parent of Spire Gulf 
EnergySouth and Spire Mississippi 

GAAP 
Accounting principles generally accepted in 

Spire Gulf Spire Gulflnc. 
the United States of America 

Gas 
Segment including Spire Marketing, which Spire 

Marketing is engaged in the non-regulated marketing Marketing Spire Marketing Inc, 
of natural gas and related activities 

Gas Utility Segment including the regulated operations Spire 
Spire Mississippi Inc. 

of the Utilities Mississippi 

GSA Gas Supply Adjustment 
Spire 

Spire Missouri Inc. 
Missouri 

Spire 
ICE Intercontinental Exchange Missouri Spire Missouri's eastern service territory 

East 

Infrastructure System Replacement 
Spire 

ISRS 
Surcharge 

Missouri Spire Missouri's western service territo1y 
West 

Missouri 
Spire Missouri, including Spire Missouri Spire 

The physical natural gas storage operations of 

Utilities East and Spire Missouri West, the uti1ities Stol'age 
Spire Storage West LLC and Clear Creek 

serving the Missouri region Storage Company, L.L.C. 

MMBtu Million British thermal units TCJA The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 

MoPSC Missouri Public Service Commission U.S. United States 

MSPSC Mississippi Public Service Commission Utilities 
Spire Missouri, Spire Alabama and the 
subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth 
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PARTI 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain matters discussed in this repmt, excluding historical information, indude fon•:ard-looking statements. Certain vmrds, 
such as "may," "anticipate," ''believe," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "seek," and similar words and expressions identify 
forward-looking statements that involve uncertainties and risks. Future developments may not be in accordance with our current 
expectations or beliefs and the effect of future developments may not be those anticipated. Among the factors that may cause 
results to differ materially from those contemplated in any forward-looking statement are: 

Weather conditions and catastrophic events, particularly severe weather in the natural gas producing areas of the country; 

Volatility in gas prices, particularly sudden and sustained changes in natural gas prices, including the related impact on 
margin deposits associated with the use of natural gas derivative instruments, and the impact on our competitive position in 
relation to suppliers of alternative heating sources, such as electricity; 

Changes in gas supply and pipeline availability, including decisions by nahtral gas producers to reduce production or shut in 
producing natural gas wells, expiration of existing supply and transportation arrangements that are not replaced with 
contracts with similar terms and pricing, as well as other changes that impact supply for and access to the markets in which 
our subsidiaries transact business; 

Acquisitions may not achieve their intended results; 

The Spire STL Pipe1ine project may be hindered or halted by regulatory, legal, operational or other obstacles; 

Legislative, regulatory and judicial mandates and decisions, some of which may be retroactive, including those affecting: 

allowed rates of return, 

incentive regulation, 

industry structure, 

purchased gas adjustment provisions, 

rate design structure and implementation, 

regulatmy assets, 

non-i-egulat~<l all(} afftliale lram.aclions, 

franchise renewals, 

environmental or safety matters, including the potential impact oflegislative and regulato1y actions related to climate 
change and pipeline safety, 

taxes, 

pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities and funding obligations, or 

accounting standards; 

The results oflitigation; 

The availability of and access to, in general, funds to meet our debt obligations prior to or when they become due and to fund 
our operations and necessary capital expenditures, either through (i) cash on hand, (ii) operating cash flow, or (iii) access to 
the capital markets; 

Retention of, ability to attract, ability to coHect from, and conservation efforts of, customers; 

Our ability to comply with a1l covenants in our indentures and credit facilities any violations of which, if not cured in a timely 
manner, could trigger a default of our obligation; 

Capital and energy commodity market conditions, including the ability to obtain funds with reasonable terms for necessary 
capital expenditures and general operations and the terms and conditions imposed for obtaining sufficient gas supply; 

Discove1y of material weakness in internal controls; 

The disruption, failure or malfunction of our information technology systems including due to cyberattacks; and 

Employee workforce issues, including but not limited to labor disputes and future wage and employee benefit costs, including 
changes in discount rates and rehlrns on benefit plan assets. 

Readers are urged to consider the risks, uncertainties, and other factors that could affect our business as described in this report. 
All forward-looking statements made in this report rely upon the safe harbor protections provided under the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We do not, by including this statement, assume any obligation to review or revise any particular 
fonvard-looking statement in light of future events. 
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Item 1. Business 

OVERVIEW 

Spire Tnc. ("Spire" or the "Company"), formerly the Laclede Group, Inc. (formed in 2000 ), is the holding company 
for Spire Missouri Inc., Spire Alabama Inc., Spire EnergySouth Inc., and other utility and non-utility subsidiaries. 
Spire Missouri Inc. ("Spire Missouri" or the "Missouri Utilities") was founded in 1857 as The Laclede Gas Light 
Company and was renamed Laclede Gas Company in 1950 and then Spire Missouri Inc. in 2017. Effective August 31, 
2014, the Company purchased Alabama Gas Corporation, which was formed by the merger of two gas companies in 
1948 and renamed Spire Alabama Inc. ("Spire Alabama") in 2017. On September 12, 2016, the Company purchased 
EnergySouth, Inc., along with its wholly owned subsidiaries, Mobile Gas Service Corporation and Willmut Gas & Oil 
Company, and in 2017, those companies were renamed Spire EnergySouth Inc. ("Spire EnergySouth"), Spire Gulf 
Inc. ("Spire Gulf'), and Spire Mississippi Inc. ("Spire Mississippi"), respectively. 

Spire is committed to transforming its business and pursuing growth through 1) growing organically, 2) investing in 
infrastructure, 3) acquiring and integrating, and 4) innovation and technology. 

The Company has two key business segments: Gas Utility and Gas Marketing. 

The Gas Utility segment includes the regulated operations of Spire Missouri, Spire Alabama, Spire Gulf and Spire 
Mississippi (collectively, the "Utilities"). The business of the Utilities is subject to seasonal fluctuations with the 
peak period occurring in the winter heating season, typically November through April of each fiscal year. Spire 
Missouri is a public utility engaged in the purchase, retail distribution and sale of natural gas, with primaiy offices 
located in St. Louis, Missomi. Spire Missouri is the largest natural gas distribution utility system in Missouri, 
serving more than 1.1 million residential, commercial and industrial customers. For utility regulat01y purposes 
Spire Missouri has two regions, one serving St. Louis and eastern Missouri ("Spire Missouri East") and the other 
serving Kansas City and western Missouri ("Spire Missouri West"). Spire Alabama is a public utility engaged in the 
purchase, retail distribution and sale of natural gas principally in central and no1thern Alabama, serving more than 
0-4 million residential, commercial and industrial customers with prima1y offices located in Birmingham, Alabama. 
Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi are utilities engaged in the purchase, retail distribution and sale of natural gas to 
0.1 million customers in southern Alabama and south-central Mississippi. 

The Gas Marketing segment includes Spire Marketing Inc. ("Spire Marketing"), a wholly owned subsidimy engaged 
in the marketing of natural gas and related activities on a non-regulated basis. 

As of September 30, 2018, Spire had 3,366 employees, including 2,321 for Spire Missouri and 861 for Spire 
Alabama. 

Spire's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") and trades under the ticker symbol "SR." 
The following table reflects Spire shares issued during the two most recent fiscal years: 

Common Stock Issuance 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan ("DRIP") 

Equity Incentive Plan 

Total Shares Issued 

2018 

2,300,000 

23,023 

85,637 

2,408,660 

2017 

2,504,684 

23,731 

84,186 

2,612,601 

Shares were issued during 2018 to provide funds for repayment of sh01t-tenn debt, to fund capital expenditures, 
and other general corporate uses. Shares were issued during 2017 in conjunction with the conversion of equity units 
that were issued in 2014 to help fund the Spire Alabama acquisition. During fiscal 2018 and 2017, shares were 
issued at historically consistent levels for Spire's DRIP and Equity Incentive Plan. 

During fiscal 2018 and 2017, neither Spire Missouri nor Spire Alabama issued shares to Spire. For more detailed 
common stock information of Spire, Spire Missomi and Spire Alabama, see Item 5. Market for Registrant's 
Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. 

Spire uses its website, SpireEnergy.com, as a routine channel for dishibution of imp01tant information including 
news releases, analyst presentations and financial information. The information Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire 
Alabama file or furnish to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), including annual reports on Form 
10-K, qua1terly rep01ts on Form 10-Q, current rep01ts on Form 8-K and their amendments, and proxy statements 
are available free of charge under "Filings and Annual Reports" in the Investors section of Spire's website, 
SpireEnergy.com, as soon as reasonably practical after the information is filed with or furnished to the SEC. 
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Information contained on Spire's website is not incorporated by reference in this report. The SEC also maintains a 
website that contains our SEC filings (sec.gov). 

GAS UTILITY 

Natural Gas Supply 

The Utilities' fundamental gas supply strategy is to meet the two-fold objective of 1) ensuring a dependable gas 
supply is available for delive1y when needed and 2) insofar as is compatible with that dependability, purchasing gas 
that is economically priced. In stmcturing their natural gas supply pmtfolio, the Utilities focus on natural gas assets 
that are strategically positioned to meet the Utilities' primary objectives. 

Spire Missouri focuses its gas supply pmtfolio around a number oflarge natural gas suppliers with equity ownership 
or control of assets strategically situated to complement its regionally diverse firm transportation arrangements. 
Spire Missouri East utilizes both Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast gas sources to provide a level of supply diversity 
that facilitates the optimization of pricing differentials as well as protecting against the potential of regional supply 
disruptions. Spire Missouri West utilizes both Mid-Continent and Rocky Mountain gas sources to provide a level of 
supply diversity that accesses low cost supplies. 

In fiscal year 2018, Spire Missouri purchased natural gas from 34 different suppliers to meet its total service area 
current gas sales and storage injection requirements. Spire Missouri entered into firm agreements with suppliers 
including major producers and marketers providing flexibility to meet the temperature sensitive needs of its 
customers. Natural gas purchased by Spire Missouri for delive1y to its service area through the Enable Mississippi 
River Transmission LLC ("MRT") system totaled 57,1 billion cubic feet ("Bcf'). Spire Missouri also holds firm 
transpmtation arrangements on several other interstate pipeline systems that provide access to gas supplies 
upstream of MRT. In addition to natural gas deliveries from MRT, 58.2 Bcf was purchased on the Southern Star 
Central Gas Pipeline, Inc. ("Southern Star"), 4.4 Bcfwas purchased on the Tallgrass Interstate Gas Transmission, 
LLC ("TGIT") system, 11.1 Bcfwas purchased on the Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company, LP ("PEPL") system, 
and 0.7 Bcf was purchased on the Rockies Express Pipeline, LLC ("REX") system. Some of Spire Missouri's 
commercial and industrial customers purchased their own gas with Spire Missouri transpmting 41.5 Bcf to them 
through its distribution system. 

The fiscal year 2018 peak day send out of natural gas to Spire Missouri customers, including transpo1tation 
customers, occurred on Janua1y 16, 2018. The average temperature was 7 degrees Fahrenheit in St. Louis and 2 
degrees Fahrenheit in Kansas City. On that day, the Missouri Utilities' customers consumed 1.80 Bcf of natural gas. 
For eastern Missouri, this peak day demand was met with natural gas transported to St. Louis through the MRT, 
MoGas Pipeline LLC, and Southern Star transpmtation systems, and from Spire Missouri's on-system storage and 
peak shaving resources. For western Missouri, this peak day demand was met with natural gas transported to 
Kansas City through the Southern Star, PEPL, TGIT, and REX transportation systems. 

Spire Alabama's distribution system is connected to two major interstate natural gas pipeline systems, Southern 
Natural Gas Company, L.L.C. ("Southern Natural Gas") and Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company, LLC 
("Transco"). It is also connected to two intrastate natural gas pipeline systems. 

Spire Alabama purchases natural gas from various natural gas producers and marketers. Certain volumes are 
purchased under firm contractual commitments with other volumes purchased on a spot market basis. The 
purchased volumes are delivered to Spire Alabama's system using a variety of firm transportation, interruptible 
transpo1tation and storage capacity arrangements designed to meet the system's varying levels of demand. 

In fiscal 2018, Spire Alabama purchased natural gas from 15 different suppliers to meet current gas sales, storage 
injection, and liquefied natural gas ("LNG") liquefaction requirements, of which six are nnder long-term supply 
agreements. Approximately 67.0 Bcf was transported by Southern Natural Gas, 6.o Bcfby Transco, and 6.o Bcf 
through intrastate pipelines to the Spire Alabama delive1y points for its residential, commercial, and industrial 
customers. 

The fiscal 2018 peak day send out for Spire Alabama was 0.7 Bcf on Janua1y 17, 2018, when the average 
temperature was 21 degrees Fahrenheit in Birmingham, of which 100% was met with supplies transpmted through 
Southern Natural Gas, Transco, intrastate facilities, and one of the four LNG peak shaving facilities. 

Spire Gulfs distribution system is directly connected to interstate pipelines, natural gas processing plants and gas 
storage facilities. Spire Gulf buys from a variety of producers and marketers, with BP Energy Company being the 
primary supplier. 

5 



Natural Gas Storage 

Spire Missouri believes that it has ample storage capacity to meet the demands of its distribution system, 
particularly to augment its supply during peak demand periods. Spire Missouri has a contractual right to store 21.6 
Bcf of gas in MRTs storage facility located in Unionville, Louisiana, 16.3 Bcf of gas storage in Southern Star's system 
storage facilities located in Kansas and Oklahoma, and 1.4 Bcf of firm storage on PEPL's system storage. MRT's 
tariffs allow injections into storage from May 16 through November 15 and require the withdrawal from storage of 
all but 2.1 Bcf from November 16 through May 15. Southern Star tariffs allow both injections and withdrawals into 
storage year round with ratchets that restrict the associated flows dependent upon the underlying invento1y level 
per the contracts. 

In addition, Spire Missouri East supplements pipeline gas with natural gas withdrawn from its own underground 
storage field located in St. Louis and St. Charles Counties in Missouri. The field is designed to provide 
approximately 0.3 Bcf of natural gas withdrawals on a peak day and maximum annual net withdrawals of 
approximately 4.0 Bcf of natural gas based on the invento1y level that Spire Missouri plans to maintain. 

Spire Alabama has a contractual right to store 12.5 Bcf of gas with Southern Natural Gas, 0.2 Bcf of gas with Transco . 
and 0.2 Bcf of gas with Tennessee Gas Pipeline. In addition, Spire Alabama has 1.8 Bcf of LNG storage that can 
pro,1de the system with up to an additional 0.2 Bcf of natural gas daily to meet peak day demand. 

Spire Gulf obtains adequate storage capacity through Gulf South Pipeline Company, LP, and Sempra's Bay Gas 
Storage. 

Regulat01-y Matters 

For details on regulat01y matters, see Note 14, Regulato1y Matters, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Other Pe11:i.nent Matters 

Spire Missouri is the only distributor of natural gas within its franchised sen1ce areas, while Spire Alabama is the 
main disttibutor of natural gas in its service areas. The principal competition for the Utilities comes from the local 
electric companies. Other competitors in the service areas include suppliers of fuel oil, coal, and propane, as well as 
natural gas pipelines that can directly connect to large volume customers. For the Missouri Utilities, competition 
also comes from district steam systems in the downtown areas of both St. Louis and Kansas City, and for Spire 
Alabama, from municipally or publicly owned gas distributors located adjacent to its service territ01y. Coal is price 
competitive as a fuel source for very large boiler plant loads, but environmental requirements for coal have shifted 
the economic advantage to natural gas. Oil and propane can be used to fuel boiler loads and certain direct-fired 
process applications, but these fuels require on-site storage, thus limiting their competitiveness. In certain cases, 
district steam has been competitive with gas for downtown St. Louis and Kansas City area heating users. 

Residential, commercial, and industrial markets represented approximately 93% and 84% of fiscal 2018 operating 
revenues for Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, respectively. Given the current level of natural gas supply and 
market conditions, the Utilities believe that the relative comparison of natural gas equipment and operating costs 
with those of competitive fuels will not change significantly in the foreseeable future, and that these markets will 
continue to be supplied by natural gas. In new multi-family and commercial rental markets, the Utilities' 
competitive exposures are presently limited to space and water heating applications. 

Spire Missouri offers gas transportation service to its large-user industrial and commercial customers. The tariff 
approved for that type of service produces a margin similar to that which the Missouri Utilities would have received 
under their regular sales rates. Spire Alabama's transp01tation tariff allows it to transport gas for large commercial 
and industrial customers rather than buying and reselling it to them and is based on Spire Alabama's sales profit 
margin so that operating margins are unaffected. During fiscal 2018, substantially all of Spire Alabama's large 
commercial and industrial customer deliveries involved the transp01tation of customer-owned gas. 

The Utilities are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that, to date, have not materially affected the 
Utilities' or the Company's financial position and results of operations. For a detailed discussion of environmental 
matters, see Note 15, Commitment and Contingencies, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 
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Union Agreements 

The Company believes labor relations with its employees are good. Should that condition change, the Company 
could expe1ience labor disputes, work stoppages or other disruptions in production that could negatively impact the 
Company's results of operations and cash flows. 

The following table presents the Company's various labor agreements as of September 30, 2018: 

Union 

Spire Missouri 

United Steel, Paper and Foreshy, Rubber Manufacturing, 
Allied-Industrial and Service Workers International Union 
("USW") 

usw 
usw 
usw 
usw 
usw 
Gas Workers Metal Trades locals of the United Association of 
Journeyman and Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipefitting 
Induslly of the United States and Canada 

Gas Workers Metal Trades locals of the United Association of 
Journeyman and Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipefitting 
Induslly of the United States and Canada 

Total Spire Missouri 

Spire Alabaina 
usw 
usw 
United Association of Gas Fitters 

Total Spire Alabama 

Spire Gulf 
usw 

Total Spire 

7 

Local 

884 

11-6 

11-194 

12561 

14228 

11-267 

781-
Kansas 

City 

781-
Monett 

12030 

12030-A 

548 

3-541 

Employees Contract Start Contract End 
Covered Date Date 

63 August 1, 2018 July 31, 2021 

944 August 1, 2018 July 31, 2021 

75 August 1, 2018 July 31, 2021 

131 August 161 2016 July 31, 2019 
41 August 16, 2016 July 31, 2019 
28 August 161 2016 July 31, 2019 

192 August 161 2016 July 31, 2019 

56 August 161 2016 July 31, 2019 --
1,530 --

223 May 1, 2017 April 30, 2020 

57 May 1, 2017 April 30, 2020 

127 July 1, 2016 April 30, 2019 --
407 --
--

65 October 1, 2017 July 31, 2020 --
2,002 



Operating Revenues and Customer Information 

The following information about revenues and therms sold and transpmtcd (before interscgment eliminations), and 
annual average numbers of customers, includes data of acquired utilities for only the period of Spire's ownership 
(beginning September 12, 2016 for the utilities of Spire EuergySouth). 

Gas Utility Operating Revenues 
(In millions) 
Residential 
Commercial & Industrial 
Interruptible 
Transportation 
Off-System and Other Incentive 
Provisions for Refunds and Other 

Total Gas Utility Operating Revenues 

Gas Utility Therms Sold and Transported 
(In millions) 

Residential 
Commercial & Industrial 
Interruptible 
Transportation 

System Therms Sold and Transported 
Off-System 

Total Gas Utility Therms Sold and Transported 

Gas Utility Customers 

Residential 
Commercfa l & Industrial 

Intern1ptible 

Transportation 

Total Gas Utility Customers 

$ 

$_ 

2018 

1,253.3 

453.0 

7.4 

106.9 

40.3 

27.5 --
1,888.4 

2018 

1,095.8 

536.4 

14.5 

1,615.1 

3,261.8 

68.6 --
3,330.4 

2018 

1,567,939 

123,982 

70 

835 --
1,692,826 

2017 2016 

$ 1,084.5 $ 979.0 

389.2 331.3 

5.1 2.0 

99.8 93.1 

67.9 50.7 

21.4 3.3 

$ 1,667.9 $ 1,459.4 

2017 2016 

866.2 867.5 

446.7 420.4 

12.6 4.6 

1,467.5 1,089.8 

2,793.0 2,382.3 

175.6 183.3 

2,968.6 2,565.6 

2017 2016 

1,550,777 1,540,366 

133,864 137,450 

64 42 

827 824 

1,685,532 1,678,682 

Total annual average number of customers for Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama for fiscal 2018 was 1,169,888 and 
420,572, respectively. 

Spire Missouri has franchises in nearly all the communities where it provides service with terms va1ying from five 
years to an indefinite duration. Generally, a franchise is essentially a municipal permit to install pipes and construct 
other facilities in the community. All of the franchises are free from unduly burdensome restrictions and are 
adequate for the conduct of Spire Missouri's current public utility businesses in the state of Missouri. In recent 
years, although ce1tain franchise agreements have expired, Spire Missouri has continued to provide service in those 
communities without formal franchises. 

Spire Alabama has franchises in nearly all the communities where it provides service with terms varying from five 
years to an indefinite duration. Generally, a franchise is essentially a municipal permit to install pipes and constmct 
other facilities in the community. All of the franchises are free from unduly burdensome restrictions and are 
adequate for the conduct of Spire Alabama's public utility business in the state of Alabama. 
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GAS MARKETING 

Spire Marketing is engaged in the marketing of natural gas and providing energy services to both on-system utility 
transpo1tation customers and customers outside of the Utilities' traditional service areas. The majority of Spire 
Marketing's business is derived frmn the procurement and physical delivery of natural gas to a diverse customer 
base. Dming fiscal 2018, Spire Marketing utilized over 43 interstate and intrastate pipelines and over 125 suppliers 
to market natural gas to more than 250 retail customers and 120 wholesale customers, primarily in the central 
United States ("U.S."). Through its retail operations, Spire Marketing offers natural gas marketing services to large 
commercial and industrial customers, while its wholesale business consists of producers, pipelines, power 
generators, municipalities, storage operators, and utility companies. Wholesale activities currently represent a 
majority of the total Gas Marketing business. 

In the course of its business, Spire Marketing enters into agreements to purchase natural gas at a future date in 
order to lock up supply to cover future sales commitments to its customers. To secure access to the markets it 
serves, Spire Marketing contracts for transp01tation capacity on various pipelines from both pipeline companies 
and through the seconda1y capacity market from third patties. Throughout fiscal 2018, Spire Marketing held 
approximately 0.50 Bcf per day of firm transportation capacity. In addition, to ensure reliability of service and to 
provide operational flexibility, Spire Marketing enters into firm storage contracts and interruptible park and loan 
transactions with various companies, where it is able to buy and retain gas to be delivered at a future date, at which 
time it sells the natural gas to third parties. As of September 30, 2018, Spire Marketing has contracted for 
approximately 7.3 Bcf of such storage and park and loan capacity for the 2018-2019 winter season. 

The Gas Marketing strategy is to leverage its market expertise and risk management skills to manage and optimize 
the value of its p01tfolio of commodity, transportation, park and loan, and storage contracts while controlling costs 
and acting on new marketplace oppmtunities. Overall, Gas Marketing saw significant growth in fiscal 2018 
primarily as a result of increased business with producers and integrated utilities, retail and wholesale customer 
growth, increased optimization oppmtunities resulting from its overall portfolio of assets, and more favorable 
market conditions. 

OTHER 

Other includes unallocated corporate items, including ce1tain debt and associated interest costs largely attributable 
to acquisitions, Spire STL Pipeline LLC and Spire's subsidiaries engaged in the operation of a physical natural gas 
storage business, a propane pipeline, compression of natural gas, and risk management, among other activities. 

Spire STL Pipeline LLC is a wholly owned subsidia1y of Spire planning to constmct and operate a 65-mile pipeline 
to connect to the Rockies Express Pipeline in Scott County, Illinois, to delivery points in St. Louis County, Missouri, 
including Spire Missouri's storage facility (the "STL Pipeline") Federal Energy Regulato1y Commission ("FERC") in 
August 2018 and received a Notice to Proceed from FERC in November 2018, allowing construction to begin. The 
pipeline will operate under FERC jurisdiction and will be capable of delivering up to 4 million therms per day of 
natural gas into eastern Missouri. Spire Missouri will be the foundational shipper with a contractual commitment of 
3.5 million therms per day. 

In fiscal 2018, the Company acquired and began integrating two neighboring natural gas storage facilities in 
southwest Wyoming, referred to herein as "Spire Storage." Both storage facilities fall under FERC jurisdiction. 
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Item tA. Risk Factors 

Spire's and the Utilities' business and financial results are subject to a number of risks and unce1tainties, including 
those set fo1th below. The risks described below are those the Company and the Utilities consider to be material. 
When considering any investment in Spire or the Utilities' securities, investors should carefully consider the 
following information, as well as information contained in the caption "Forward-Looking Statements," Item 7A, and 
other documents Spire, Spire Missomi, and Spire Alabama file with the SEC. This list is not exhaustive, and Spire's 
and the Utilities' respective management places no priority or likelihood based on the risk descriptions, order of 
presentation or grouping by subsidiary. All references to dollar amounts are in millions. 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT RELATE TO THE BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL RESULTS OF 
SPIRE AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

As a holding company, Spire depends on its operating subsidiaries to meet its financial obligations. 

Spire is a holding company with no significant assets other than the stock of its operating subsidiaries and cash 
investments. Spire, and Spire Missouri prior to the holding company's formation in 2000, has paid dividends 
continuously since 1946. Spire's ability to pay dividends to its shareholders is dependent on the ability of its 
subsidiaries to generate sufficient net income and cash flows to pay upstream dividends and make loans or loan 
repayments. In addition, because it is a holding company and the substantial pmtion of its assets are represented by 
its holdings in the Utilities, the risks faced by the Utilities as described below under RISKS THAT RELATE TO THE 
GAS UTILITY SEGMENT may also adversely affect Spire's cash flows, liquidity, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

A downgi·ade in Spire's and/or its subsidiaries' credit ratings may negatively affect its ability to 
access capital. 

Currently, Spire, Spire Missomi, and Spire Alabama have investment grade credit ratings. There is no assurance 
that such credit ratings for any of the Spire companies will remain in effect for any given period of time or that such 
ratings will not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies, if, in each rating agency's 
judgment, circumstances so warrant. Spire has a working capital line of credit to meet its sho1t-term liquidity 
needs. Spire's line of credit may be used to meet the liquidity needs of any of its subsidiaries, subject to sublimits. If 
the rating agencies lowered the credit rating at any of these entities, particularly below investment grade, it might 
significantly limit that entity's ability to secure new or additional credit facilities and would increase its costs of 
borrowing. Spire's or the Utilities' ability to borrow under current or new credit facilities and costs of that borrowing 
have a direct impact on their ability to execute their operating strategies. 

Unexpected losses may adversely affect Spire's or its subsidiaries' financial condition and results of 
operations. 

As with most businesses, there are operations and business 1isks inherent in the activities of Spire's subsidiaries. If, 
in the normal course of business, Spire or any of its subsidimies becomes a patty to litigation, such litigation could 
result in substantial moneta1y judgments, fines, or penalties or be resolved on unfavorable terms. In accordance 
with customaiy practice, Spire and its subsidiaries maintain insurance against a significant pmtion of, but not all, 
risks and losses. In addition, in the normal course of its operations, Spire and its subsidiaries may be exposed to loss 
from other sources, such as bad debt expense or the failure of a counterpa1ty to meet its financial obligations. Spire 
and its operating companies employ many strategies to gain assurance that such risks are appropriately managed, 
mitigated, or insured, as appropriate, To the extent a loss is not fully covered by insurance or other risk mitigation 
strategies, that loss could adversely affect the Company's and/or its subsidiaries' financial condition and results of 
operations. 
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Increased dependence on technology may hinder Spire's and its subsidiaries' business operations 
and adversely affect their financial condition and results of operations if such technologies fail. 

Over the last several years, Spire and its subsidiaries have implemented or acquired a variety of technological tools 
including both Company-owned information technology and technological services provided by outside parties. 
These tools and systems support critical functions including Spire and its subsidiaries' integrated planning, 
scheduling and dispatching of field resources, its automated meter reading system, customer care and billing, 
procurement and accounts payable, operational plant logistics, management reporting, and external financial 
repmting. The failure of these or other similarly impmtant technologies, or the Company's or its subsidiaries' 
iuability to have these techuologies supported, updated, expanded, or integrated into other technologies, could 
hinder their business operations and adversely impact their financial condition and results of operations. 

Although the Company and its subsidiaries have, when possible, developed alternative sources of technology and 
built redundancy into their computer networks and tools, there can be no assurance that these efforts to date would 
protect against all potential issues related to the loss of any such technologies or the Utilities' use of such 
technologies. 

A cyberattack may disrupt Spire's operations or lead to a loss or misuse of confidential and 
proprietary information or potential liability. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to cybersecurity 1isks primarily related to breaches of security 
pertaining to sensitive customer, employee, and vendor information maintained by the Company, its subsidiaries, 
or its third-patty vendors in the normal course of business, as well as breaches in the technology that manages 
natural gas distribution operations and other business processes. A loss of confidential or proprietaiy data or 
security breaches of other technology business tools could adversely affect the Company's and its subsidiaries' 
reputation, diminish customer confidence, disrnpt operations, and subject the Company and its subsidiaries to 
possible financial liability, any of which could have a material effect on the Company's and its subsidiaries' financial 
condition and results of operations. The Company and its subsidiaries closely monitor both preventive and detective 
measures to manage these risks and maintain cyber risk insurance to mitigate a significant portion, but not all, of 
these tisks and losses. To the extent that the occurrence of any of these cyber events is not fully covered by 
insurance, it could adversely affect the Company's and its subsidiades' financial condition an<l results of operations. 

Resources expended to pursue or integrate business acquisitions, investments or other business 
arrangements may adversely affect Spire's financial position and results of operations and return 
on investments made may not meet expectations. 

From time to time, Spire may seek to grow through strategic acquisitions, investments or other business 
arrangements. Attractive acquisition and investment oppo1tunities may be difficult to complete on economically 
acceptable terms. It is possible for Spire to expend considerable resources pursuing acquisitions and investments 
but, for a variety of reasons, decide not to move forward. Similarly, investment oppo1tunities may be hindered or 
halted by regulatmy or legal actions. To the extent that acquisitions or investments are made, such transactions 
involve a number of risks, including but not limited to, the assumption of material liabilities, the diversion of 
management's attention from daily operations, difficulties in assimilation and retention of employees, securing 
adequate capital to suppmt the transaction, and regulatory approval. Uncettainties exist in assessing the value, 
risks, profitability, and liabilities associated with cettain businesses or assets and there is a possibility that 
anticipated operating and financial efficiencies expected to result from an acquisition or investment do not develop. 
Additionally, there are no assurances that resources expended will achieve their intended result. 

The failure to complete an acquisition successfully or to integrate acquisitions or investments it may undettake 
could have an adverse effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations and the market's 
perception of the Company's execution of its strategy. To the extent Spire engages in any of the above activities 
together with or through one or more of its subsidiaries, including the Utilities, such subsidiaties may face the same 
Iisks. 
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Failure to obtain required approvals and land rights or significant issues dming the construction of 
the STL Pipeline could adversely impact Spire's investment in the project. 

The design, construction and operation of natural gas pipelines and the transportation of natmal gas are all highly 
regulated activities. The STL Pipeline is subject to FERC jurisdiction under Section 7 of the Natural Gas Act, as we!! 
as several other material governmental and regulato1y approvals and permits, including several under the Clean Afr 
Act and the Clean Water Act from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and state environmental agencies. Even after 
obtaining approval from the FERC, such projects are often subject to legal and political uncertainties which can be 
difficult to predict or control. The Company has no control over the outcome of the review and approval process by 
these regulato1y authorities. The Company also does not know whether or when such approvals or permits can be 
obtained, or whether any existing or potential interventions or other actions by third parties will inteifere with the 
STL Pipeline obtaining the necessaiy remaining authorizations or approvals. 

The STL Pipeline project also requires the acquisition ofland rights, mostly from private landowners. Although 
FERC approval confers federal eminent domain authority, there is some risk and unceitainty associated with the 
cost and timing of acquiring land rights, including potential condemnation costs. Spire may experience significant 
delays in acquiring necessa1y land rights or may experience higher costs in doing so. If the Company were to fail to 
obtain these rights on a timely basis or be required to relocate the STL Pipeline, its business could be materially and 
adversely affected. 

Construction of such assets are subject to various risks and unceitainties, including supply chain and labor 
disruptions, weather conditions dming construction, potential interconnection issues with other pipelines, 
equipment failures and construction quality issues. Any of these adverse events regarding regulatory approvals, 
land rights or construction risks could result in an impairment of Spire's investment in the project, and such 
impairment could have a material adverse effect on Spire's financial condition and results of operations. 

Pipeline safety integrity programs and repairs may impose significant costs and liabilities on the 
Company. 

The U.S. Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration ("PHMSA") requires pipeline operators to 
develop integrity management programs to comprehensively evaluate ceitain areas along their pipelines and to take 
additional measures to protect pipeline segments located in "high consequence areas" where a leak or rupture could 
potentially do the most harm. As an operator of the STL Pipeline, the Company will be required to: 

perform ongoing assessments of pipeline integrity; 
• identify and characterize applicable threats to pipeline segments that could impact a "high consequence 

area"; 
improve data collection, integration and analysis; 
repair and remediate the pipeline as necessaiy; and 
implement preventative and mitigating actions. 

The Company is required to maintain pipeline integrity testing programs that are intended to assess pipeline 
integrity. Any repair, remediation, preventative or mitigating actions may require significant capital and operating 
expenditures. Should the Company fail to comply with applicable statutes and the PHMSA Office of Pipeline 
Safety's rules and related regulations and orders, it could be subject to significant penalties and fines. 

Reductions in capacity of interconnecting, third-party pipelines could cause a reduction in volumes 
transported on the STL Pipeline, which would adversely affect the Company's revenues and cash 
flows for the STL Pipeline business. 

The STL Pipeline will be dependent upon third-patty pipelines and other facilities to provide delivery options to and 
from the STL Pipeline project. If any pipeline connection were to become nnavailable for volumes of natural gas due 
to repairs, damage to the facility, lack of capacity or any other reason, the STL Pipeline's ability to continue shipping 
natural gas to end markets could be restricted, thereby reducing the STL Pipeline's revenues. Any permanent 
interruption at any key pipeline interconnect that causes a material reduction in volumes transported on the STL 
Pipeline could have a material adverse effect on the STL Pipeline's business, financial condition, operating results, 
cash flows, liquidity and prospects. 
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The Company's natural gas storage business includes inherent geologic and operational risks, as 
well as Iisks from competition and changes in market fundamentals. 

In 2018, the Company acquired two neighboring storage facilities, one of which had been operating in bankruptcy 
for an extended period. l"i-B the Cmnpany restructures and integrates these facilities into one, now known as Spire 
Storage, to increase capacity and improve operating pe1formance, it strives to improve the integrity of its storage 
fields and associated above-ground facilities. Any damage to the storage facility or pipelines, or lack of integrity to 
its storage fields, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, operating results and 
cash flows. 

The Company's storage assets are connected to third-party-owned pipelines. The continuing operation of such 
third-party pipelines is not within its control. If any of these pipelines become unable to transpo1t, treat or process 
natural gas or natural gas liquids, or if the volumes it gathers or transports do not meet the quality requirements of 
such pipelines, the Company's revenues and cash flows could be adversely affected. 

The Company does not own all the land on which our storage facilities were constructed, and it is, therefore, subject 
to the possibility of more onerous terms or increased costs to retain necessary land use, if and when applicable 
prope1ty rights expire or are renewed. Changes in the terms of such land use could have an adverse impact on the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the Company's storage business. 

Spire Storage is subject to competition from similar services provided by pipelines and from competing independent 
storage providers capable of serving our customers. Natural gas storage is a competitive business, with competitors 
having the ability to expand or build new storage capacity. Increased competition in the natural gas storage business 
could reduce the demand for the Company's natural gas storage services and drive rates down for its storage 
business. 

Storage businesses are affected by various gas market fundamentals which impact the level of demand for storage 
services and the rates that can be charged for these services. These market fundamentals include: seasonal price 
spread; monthly, daily and hourly price volatility; locational basis for pricing points on pipelines connected to a 
storage facility; seasonal, daily and hourly weather; and operational impacts in supply and market areas served by a 
storage facility and its connected pipelines. These fundamentals have varying and potentially material adverse 
impacts on the various services offered by storage facilities and the rates that can be charged for these services in 
the market. These se1vices include: long-term firm storage; short-term park and loan; wheeling; and optimization, 
Rates below the variable costs to operate a storage facility could result in a decision to not operate all of the capacity 
in the facility or to operate the facility at a loss if required to fulfill firm customer contract obligations. A sustained 
decline in these rates or a shut-in of all or a pmtion of one or more facilities' capacity could have an adverse impact 
on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

Transporting, distributing, and storing natural gas and propane involves numerous risks that may 
result in accidents and other operating risks and costs, 

Natural gas transpmtation, distribution and storage activities inherently involve a variety of hazards and operations 
risks, such as leaks, accidental explosions, damage caused by third parties, and mechanical problems, which could 
cause substantial financial losses. In addition, these risks could result in serious injury to employees and non­
employees, loss of human life, significant damage to property, em~ronmental pollution, impairment of operations, 
and substantial losses to the Company and its subsidiaries. The location of pipelines and storage facilities near 
populated areas, including residential areas, commercial business centers, and industrial sites, could increase the 
level of damages resulting from these risks. Similar risks also exist for Spire Missouri's propane storage, 
transmission and minor distribution operations. These activities may subject the Company to litigation or 
administrative proceedings. Such litigation or proceedings could result in substantial moneta1y judgments, fines, or 
penalties against the Company and its subsidiaries or be resolved on unfavorable terms. The Utilities and other 
Spire businesses are subject to federal and state laws and regulations requiring them to maintain certain safety and 
system integrity measures by identifying and managing storage and pipeline risks. Compliance with these laws and 
regulations, or future changes in these laws and regulations, may result in increased capital, operating and other 
costs which may not be recoverable in a timely manner from customers in rates, In accordance with customa1y 
induslly practices, the Utilities and other Spire businesses maintain insurance against a significant portion, but not 
all, of these risks and losses. To the extent that the occurrence of any of these events is not fully covered by 
insurance, it could adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. 
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Workforce risks may affect the Company's financial results. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to various workforce risks, including, but not limited to, the risk that it 
will be unable to attract and retain qualified personnel; that it will be unable to effectively transfer the knowledge 
and expertise of an aging workforce to new personnel as those workers retire; and that it will be unable to reach 
collective bargaining arrangements with the unions that represent certain of its workers, which could result in work 
stoppages. 

In connection with acquisitions, Spire and Spire Missouri recorded goodwill and long-lived assets 
that could become impaired and adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations. 

Spire and Spire Missouri assess goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances 
occur that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a rep01ting unit below its carrying value. The 
Company and Spire Missouri assess their long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or circumstances 
indicate that an asset's canying amount may not be recoverable. To the extent the value of goodwill or long-lived 
assets becomes impaired, the Company and Spire Missomi may be required to incur impairment charges that could 
have a material impact on their results of operations. 

Since interest rates are a key component, among other assumptions, in the models used to estimate the fair values 
of the Company's reporting units, as interest rates rise, the calculated fair values decrease and future impairments 
may occur. Due to the subjectMty of the assumptions and estimates underlying the impairment analysis, Spire and 
Spire Missouri cannot provide assurance that future analyses will not result in impairment. These assumptions and 
estimates include projected cash flows, current and futnre rates for contracted capacity, growth rates, weighted 
average cost of capital and market multiples. 

Changes in accounting standards may adversely impact the Company's financial condition and 
results of operations. 

Spire and its subsidiaries are subject to changes in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), SEC 
regulations and other interpretations of financial rep01ting requirements for public utilities. Neither the Company 
nor any of its subsidiaries have any control over the impact these changes may have on their financial condition or 
results of operations nor the timing of such changes. The potential issues associated with rate-regulated accounting, 
along with other potential changes to GAAP that the U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") continues 
to consider may be significant. 

Climate change and regulatory and legislative developments in the energy industry related to 
climate change may in the futtn·e adversely affect operations and financial results. 

Climate change, and the extent regulat01y or legislative changes occur to address the potential for climate change, 
could adversely affect operations and financial results of the Company. Management believes it is likely that any 
such resulting impacts would occur over a long peliod of time and thus would be difficult to quantify with any 
degree of specificity. To the extent climate change results in warmer temperatures, financial results could be 
adversely affected through lower gas volumes and revenues and lack of marketing oppo1tunities. Another possible 
impact of climate change may be more frequent and more severe weather events, such as hurricanes and tornadoes, 
which could increase costs to repair damaged facilities and restore service to customers. If the Company were 
unable to deliver natural gas to customers, financial results would be impacted by lost revenues, and the Utilities 
generally would have to seek approval from regulators to recover restoration costs. To the extent the Utilities would 
be unable to recover those costs, or if higher rates resulting from recove1y of such costs would result in reduced 
demand for the Company's services, the Company's and the Utilities' future business, financial condition or 
financial results could be adversely impacted. 

In addition, there have been a number of federal and state legislative and regulatmy initiatives proposed in recent 
years in an attempt to control or limit the effects of global warming and overall climate change, including 
greenhouse gas emissions, such as methane and carbon dioxide. The adoption of this type oflegislation by Congress 
or similar legislation by states or the adoption of related regulations by federal or state governments mandating a 
substantial reduction in greenhouse gas emissions in the future could have far-reaching and significant impacts on 
the energy industry. Such new legislation or regulations could result in increased compliance costs or additional 
operating reshictions, affect the demand for natural gas or impact the pdces charged to customers. At this time, we 
cannot predict the potential impact of such laws or regulations that may be adopted on the Company's and the 
Utilities' future business, financial condition or financial results. 
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Changes to income tax policy, certain tax elections, tax regulations and future taxable income could 
adversely impact the Company's financial condition and results of operations. 

The Company has significantly reduced its federal and state income tax obligations over the past few years through 
tax planning strategies and the extension of bonus depreciation deductions for certain expenditures for property. As 
a result, the Company has generated large annual taxable losses that have resulted in significant federal and state 
net operating losses, The Company plans to utilize these net operating losses in the future to reduce income tax 
obligations. The value of these net operating losses could be reduced if the Company cannot generate enough 
taxable income in the future to utilize all of the net operating losses before they expire due to lower than expected 
financial petformance or regulatoty actions or if the Internal Revenue Service does not agree with cettain filing 
positions of the Company. 

Changes to income tax policy, laws and regulations, including but not limited to changes in tax rates, the 
deductibility of cettain expenses including interest and state and local income taxes and/or changes in the 
deductibility of cettain expenditures for property, could adversely impact the Company. Those impacts could 
include reducing the value of its net operating losses and could result in material charges to earnings. Further, the 
Company's financial condition and results of operations may be adversely impacted. 

Spire's pension and other posh·etirement benefits plans are subject to invesbnent and interest rate 
risk that could negatively impact its financial condition, 

The Company and its subsidiaries have pension and other postretirement benefits plans that provide benefits to 
many of their employees and retirees. Costs of providing benefits and related funding requirements of these plans 
are subject to changes in the market value of the assets that fund the plans. The funded status of the plans and the 
related costs reflected in our financial statements are affected by various factors, which are subject to an inherent 
degree of uncertainty, including economic conditions, financial market petformance, interest rates, life expectancies 
and demographics. Recessions and volatility in the domestic and international financial markets have negatively 
affected the asset values of Spire's pension plans at various times in the past. Poor investment returns or lower 
interest rates may necessitate accelerated funding of the plans to meet minimum federal government requirements, 
which could have an adverse impact on the Company's and its subsidiaries' financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Catash·ophic events may adversely affect the Company's facilities and operations. 

Catastrophic events such as fires, emthquakes, explosions, floods, tornadoes, hurricanes, tropical storms, terrorist 
acts, acts of civil unrest, pandemic illnesses or other similar occun-ences could adversely affect the Utilities' facilities 
and operations, as well as those of Spire STL Pipeline and Spire Storage. The Utilities have emergency planning and 
training programs in place to respond to events that could cause business interruptions. However, unanticipated 
events or a combination of events, failure in resources needed to respond to events, or slow or inadequate response 
to events may have an adverse impact on the operations, financial condition, and results of operations of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. The availability of insurance covering catastrophic events may be limited or may 
result in higher deductibles, higher premiums, and more restrictive policy terms. 

RISKS THAT RELATE TO THE GAS UTILITY SEGMENT 

Regulation of the Utilities' businesses may impact rates they are able to charge, costs, and 
profitability. 

The Utilities are subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities. At the state level, the Utilities are 
regulated in Missouri by the Missouri Public Service Commission ("MoPSC"), in Alabama by the Alabama Public 
Setvice Commission ("APSC"), and in Mississippi by the Mississippi Public Setvice Commission ("MSPSC"). These 
state public service commissions regulate many aspects of the Utilities' distribution operations, including 
constmction and maintenance of facilities, operations, safety, the rates the Utilities may charge customers, the 
terms of setvice to their customers, transactions with their affiliates, the rate of return they are allowed to realize, 
and the accounting treatment for cettain aspects of their operations. For futther discussion of these accounting 
matters, see Regulatoty Accounting under Critical Accounting Estimates in Item 7. 

15 



The Utilities' ability to obtain and timely implement rate increases and rate supplements to maintain the current 
rate of return is subject to regulat01y review and approval. There can be no assurance that they will be able to obtain 
rate increases or rate supplements or continue earning the current authorized rates of return. Spire Alabama's and 
Spire Gulfs rate setting process, Rate Stabilization and Equalization ("RSE"), is subject to regulation by the APSC 
and is implemented pursuant to APSC orders expi1ing September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. RSE 
adjustments would continue after those dates unless theAPSC enters an order to the contra1y in a manner 
consistent with the law. Spire Mississippi is subject to regulation by the MSPSC and utilizes the Rate Stabilization 
Adjustment ("RSA") Rider. For further details, see Note 14, Regulatmy Matters, of the Notes to Financial 
Statements in Item 8. 

The Utilities could incur additional costs if required to adjust to new1aws or regulations, revisions to existing laws 
or regulations or changes iu interpretations of existing laws or regulations such as the Dodd-Frank Act. In addition, 
as the regulatory environment for the natural gas indust1y increases in complexity, the iisk of inadveitent 
noncompliance could also increase. If the Utilities fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, whether 
existing or new, they could be subject to fines, penalties or other enforcement action by the authorities that regulate 
the Utilities' operations. 

The Utilities are involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various courts and 
governmental bodies that could adversely affect their results of operations, cash flows and financial 
condition. 

The Utilities are involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various couits and governmental bodies with 
respect to general claims, rates, environmental issues, gas cost prudence reviews and other matters. For further 
details, see Contingencies in Note 15 to the financial statements in Item 8. Adverse decisions regarding these 
matters, to the extent they require the Utilities to make payments in excess of amounts provided for in their 
financial statements, or to the extent they are not covered by insurance, could adversely affect the Utilities' results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

The Utilities' liquidity may be adversely affected by delays in recovery of their costs, due to 
regulation. 

In the normal course of business, there is a lag between when the Utilities incur increases in certain of their costs 
and the time in which those costs are considered for recovery in the ratemaking process. Cash requirements for 
increased operating costs, increased funding levels of defined benefit pension and postretirement costs, capital 
expenditures, and other increases in the costs of doing business can require outlays of cash prior to the 
authorization of increases in rates charged to customers, as approved by the MoPSC, APSC, and MSPSC. 
Accordingly, the Utilities' liquidity can be adversely impacted to the extent higher costs are not timely recovered 
from their customers. 

The Utilities' ability to meet their customers' natural gas requirements may be impaired if 
contracted gas supplies, interstate pipeline and/or storage services are not available or delivered in 
a timely manner. 

In order to meet their customers' annual and seasonal natural gas demands, the Utilities must obtain sufficient 
supplies, interstate pipeline capacity, and storage capacity. If they are unable to obtain these, either from their 
suppliers' inability to deliver the contracted commodity or the inability to secure replacement quantities, the 
Utilities' financial condition and results of operations may he adversely impacted. If a substantial disruption in 
interstate natural gas pipelines' transmission and storage capacity were to occur during periods of heavy demand, 
the Utilities' financial results could be adversely impacted. 

The Utilities' liquidity and, in certain circmnstances, the Utilities' results of operations may be 
adversely affected by the cost of purchasing natural gas dm·ing periods in which natural gas prices 
are rising significantly. 

The tariff rate schedules of the Missouri Utilities, Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi contain Purchased Gas 
Adjustment ("PGA") clauses and Spire Alabama's tariff rate schedule contains a Gas Supply Adjustment ("GSA") 
rider that permit the Utilities to file for rate adjustments to recover the cost of purchased gas. Changes in the cost of 
purchased gas are flowed through to customers and may affect uncollectible amounts and cash flows and can 
therefore impact the amount of capital resources. 
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Currently, the Missouri Utilities are allowed to adjust the gas cost component of rates up to four times each year 
while Spire Alabama and Spire Gulf (collectively, the "Alabama Utilities") and Spire Mississippi may adjust the gas 
cost component of their rates on a monthly basis. The Missouri Utilities must make a mandato1y gas cost 
adjustment at the beginning of the winter, in November, and during the next twelve months may make up to three 
additional discretiona1y gas cost adjustments, so long as each of these adjustments is separated by at least two 
months. 

The MoPSC typically approves the Missouri Utilities' PGA changes on an interim basis, subject to refund and the 
outcome of a subsequent audit and prudence re,iew. Due to such review process, there is a risk of a disallowance of 
full recove1y of these costs. Any material disallowance of purchased gas costs would adversely affect revenues. The 
Alabama Utilities' gas supply charges are submitted for APSC review on a monthly basis, regardless of whether 
there is a request for a change, so prudence re,iew occurs on an ongoing basis. Spire Mississippi's PGA is adjusted 
on a monthly basis for the most recent charges and is filed at the MSPSC on a monthly basis. 

Increases in the prices the Utilities charge for gas may also adversely affect revenues because they could lead 
customers to reduce usage and cause some customers to have trouble paJing the resulting higher bills. These higher 
prices may increase bad debt expenses and ultimately reduce earnings. Rapid increases in the price of pmchased 
gas may result in an increase in sh01t-term debt. 

To lower financial exposure to commodity price fluctuations, Spire Missouri enters into contracts to hedge the 
forward commodity price of its natural gas supplies. As pa1t of this strategy, Spire Missouri may use fixed-price 
forward physical purchase contracts, swaps, futures, and option contracts. However, Spire Missouri does not hedge 
the entire exposure of energy assets or positions to market price volatility, and the coverage will vaiy over time. Any 
costs, gains, or losses experienced through hedging procedures, including canying costs, generally flow through the 
PGA clause, thereby limiting the Missouri Utilities' exposure to earnings volatility. However, variations in the 
timing of collections of such gas costs under the PGA clause and the effect of cash payments for margin deposits 
associated with the Missouri Utilities' use of natural gas derivative instruments may cause sh01t-term cash 
requirements to vaiy. These procedures remain subject to prudence review by the MoPSC. 

Other than fixed-price forward physical purchase contracts, Spire Alabama currently does not utilize risk mitigation 
strategies that incorporate commodity hedge instruments but has the ability to do so through its GSA. Spire Gulf 
hedges gas supply for up to 30 months in advance, and Spire Mississippi utilizes hedging for the upcoming heating 
season, 

The Utilities' business activities are concenh·ated in three states. 

The Utilities provide natural gas distribution services to customers in Alabama, Mississippi, and Missouri. Changes 
in the regional economies, politics, regulations and weather patterns of these states could negatively impact the 
Utilities' growth opportunities and the usage patterns and financial condition of customers and could adversely 
affect the Utilities' earnings, cash flows, and financial position. 

The Utilities may be adversely affected by economic conditions. 

Periods of slowed economic activity generally result in decreased energy consumption, particularly by industrial and 
large commercial companies, a loss of existing customers, fewer new customers especially in newly constmcted 
buildings. As a consequence, national or regional recessions or other downturns in economic acthity could 
adversely affect the Utilities' revenues and cash flows or restrict their future growth. Economic conditions in the 
Utilities' service territories may also adversely impact the Utilities' ability to collect accounts receivable, resulting in 
an increase in bad debt expense. 
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Environmental laws and regulations may require significant expenditures or increase operating 
costs. 

The Utilities are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations affecting many aspects of 
their present and future operations. These laws and regulations require tlu-~ Utilities to obtain and comply with a 
wide vadety of environmental licenses, permits, inspections, and approvals. Failure to comply with these laws and 
regulations and failure to obtain any required permits and licenses may result in costs to the Utilities in the form of 
fines, penalties or business interruptions, which may be material. In addition, existing environmental laws and 
regulations could be re,ised or reinterpreted and/or new laws and regulations could be adopted or become 
applicable to the Utilities or their facilities, thereby impacting the Utilities' cost of compliance. The discove1y of 
presently unknown environmental conditions, including former manufactured gas plant sites, and claims against 
the Utilities under environmental laws and regulations may result in expenditures and liabilities, which could be 
mate1ial. To the extent environmental compliance costs are not fully covered by insurance or recovered in rates 
from customers, those costs may have an adverse effect on the Utilities' financial condition and results of 
operations. 

Because of the highly competitive nature of its business, the Utilities may not be able to retain 
existing customers or acquire new customers, which could have an adverse impact on their 
business, operating results and financial condition. 

The Utilities face the risk that customers may bypass gas distribution senices by gaining distribution directly from 
interstate pipelines or, in the case of Spire Alabama and Spire Gulf, also from municipally or publicly owned gas 
distdbutors located adjacent to its senice teITitmy. The Utilities cannot provide any assurance that increased 
competition or other changes in legislation, regulation or policies will not have a material adverse effect on their 
business, financial condition or results of operations. 

The Utilities compete with distributors offedng a broad range of sernces and pdces, from full-service distdbutors to 
those offering delive1y only. The Utilities also compete for retail customers with suppliers of alternative energy 
products, principally propane and electdcity. If they are unable to compete effectively, the Utilities may lose existing 
customers and/or fail to acquire new customers, which in the aggregate could have a material adverse effect on their 
business, operating reSults and financial condition. 

Changes in the wholesale costs of purchased natural gas supplies may adversely impact the Utilities' 
competitive position compared with alte,~iative energy som·ces. 

Changes in wholesale natural gas pdces compared with prices for electdcity, fuel oil, coal, propane, or other energy 
sources may affect the Utilities' retention of natural gas customers and may adversely impact their financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Significantly warmer-than-normal weather conditions, the effects of climate change, legislative and 
regulatory initiatives in response to climate change or in support of increased energy efficiency, 
and other factors that influence customer usage may affect the Utilities' sale of heating energy and 
adversely impact their financial position and results of operations. 

The Utilities' earnings are p1imarily generated by the sale of heating energy. The Missouri Utilities and Spire 
Mississippi each have a Weather Normalization Adjustment dder, Spire Alabama has a Temperature Adjustment 
Rider, and Spire Gulf has a Weather Impact Normalization Factor. These mechanisms, approved by the respective 
state regulatmy body, pr°'ide better assurance of the recove1y of fixed costs and margins during winter months 
despite variations in sales volumes due to the impacts of weather, while the annual rate designs of Alabama and 
Mississippi help adjust for other factors that affect customer usage. However, significantly warmer-than-normal 
weather conditions in the Utilities' service areas and other factors, such as climate change, alternative energy 
sources and increased efficiency of gas furnaces and other appliances, may result in reduced profitability and 
decreased cash flows athibutable to lower gas sales. Furthermore, continuation of these adjustment factors is 
subject to regulato1y discretion. 

In addition, the promulgation of regulations by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, pa1ticularly those 
regulating the emissions of greenhouse gases, and by the U.S. Depa1tment of Energy suppo1ting higher efficiency 
for residential gas furnaces and other gas appliances or the potential enactment of congressional legislation 
addressing global warming and climate change may decrease customer usage, encourage fuel switching from gas to 
other energy forms, and may result in future additional compliance costs that could impact the Utilities' financial 
conditions and results of operations. 
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Regional supply /demand fluctuations and changes in national infrastructm·e, as well as regulatory 
discretion, may adversely affect the Missouri Utilities' ability to profit from off-system sales and 
capacity release. 

The !vlissouri Utilities' income from off-system sales and capacity release is subject to fluctuations in market 
conditions and changing supply and demand conditions in areas the Missouri Utilities hold pipeline capacity rights. 
Specific factors impacting the Missouri Utilities' income from off-system sales and capacity release include the 
availability of attractively-priced natural gas supply, availability of pipeline capacity, and market demand. Income 
from off-system sales and capacity release is shared with customers. Effective April 19, 2018, the Missouri Utilities 
are allowed to retain 25% of the net margins achieved as a result of such off-system sales and capacity releases. The 
Missouri Utilities' ability to retain such income in the future is subject to regulatmy discretion in a base rate 
proceeding. 

RISKS THAT RELATE TO THE GAS MARKETING SEGMENT 

Increased competition, fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices, expiration of supply and 
transportation arrangements, and infrastructm·e projects may adversely impact the futm·e 
profitability of Gas Marketing. 

Competition in the marketplace and fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices have a direct impact on the Gas 
Marketing business. Changing market conditions and prices, the narrowing of regional and seasonal price 
differentials and limited future price volatility may adversely impact its sales margins or affect its ability to procure 
gas supplies and/or to serve certain customers, which may reduce sales profitability and/or increase certain credit 
requirements caused by reductions in netting capability. Also, Gas Marketing profitability may be impacted by the 
effects of the expiration, in the normal course of business, of certain of its natural gas supply contracts if those 
contracts cannot be replaced and/or renewed with arrangements with similar terms and pricing. Although the 
FERC regulates the interstate transpo1tation of natural gas and establishes the general terms and conditions under 
which Spire Marketing may use interstate gas pipeline capacity to purchase and transpmt natural gas, it must 
occasionally renegotiate its transpmtation agreements with a concentrated group of pipeline companies. 
Renegotiated terms of new agreements, or increases in FERC-authorized rates of existing agreements, may impact 
Gas Marketing's future profitability. Profitability may also be adversely impacted if pipeline capacity or future 
storage capacity secured is not fully utilized. 

Reduced access to credit and/or capital markets may prevent the Gas Marketing business from 
executing operating strategies. 

The Gas Marketing segment relies on its cash flows, ability to effect net settlements with counterpa1ties, parental 
guaranties, and access to Spire's liquidity resources to satisfy its credit and working capital requirements. Spire 
Marketing's ability to rely on parental guaranties is dependent upon Spire's financial condition and credit ratings. If 
Spire's credit ratings were lowered, pa1ticularly below investment grade, counterpa1ty acceptance of parental 
guaranties may diminish, resulting in decreased availability of credit. Additionally, under such circumstances, 
ce1tain counterparties may require Spire Marketing to provide prepayments or cash deposits, amounts of which 
would be dependent upon natural gas market conditions. Reduced access to credit or increased credit requirements, 
which may also be caused by factors such as higher overall natural gas prices, may limit Spire Marketing's ability to 
enter into ce1tain transactions. In addition, Spire Marketing has concentrations of counterpaity credit risk in that a 
significant pmtion of its transactions are with (or are associated with) energy producers, utility companies, and 
pipelines. These concentrations of counterparties have the potential to affect the Company's overall exposure to 
credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that each of these three groups may be affected similarly by changes in 
economic, industry, or other conditions. Spire Marketing also has concentrations of credit risk in ceitain 
individually significant counterparties. Spire Marketing closely monitors its credit exposure and, although 
uncollectible amounts have not been significant, increased counterparty defaults are possible and may result in 
financial losses and/or capital limitations. 

Risk management policies, including the use of delivative instruments, may not fully protect Spire 
Marketing's sales and results of operations from volatility and may result in financial losses. 

In the course of its business, Spire Marketing enters into contracts to purchase and sell natural gas at fixed prices 
and index-based prices. Commodity price risk associated with these contracts has the potential to impact earnings 
and cash flows. To minimize this risk, Spire Marketing has a risk management policy that provides for daily 
monitoring of a number of business measures, including fixed price commitments. 
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Spire Marketing currently manages the commodity price risk associated with fixed-ptice commitments for the 
purchase or sale of natural gas by either closely matching the offsetting physical purchase or sale of natural gas at 
fixed prices or through the use of natural gas futures, options, and swap contracts traded on or cleared through the 
New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc. and/or the Intercontinental Exchange to lock in margins. These exchange­
traded/cleared contracts may be designated as cash flow hedges offorecasied transactions. However, market 
conditions and regional price changes may cause ineffective portions of matched positions to result in financial 
losses. Additionally, to the extent that Spire Marketing's natural gas contracts are classified as trading activities or 
do not otherwise qualify for the normal purchases or normal sales designation ( or the designation is not elected), 
the contracts are recorded as derivatives at fair value each period. Accordingly, the associated gains and losses are 
repo1ted directly in earnings and may cause volatility in results of operations. Gains or losses (realized and 
unrealized) on ce1tain wholesale purchase and sale contracts, consisting of those classified as trading activities, are 
required to be presented on a net basis (instead of a gross basis) in the statements of consolidated income. Such 
presentation could result in volatility in the Company's operating revenues. 

As a natural gas market paiticipant, Spire Marketing is subject to all applicable FERC- and Commodity Futures 
Trading Commission- ("CFTC") administered statutes, rules, regulations and orders, including those directed 
generally to prevent manipulation of or fraud involving natural gas physical transactions and financial instruments, 
such as futures, options and swaps. Spire Marketing could be subject to substantial penalties and fines by FERC or 
CFTC, or both, for failure to comply with such rules. 

The Dodd-Frank Act's swaps regulat01y provisions and the related rules may adversely affect our existing derivative 
contracts and restrict our ability to monetize such contracts, cause us to restructure ce1tain contracts, reduce the 
availability of derivatives to protect against risks or to optimize assets, increase the costs of entering into and 
maintaining swaps, adversely affect our ability to execute our hedging strategies and impact the liquidity of ce1tain 
swaps products, all of which could increase our business costs. 

Spire Marketing's ability to meet its customers' natural gas requirements may be impaired if 
contracted gas supplies and interstate pipeline services are not available or delivered in a timely 
111anner. 

Spire ~1:arketing's ability to deliver natural gas to its customers is contingent upon the ability of natural gas 
producers, other gas marketers, and interstate pipelines to fulfill delivery obligations to Spire Marketing under firm 
contracts. To the extent that it is unable to obtain the necessary supplies, Spire Marketing's financial position and 
results of operations may be adversely impacted. 

Regulatory and legislative developments pertaining to the energy industry may adversely impact 
Gas Marketing's results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

The Gas Marketing business is non-regulated, in that the rates it charges its customers are not currently established 
by or subject to approval by any regulat01y body with jurisdiction over its business. However, it is subject to various 
laws and regulations affecting the energy indushy. New regulatory and legislative actions may adversely impact Gas 
Marketing's results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows by potentially reducing customer growth 
opp01tunities and/or increasing the costs of doing business. 

For example, Spire Marketing incurs additional costs to comply with new laws and regulations, such as the Dodd­
Frank Act amendments to the Commodity Exchange Act, which authorizes the CFTC to regulate futures contracts, 
options and swaps. These derivative transactions include instmments and bilateral contracts that Spire Marketing 
uses to hedge or mitigate ongoing commercial risks. The Dodd-Frank Act contemplates that most standardized 
swaps will be required to be cleared through a registered clearing facility and traded on a designated exchange or 
swap execution facility, subject to ce1tain exceptions. In addition, the CFTC's rules require companies, including 
Spire Marketing, to maintain regulat01y records of swap transactions, and to repo1t swaps to centralized swap data 
repositories, among other new compliance obligations. Although Spire Marketing may qualify for exceptions to 
certain of the new CFTC rules, its derivatives counterpa1ties are subject to new capital, margin, documentation and 
business conduct requirements imposed as a result of the Dodd-Frank Act. Such new rules may increase transaction 
costs and may make it more difficult for Spire Marketing to enter into hedging transactions on favorable terms or 
affect the number and/or creditwo1thiness of available swap counterparties. Spire Marketing's inability to enter into 
derivatives instruments or other commercial risk hedging transactions on favorable terms, or at all, could increase 
operating expenses and expose it to unhedged commercial risks, including potential adverse changes in commodity 
prices. 
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The CFfC has re-proposed its position limits rules that would modify and expand the applicability of position limits 
on the amounts of certain speculative futures contracts, as well as economically equivalent options, futures and 
swaps for or linked to ce1tain physical commodities that market pa1ticipants may hold, subject to limited 
exemptions for ce1tain bona fide hedging positions and other types of transactions. To the extent the revised CFfC 
position limits proposal becomes final, such positions will also be subject to the aggregation rules which the CfTC 
has adopted and the Company's ability to execute Spire Marketing's hedging strategies described above could be 
limited if Spire Marketing is unable to qualify for an exemption. It is uncertain at this time whether, when and in 
what form the CFfC's proposed new position limits rules may become final and effective. 

The Federal Reserve Board also has proposed rules that would limit ce1tain physical commodity activities of 
financial holding companies. Such rules, if adopted, may adversely affect Spire Marketing's ability to execute the 
Company's strategies by restricting the Company's available counterparties for ce1tain types of transactions, 
limiting the Company's ability to obtain ce1tain servkes, and reducing liquidity in physical and financial markets. It 
is unce1tain at this time whether, when and in what form the Federal Reserve's proposed rules regarding financial 
holding companies may become final and effective. 

Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments 

None. 

Item 2. Properties 

Spire 

Refer to the information below about the principal prope1ties of Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama. The Spire 
EnergySouth utilities own approximately 5,500 miles of pipelines. Other prope1ties of Spire and its subsidiaries, 
including Spire Marketing and Spire EnergySouth, do not constitute a significant pmtion of its properties. The 
current leases for office space in downtown St. Louis commenced in early 2015, with terms ranging from 10 to 20 
years, with multiple renewal options. For fu1ther information on leases see Note 15, Commitments and 
Contingencies, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Spire Missouri 

The principal properties of Spire Missouri consist of its gas distribution system, which includes more than 30,000 
miles of main and related service lines, odorization and regulation facilities, and customer meters. The mains and 
service lines are located in municipal streets or alleys, public streets or highways, or on lands of others for which we 
have obtained the necessary legal lights to place and operate our facilities on such property. Spire Missomi has an 
underground natural gas storage facility, several operating centers, and other related properties. Substantially all of 
Spire Missouri's utility plant is subject to the liens of its m01tgage. All the properties of Spire Missouri are held in 
fee, by easement, or under lease agreements. The principal lease agreements include underground storage rights 
that are of indefinite duration. 

Spire Alabama 

The prope1ties of Spire Alabama consist primarily of its gas distribution system, which includes approximately 
23,000 miles of main and related service lines, odolization and regulation facilities, and customer meters. The 
mains and service lines are located in municipal streets or alleys, public streets or highways, or on lands of others 
for which we have obtained the necessary legal rights to place and operate our facilities on such property. Spire 
Alabama also has four LNG facilities, several operating centers, and other related prope1ties. All of the properties of 
Spire Alabama are held in fee, by easement, or under lease agreements. 

Item 3, Legal Proceedings 

For a description of pending regulatmy matters of Spire, see Note 14, Regulato1y Matters, of the Notes to Financial 
Statements in Item 8. For a description of environmental matters, see Contingencies in Note 15 of the Notes to 
Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Spire and its subsidiaries are involved in litigation, claims and investigations arising in the normal course of 
business. Management, after discussion with counsel, believes the final outcome ,viii not have a material effect on 
the consolidated financial position or results of operations reflected in the consolidated financial statements 
presented herein. 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT- Listed below are executive officers as defined by the SEC 
for Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama. Their ages, at September 30, 2018, and positions are listed below 
along with their business experience during the past five years. 

Na1nc 

S. Sitherwood 

S. L. Lindsey 

S. P. Rasche 

M. C. Darrell 

Age Position with Company r,1 

58 Spire 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Spire Missouri 
Chairman of the Board 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

Spire Alabama 
Chairman of the Board 

52 Spire 
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer of Distribution 
Operations 

Spire Missouri 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

President 

Spire Alabama 
Chief Executive Officer 

58 Spire 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Spire Missouri 
Chief Financial Officer 

Spire Alabama 
Chief Financial Officer 

60 Spire 

Appointed (2) 

February 2012 

January 2015 

October 2012 

September 2014 

October 2012 

J anuaty 2015 

October 2012 

September 2014 

November 2013 

May2012 

September 2014 

Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer May 2012 

M. C. Geiselhart 59 Spire 

K.A. Smith 

Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning and Corporate Development 

Vice President, Strategic Planning and Corporate Development 

Vice President, Strategic Development and Planning 

60 Spire Alabama 
President 

Vice President, System Integrity 

Janua1y 2015 

Febmaty 2014 

August 2006 

April 2015 

August 2011 

c,1 The information provided relates to the Company and its principal subsidiaries. Many of the executive officers 
have served or currently serve as officers or directors for other subsidiaries of the Company. 

<2l Officers of Spire are normally reappointed by the Board of Directors in November of each year. Officers of Spire 
Missouri and Spire Alabama are normally reappointed by their boards of directors in Janua1y of each year. 
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PARTII 

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer 
Purchases of Equity Securities 

Spire 

Spire's common stock trades on The New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol "SR". The number of 
holders of record as of November 12, 2018 was 3,083. 

Performance Graph 

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* 

----- Spire Inc. -A.- S&P Utilities Index -Jill,-- S&P 500 Index 

$220 -

$200 

$180 

$160 

$140 

$120 

$100 •· 
~~ 

$80 

9/30/13 9/30/14 9/30/15 9/30/16 9/30/17 9/30/18 

September 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Spire Inc. $ 100.00 $ 107.08 $130.46 $ 157.24 $ 189.86 $ 192.98 

S&P Utilities Index 100.00 117.13 124.82 146.50 164.12 168.93 

S&P 500 Index 100.00 119.73 119.00 137.36 162.92 192.10 

4 Cumulative total return is based on a $100 investment on September 30, 2013, assuming reinvestment of dividends. 

For disclosures related to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, see Note 2, Stock­
Based Compensation, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 
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During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the only repurchases of our common stock were pursuant to 
elections by employees to have shares of stock withheld to cover employee tax withholding obligations upon the 
vesting of pe1formance-based and time-vested restricted stock and stock units. The following table provides 
information on those repurchases: 

Period 

July 1, 2018 -July 31, 2018 

August 1, 2018 -August 31, 2018 

September 1, 2018 - September 30, 2018 

Total 

Spire Missouri 

(a) 
Total 

Number of 
Shares 

Purchased 

114 

64 

178 

(b) 
Average 

Price 
Paid Per 

Share 

$71.90 
$74.58 

$72.86 

(c) 
Total Number of Shares 

Purchased as Part of 
Publicly Announced 
Plans or Programs 

(d) 
Maximum Number of 

Shares that May Yet be 
Purchased Under the 

Plans or Progi•ams 

Spire Missouri common stock is owned by its parent, Spire Inc., and is not traded on any stock exchange. 

Spire Missouri's m011gage contains restrictions on its ability to pay cash dividends on its common stock, as 
described in fm1her detail in Note 4, Shareholders' Equity, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. As of 
September 30, 2018 and 2017, the amount under the mortgage's formula that was available to pay dividends was 
$1,097.6 million and $1,010.8 million, respectively. 

Spire periodically purchases common stock of Spire Missouri with the price set at the book value of Spire Missouri 
common stock as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter. There were no sales of Spire Missouri common stock 
during the three most recent fiscal years. 

Spire Alabama 

Spire Alabama common stock is owned by its parent, Spire Inc., and is not traded on any stock exchange. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Spire 

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 

Statements of Income data 

Total Operating Revenues 
Net Income 

Common Stock data 

Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock 

Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock 
Balance Sheet data (3) 

Total Assets 

Long-Term Debt (less current portion) 

Net Economic Earnings data <4> 
Net Income [GAAP] 

Missouri regulatory adjustments 

Unrealized (gain) loss on energy-re1ated derivatives 

Lower of cost or market inventory adjustments 

Realized (gain) loss on economic hedges prior to the sale of the 
physical commodity 

Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities 
Gain on sale of property 

Income tax effect of adjustments 

Effect of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 

Net Economic Earnings [Non-GAAP] 

Diluted Earnings per Share of Common Stock: 
Net Iuconte [GA.AP] 

Missouri regulat01y adjustments 

Unrealized (gain) loss on energy-related derivatives 
Lower of cost or market invent01y adjustments 

Realized (gain) loss on economic hedges prior to the sale of the 
physical commodity 

Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities 
Gain on sale of property 

Income tax effect of adjustments 
Effect of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 

Weighted average shares adjustment 

Net Economic Earnings [Non-GAAP] 

Fiscal Years Ended September 30 
2018 2017 2016(1) 2015 2014<2 ) 

$ 1,965.0 $ 1,740.7 $ 1,537.3 $ 1,976.4 $ 1,627.2 

$ 

214.2 161.6 144.2 136.9 84.6 

4.33 $ 
2.25 

3.43 $ 
2.10 

3.24 $ 

1.96 

3.16 $ 
1.84 

2.35 

1.76 

$ 6,843.6 $ 6,546.7 $ 6,064.4 $ 5,277.6 $ 5,059.3 

1,900.1 1,995.0 1,820.7 1,758.9 1,836.3 

$ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 $ 136.9 $ 
30.6 

84.6 

(4.0) 

(0.3) 

13.6 

(10.3) 

6.0 

(0.3) 

4.0 

(3.7) 

(0.1) 

0.2 

(1.6) 

9.2 

(2.8) 

(2.8) 

0.4 

2.4 

9.8 

(7.6) 

(0.8) 

(1.6) 

(1.1) 

(0.4) 

29.5 

(10.9) 

(60.1) -------- -------
$ 183. 7 $ 167.6 $ 149.1 $ 138.3 $ 100.1 

$ 

$ 

4.33 $ 
0.62 

(0.08) 

(0.01) 

0.28 

(0.21) 

(1.21) 

3.72 $ 

3.43 $ 

0.13 

(0.01) 

0.09 

(0.08) 

3.56 $ 

3.14 $ 

0.01 

(0.04) 

0.21 

(0.06) 

0.06 

3.42 j 

3.16 $ 

(0.07) 

0.01 

0.06 

0.23 

(0.18) 

(0.02) 

2.35 

(0.04) 

(0.03) 

(0.01) 

0.82 

(0.31) 

0.27 

3.19 $ 3.05 

(1) Effective September 12, 2016, Spire completed the purchase of 100% of the outstanding common stock of Spire EnergySouth. Total cash 
consideration paid, net of cash acquired, debt assumed and a working capital settlement payment received, was $313.9, funded with a 
combination of the issuance of approximately 2.2 million shares of common stock on .May 17, 2016, the issuance of $165.0 aggregate 
principal amount of senior notes on September 9, 2016, and cash on hand. 

(2) Effective August 31, 2014, Spire completed the purchase of 100% of the outstanding common stock of Spire Alabama for $1,590.3 (including 
assumed debt of $264.8), funded with a combination of the issuance of 10.35 million shares of common stock and 2.875 million equity units 
completed on June 11, 2014, the issuance of $625.0 aggregate principal amount of senior notes on August 19, 2014, and cash on hand. 

(3) Balance Sheet data for fiscal years 2014-2016 has been restated to retrospectively reflect the impact of implementing Accounting Standards 
Update ("ASU'') No. 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, during fiscal 2017, 

(4)This section contains the non-GAAP financial measures of net economic earnings ("NEE") and net economic earnings per share ("NEEPS"). 
NEEPS are calculated by replacing consolidated net income with consolidated NEE in the GAAP diluted earnings per share calculation. Each 
reconciling item between NEE and net income is shown pre-tax. The income tax effect is calculated by applying federal, state, and local 
income tax rates applicable to ordinary income to the amounts of the pre~tax reconciling items and then adding any estimated effects of 
enacted state or local income tax laws for periods before the related effecti\'e date. NEEPS for 2016 excludes the impact of the May 2016 
equity offering to fund the acquisition of Spire EnergySouth. NEEPS for 2014 excludes the impact of the June 2014 equity offerings to fund 
the acquisition of Spire Alabama. The weighte<l-m,erage diluted shares used in the NEEPS calculation for fiscal years 2016 and 2014 were 
43,5 and 32.7, compared to 44.3 and 35,9, respectively, used in the GAAP earnings per share calculations for those years. For more 
information on net economic earnings data, refer to the Non-GAAP Measures section of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7. 
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

(Do/lal's in millions, except pel' shal'e and pel' unit am01mts) 

INTRODUCTION 

This section analyzes the financial condition and results of operations of Spire Inc. ("Spire" or the "Company"), 
Spire Missouri Inc. ("Spire Missouri" or the "Missouri Utilities"), and Spire Alabama Inc. ("Spire Alabama"). Spire 
Missouri, Spire Alabama and Spire EnergySouth Inc. ("Spire EnergySouth") are wholly owned subsidiaries of the 
Company. Spire Missouri, Spire Alabama and the subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth Inc. are collectively referred to 
as the "Utilities". The subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth are Spire Gulf Inc. ("Spire Gulf') and Spire Mississippi Inc. 
("Spire Mississippi"). This section includes management's view of factors that affect the respective businesses of the 
Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, explanations of financial results including changes in earnings and 
costs from the prior periods, and the effects of such factors on the Company's, Spire Missouri's and Spire Alabama's 
overall financial condition and liquidity. Unless otherwise indicated, references to years herein are references to the 
fiscal years ending September 30 for the Company and its subsidiaries. 

Reference is made to "Item 1A. llisk Factors" and "Forward-Looking Statements," which describe important factors 
that could cause actual results to differ from expectations and non-historical information contained herein. In 
addition, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and 
accompanying notes thereto of Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama included in "Item 8. Financial Statements 
and Supplementaiy Data." 

OVERVIEW 

The Company has two key business segments: Gas Utility and Gas Marketing. Spire's earnings are primmily derived 
from its Gas Utility segment, which reflects the regulated activities of the Utilities. Due to the seasonal nature of the 
Utilities' business, eamings of Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are typically concentrated during the 
heating season of November through April each fiscal year. 

Gas Utility - Spfre lrfissouri 

Spire Missouri is Missouri's largest natural gas distribution utility and is regulated by the Missomi Public Service 
Commission ("MoPSC"). Spire Missouri se1ves St. Louis and eastem Missouri through Spire Missomi East and 
se1ves Kansas City and westem Missomi through Spire Missouri West. Spire Missouri delivers natural gas to 
customers at rates and in accordance with tariffs authorized by the MoPSC. The earnings of Spire Missouri are 
primarily generated by the sale of heating energy. The rate design for each se1vice tenito1y seives to lessen the 
impact of weather volatility on its customers dming cold winters and stabilize Spire Missomi's earnings. 

Gas Utility - Spire Alabama 

Spire Alabama is the largest natural gas distribution utility in the state of Alabama. Spire Alabama's service territory 
is located in central and nmthern Alabama. Among the cities served by Spire Alabama are Birmingham, the center 
of the largest metropolitan area in the state, and Montgome1y, the state capital. Spire Alabama is regulated by the 
Alabama Public Se1vice Commission ("APSC"). Spire Alabama purchases natural gas through interstate and 
intrastate suppliers and distributes the purchased gas through its distribution facilities for sale to residential, 
commercial and industrial customers and other end-users of natural gas. Spire Alabama also provides 
transpmtation services to large industrial and commercial customers located on its distribution system. These 
transpmtation customers, using Spire Alabama as their agent or acting on their own, purchase gas directly from 
marketers or suppliers and arrange for delive1y of the gas into the Spire Alabama distribution system. Spire 
Alabama charges a fee to transpo1t such customer-owned gas through its distribution system to the customers' 
facilities. 

Gas Utility - Spire Enel'guSouth 

Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi are utilities engaged in the purchase, retail distribution and sale of natural gas to 
0.1 million customers in southern Alabama and south-central Mississippi. Spire Gulf is regulated by the APSC and 
Spire Mississippi is regulated by the Mississippi Public Se1vice Commission ("MSPSC"). 
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Gas Marketing 

Spire Marketing Inc. ("Spire Marketing") is engaged in the marketing of natural gas and related activities on a non­
regulated basis and is reported in the Gas Marketing segment. Spire Marketing markets natural gas across the 
country with the core of its footprint located in and around the central United States ("U.S."). It holds firm 
transportation and storage contracts in order to effectively manage its customer base, which consists of producers, 
pipelines, power generators, storage operators, municipalities, utility companies, and large commercial and 
industrial customers. 

Other 

Other components of the Company's consolidated information include: 

unallocated corporate items, including ce1tain debt and associated interest costs; 
Spire STL Pipeline, a subsidiary of Spire planning the constmction and operation of a 65-mile FERC­
regulated pipeline to deliver natural gas into eastern Missomi; 
Spire Storage, providing physical natural gas storage services; and 
Spire's subsidiaries engaged in the operation of a propane pipeline, compression of natural gas, and risk 
management, among other actMties. 

Business Evaluation Factors 

Based on the nature of the business of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as current economic conditions, 
management focuses on the following key variables in evaluating the financial condition and results of operations 
and managing the business. 

Gas Utility segment: 

the Utilities' ability to recover the costs of purchasing and distributing natural gas from their customers; 
the hnpact of weather and other factors) such as customer conservation, on revenues and expenses; 
changes in the regulatory environment at the federal, state, and local levels, as well as decisions by 
regulators, that impact the Utilities' ability to earn its authorized rate of return in all service territories they 
serve; 
the Utilities' ability to access credit markets and maintain working capital sufficient to meet operating 
requirements; 
the effect of natural gas price volatility on the business; and 
the ability to manage costs, integrate and standardize operations, and upgrade infrastmcture. 

Gas Marketing segment: 

the risks of competition; 
fluctuations in natural gas prices; 

• the changing flow and availability of natural gas; 
new national infrastmcture projects; 
the ability to procure firm transp01tation and storage services at reasonable rates; 
credit and/or capital market access; 
counterparty risks; and 
the effect of natural gas price volatility on the business. 

Fmthcr information regarding how management seeks to manage these key variables is discussed below. 

Gas Utility 

The Utilities seek to provide reliable natural gas services at a reasonable cost, while maintaining and building secure 
and dependable infrastmctures. The Utilities' strategies focus on improving both pe1formance and the ability to 
recover their authorized distribution costs and rates of return. The Utilities' distribution costs are the essential, 
primarily fixed, expenditures they must incur to operate and maintain more than 58,000 miles of mains and 
services comprising their natural gas distribution systems and related storage facilities. 
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The Utilities' distribution costs include wages and employee benefit costs, depreciation and maintenance expenses, 
and other regulated utility operating expenses, excluding natural and propane gas expense. Distribution costs are 
considered in the rate-making process, and recovery of these types of costs is included in revenues generated 
through the Utilities' tariff rates. Spire Missouri's tariff rates are approved by the MoPSC, whereas Spire Alabama's 
tariff rates are approved by the APSC. Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi have tariff rates that are approved by the 
APSC and MSPSC, respectively. Spire Missouri also has an off-system sales and capacity release income stream that 
is regulated by tariff but remains subject to fluctuations in market conditions. Effective April 19, 2018, customers 
receive 75% and Spire Missouri receives 25% of the net margins achieved as a result of such off-system sales and 
capacity releases. For information about the multiple sharing tiers and percentages in place p1ior to that date, see 
Note 14, Regulat01y Matters, in the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Some of the factors impacting the level of off-system sales include the availability and cost of Spire Missouri's 
natural gas supply, the weather in its service area and the weather in other markets. When Spire Missouri's service 
area experiences warmer-than-normal weather while other markets experience colder weather or supply 
constraints, some of Spire Missouri's natural gas supply is available for off-system sales. 

The Utilities work actively to reduce the impact of wholesale natural gas price volatility on their costs by strategically 
structming their natural gas supply portfolios to increase their gas supply availability and pricing altematives. They 
may also use derivative instruments to hedge against significant changes in the commodity price of natural gas. 
Nevertheless, the overall cost of purchased gas remains subject to fluctuations in market conditions. The Purchased 
Gas Adjustment ("PGA") clause of Spire Missouri, Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi and Spire Alabama's Gas Supply 
Adjustment ("GSA") rider allow the Utilities to flow through to customers, subject to prudence review by the public 
service commissions, the cost of purchased gas supplies, including costs, cost reductions and related canying costs 
associated with the use of derivative instrnments to mitigate volatility in the cost of natural gas. As of September 30, 
2018, Spire Missouri had active derivative positions, but Spire Alabama has had no gas supply derivative instrument 
activity since 2010. The Utilities believe they will continue to be able to obtain sufficient gas supply. The price of 
natural gas supplies and other economic conditions may affect sales volumes, due to the conservation effo1ts of 
customers, and cash flows associated with the timing of collection of gas costs and related accounts receivable from 
cust01ners. 

The Utilities rely on sh01t-term credit and long-term capital 1narkets, as ·well as cash flows frmn operations, to 
satisfy their seasonal cash requirements and fund their capital expenditures. The Utilities' ability to issue 
commercial paper, access their lines of credit, issue long-term bonds or obtain new lines of credit is dependent on 
cmrent conditions in the credit and capital markets. Management focuses on maintaining a strong balance sheet 
and believes it currently has adequate access to credit and capital markets and will have sufficient capital resources 
to meet their foreseeable obligations. See the Liquidity and Capital Resources section for additional information. 

Gas Marketing 

Spire Marketing is engaged in the marketing of natural gas and providing energy services to both on-system utility 
transpmtation customers and customers outside of the Utilities' traditional service areas. Spire Marketing utilizes 
its natmal gas supply agreements, transportation agreements, park and loan agreements, storage agreements and 
other executory contracts to suppmt a variety of services to its customers at competitive prices. It closely monitors 
and manages the natural gas commodity price and volatility risks associated with providing such services to its 
customers through the use of a variety of risk management activities, including the use of exchange-traded/ cleared 
derivative instruments and other contractual arrangements. Spire Marketing is committed to managing commodity 
price risk while it seeks to expand the services that it now provides. Nevertheless, income from the Gas Marketing 
operations is subject to more fluctuations in market conditions than the Utilities' operations. 

The Gas Marketing business is directly impacted by the effects of competition in the marketplace, the impacts of 
new infrastructure, smplus natural gas supplies, and the addition of new demand from exports, power generation 
and industrial load. Spire Marketing's management expects a growing need for marketing services across the 
country as customers manage seasonal variability and marketplace volatility. 

In addition to its operating cash flows, Spire Marketing relies on Spire's parental guaranties to secure its purchase 
and sales obligations of natural gas, and it also has access to Spire's liquidity resources. A large pmtion of Spire 
Marketing's receivables are from customers in the energy industry. It also enters into netting arrangements with 
many of its energy eounterparties to reduce overall credit and collateral exposure. Although Spire Marketing's 
uncollectible amounts are closely monitored and have not been significant, increases in uncollectible amounts from 
customers are possible and could adversely affect Gas Marketing's liquidity and results of operations. 
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Spire Marketing carefully monitors the creditworthiness of counterparties to its transactions. It pe1forms in-house 
credit reviews of potential customers and may require credit assurances such as prepayments, letters of credit or 
parental guaranties when appropriate. Credit limits for customers are established and monitored. 

AB a result of infrastructure optimization activities and an abundance of natural gas supply, Spin! l'viarkeiing cannot 
be certain that all of its wholesale purchase and sale transactions will settle physically. As such, ce1tain transactions 
are designated as trading activities for financial reporting purposes, due to their settlement characteristics. Results 
of operations from trading activities are repo1ted on a net basis in Gas Marketing operating revenues (or expenses, 
if negative), which may cause volatility in the Company's operating revenues, but have no effect on operating 
income or net income. 

In the course of its business, Spire Marketing enters into commitments associated ,vith the purchase or sale of 
natural gas. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), some of its purchase and 
sale transactions are not recognized in earnings until the natural gas is physically delivered, while other energy­
related transactions, including those designated as trading activities, are required to be accounted for as derivatives, 
with the changes in their fair value (representing unrealized gains or losses) recorded in earnings in periods prior to 
settlement. Because related transactions of a purchase and sale strategy may be accounted for differently, there may 
be timing differences in the recognition of earnings under GAAP and economic earnings realized upon settlement. 
The Company repmts both GAAP and net economic earnings (non-GAAP), as discussed below. 

NON-GAAP MEASURES 

Net income, earnings per share and operating income repmted by Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are 
determined in accordance with GAAP. Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama also provide the non-GAAP 
financial measures of net economic earnings, net economic earnings per share and contribution margin. 
Management and the Board of Directors use non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to GAAP financial measures, 
to understand and compare operating results across accounting periods, for financial and operational decision 
making, for planning and forecasting, to determine incentive compensation and to evaluate financial performance. 
These non-GAAP operating metrics should not be considered as alternatives to, or more meaningful than, the 
related GAAP measures. Reconciliations of non-GAAP financial measures to the most directly comparable GAAP 
measures are prmided on the following pages. 

Net Economic Earnings and Net Economic Earnings Per Share 

Net economic earnings and net economic earnings per share are non-GAAP measures that exclude from net income 
the impacts of fair value accounting and timing adjustments associated with energy-related transactions, the 
impacts of acquisition, divestiture and restrnctming activities, and the largely non-cash impacts of other non­
recurring or unusual items such as ce1tain regulatmy, legislative or GAAP standard-setting actions. In fiscal 2018, 

these items include the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and the 
write-off of ce1tain long-standing assets as a result of disallowances in our Missouri rate proceedings. In addition, 
net economic earnings per share excludes the impact, in the fiscal year of issuance, of shares issned to finance 
acquisitions that have yet to be included in net economic earnings. 

The fair value and timing adjustments are made in instances where the accounting treatment differs from what 
management considers the economic substance of the underlying transaction, including the following: 

Net unrealized gains and losses on energy-related derivatives that are required by GAAP fair value accounting 
associated with current changes in the fair value of financial and physical transactions prior to their 
completion and settlement. These unrealized gains and losses result primarily from two sources: 

1) changes in the fair values of physical and/or financial derivatives prior to the period of settlement; and 
2) ineffective po1tions of accounting hedges, required to be recorded in earnings prior to settlement, due 

to differences in commodity price changes between the locations of the forecasted physical purchase or 
sale transactions and the locations of the underlying hedge instruments; 

Lower of cost or market adjustments to the car1ying value of commodity inventories resulting when the market 
price of the commodity falls below its original cost, to the extent that those commodities are economically 
hedged; and 

Realized gains and losses resulting from the settlement of economic hedges prior to the sale of the physical 
commodity. 
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These adjustments eliminate the impact of timing differences and the impact of current changes in the fair value of 
financial and physical transactions prior to their completion and settlement. Umealized gains or losses are recorded 
in each period until being replaced with the actual gains or losses realized when the associated physical transactions 
occur. Management believes that excluding the earnings volatility caused by recognizing changes in fair value prior 
to settlement and other timing differences associated with related purchase and sale transactions provides a useful 
representation of the economic effects of only the actual settled transactions and their effects on results of 
operations. While management uses these 11011-GAAP measures to evaluate both the Utilities and non-utility 
businesses, the net effect of these fair value and timing adjustments on the Utilities' earnings is minimal because 
gains or losses on their natural gas derivative instruments are deferred pursuant to state regulation. 

Contribution Margin 

In addition to operating revenues and operating expenses, management also uses the 11011-GAAP measure of 
contribution margin when evaluating results of operations. Contribution margin is defined as operating revenues 
less natural and propane gas costs and gross receipts tax expense. The Utilities pass to their customers (subject to 
prudence review by, as applicable, the MoPSC, APSC or MSPSC) increases and decreases in the wholesale cost of 
natural gas in accordance with their PGA clauses or GSA riders. The volatility of the wholesale natural gas market 
results in fluctuations from period to period in the recorded levels of, among other items, revenues and natural gas 
cost expense. Nevertheless, increases and decreases in the cost of gas associated with system gas sales volumes and 
gross receipts tax expense (which are calculated as a percentage ofrevenues), with the same amount (excluding 
immaterial timing differences) included in revenues, have no direct effect on operating income. Therefore, 
management believes that contribution margin is a useful supplemental measure, along with the remaining 
operating expenses, for assessing the Company's and the Utilities' pe1formance. 
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EARNINGS 

Spire 

Overview- Net Income (Loss) 

Per 
Gas Gas Consol- Diluted 

Utility Marketing Other idated Share** 

Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Net Income [GAAP) $ 144.4 $ 24,9 $ 44,9 $ 214,2 $ 4.33 

Adjustments, pre-tax: 

Missouri regulatory adjustments 30,6 - - 30,6 0,62 

Unrealized gain on energy-related derivatives - (4,0) - (4,0) (0,08) 

Realized gain on economic hedges prior 
to the sale of the physical commodity - (0,3) - (0,3) (0,01) 

Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities 0,2 - 13.4 13,6 0,28 

Income tax effect of adjustments* (9,1) 1.2 (2.4) (10.3) (0,21) 

Effect of the Tax Cnts and Jobs Act 17,0 1.1 (78,2) (60.1) (1.21) 

Net Economic Earnings (Loss) [Non-GAAP) $ 183,1 $ 22.9 $ (22.3) $ 183,7 $ 3,72 

Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Net Income (Loss) [GAAP) $ 180.5 $ 3.4 $ (22.3) $ 161.6 $ 3.43 

Adjustments, pre-tax: 

Unrealized loss on energy-related derivatives 0,1 5,9 - 6,0 0,13 

Realized gain on economic hedges prior 
to the sale of the physical commodity - (0.3) - (0,3) (0,01) 

Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities LS - 2.5 4,0 0,09 

Income tax effect of adjustments* (0,6) (2,2) (0,9) (3,7) (0,08) 

Net Economic Earnings (Loss) [Non-GAAP) $ 181.5 $ 6,8 $ (20.7) $ 167,6 $ 3.56 

Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Net Income (Loss) [GAAP) $ 159,0 $ 7,1 $ (21.9) $ 144,2 $ 3,24 

Adjustments, pre-tax: 

Unrealized (gain) loss on energy-related derivatives (0,3) 0,2 - (0,1) 

Lower of cost or market invent01y adjustments - 0,2 - 0,2 0,01 

Realized gain on economic hedges prior 
to the sale of the physical commodity - (1,6) - (1,6) (0,04) 

Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities 2.3 - 6,9 9,2 0,21 

Income tax effect of adjustments* (0,7) 0,5 (2,6) (2,8) (0,06) 

Weighted average shares adjustment** - - - - 0.06 

Net Economic Earnings (Loss) [Non-GAAP) $ 160,3 $ 6.4 $ (17,6) $ 149,1 $ 3.42 

• Income tax effect is calculated by applying federal, state and local income tax rates applicable to ordinary income to the 
amounts of the pre-tax reconciling items and then adding any estimated effects of enacted state or local income tax laws 
for periods before the related effective date. 

•• Fiscal 2016 net economic earnings per share excludes the impact of the May 2016 equity issuance to fund a portion of the 
acquisition of Spire EnergySouth. The weighted average diluted shares used in the net economic earnings per share 
calculation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 was 43,5 compared to 44.3 in the GAAP diluted earnings per 
share ("EPS") calculation. For fiscal years 2018 and 2017, net economic earnings per share is calculated by replacing 
consolidated net income with consolidated net economic earnings in the GAAP diluted EPS calculation. 
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2018 vs. 2017 

Consolidated 

Spire's net income was $214.2 in fiscal 2018, compared with $161.6 in fiscal 2017. Basic and diluted earnings per 
share were $4.35 and $4.33, respectively, for fiscal 2018 compared with basic and diluted earnings per share of 
$3-44 and $3.43, respectively, for fiscal 2017. Net economic earnings were $183.7 (or $3.72 per share) in fiscal 
2018, compared with $167.6 (or $3.56 per share) in fiscal 2017, an increase of $16.1. Net income increased in fiscal 
2018 compared to fiscal 2017 primarily due to a $67.2 expense decrease from other activities, a $21.5 net income 
increase in the Gas Marketing segment, offset by a $36.1 net income decline in the Gas Utility segment. For the 
current year, both net income per share and net economic earnings per share were impacted by 2,3 million shares 
that were issued May 10, 2018. The key drivers of variances are discussed in detail below. 

Gas Utility 

Gas Utility net income decreased by $36.1, while net economic earnings increased $1.6 in fiscal 2018 compared to 
fiscal 2017. Both measures benefited from weather patterns that were significantly favorable to the prior year, with 
temperatures in the Utilities' territories being near normal, versus 28% warmer than normal in the prior year, 
combined with a lower federal tax rate resulting from the implementation of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TCJA") net 
of amounts reflected in lower customer rates. The TCJA is further described in Note 11, Income Taxes, of the Notes 
to Financial Statements in Item 8. These favorable impacts were partly offset by the rates changes in the Missouri 
Utilities effective during the third quarter as a result of two rate cases. Net income was further negatively impacted 
by the $23.6 after-tax charge related to certain recoveries being disallowed by the MoPSC as a result of those rate 
case proceedings. 

Gas Marketing 

Gas Marketing reported net income totaling $24.9, an increase of $21.5 compared with the same period last year. 
Net economic earnings for fiscal 2018 increased $16.1 from fiscal 2017. The increase in both net income and net 
economic earnings was attributable to improved market conditions resulting from colder weather and increased 
iemperaiure volatility in the current year that increased value from regional basis differentials {spreads) and storage 
and transpo1tation optimization. Net income also benefited from favorable mark-to-market fair value adjustments 
and the implementation of the TCJA. Further details are discussed in the Gas Marketing section below. 

Other 

The Company's other non-utility activities generated net income of $44,9 for fiscal 2018, compared to a $22,3 net 
loss for the same period last year. This favorable variance was driven primarily by a $78.2 tax benefit resulting from 
the implementation of the TCJA, partly offset by higher acquisition and restructuring activities. Net economic loss 
was $22.3 for fiscal 2018, an increase of $1.6 compared to fiscal 2017. The increased loss reflects higher after-tax 
interest and other corporate costs, pa1tially offset by an increase in non-cash earnings related to STL Pipeline. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses 

Reconciliations of contribution margin to the most directly comparable GAAP measure are shown below. 

Gas 
Utility 

Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 262.2 

Operation and maintenance expenses 464.1 

Depreciation and am01tization 167.0 

Taxes, other than income taxes 152.5 

Less: Gross receipts tax expense (98.3) 

Contribution Margin [Non-GAAP] 947.5 

Natural and propane gas costs 842.6 

Gross receipts tax expense 98.3 

Operating Revenues $ 1,888.4 

Gas 
Marketing 

$ 33.8 

7.4 

0.2 

(0.1) -
41.3 

30.2 

0.1 -
$ 71.6 
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$ 

$ 

Other 

(16.3) 

30.3 

1.4 

0.8 

16.2 

0.3 

16.5 

Elitninations Consolidated 

$ 

$ 

(10.1) 

(10.1) 

(1.4) 

$ 279.7 

491.7 

168.4 

153.5 

(98.4) 

994.9 

871.7 

98.4 

{11.5) $ 1,965.0 



Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Operation and maintenance expenses 

Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes, other than income taxes 

Less: Gross receipts tax expense 

Contribution Margin [Non-GAAP] 

Natural and propane gas costs 

Gross receipts tax expense 

$ 

Operating Revenues $ 

Year Ended September 30, 2016 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Operation and maintenance expenses 

Depreciation and ammtization 

Taxes, other than income taxes 

Less: Gross receipts tax expense 

Conh·ibution Ma1·gin [Non-GAAP] 

Natural and propane gas costs 

Gross receipts tax expense 

Operating Revenues 

Consolidated 

$ 

$ 

Gas 
Utility 

Gas 
Marketing 

321.6 $ 
409.1 

153.5 

137.8 

(83.0) 

939.0 

645.9 

83.0 

1,667.9 $ 

5,2 $ 

5.9 

0.1 

0.5 

(0.1) 

11.6 

67.6 

0.1 

79.3 $ 

Gas 
Utility 

Gas 
Marketing 

278.3 $ 
379.3 

136.9 

125.2 

(75.3) 

844.4 

539.7 

75.3 

1,459.4 $ 

11.8 $ 
5.6 

0.1 

0.3 

(0.1) 

17.7 

60.7 

0.1 

78.5 $ 

Other Eliminations Consolidated 

(5.1} $ 
11.8 

0.5 

0.2 

7.4 

0.3 

7.7 $ 

(5.5) 

(5.5) 

(8.7) 

$ 321,7 

421.3 

154.1 

138.5 

(83.1) 

952.5 

705.1 

83.1 

1,740.7 (14.2) =$===== 

Other Eliminations Consolidated 

(7.8) $ 
12.1 

0.5 

(0.2) 

4.6 

0.2 

4.8 $ 

(2.4) 

(2.4) 

(3.0) 

$ 282.3 

394.6 

137.5 

125.3 

(75.4) 

864.3 

597.6 

75.4 

1,537.3 (5.4) =$======= 

Spire repo1ted operating revenues of $1,965.0 for the year ended September 30, 2018 compared with $1,740.7 for 
the same period last year. The increase was driven primarily by the Utilities, the result of higher gas costs passed on 
to customers in both Missouri and Alabama, higher volumetric demand driven principally by colder weather, higher 
gross receipt taxes, and higher Infrastructure System Replacement Surcharge ("ISRS") charges at Spire Missouri. 
These positive drivers were partly offset by the negative impact of new rates implemented in the Spire Missouri 
territo1y in April 2018, lower off-system sales at Spire Missouri, and the timing of return of tax sa,~ngs to Spire 
Alabama customers. Spire's contribution margin increased $42,4 for the year ended September 30, 2018, compared 
to the prior year. The increase was primarily due to higher contribution margin in the Gas Marketing and Gas 
utility segments of $29.7 and $8.5, respectively, combined with an $8.8 increase in contribution margin from the 
Company's other non-utility activities. Operation and maintenance ("O&M") expenses increased $70.4 for the year 
ended September 30, 2018 as compared to the prior year, as discussed below. Depreciation and amo1tization 
expenses increased $14.3, driven principally by continued infrastructure investment at Spire Missomi and Spire 
Alabama in fiscal 2018. 
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Gas Utility 

Operating Revenues - Gas Utility operating revenues for fiscal 2018 increased $220.5 compared to fiscal 2017, 
and was attributable to the following factors: 

Missouri Utilities and Spire A1abama - Higher PGA/GSA gas cost recoveries $ 149.2 

Missouri Utilities and Spire Alabama - Volumetric usage 99.3 

Missouri Utilities and Spire A1abama - Higher gross receipts taxes 14.9 

Spire EnergySouth revenue growth 6.6 

Missouri Utilities - Higher ISRS 5.2 

Missouri Utilities - Customer growth 2.6 

Missouri Utilities - Off-system sales and capacity release (28.3) 

Missouri Utilities - New rate design implementation (20.6) 

Spire Alabama - Customer rate reductions resulting from TCJA (11.2) 

All other factors 2.8 

Total Variation $ 220.5 

As shown in the table above, Gas Utility revenue posted a year-over-year increase of $220.5. The growth was driven 
by $149.2 higher gas cost recoveries at both Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, $99.3 due to volumetric usage 
primarily related to colder weather in fiscal 2018, higher gross receipt taxes resulting from the higher current year 
revenues, growth at Spire EnergySouth and increases due to Spire Missouri customer growth. Partly offsetting these 
gains were $28.3 in lower off-system sales at Spire Missouri as higher demand for system sales reduced gas 
availability, the new rate design implementation at Spire Missouri, and customer rate reductions at Spire Alabama 
due to tax savings from the TCJA. 

Conh·ibution Margin - Gas Utility contribution margin was $947.5 for fiscal 2018, a $8.5 increase over the same 
period last year. The increase was attributable to the following factors: 

Missouri Utilities and Spire Alabama - Volumetric usage 

Missouri Utilities - Higher ISRS 

Missouri Utilities - Customer growth 

Missouri Utilities - New rate design implementation 

Spire Alabama - Customer rate reductions resulting from TCJA 

All other factors 
Total Variation 

$ 

$ 

29.2 

5.2 

2.6 

(20.6) 

(11.2) 

3.3 

8.5 

The increase was p1imarily attributable to the $29.2 increase resulting from higher volumetric usage. Temperatures 
in the Spire Missouri tenit01y experienced degree days that were 29% colder than last year and 3% colder than 
normal. Degree days in the Spire Alabama service areas in fiscal 2018 were 51% colder than the prior year, and were 
close to normal. Contribution margin also benefited from higher ISRS charges and customer growth at Spire 
Missouri. These positive impacts were partly offset by a $20.6 reduction at the Missouri Utilities due to the April 
2018 implementation of new rates that lowered the fixed monthly charge and increased the volumetric component. 
This results in the shifting ofrevenues from the April through October time peliod to November through March, the 
period when the highest volume of gas is used by customers. At Spire Alabama, contribution margin was negatively 
impacted by $11.2 resulting from the timing of rate reductions to customers due to tax savings from the TCJA. 
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Operating Expenses - O&M expenses increased $55.0 for the year ended September 30, 2018 compared to the 
prior year. Excluding the impact of the $36.6 of disallowed recoveries at Spire Missouri resulting from the MoPSC 
rulings in the rate cases completed in March 2018, O&M expenses were $18-4 above prior year levels due primarily 
to $15.9 growth at Spire Missouri and $6-4 growth at Spire Alabama, pa1tly offset by a $3.9 reduction experienced 
by Spire EnergySouth. The O&M growth at the Missouri Utilities and Spire Alabama were attributable to the colder 
weather, with higher employee-related costs and bad debt expense at both Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama in the 
current year. Spire Missouri was also impacted by a $5.8 increase in pension and postretirement amortization 
expenses resulting from the rate cases. For more information about the Missouri rate cases, see Note 14, Regulat01y 
Matters, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Taxes other than income taxes were $14.7 higher in the 
current year, driven by a $15.3 increase related to higher gross receipt taxes due to the higher revenues. 
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $13.5 from the prior year, 
$9.7 due to Spire Missouri and $3.3 relating to Spire Alabama, principally the result of continued infrastructure 
capital spending in fiscal 2018. 

Gas Marketing 

Operating Revenues - Gas Marketing operating revenue for the year ended September 30, 2018 decreased $7.7 
from the prior year. The variance in revenues reflects the impact oflower general pricing levels, partly offset by the 
effect of favorable $10.5 mark-to-market adjustments on derivatives and slightly higher total volumes. Average 
commodity pricing for the year ended September 30, 2018 was approximately $2.680/MMBtu versus 
approximately $2.897/MMBtu for fiscal 2017, a decrease of $0.217/MMBtu. 

Conh·ibution Margin - Gas Marketing contribution margin was $41.3 for fiscal 2018, a $29. 7 increase compared 
to the same period last year, with that variance significantly impacted by favorable fair value adjustments on 
derivative holdings in the current year, and unfavorable adjustments in the prior year. Removing these fair value 
adjustments from both periods, contribution margin is $19.8 higher than last year, reflecting higher storage and 
transp01tation optimization, and capturing large basis differentials (spreads) during the cold weather in the current 
year. 

Other 

Other operating revenue increased $8.8 for the year ended September 30, 2018 compared to 2017, driven by higher 
reinsurance premiums and gas storage revenues. Other operating expenses were $19,9 higher than the prior year, 
with $15. 7 of the increase driven by acquisitions of gas storage operations, and the remaining increase due to costs 
related to the reinsurance premiums. 

Interest Chru·ges 

Consolidated interest charges during the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $9.3 versus the prior year. The 
increase was primarily driven by Spire Missomi's issuance of $170.0 in long-term debt in September 2017, and 
Spire Alabama's issuance of $75.0 oflong-term debt: $30.0 on December 1, 2017, and $45.0 on January 12, 2018. 
Also, sh01t-term rates averaged 2.0% in the current year versus 1.2% for the prior year, which was only partly offset 
with lower average borrowings outstanding. For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, average short-term 
borrowings were $408.6 and $485.8, respectively. 

Income Taxes 

Consolidated income tax expense dming the year ended September 30, 2018, decreased $104.1, primarily as a result 
of the TCJA enacted in December 2017. Of the decrease, $60.1 is the result of the revaluation of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities on the balance sheet that were not reflected in net economic earnings. The remaining reduction in 
income tax is primarily the result of a decrease in current year federal income tax rate due to tax reform, combined 
with the effects oflower pre-tax book income. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2018 was (14.1%) compared to 32-4% in 
fiscal 2017. The TCJA is further described in Note 11, Income Taxes, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 
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Spire Missouri 

Sununat'.)' 011erating Results 

Year ended September 30, 2018 2017 

Operating Income $ 141.3 $ 196.9 

Operation and maintenance expenses 296.3 243.8 

Depreciation and amortization 102.8 93.1 

Taxes, other than income taxes 108.4 99.8 

Less: Gross receipts tax expense (68.9) (60.0) 

Contribution Margin (non-GAAP) 579.9 573.6 

Natural and propane gas costs 636.8 538.3 

Gross receipts tax expense 68.9 60.0 

Operating Revenues $ 1,285.6 $ 1,171.9 

Net Income $ 129.3 $ 113.0 

Operating revenues during the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $113.7 from the same period last year. 
Revenues were impacted primarily by higher gas costs of $83.7 passed on to customers, a $61.1 increase due to 
weather and volumetric impacts, higher gross receipts taxes of $8.9, higher ISRS charges of $5.2, and customer 
growth of $2.6. These positive impacts on the revenue growth were partly offset by a $28.3 reduction in off-system 
sales and a $20.6 reduction due to the implementation of the two Missouri rate cases that were resolved in March 
2018. 

Contribution margin for the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $6.3 from the prior year. Higher volumetric/ 
weather impacts and ISRS charges of $17.0 and $5.2, respectively, combined with customer growth impacts of $2.6, 
were partly offset by a $20.6 reduction due to two Missouri rate cases (as noted above). 

O&M for the year ended September 30, 2018 were $52.5 higher than the prior year. Of this increase, $36.6 was due 
to disallowed recoveries resulting from the MoPSC rulings in the rate cases completed in March 2018, and $7.0 was 
primarily related io an increase in the amount uf anmrlizaiion for pension and postretire1ne11t costs resulting from 
those rate cases. Excluding these rate case impacts, O&M increased $8.9, attributable to the colder weather, with 
higher employee-related costs and bad debt expense in the current year. Depreciation and amortization increased 
$9.7, reflecting continued infrastructure investments throughout Missouri. Interest expense in the current year was 
$7.3 greater than prior year, the result of the issuance of $170.0 in long-term debt in September 2017, and the 
combination of higher short-term borrowings and higher average effective interest rates. Income taxes were $80.1 
lower for the year ended September 30, 2018 versus the prior year, as described earlier. 

Temperatures experienced in the Missouri Utilities' service area during fiscal 2018 were 29% colder than they prior 
year and 3% colder than normal. Total system therms sold and transported were 1,759.8 million for fiscal 2018 
compared with 1,482.1 million for fiscal 2017, an increase of 19%. Total off-system therms sold and transported 
outside of Spire Missouri's service area decreased 61% to 68.6 million for fiscal 2018 compared with 175.6 million 
for fiscal 2017. The decrease in off-system therms was the direct result of the increase in demand experienced for 
system therms. 
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Spire Alabama 

Summaix OJ;!erating Results 

Year ended September 30, 2018 2017 

Operating Income $ 98.6 $ 105.8 

Operation and maintenance expenses 136.8 130.4 

Depreciation and amortization 53.2 49.9 

Taxes, other than income taxes 36.1 29.9 

Less: Gross receipts tax expense (25.4) (19.5) 

Contribution Margin (Non-GAAP) 299.3 296.5 

Natural and propane gas costs 176.0 84.5 

Gross receipts tax expense 25.4 19.5 

Operating Revenues $ 500.7 $ 400.5 

Net Income $ 1.3 $ 58.1 

Operating revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $100.2 versus the comparable period ended 
September 30, 2017. Of the increase, $65.5 related to higher gas cost recoveries, $38.2 was the result of weather and 
usage impacts, $6.o was attdbutable to higher gross receipt taxes, along with approximately $1.7 associated with 
lower Rate Stabilization and Equalization ("RSE") return on equity revenue adjustments in the current year. Partly 
offsetting these positive impacts was a $11.2 revenue reduction resulting from the timing of rate reductions to 
customers due to tax savings from the TCJA. 

Contribution margin increased $2.8 versus the prior year, as $12.2 in higher weather/volumetric impacts and a 
favorable RSE adjustment of approximately $1.7 were offset by the $11.2 impact of the customer rate reduction 
resulting from the TCJA. 

O&M expenses for the year ended September 30, 2018 increased $6-4 versus the year ended September 30, 2017. 
The increase in other operating expenses was driven p1imarily by higher employee-related costs and bad debt, 
which were unfavorably impacted by the colder weather in the current year. Depreciation and am011ization was 
$3.3 higher versus the same period last year, the result of continued infrastructure investment throughout Spire 
Alabama's service terdt01y. 

Temperatures in Spire Alabama's service area during the year ended September 30, 2018 were 51% colder than last 
year, and approximately equal to historical norms. Spire Alabama's total therms sold and transp01ted were 1,020.8 
million for the year ended September 30, 2018, compared with 900.6 million last year, a 13% increase. 

For fmther information on the GSA, RSE and CCM mechanisms, see Note 14, Regulato1y Matters, of the Notes to 
Financial Statements in Item 8. 
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2017 vs. 2016 

Spit-e 

Consolidated 

Spire's net income was $161.6 in fiscal 2017, compared with $144.2 in fiscal 2016. Basic and diluted earnings per 
share were $3,44 and $3.43, respectively, for fiscal 2017 compared with basic and diluted earnings per share of 
$3.26 and $3.24, respectively, for fiscal 2016. Net economic earnings were $167.6 (or $3.56 per share) in fiscal 
2017, compared with $149.1 (or $3.42 per share) in fiscal 2016, an increase of $18.5. Net income increased in fiscal 
2017 compared to fiscal 2016 primarily due to $21.5 income growth in the Gas Utility segment, partly offset by a 
$3.7 income decline iu the Gas Marketing segment and a $0,4 larger loss from other activities. 

Gas Utility 

Gas Utility net income and net economic earnings increased by $21.5 and $21.2, respectively, in fiscal 2017, 
compared to 2016. The increases to net income and net economic earnings were driven by the $9.6 income growth 
generated by the Spire EnergySouth acquisition, margin growth and combined lower O&M expenses at Spire 
Missouri and Spire Alabama. The margin growth was driven by higher ISRS charges at the Missouri Utilities and 
net favorable regulatory adjustments at Spire Alabama, partly offset by weather impacts resulting from warmer 
winter temperatures. These impacts were partly offset by increases in depreciation and amortization expenses. 
Additionally, interest expense was higher due to the Spire EnergySouth acquisition and higher interest charges 
experienced by Spire Missouri. Income taxes were also higher due to the Spire EnergySouth acquisition and higher 
pre-tax income for both Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama. Fmther details are discussed in the Gas Utility section 
below. 

Gas Mal'ketinq 

Gas Marketing rep01ted net income totaling $3.4, a decrease of $3. 7 compared with the same prior year period. Net 
economic earnings for fiscal 2017 increased $0.4 from fiscal 2016. The decrease in net income was primarily 
attributable to unfavorable mark-to-1narket C't.1TM") activity in fiscal 2017. Net ccono:mic earnings benefited from 
increased value from spreads and asset optimization in fiscal 2017 versus 2016. Fmther details are discussed in the 
Gas Marketing section below. 

Othel' 

The combined increase in net loss and net economic loss for the Company's other non-utility activities were $0.4 
and $3.1, respectively, for fiscal 2017 compared to the prior year. The increased loss was primarily the result of 
higher interest charges associated with the September 2016 acquisition of Spire EnergySouth. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses 

Reconciliations of the Company's contribution margin to the most directly comparable GAAP measure are shown 
above. 

Consolidated 

Spire reported operating revenues of $1,740.7 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 compared with $1,537.3 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. The increase was driven primarily by the Utilities, the result of the 
Spire EnergySouth acquisition, higher ISRS charges at Spire Missouri, favorable regulat01y adjustments at Spire 
Alabama, and higher gas costs passed on to customers in both Missouri and Alabama. These positive drivers were 
partly offset by lower demand as a result of warmer weather. Spire's contribution margin increased $88.2 for the 
twelve months ended September 30, 2017 compared to fiscal 2016. The increase was primarily due to higher 
contribution margin of $94.6 for the Gas Utility segment, slightly offset by the lower contribution margin rep01ted 
in Gas Marketing. O&M expenses increased $26. 7 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 as compared to 
fiscal 2016, as discussed below. Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $16.6, driven principally by the 
Spire EnergySouth acquisition and continued infrastructure investment at Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama in 
fiscal 2017. 
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Gas Utilitu 

Operating Revenues - Gas Utility Operating Revenues for fiscal 2017 increased $208.5 compared to fiscal 2016, 
and was primarily attributable to the following factors: 

New customer revenue from Spire EnergySouth acquisition $ 92.1 
Higher wholesale gas costs passed on to customers 87.2 
Spire Alabama - Lower RSE revenue reduction and higher CCM benefit 19.2 
Spire Missouri - Higher off-system sales and capacity release 17.9 
Spire Missouri - Higher ISRS charges 14.2 
Higher gross receipts tax 4.9 
Weather/ temperature adjustment impact (27.3) 
All other 0.3 

Total Variation $ 208.5 

Contribution Margin - Gas Utility contribution margin was $939.0 for fiscal 2017, a $94,6 increase over the 
fiscal 2016 period. The increase was attdbutable to the following factors: 

Contribution margin from Spire EnergySouth acquisition 
Spire Alabama - Lower RSE revenue reduction and higher CCM benefit 

Spire Missouri - Higher ISRS charges 

Spire Missouri - Higher off-system sales and capacity release 

Weather/ temperature adjustment impact 

All other 
Total Variation 

$ 

$ 

66.6 
19.2 
14.2 

1.4 

(8.6) 

1.8 

94.6 

The increase was primarily attributable to the $66.6 of operating margin resulting from the Spire EnergySouth 
acquisition, lower RSE revenue adjustments, beneficial CCM and return on capital impacts totaling $19.2 for Spire 
Alabama, and benefits of higher ISRS charges for the Missouri Utilities in 2017 of $14.2. These positive impacts 
offset the negative impact of weather and temperature adjustments. Temperatures in the Spire Missomi tenitory 
experienced degree days that were 1% warmer than last year and 20% warmer than normal. Degree days in the 
Spire Alabama service areas in fiscal 2017 were 15% warmer than the ptior year, and 35% warmer than normal. 
Temperatures are a significant part of the Utilities' rate cases, contributing to the constrained margins experienced 
in fiscal 2017. 

Operating Expenses - Depreciation and amortization expenses for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 
increased $16.6 from fiscal 2016, $10.0 the result of the Spire EnergySouth acquisition, $4.5 due to Spire Missomi 
and $2.1 relating to Spire Alabama, principally the result of continued infrastructure capital spending in fiscal 2017. 
O&M expenses increased $29.8 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 compared to the same period in 
the prior year. Excluding the impact of the $33.5 increase relating to the Spire EnergySouth acquisition, O&M 
expenses were $3.7 below fiscal 2016 levels due primarily to lower employee-related costs that were only partly 
offset by higher professional services. The employee labor-costs were favorably impacted by the warmer weather 
expedenced in both the Spire Missomi and Spire Alabama service tenitories. Taxes other than income taxes were 
$12.6 higher in fiscal 2017, with $7.6 of the increase attributable to the Spire Energy South acquisition. $4.2 of the 
increase was related to the higher gross receipt taxes due to the higher revenues, with the remainder of the valiance 
related to property tax expense at Spire Missomi. 

Gas Marketing 

Operating Revenues - Gas Marketing operating revenue for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 
increased $0.8 from the same prior year pedod. The variance in revenues reflects the impact of higher total volumes 
and higher commodity pricing levels partly offset by the effect of increased trading activities, and favorable MTM 
adjustments on derivatives. Under GMP, revenues associated with trading activities are presented net of related 
costs. Average pricing for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 was approximately $2.897/MMBtu versus 
approximately $2.286/MMBtu for fiscal 2016, an increase $0.611/MMBtu. 

39 



Contribution Margin - Gas Marketing contribution margin was $11.6 for fiscal 2017, a $6.1 decrease compared 
to the same prior year period, with that variance significantly impacted by unfavorable fair value adjustments on 
derivative holdings in fiscal 2017, and favorable adjustments in the prior year. Removing these fair valne 
adjustments from both periods, contribution margin is $0.7 higher than fiscal 2016, reflecting favorable wholesale 
trading volumes and storage optimization. 

Other 

Other operating revenue increased $2.9 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 compared to the same 
period in fiscal 2016, driven by higher reinsurance premiums. Other operating expenses were essentially flat, as an 
increase in costs related to the reinsurance premiums was offset by a decrease in corporate-level integration 
expenses. 

Interest Charges 

Consolidated interest charges during the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 increased $11.9 from fiscal 2016. 
The increase was pdmarily driven by the debt incurred and assumed as a result of the Spire EnergySouth 
acquisition generating interest expense of $8.5, combined with marginally higher interest rates on floating rate debt 
in the first six months of 2017 and higher interest rates on the senior notes issued in March of 2017 that were used 
to retire the $250.0 of floating rate debt. Also, for the twelve months ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, average 
short-term borrowings were $485.8 and $273.9, respectively, and the average interest rates on these borrowings 
were 1.2% and 0.9%, respectively. 

Income Taxes 

Consolidated income tax expense increased $8.1 in fiscal 2017 from fiscal 2016 primarily due to higher pre-tax 
income. The fiscal 2017 effective tax rate of 32.4% was essentially flat versus fiscal 2016's effective rate of 32.5%. 

REGULATORY MATTERS 

For discussions of regulatory matters for Spire, Spire l\1issouri, and Spire PJabama, see Note 14, Regulatory Matters, 
of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Those discussions include more information about the Utilities' 
recent rate proceedings and updates on FERC proceedings related to Spire STL Pipeline and Spire Storage. 

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama have evaluated or are in the process of evaluating the impact that 
recently issued accounting standards will have on their financial position or results of operations upon adoption. 
For disclosures related to the adoption of new accounting standards, see the New Accounting Pronouncements 
section of Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

INFLATION 

The accompanying financial statements reflect the historical costs of events and transactions, regardless of the 
purchasing power of the dollar at the time. Due to the capital-intensive nature of the businesses of the Company, 
Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, the most significant impact of inflation is on the depreciation of utility plant. 
Rate regulation, to which the Utilities are subject, allows recovery through its rates of only the historical cost of 
utility plant as depreciation. The Utilities expect to incur significant capital expenditures in future years, primarily 
related to the planned increased replacements of distribution plant. The Utilities believe any higher costs 
experienced upon replacement of existing facilities will be recovered through the normal regulatory process. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources are 
based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which requires that we 
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and 
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our 
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the can,ing values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. We 
believe the following represent the more significant items requiring the use of judgment and estimates in preparing 
our financial statements: 

Regulatory Accounting - The Utilities account for their regulated operations in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 980, Regulated 
Operations. The provisions of this accounting guidance require, among other things, that financial statements of a 
rate-regulated enterprise reflect the actions ofregulators, where appropriate. These actions may result in the 
recognition of revenues and expenses in time periods that are different than non-rate-regulated enterprises. When 
this occurs, costs are deferred as assets in the balance sheet (regulatory assets) and recorded as expenses when 
those amounts are reflected in rates. Also, regulators can impose liabilities upon a regulated company for amounts 
previously collected from customers and for recove1y of costs that are expected to be incurred in the future 
(regulato1y liabilities). Management believes that the current regulat01y environment supports the continued use of 
these regulat01y accounting principles and that all regulat01y assets and regulat01y liabilities are recoverable or 
refundable through the regulat01y process. For Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, management believes the 
following represent the more significant items recorded through the application of this accounting guidance: 

PGA Clause - Spire Missouri's PGA clauses allows the Missouri Utilities to flow through to customers, 
subject to a prudence re,iew by the MoPSC, the cost of purchased gas supplies, including the costs, cost 
reductions and related can)1ng costs associated with the Missouri Utilities' use of natural gas derivative 
instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas. The difference between actual costs incurred and 
costs recovered through the application of the PGA clauses are recorded as regulatory assets and reg11lato1y 
liabilities that are recovered or refunded in a subsequent period. The PGA clauses also permit the 
application of can)1ng costs to all over- or under-recoveries of gas costs, including costs and cost reductions 
associated with the use of derivative instruments, and also provide for a p01tion of income from off-system 
sales and capacity release revenues to be flowed through to customers. 

GSA Rider - Spire Alabama's rate schedules for natural gas distribution charges contain a GSA rider, 
established in 1993, which permits the pass-through to customers of changes in the cost of gas supply. Spire 
Alabama's tariff prmides a temperature adjustment mechanism, also included in the GSA, that is designed 
to moderate the impact of depa1tures from normal temperatures on Spire Alabama's earnings. The 
temperature adjustment applies primarily to residential, small commercial and small industrial customers. 
Other non-temperature weather related conditions that may affect customer usage are not included in the 
temperature adjustment. In prior years, Spire Alabama entered into cash flow derivative commodity 
instruments to hedge its exposure to price fluctuations on its gas supply. Spire Alabama recognizes all 
derivatives at fair value as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. Any realized gains or losses are 
passed through to customers using the mechanisms of the GSA rider in accordance with Spire Alabama's 
APSC approved tariff and are recognized as a regulato1y asset or regulato1y liability. All derivative 
commodity instruments in a gain position are valued on a discounted basis incorporating an estimate of 
performance risk specific to each related counterpa1ty. Derivative commodity instruments in a loss position 
are valued on a discounted basis incorporating an estimate of pe1formance risk specific to Spire Alabama. 
Spire Alabama currently has no active gas supply derivative positions. 

Employee Benefits and Postretirement Obligations - Pension and postretirement obligations are calculated 
by actuarial consultants that utilize several statistical factors and other assumptions provided by management 
related to future events, such as discount rates, returns on plan assets, compensation increases, and m01tality rates. 
For the Utilities, the amount of expense recognized and the amounts reflected in other comprehensive income are 
dependent upon the regulato1y treatment pro,ided for such costs, as discussed fu1ther below. Certain liabilities 
related to group medical benefits and workers' compensation claims, p01tions of which are self-insured and/or 
contain "stop-loss" coverage with third-pa1ty insurers to limit exposure, are established based on historical trends. 
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The amount of net periodic pension and other postretircment benefit costs recognized in the financial statements 
related to the Utilities' qualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans is based upon allowances, as 
approved by the MoPSC (for Spire Missouri) and as approved by the APSC (for Spire Alabama). The allowances 
have been established in the rate-making process for the recove1y of these costs from customers. The differences 
between these amounts and actual pension and other postretirement benefit costs incurred for financial reporting 
purposes are deferred as regulato1y assets or regulato1y liabilities. GAAP also requires that changes that affect the 
funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans, but that are not yet required to be recognized as 
components of pension and other postretirement benefit costs, be reflected in other comprehensive income. For the 
Utilities' qualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans, amounts that would othenvise be reflected 
in other comprehensive income are deferred with entries to regulat01y assets or regulat01y liabilities. 

The tables below reflect the sensitivity of Spire's plans to potential changes in key assumptions: 

Pension Plan Benefits: 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 

Rate of Future Compensation Increase 

Postretirement Benefits: 
' 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 

Annual Medical Cost Trend 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

0.25 % 

(0.25)% 

0.25 % 

(0.25)% 

0.25 % 

(0.25)% 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

0.25 % 

(0.25)% 

0.25 % 

(0.25)% 

1.00 % 

(1.00)% 

Estin1ated Increase/ 
(Decrease) to Projected 

Benefit Obligation 
$ (14.4) 

15.0 

3.9 

(3.8) 

Estimated Increase/ 
(Decrease) to Projected 
Postretirement Benefit 

Obligation 
$ (4.2) 

4.4 

8.4 

(7.7) 

Estimated Increase/ 
(Decrease) to Annual 

Net Pension Cost* 

$ 0.5 

(0.5) 

(1.2) 

1.2 

0.4 

(0.4) 

Estimated Increase/ 
(Decrease) to Annual 
Net Postretirement 

Benefit Cost* 

$ 0.1 

(0.1) 

(0.6) 

0.6 

1.4 

(1.3) 

* Excludes the impact of regulatory deferral mechanism. See Note 12, Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits, of the 
Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8 for information regarding the regu]atoiy treatment of these costs. 

Income Taxes - Income tax calculations require estimates due to book-tax differences, estimates with respect to 
regulatory treatment of certain items, and uncertainty in the interpretation of tax laws and regulations. Critical 
assumptions and judgments also include projections of future taxable income to determine the ability to utilize net 
operating losses and credit canyforwards prior to their expiration. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those tempora1y differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. Management regularly assesses financial statement tax provisions to identify 
any change in regulat01y treatment or tax related estimates and assumptions that could have a material impact on 
cash flows, financial position and/ or results of operations. 

For further discussion of significant accounting policies, see Note 1, Summmy of Significant Accounting Policies, of 
the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

CASH FLOWS 

The Company's short-term borrowing requirements typically peak during colder months when the Utilities borrow 
money to cover the lag between when they purchase natural gas and when their customers pay for that gas. Changes 
in the wholesale cost of natural gas (including cash payments for margin deposits associated with Spire Missouri's 
use of natural gas derivative instmments), variations in the timing of collections of gas cost under the Utilities' PGA 
clauses and GSA riders, the seasonality of accounts receivable balances, and the utilization of storage gas 
inventories cause sho1t-term cash requirements to va1y during the year and from year to year, and may cause 
significant variations in the Company's cash provided by or used in operating activities. 
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Cash Flow Summary 2018 2017 2016 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 456.6 $ 288.3 $ 328.3 

Net cash used in investing activities (531. 7) (433.5) (612.7) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 89.1 147.4 275.8 

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $168.3 from 2017 to 2018, primarily driven by increased net 
income and a decrease in working capital. Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $40.0 from fiscal 
2016 to 2017 due to working capital fluctuations largely driven by the relative weather conditions and gas prices 
during the periods. 

In fiscal 2018, the Company used $98.2 more cash in investing activities than in 2017 but $81.0 less than in 2016. 
Fiscal 2016 included $317.7 net cash used for the acquisition of Spire EnergySouth, while 2017 included only a small 
related settlement, and 2018 net acquisition payments totaled $28.1 for Spire Storage. Capital expenditures 
increased $144.8 from fiscal 2016 to 2017, primarily as a result of the higher level of infrastrncture upgrades across 
both Missouri and Alabama, as well as $16 from the addition of EnergySouth and $26 for the Spire STL Pipeline 
project. Capital expenditures increased another $61.3 from fiscal 2017 to about $500 in 2018, reflecting spending of 
$40 for the STL Pipeline, as well as investment to support customer growth, new business development, and the 
continued commitment to infrastructure upgrades at the Utilities. Spire estimates its capital expenditures for fiscal 
2019 will be approximately $650, including $475 for the Utilities and $175 for STL Pipeline and Spire Storage. 

Net cash provided by financing activities decreased $58.2 from 2017 to 2018 after decreasing $128.5 from fiscal 
2016 to 2017. This trend primarily reflects changes in the net issuance or repayment oflong-term debt, with a a 
$25.0 net repayment in 2018, a $26.2 net issuance in 2017, and a $165.0 net issuance in 2016. Sh01t-term 
borrowings and stock issuances and dividends paid trended higher over the three years. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The Company's, Spire Missouri's and Spire Alabama's access to capital markets, including the commercial paper 
market, and their respective financing costs, may depend on the credit rating of the entity that is accessing the 
capital markets. Our debt is rated by two rating agencies: Standard & Poor's Corporation ("S&P") and Moody's 
Investors Service ("Moody's"). As of September 30, 2018, the debt ratings of the Company, Spire Missomi and Spire 
Alabama, shown in the following table, remain at investment grade with a stable outlook. 

Spire Inc. senior unsecured long-term debt 

Spire Inc. shmt-term debt 

Spire Missouri senior secured long-term debt 

Spire Alabama senior unsecured long-term debt 

S&P Moody's 

BBB+ 

A-2 

A 

A-

Baa2 

P-2 

Al 
A2 

It is management's view that the Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama have adequate access to capital 
markets and will have sufficient capital resources, both internal and external, to meet anticipated capital 
requirements, which primarily include capital expenditmes, interest payments on long-term debt, scheduled 
maturities oflong-term debt, sh01t-term seasonal needs and dividends. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Bank deposits were used to support working capital needs of the business. Spire had no temporary cash investments 
as of September 30, 2018 or 2017. Due to lower yields available to Spire on short-term investments, the Company 
elected to provide all of Spire Missouri's and Spire Alabama's sh01t-term funding through intercompany lending 
during the past fiscal year. 

Short-term Debt 

The Utilities' sh01t-term borrowing requirements typically peak during the colder months, while most of the 
Company's other needs are less seasonal. These short-term cash requirements can be met through the sale of 
commercial paper or through the use of a revolving credit facility. For information about these resources, see Note 
6, Notes Payable and Credit Agreements, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. Information about interest 
rate risk is included under "MARKET RISK" below. 
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Long-term Debt and Equity 

At September 30, 2018, including the current portion but excluding unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs, 
Spire had long-term debt totaling $2,092.0, of which $880.0 was issued by Spire Missouri, $325.0 was issued by 
Spire .Alabama, and $72.0 was issued by other subsidiarie~s. For more information aho11t long-term debt1 see Note 5 
of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8, For information about related interest rate risk, see "Interest Rate 
llisk" under "MARKET RISK" below. 

Spire Missouri is authorized by the MoPSC to issue registered securities (first mortgage bonds, unsecured debt and 
preferred stock), issue common stock, and issue private placement debt in an aggregate amount ofup to $500.0 for 
financings placed any time before September 30, 2021. 

Spire has a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") for the issuance and sale of up to 250,000 shares of common stock under its Dividend Reinvestment and 
Direct Stock Purchase Plan. There were 221,107 and 216,678 shares at September 30, 2018 and November 12, 2018, 
respectively, remaining available for issuance under this Form S-3. Spire and Spire Missouri also have a shelf 
registration statement on Form S-3 on file with the SEC for the issuance of various equity and debt securities, which 
expires on September 23, 2019. 

Including the current portion oflong-term debt, and treating the redeemable noncontrolling interest as equity, the 
Company's long-term consolidated capitalization at September 30, 2018 consisted of 52.2% equity, compared to 
48.7% equity at September 30, 2017. For more information about equity, see Note 4 of the Notes to Financial 
Statements in Item 8. 
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

As of September 30, 2018, Spire had contractual obligations with payments due as summarized below: 

Payments due by period 

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than 
Conh·actual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5Years 

Principal Payments on Long-term Debt $ 2,092.0 $ 175.5 $ 100.2 $ 384.3 $ 1,432.0 

Interest Payments on Long-term Debt (a) 1,256.3 86.6 158.3 141.6 869.8 

Operating Leases (b) 78.5 9.7 14.5 13.0 41.3 

Purchase Obligations - Natnral Gas (c) 1,240.9 547.7 469.1 100.4 123.7 

Purchase Obligations - Other (d) 45.9 39.3 5.0 0.9 0.7 

Asset Retirement Obligations 321.1 9.8 18.4 18.1 274.8 

Total (e) $ 5,034.7 $ 868.6 $ 765.5 $ 658.3 $ 2,742.3 

(a) Includes interest payments over the terms of the debt. Interest is calculated using the applicable interest rate and 
outstanding principal for each instrument with the terms ending at each instrument's stated mahtrity. See Note 5, Long­
Term Debt, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

(b) Lease obligations are primarily for office space and power operated equipment. Additional payments will be incurred if 
renewal options are exercised under the provisions of certain agreements. 

(c) These purchase obligations represent the minimum payments required under existing natural gas transportation and 
storage contracts and natural gas supply agreements in the Gas Utility and Gas Marketing segments. These amounts reflect 
fixed obligations as well as obligations to purchase natural gas at future market prices, calculated using September 30, 2018 
fonvard market prices. Each of the Utilities generally recovers costs related to its purchases, transportation and storage of 
natural gas through the operation of its PGA clause or GSA rider, subject to prudence review by the appropriate regional 
public service commission. Variations in the timing of collections of gas costs from customers may affect short-term cash 
requirements. Additional contrachtal commitments are generally entered into prior to or during the heating season. 

(d) These purchase obligations primarily reflect miscellaneous agreements for the purchase of materials and the procurement of 
services necessary for normal operations. 

(e) Long-term liabilities associated with unrecognized tax benefits, totaling $8.1, have been excluded from the table above 
because the timing of future cash outflows, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated. Also, commitments related to pension 
and postretirement benefit plans have been excluded from the table above. The Company expects to contribute $27.1 to its 
qualified, trusteed pension plans and $0.5 to its non-qualified pension plans during fiscal 2019. With regard to the 
postretirement benefits, the Company anticipates it wi11 contribute $1.9 to the qualified trusts and $0.5 directly to 
participants from Spire Missouri funds during fiscal 2019. For further discussion of the Company's pension and 
postretirement benefit plans, refer to Note 12, Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits, of the Notes to Financial 
Statements in Item 8. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

The Utilities and other Spire subsidiaries own and operate natural gas distribution, transmission and storage 
facilities, the operations of which are subject to various environmental laws, regulations and interpretations. While 
environmental issues resulting from such operations arise in the ordinary course of business, such issues have not 
materially affected the Company's, Spire Missouri's or Spire Alabama's financial position and results of operations. 
As environmental laws, regulations and their interpretations change, however, the Company and the Utilities may 
be required to incur additional costs. For information relative to em~ronmental matters, see Contingencies in Note 
15 of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

At September 30, 2018, the Company had no off-balance sheet financing arrangements, other than operating leases, 
surety bonds, and letters of credit entered into in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not expect to 
engage in any significant off-balance sheet financing arrangements in the near future. 
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MARKET RISK 

Commodity Price Risk 

Gas Utilitu 

The Utilities' commodity price risk, which arises from market fluctuations in the price of natural gas, is primarily 
managed through the operation of the Missouri Utilities' PGA clauses and Spire Alabama's GSA rider. The PGA 
clauses and GSA rider allows the Utilities to flow through to customers, subject to prudence review by the MoPSC 
and APSC, the cost of purchased gas supplies. Spire Missouri is allowed the flexibility to make up to three 
discretionary PGA changes during each year, in addition to its mandatmy November PGA change, so long as such 
changes are separated by at least two months. Spire Missouri is able to mitigate, to some extent, changes in 
commodity prices through the use of physical storage supplies and regional supply diversity. The Utilities also have 
risk management policies that allow for the purchase of natural gas derivative instruments with the goal of 
managing its price risk associated with purchasing natural gas on behalf of its customers. These policies prohibit 
speculation. As of September 30, 2018, Spire Missouri had active natural gas derivative positions, but Spire 
Alabama did not. Costs and cost reduction, including carrying costs, associated with the use of natural gas derivative 
instruments are allowed to be passed on to customers through the operation of the PGA clauses or GSA rider. 
Accordingly, the Utilities do not expect any adverse earnings impact as a result of the use of these derivative 
instruments. However, the timing of recove1y for cash payments related to margin requirements may cause short­
term cash requirements to vaiy. For more information about the Utilities' natural gas derivative instruments, see 
Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Gas Ma,-ketina 

In the course of its business, Spire's non-regulated gas marketing subsidia1y, Spire Marketing, enters into contracts 
to purchase and sell natural gas at fixed prices and natural gas index-based prices. Commodity price risk associated 
with these contracts has the potential to impact earnings and cash flows. To minimize this risk, Spire Marketing has 
a risk management policy that provides for daily monitoring of a number of business measures, including fixed 
price commitments. In accordance with the risk management policy, Spire Marketing manages the price risk 
associated with its fixed price commitments. This risk is currently managed either by closely matching the offsetting 
physical purchase or sale of natural gas at fixed-prices or through the use of natural gas futures, options and swap 
contracts traded on or cleared through the New York Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") and Intercontinental 
Exchange ("ICE") to lock in margins. At September 30, 2018 and 2017, Spire Marketing's unmatched fixed-price 
positions were not material to Spire's financial position or results of operations. 

As mentioned above, Spire Marketing uses natural gas futures, options and swap contracts traded on or cleared 
through the NYMEX and ICE to manage the commodity price risk associated with its fixed-price natural gas 
purchase and sale commitments. These derivative instruments may be designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted 
purchases or sales. Such accounting treatment, if elected, generally permits a substantial portion of the gain or loss 
to be deferred from recognition in earnings until the period that the associated forecasted purchase or sale is 
recognized in earnings. To the extent a hedge is effective, gains or losses on the derivatives will be offset by changes 
in the value of the hedged forecasted transactions. Information about the fair values of Spire Marketing's exchange­
traded/cleared natural gas derivative instruments is presented below: 

Derivative Derivatives 
Fair Cash and Cash 

Values Margin Margin 

Net balance of derivative assets at September 30, 2017 $ 0.5 $ 2.0 $ 2.5 

Changes in fair value (9.7) - (9.7) 

Settlements/purchases - net 2.0 - 2.0 

Changes in cash margin - 9.2 9.2 

Net balance of derivative assets at September 30, 2018 $ (7.2) -~ 11.2 $ 4.0 
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As of September 30, 2018 

Maturity by Fiscal Year Total 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Fair values of exchange-traded/cleared natural gas 
$ {0.5} $ < (0.3) $ (0.1) $ {0.1) $ derivatives - net - , 

Fair values of basis swaps- net (6.7) (6.9) 0.2 

Position volumes: 

MMBtu- net (short) long futures/swap/option positions (0.9) (2.9) 0.1 1.2 0.7 

MMBtu - net (short) long basis swap positions (21.3) (19.5) (1.2) - (0.5) (0.1) 

Certain of Spire Marketing's physical natural gas derivative contracts are designated as normal purchases or normal 
sales, as permitted by GAAP. This election permits the Company to account for the contract in the period the 
natural gas is delivered. Contracts not designated as normal purchases or normal sales, including those designated 
as trading activities, are accounted for as derivatives with changes in fair value recognized in earnings in the periods 
prior to settlement. 

Below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for physical natural gas contracts accounted for as 
derivatives, none of which will settle beyond fiscal 2020: 

Net balance of derivative assets at September 30, 2017 
Changes in fair value 
Settlements 

Net balance of derivative liabilities at September 30, 2018 

For further details related to Spire Marketing's derivatives and hedging activities, see Note 9, Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Counterparty Credit Risk 

$ 

$ 

(1.5) 

24.7 

(13.4) 

9.8 

Spire Marketing has concentrations of counterparty credit iisk in that a significant portion of its transactions are 
with energy producers, utility companies and pipelines. These concentrations of counterparties have the potential to 
affect the Company's overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that each of these three 
groups may be affected similarly by changes in economic, industry or other conditions. Spire Marketing also has 
concentrations of credit risk with certain individually significant counterparties. To the extent possible, Spire 
Marketing enters into netting arrangements with its counterpa1ties to mitigate exposure to credit risk. It is also 
exposed to credit risk associated with its derivative contracts designated as normal purchases and normal sales. 
Spire Marketing closely monitors its credit exposure and, although uncollectible amounts have not been significant, 
increased counterparty defaults are possible and may result in financial losses and/ or capital limitations. For more 
information on these concentrations of credit risk, including how Spire Marketing manages these risks, see Note 10, 
Concentrations of Credit Risk, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Company is subject to interest rate risk associated with its long-term and sho1t-term debt issuances. Based on 
average sho1t-term borrowings during fiscal 2018, an increase of 100 basis points in the underlying average interest 
rate for sho1t-term debt would have caused an increase in interest expense (and a decrease in pre-tax earnings and 
cash flows) of approximately $4.1 on an annual basis. Portions of such an increase may be offset through the 
Utilities' application of PGA and GSA canying costs. At September 30, 2018, Spire had no variable rate long-term 
debt outstanding but had fixed-rate long-term debt totaling $2,092.0. Spire Missouri had fixed-rate long-term debt 
totaling $880.0 and Spire Alabama had fixed-rate long-term debt of $325.0, both included in Spire's total long­
term debt. While these long-term debt issues are fixed-rate, they are subject to changes in fair value as market 
interest rates change. However, increases or decreases in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows only if the 
Company were to reacquire any of these issues in the open market prior to maturity. Under GAAP applicable to the 
Utilities' regulated operations, losses or gains on early redemptions oflong-term debt would typically be deferred as 
regulat01y assets or regulat01y liabilities and amortized over a future period. 
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During the second quarter of fiscal 2016, Spire entered into five-year interest rate swap transactions with a fixed 
interest rate of 1.776% and a notional amount of $105.0 to protect itself against adverse movement in interest rates 
in anticipation of the issuance oflong-term debt in fiscal 2017. During the third quarter of fiscal 2016, the Company 
entered into seven-year swap transactions with an average fixed interest rate of 1.501% and a notional amount of 
$120.0 to hedge additional debt expected to be issued in fiscal 2017. All of these hedge positions were settled during 
the second quarter of fiscal 2017, resulting in a gain of $14.1 which will be am01tized over the hedged periods. Also 
during the second quatter of fiscal 2017, Spire entered into a ten-year interest rate swap with a fixed interest rate of 
2.658% and a notional amount of $60.0 to protect itself against adverse movements in interest rates on future 
interest rate payments. The Company recorded a $2.5 mark-to-market gain on this swap as part of other 
comprehensive income for the year ended September 30, 2018. In August 2018, Spire entered into a three-year 
interest rate swap with a fixed interest rate of 2. 7675% and a notional amount of $100.0 to protect itself against 
adverse movements in interest rates on future variable interest rate payments. The Company recorded a $0.5 mark­
to-market gain on this swap as part of other comprehensive income for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

Refer to Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 8 for 
additional details on these interest rate swap transactions. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

For this discussion, see Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Market Risk, of this rep01t. 
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Management Reports on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Spil'elnc, 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal controls over financial reporting. 
Spire Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial repmting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, 
intemal control over financial repmting may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only reasonable 
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Spire Inc.'s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an 
assessment of the effectiveness of Spire Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting as of September 30, 2018. In 
making this assessment, management used the criteria in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment, 
management concluded that Spire Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 
2018, Deloitte & Tonche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation repmt on 
Spire Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting, which is included herein. 

Spire Missouri Inc. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal controls over financial reporting. 
Spire Missouri Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial repmting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of its inherent 
limitations, intemal control over financial repmting may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate, 

Spire Missouri Inc.'s management, 'including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an 
assessment of the effectiveness of Spire Missouri Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting as of September 30, 
2018. In making this assessment, management used the criteria in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment, 
management concluded that Spire Missouri Inc.'s internal control over financial repo1ting was effective as of 
September 30, 2018, 

Spire Alabama Inc. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal controls over financial reporting. 
Spire Alabama Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of its inherent 
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Spire Alabama Inc.'s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an 
assessment of the effectiveness of Spire Alabama Inc.'s intemal control over financial repmting as of September 30, 

2018. In making this assessment, management used the criteria in Intemal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, Based on that assessment, 
management concluded that Spire Alabama Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of 
September 30, 2018, 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Spire Inc. 

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Spire Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
September 30, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2018, 

based on criteria established in Internal Conh·ol - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, of the 
Company and our repmt dated November 15, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. 

Basis for Opinion 

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial repmting and 
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management Repo1ts on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm 
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the 
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and 
thePCAOB. 

We conducted onr audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
pe1form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial repo1ting 
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial repo1ting, assessing the risk that a niaterial weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal control over financial repmting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial repmting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pe1tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authmizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

/s/ Deloitte & Tonche LLP 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 15, 2018 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Spire Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of 
Spire Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in 
the period ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company 
as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended September 30, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2018, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated November 15, 2018, expressed an unqualified 
opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with 
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal 
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
peiform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abuul whether the financial statements are free ofinaterial 
misstatement, whether due to error or frand. Our audits included pe1forming procedures to assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that 
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

/s/ Deloitte & Tonche LLP 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 15, 2018 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1953. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of Spire Missouri Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Spire Missouri Inc. (a wholly 
owned subsidia1y of Spire Inc.) (the "Company") as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the related statements of 
comprehensive income, shareholder's equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended 
September 30, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the 
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 
30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
September 30, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with 
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
pe1form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 
pe1form, an audit of its internal control over financial repo1ting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial repo1ting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits included pe1forming procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits 
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

/s/ Deloitte & Tonche LLP 

St. Louis, Missouri 
November 15, 2018 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1953. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of Spire Alabama Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Spire Alabama Inc.(a wholly 
owned snbsidia1y of Spire Inc.) (the "Company") as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the related statements of 
income, shareholder's equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2018, 

and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, 

and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 

2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with 
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal secmities laws and the applicable mies and regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
pe1form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial repo1ting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an 
understanding of internal control over financial repmting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial repo1ting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of 111aterial misstatement of the financial staternents, 
whether due to error or fraud, and peiforming procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits 
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

/s/ Deloitte & Tonche LLP 

Birmingham, Alabama 
November 15, 2018 

We have se1ved as the Company's auditor since 2014. 
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SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(In millions, except per share amounts) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 

Operating Revenues: 

Gas Utility $ 1,888.0 $ 1,660.0 $ 1,457.2 

Gas Marketing and other 77.0 80.7 80.1 

Total Operating Revenues 1,965.0 1,740.7 1,537.3 

Operating Expenses: 

Gas Utility 

Natural and propane gas 770.1 570.5 492.2 

Other operation and maintenance expenses 455.6 405.0 377.5 

Depreciation and amortization 167.0 153.5 136.9 

Taxes, other than income taxes 152.5 137.8 125.2 

Total Gas Utility Operating Expenses 1,545.2 1,266.8 1,131.8 

Gas Marketing and other 140.1 152.2 123.2 

Total Operating Expenses 1,685.3 1,419.0 1,255.0 

Operating Income 279.7 321.7 282.3 

Other Income, Net 6.4 6.6 8.6 

Interest Charges: 

Interest on long-term debt 83.0 76.8 67.6 

Other interest charges 15.4 12.3 9.6 

Total Interest Charges 98.4 89.1 77.2 

Income Before Income Taxes 187.7 239.2 213.7 

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense (26.5) 77.6 69.5 

Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding: 

Basic 49.1 46.9 44.1 

Diluted 49.3 47.0 44.3 

Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $ 4.35 $ 3.44 $ 3.26 

Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $ 4.33 $ 3.43 $ 3.24 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 
Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax: 

Cash flow hedging derivative instruments: 

Net hedging gain (loss) arising during the period 3.9 11.5 (4.0) 

Reclassification adjustment for (income) loss included in net income (1.5) - 1.1 

Net unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedging derivative instruments 2.4 11.5 (2.9) 

Defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans: 

Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) included in net periodic pension and 
postretirement benefit cost · 0.4 0.4 (0.3) 

Net defined benefit pension and other postretirernent benefit plans 0.4 0.4 (0.3) 

Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale debt securities 0.3 (0.1) 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tax 3.1 11.8 (3.2) 

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) Related to Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 0.6 4.4 (1.0) 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax 2.5 7.4 (2.2) 

Comprehensive Income $ 216.7 $ 169.0 $ 142.0 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(In millions) 

September 30 2018 2017 
ASSETS 

Utility Plant $ 5,653.3 $ 5,278.4 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,682.8 1,613.2 

Net Utility Plant 3,970.5 3,665.2 

Non-utility property (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, $10.4 and $8.6 at 
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively) 174.5 52.0 

Goodwill 1,171.6 1,171.6 

Other investments 68.7 64.2 

Other Property and Investments 1,414.8 1,287.8 

Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 4.4 7.4 

Accounts receivable: 

Utility 151.9 140.5 

Other 167.3 149.2 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (22.4) (18.3) 

Delayed customer billings 6.9 3.4 

Inventories: 

Natural gas 175.2 194.9 

Propane gas 12.0 12.0 

Materials and supplies 23.1 18.9 

Natural gas receivable 1.8 1.9 

Derivative instrument assets 13.3 5.9 

Unam01tized purchased gas adjustments 8.2 102.6 

Other regulatory assets 64.6 72.9 

Prepayments 31.0 28.0 

Other 22.3 6.2 

Total Current Assets 659.6 725.5 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets: 

Regulat01y assets 669.8 791.1 

Other 128.9 77.1 

Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets 798.7 868.2 

Total Assets $ 6,843.6 $ 6,546.7 
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SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) 

September 30 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Capitalization: 

Shareholders' equity 

Redeemable noncontrolling interest 

Long-term debt 

Total Capitalization 

Current Liabilities: 
Current portion oflong-term debt 

Notes payable 

Accounts payable 

Advance customer billings 

Wages and compensation accrued 

Di,odends payable 

Customer deposits 

Interest accrued 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 

Taxes accrued 

Other regulatory liabilities 

Other 

Total Current Liabilities 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities: 
Deferred income taxes 

Pension and postretirement benefit costs 

Asset retirement obligations 

Regulatory liabilities 

Other 

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

2,255.4 $ 1,991.3 

7.9 

1,900.1 1,995.0 

4,163.4 3,986.3 --

175.S 100.0 

553.6 477.3 

290.1 257.1 

22.7 32.0 

39.7 38.7 

30.0 26.6 

35.5 34.9 

15.2 14.6 

2.9 1.0 

65.4 61.0 

32.8 21.6 

58.3 33.1 ---
1,321.7 1,097.9 --

435.8 707.5 

180.2 237.4 

321.1 296.6 

354.6 157.2 

66.8 63.8 ---
1,358.5 1,462.5 --
6,843.6 $ 6,546.7 



SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 
(I!_o_?_l_aJ_'s in million~, except per share amounts) 
September 30 2018 2017 
Shareholders' Equity: 

Common stock, par value $1 per share: 
Authmized - 70,000,000 shares 
Outstanding - 50,671,903 shares and 48,263,243 shares, respectively $ 50.7 $ 48.3 

Paid-in capital 1,482.7 1,325.6 

Retained earnings 715.6 614.2 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 6.4 3.2 

Total Shareholders' Equity 2,255.4 1,991.3 

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest 7.9 

Long-term Debt - Spire: 

2.55% Senior Notes, due August 15, 2019 - 125.0 

2.52% Senior Notes, due September 1, 2021 35.0 35.0 

3.31% Notes Payable, due December 15, 2022 25.0 25.0 

3.54% Senior Notes, due February 27, 2024 150.0 150.0 

3.13% Senior Notes, due September 1, 2026 130.0 130.0 

3.93% Senior Notes, due l\farch 15, 2027 100.0 100.0 

4.70% Senior Notes, due August 15, 2044 250.0 250.0 

Long-term Debt - Spire Missouri: 
First Mortgage Bonds: 

5.5% Series, due May 1, 2019 - 50.0 

3.0% Series, due March 15, 2023 55.0 55.0 

3.4% Series, due August 15, 2023 250.0 250.0 

3.4% Series, due :March 15, 2028 45.0 45.0 

7.0% Series, due June 1, 2029 25.0 25.0 

7.9% Series, due September 15, 2030 30.0 30.0 

3.68% Series, due September 15, 2032 50.0 50.0 

6.0% Series, due May 1, 2034 100.0 100.0 

6.15% Series, due June 1, 2036 55.0 55.0 

4.625% Series, due August 15, 2043 100.0 100.0 

4.23% Series, due September 15, 2047 70.0 70.0 

4.38% Series, due September 15, 2057 50.0 50.0 

Long-te1m Debt - Spire Alabama: 
5.2% Notes, due January 15, 2020 40.0 40.0 

3.86% Notes, due December 22, 2021 50.0 50.0 

3.21% Notes, due September 15, 2025 35.0 35.0 

5.9% Notes, due January 15, 2037 45.0 45.0 

4.31% Notes, due December 1, 2045 80.0 80.0 

3.92% Notes, due January 15, 2048 45.0 

4.02% Notes, due January 15, 2058 30.0 

Long-te1m Debt - Other: 
3.10% Note, due December 30, 2018 - 5.0 

4.14% First Mortgage Bonds, due September 30, 2021 20.0 20.0 

5.00% First Mortgage Bonds, due September 30, 2031 42.0 42.0 

Non-interest-bearing Note, due December 27, 2022 9.5 

Total Principal of Long-term Debt 1,916.5 2,012.0 

Unamortized debt issuance costs (14.0) (15.2) 

Unamortized discounts on long-term debt (2.4) (1.8) 

Total Long-term Debt 1,900.1 1,995.0 

Total Capitalization $ 4,163.4 $ 3 986.3 

Long-term debt doHar amounts are exclusive of current portion. 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common Stock 
Outstanding Paid-in Retained 

(Dollars in millions, e.t:cept per share amounts) Shares Amount Capital Earnings AOC!* Total 

Balance at September 30, 2015 43,335,012 $ 43.3 $ 1,038.1 $ 494.2 $ (2.0) $ 1,573.6 

Net income - - - 144.2 - 144.2 

Common stock offering 2,185,000 2.2 131.0 - - 133.2 

Dividend reinvestment plan 22,878 - 1.4 - - 1.4 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 6.7 - - 6.7 

Stock issued under stock-based compensation 
plans 136,979 0.1 0.4 - - 0.5 

Employees' tax withholding for stock-based 
compensation (29,227) - (1.7) - - (1.7) 

Dividends declared: 

Common stock ($1.96 per share) - - - (87.5) - (87.5) 

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - - - (2.2) (2.2) 

Balance at September 30, 2016 45,650,642 $ 45.6 $ 1,175.9 $ 550.9 $ (4.2) $ 1,768.2 

Net income - - - 161.6 - 161.6 

Common stock offering 2,504,684 2.5 143.0 - - 145.5 

Dividend reinvestment plan 23,731 - 1.6 - - 1.6 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 7.4 0.9 - 8.3 

Stock issued under stock-based compensation 
plans 119,700 0.2 (0.1) - - 0.1 

Employees' tax withholding for stock-based 
compensation (35,514) - (2.2) - - (2.2) 

Dividends declared: 

Common stock ($2.10 per share) - - - (99.2) - (99.2) 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - 7.4 7.4 

Balance at September 30, 2017 48,263,243 $ 48.3 $ 1,325.6 $ 614.2 $ 3.2 $ 1,991.3 

Net income - - - 214.2 - 214.2 

Common stock offering 2,300,000 2.3 150.7 - - 153.0 

Dividend reinvestment plan 23,023 - 1.6 - - 1.6 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 7.7 - - 7.7 

Stock issued under stock-based compensation 
plans 119,592 0.1 (0.1) 

Employees' tax withholding for stock-based 
compensation (33,955) - (2.8) - - (2.8) 

Dividends declared: 

Common stock ($2.25 per share) - - - (112.1) - (112.1) 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - 2.5 2.5 

Reclassification of certain income tax effects - - - (0.7) 0.7 -
Balance at September 30, 2018 50,671,903 $ 50.7 $ 1,482.7 $ 715.6 $ 6.4 $ 2,255.4 

* Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 
Operating Activities: 

Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amo1tization 168.4 154.1 137.5 

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (28.7) 77.0 68.8 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (32.7) (63.0) (12.3) 

Inventories 15.5 (23.5) 16.5 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 109.0 (50.9) (52.8) 

Accounts payable 12.6 51.1 30.0 

Delayed/advance customer billings, net (12.8) (40.0) 26.9 

Taxes accrued 6.4 5.8 (0.4) 

Other assets and liabilities (39.5) 11.9 (35.0) 

Other 44.2 4.2 4.9 

Net cash provided by operating activities 456.6 288.3 328.3 

Investing Activities: 

Capital expenditures (499.4) (438.1) (293.3) 

Acquisition of Spire EnergySouth (net of $2.0 cash acquired) and final settlement - 3.8 (317.7) 

Other business acquisitions (28.1) 

Other (4.2) 0.8 (D) 

Net cash used in investing activities (531.7) (433.5) (612. 7) 

Financing Activities: 

Issuance of long-term debt 75.0 420.0 245.0 

Repayment oflong-term debt (105.0) (393.8) (80.0) 

Issuance of short-term debt, net 76.3 78.6 60.7 

Issuance of common stock 154.7 146.9 137.1 

Dividends paid (108.7) (96.2) (85.2) 

Other (3.2) (8.1) (1.8) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 89.1 147.4 275.8 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 14.0 2.2 (8.6) 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Year 7.4 5.2 13.8 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at End of Year $ 21.4 $ 7.4 $ 5.2 

Supplemental disclosure of cash (paid) refunded for: 

Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ (95.1) $ (85.5) $ (72.5) 

Income taxes (1.5) (1.3) 2.9 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 
Operating Revenues: 

Utility $ 1,285.6 $ 1,171.9 $ 1,087.5 

Total Operating Revenues 1,285.6 1,171.9 1,087.5 

Operating Expenses: 

Utility 

Natural and propane gas 636.8 538.3 471.3 

Other operation and maintenance expenses 296.3 243.8 244.4 

Depreciation and amortization 102.8 93.1 88.6 

Taxes, other than income taxes 108.4 99.8 96.3 

Total Operating Expenses 1,144.3 975.0 900.6 

Operating Income 141.3 196.9 186.9 

Other Income, Net 1.8 2.7 1.8 

Interest Charges: 

Interest on long-term debt 38.7 32.9 32.9 

Other interest charges 7.7 6.2 4.5 

Total Interest Charges 46.4 39.1 37.4 

Income Before Income Taxes 96.7 160.5 151.3 

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense (32.6) 47.5 45.4 

Net Income 129.3 113.0 105.9 

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax 0.4 0.1 {0.1) 

Comprehensive Income $ 129.7 $ 113.1 $ 105.8 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

62 



SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 

BALANCE SHEETS 
(In Millions) 

September 30 2018 2017 
ASSETS 

Utility Plant $ 3,331.0 $ 3,091.8 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 705.8 681.6 

Net Utility Plant 2,625.2 2,410.2 

Goodwill 210.2 210.2 

Other Property and Investments 55.0 59.4 

Other Properly and Investments 265.2 269.6 

Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 2.0 2.5 

Accounts receivable: 

Utility 103.9 101.7 

Associated companies 2.7 3.3 

Other 16.6 15.0 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (16.0) (14.1) 

Delayed customer billings 6.9 3.4 

Inventories: 

Natural gas 127.9 138.2 

Propane gas 12.0 12.0 

Materials and supplies 13.2 11.3 

Derivative instrument assets - 0.1 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 1.0 57.4 

Other regulatory assets 29.7 38.2 

Prepayments 19.1 19.6 

Total Current Assets 319.0 388.6 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets: 

Regulatory assets 441.1 557.8 

Other 50.8 5.3 

Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets 491.9 563.1 

Total Assets $ 3,701.3 $ 3,631.5 
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SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 
BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

September 30 2018 2017 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Capitalization: 

Shareholder's equity $ 1,259.9 $ 1,171.0 

Long-term debt 824.4 873.9 

Total Capitalization 2,084.3 2,044.9 

Current Liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt 50.0 100.0 

Notes payable - associated companies 345.3 203.0 

Accounts payable 81.7 89.9 

Accounts payable - associated companies 5.8 5.4 

Advance customer billings 9.5 13.3 

Wages and compensation accrued 31.3 29.6 

Dividends payable 9.0 

Customer deposits 13.1 13.3 

Interest accrned 7.8 8.0 

Taxes accrued 32.0 34.1 

Unamortized purchase gas adjustments 1.9 

Other regulatmy liabilities 14.8 2.7 

Other 20.1 8.5 

Total Current Liabilities 622.3 507.8 

D,:,for1•prl CrPrlits anrl QthPr J .i!lhilitiP_<:.• 

Deferred income taxes 361.0 623.8 

Pension and postretirement benefit costs 136.9 173.0 

Asset retirement obligations 174.1 158.6 

Regulatmy liabilities 274.9 81.2 

Other 47.8 42.2 

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 994.7 1,078.8 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 3,701.3 $ 3,631.5 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 

September 30 
Shareholder's Equity: 

Common stock~ par value $1 per share: 

Authorized - 50,000,000 shares 

Outstanding - 24,577 shares 

Paid-in capital 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total Shareholder's Equity 

Long-term Debt: 

First Mortgage Bonds: 

5.5% Series, due May 1, 2019 

3.0% Series, due March 15, 2023 

3.4% Series, due August 15, 2023 

3.4% Series, due March 15, 2028 

7.0% Series, due June 1, 2029 

7.9% Series, due September 15, 2030 

3.68% Series, due September 15, 2032 

6.0% Series, due May 1, 2034 

6.15% Series, due June 1, 2036 

4.625% Series, due August 15, 2043 

4.23% Series, due September 15, 2047 

4.38% Series, due September 15, 2057 

Total Principal of Long-term Debt 

Unamortized debt issuance costs 

Unam01tized discounts on long-term debt 

Total Long-term Debt 

Total Capitalization 

Long-term debt ~ollar amounts are exclusive of current portion. 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

0.1 $ 0.1 

760.3 756.1 

501.1 416.5 

(1.6) (1.7) 

1,259.9 1,171.0 

50.0 

55.0 55.0 

250.0 250.0 

45.0 45.0 

25.0 25.0 

30.0 30.0 

50.0 50.0 

100.0 100.0 

55.0 55.0 

100.0 100.0 

70.0 70.0 

50.0 50.0 

830.0 880.0 

(4.3) (4.6) 

(1.3) (1.5) 

824.4 873.9 

2,084.3 $ 2,044.9 



SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Com1non Stock 
Outstanding Paid-in Retained 

(Dollars in millions) Shares Amount Capital Earnings AOCI* Total 

Balance at September 30, 2015 24,577 $ 0.1 $ 748.2 $ 291.2 $ (1.7) $ 1,037.8 

Net income - - - 105.9 - 105.9 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 3.7 - - 3.7 

Dividends declared - - - (78.8) - (78.8) 

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - - - (0.1) (0.1) 

Balance at Septe1nber 30, 2016 24,577 $ 0.1 $ 751.9 $ 318.3 $ (1.8) $ 1,068.5 

Net income - - - 113.0 - 113.0 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 4.2 - - 4.2 

Dividends declared - - - (14.8) - (14.8) 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - 0.1 0.1 

Balance at September 30, 2017 24,577 $ 0.1 $ 756.1 $ 416.5 $ (1.7) $ 1,171.0 

Net income - - - 129.3 - 129.3 

Stock-based compensation costs - - 4.2 - - 4.2 

Dividends declared - - - (45.0) - (45.0) 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - 0.4 0.4 

Reclassification of certain income tax effects - - - 0.3 (0.3) 
-

Balance at September 30, 2018 24,577 $ 0.1 $ 760.3 $ 501.1 $ (1.6) $ 1,259.9 

* Accmnulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE MISSOURI INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 
Operating Activities: 

Net Income $ 129.3 $ 113.0 $ 105.9 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 102.8 93.1 88.6 

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (32.6) 47.5 45.3 

Changes in assets and }iabilities: 

Accounts receivable (2.0) (20.5) 35.7 

Inventories 8.4 (13.0) 11.0 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 71.0 (11.6) (18.7) 

Accounts payable (14.8) 16.8 0.9 

Delayed/advance customer billings, net (7.4) (37.6) 24.9 

Taxes accrued (2.1) 5.0 4.9 

Other assets and liabilities (13.4) (11.6) (29.6) 

Other 45.0 1.6 2.3 

Net cash provided by operating activities 284.2 182.7 271.2 

Investing Activities: 

Capital expenditures (295.8) (282.2) (197.8) 

Other 4.8 1.1 1.1 

Net cash used in investing activities (291.0) (281.1) (196. 7) 

Financing Activities: 

Issuance of first mortgage bonds - 170.0 

(Repayment) issuance of short-term debt, net (100.0) (243.7) 10.7 

Borrowings from Spire 142.3 203.0 

Dividends paid (36.0) (28.7) (84.8) 

Other - (1.8) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 6.3 98.8 (74.1) 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (0.5) 0.4 0.4 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 2.5 2.1 1.7 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 2.0 $ 2.5 $ 2.1 

Supplemental disclosure of cash (paid) refunded for: 

Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ (45.6) $ (38.6) $ (35.7) 

Income taxes - - 2.1 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 

Operating Revenues: 

Utility $ 500.7 $ 400.5 $ 368.5 

Total Operating Revenues 500.7 400.5 368.5 

Operating Expenses: 

Utility 

Natural and propane gas 176.0 84.5 67.3 

Other operation and maintenance expenses 136.8 130.4 133.5 

Depreciation and amortization 53.2 49.9 47.8 

Taxes, other than income taxes 36.1 29.9 28.4 

Total Operating Expenses 402.1 294.7 277.0 

Operating Income 98.6 105.8 91.5 

Other Income, Net 1.6 2.5 7.9 

Interest Charges: 

Interest on long-term debt 13.5 11.2 11.4 

Other interest charges 3.8 3.2 2.4 

Total Interest Charges 17.3 14.4 13.8 

Income Before Income Taxes 82.9 93.9 85.6 

Income Tax Expense 81.6 35.8 32.4 

Net Income $ 1.3 $ 58.1 $ 53.2 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements, 
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SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

BALANCE SHEETS 
(In millions) 

September 30 2018 2017 

ASSETS 

utility Plant $ 1,964.3 $ 1,838.0 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 830.2 782.0 

Net utility Plant 1,134.1 1,056.0 ---Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents - 0.1 

Accounts receivable: 

Utility 39.6 32.0 

Associated compariies 0.5 

Other 8.5 6.2 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (3.9) (2.6) 

Inventories: 

Natural gas 33.9 33.9 

Materials and supplies 7.8 6.5 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 6.4 45.2 

Other regulatory assets 19.8 19.4 

Prepayments 6.0 4.9 

Other 2.4 1.8 

Total Current Assets 121.0 147.4 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets: 

Regulato1y assets 201.5 197.0 

Deferred income tax 101.8 185.6 

Other 57.8 57.0 

Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets 361.1 439.6 

Total Assets $ 1,616.2 $ 1,643.0 
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SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

September 30 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Capitalization: 

Shareholder's equity 

Long-term debt 

Total Capitalization 

Current Liabilities: 

Notes payable - associated companies 

Accounts payable 

Accounts payable - associated companies 

Advance customer bil1ings 

Wages and compensation accrued 

Customer deposits 

Interest accrued 

Taxes accmed 

Regulatory liabilities 

Other 

Total Current Liabilities 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities: 

Pension and postretirement benefit costs 

Asset retirement obligations 

Regulatory liabilities 

Other 

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15) 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

808.7 $ 867.4 

322.6 247.8 --
1,131.3 1,115.2 
--

142.5 169.9 

48.4 44.4 

2.1 1.6 

13.1 18.6 

6.7 7.4 

18.6 17.9 

3.9 3.3 

28.3 23.4 

7.6 12.0 

3.2 2.9 
-

274.4 301.4 
--

35.0 50.2 

135.7 128.4 

31.3 39.6 

8.5 8.2 
-

210.5 226.4 ---
1,616.2 $ 1,643.0 



SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 

September 30 

Shareholder's Equity: 

Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and paid-in capital: 

Authorized - 3,000,000 shares 

Outstanding - 1,972,052 shares 

Retained earnings 

Total Shareholder's Equity 

Long-term Debt: 

5.2% Notes, due January 15, 2020 

3.86% Notes, due December 22, 2021 

3.21% Notes, due September 15, 2025 

5.9% Notes, due January 15, 2037 

4.31% Notes, due December 1, 2045 

3.92% Notes, due January 15, 2048 

4.02% Notes, due January 15, 2058 

Total Principal of Long-term Debt 

Unammtized debt issuance costs 

Total Long-term Debt 

Total Capitalization 

Long-term debt dollar amounts are exclusive of current portion. 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

390.9 $ 420.9 

417.8 446.5 --
808.7 867.4 --

40.0 40.0 

so.a so.a 
35.0 35.0 

45.0 45.0 

80.0 80.0 

45.0 

30.0 -----
325.0 250.0 

(2.4) (2.2) --
322.6 247.8 

1,131.3 $ 1,115.2 



SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Common Stock 
Outstanding 

Paid~in Retained 
(Dollars in millions) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total 

Balance at September 30, 2015 1,972,052 $ - $ 480.9 $ 393.7 $ 874.6 

Net income - - - 53.2 53.2 

Dividends declared - - - (31.5) (31.5) 

Return of capital to Spire - - (29.0) - (29.0) 

Balance at September 30, 2016 1,972,052 - 451.9 415.4 867.3 

Net income - - - 58.1 58.1 

Dividends declared - - - (27.0) (27.0) 

Return of capital to Spire - - (31.0) - (31.0) 

Balance at September 30, 2017 1,972,052 - 420.9 446.5 867.4 

Net income - - - 1.3 1.3 

Dividends declared - - - (30.0) (30.0) 

Return of capital to Spire - - (30.0) - (30.0) 

Balance at September 30, 2018 1,972,052 $ - $ 390.9 $ 417.8 $ 808.7 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In millions) 

Years Ended September 30 2018 2017 2016 

Operating Activities: 

Net Income $ 1.3 $ 58.1 $ 53.2 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 53.2 49.9 47.8 

Deferred income taxes 81.6 35.8 33.2 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (16.2) (10.0) (11.1) 

Inventories (1.2) 0.1 5.3 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 38.8 (39.6) (33.8) 

Accounts payab1e 4.7 8.8 9.1 

Advance customer billings (5.5) (2.5) 2.0 

Taxes accrued 4.9 1.8 (5.2) 

Other assets and liabilities (15.1) (16.6) (3.2) 

Other (0.4) (1.3) 0.9 

Net cash provided by operating activities 146.1 84.S 98.2 

Investing Activities: 

Capital expenditures (131.7) (113.9) (93.4) 

Other (1.6) (0.4) (2.5) 

Net cash used in investing activities (133.3) (114.3) (95.9) 

Financing Activities: 

Issuance oflong-term debt 75.0 - 80.0 

Repayment oflong-term debt - - (80.0) 

(Repayment) issuance of short-term debt, net - (82.0) 51.0 

(Repayments of) borrowings from Spire (27.4) 169.9 

Return of capital to Spire (30.0) (31.0) (29.0) 

Dividends paid (30.0) (27.0) (31.5) 

Other (0.5) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (12.9) 29.9 (9.5) 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (0.1) 0.1 (7.2) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 0.1 - 7.2 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ - $ 0.1 $ 

Supplemental disclosure of cash (paid) refunded for: 

Interest, net of amounts capita1ized $ (15.1) $ (12.8) $ (12.4) 

Income taxes - - 0.8 

See the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements, 
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SPIRE INC., SPIRE MISSOURI INC., AND SPIRE ALABAMA INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Dollars in millions, except per share, per unit and per gallon amounts) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION -These notes are an integral part of the accompanying audited financial statements 
of Spire Inc. presented on a consolidated basis ("Spire" or the "Company"), Spire Missouri Inc. ("Spire Missouri" or 
the "Missouri Utilities") and Spire Alabama Inc. ("Spire Alabama"). Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are wholly 
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Spire Missouri, Spire Alabama and the subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth Inc. 
("Spire EnergySouth") are collectively referred to as "the Utilities." The subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth are Spire 
Gulflnc. and Spire Mississippi Inc. The accompanying audited financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GMP"). 

Unless othe1wise indicated, references to years herein are references to the fiscal years ending September 30 for the 
Company and its subsidiaries. 

The consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Spire include the accounts of the 
Company and all its subsidiaries. One subsidiaiy acquired an 80% voting interest in a natural gas storage facility in 
December 2017, and the redeemable noncontrolling interest is shown as tempora1y equity on the balance sheet. 
Transactions and balances between consolidated entities have been eliminated from the consolidated financial 
statements of Spire. In compliance with GMP, transactions between Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama and their 
affiliates, as well as intercompany balances on their balance sheets, have not been eliminated from their separate 
financial statements. 

NATURE OF OPERATIONS - Spire (NYSE: SR) has two repo1table segments: Gas Utility and Gas Marketing. 
The Gas Utility segment consists of the regulated natural gas distribution operations of the Company and is the core 
business segment of Spire in terms of revenue and earnings generation. The Gas Utility segment is comprised of the 
operations of: the Missouri Utilities, serving St. Louis and eastem Missouri ("Spire Missouri East") and Kansas City 
and western Missouri ("Spire Missouri West"); Spire Alabama, serving central and nmthern Alabama; and the 
subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth, serving southern Alabama and south-central Mississippi. The Gas Marketing 
Segment includes Spire's prima1y non-utility business, Spire Marketing Inc. ("Spire Marketing"), which provides 
non-regulated natural gas seivices. The activities of other subsidiaries are repo1ted as Other and are described in 
Note 13, Information by Operating Segment. Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama each have a single reportable 
segment. 

USE OF ESTIMATES - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GMP requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repo1ted amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS -The accounts of the Utilities are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System 
of Accounts prescribed by the applicable state public se1vice commissions, which systems substantially conform to 
that prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatmy Commission ("FERC"). 

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT -

Utility Plant - Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions to utility plant includes contracted work, 
direct labor and materials, allocable overheads and an allowance for funds used during construction. The costs of 
units of property retired, replaced or renewed are removed from utility plant and are charged to accumulated 
depreciation. Maintenance and repairs of prope1ty and replacement and renewal of items determined to be less 
than units of prope1ty are charged to maintenance expenses. 

For Spire Missouri, utility plant is depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates based on estimated se1vice lives of the 
various classes of property. In fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, annual depreciation and ammtization expense 
averaged 3.0% of the original cost of depreciable and amortizable property. 

For Spire Alabama, depreciation is provided using the composite method of depreciation on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of utility prope1ty at rates approved by the Alabama Public Se1vice Commission 
("APSC"). The composite depreciation rate in fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 was approximately 3.1%. 
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Non-utility Property- Non-utility property is recorded at the original cost of acquisition or construction, which 
includes material, labor, contractor services and, for FERC-regulated projects, an allowance for funds used during 
construction. Repairs, replacements and renewals of items of property determined to be less than a unit of property 
or that do not increase the property's life or functionality are charged to maintenance expense. Upon retirement or 
sale of non-utility property, the original cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts 
and any gain or loss is included in the income statements. Costs related to software developed or obtained for 
internal use are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the related 
software. If software is retired prior to being fully am01tized, the difference is recorded as a loss in the income 
statements. 

Accrued Capital Expenditures - Accrued capital expenditures, shown in the following table, are excluded from 
capital expenditures in the statements of cash flows until paid. 

September 30 2018 2017 2016 
Spire $ 62.1 $ 41.0 $ 30.4 

Spire Missouri 36.7 28.9 14.8 

Spire Alabama 8.9 9.4 6.8 

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS - Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama record legal obligations 
associated with the retirement oflong-lived assets in the period in which the obligations are incurred, if sufficient 
information exists to reasonably estimate the fair value of the obligations. Obligations are recorded as both a cost of 
the related long-lived asset and as a corresponding liability. Subsequently, the asset retirement costs are depreciated 
over the life of the asset and the asset retirement obligations are accreted to the expected settlement amounts. The 
Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama record asset retirement obligations associated with certain safety 
requirements to purge and seal gas distribution mains upon retirement, the plugging and abandonment of storage 
wells and other storage facilities, specific service line obligations, and certain removal and disposal obligations 
related to components of Spire Missouri's, Spire Alabama's and Spire Gulfs distribution systems and general plant. 
Asset retirement obligations recorded by Spire's other subsidiaries are not material. As authorized by the Missouri 
Public Service Commission ("MoPSC") and APSC, Spire Missomi, Spire Alabama and Spire Gulf accrue future asset 
removal costs associated with their property, plant and equipment even if a legal obligation does not exist. Such 
accruals are provided for through depreciation expense and are recorded with corresponding credits to regulatory 
liabilities or regulatory assets. When those utilities retire depreciable utility plant and equipment, they charge the 
associated original costs to accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any related removal costs incurred are 
charged to regulat01y liabilities or regulatory assets. The difference between removal costs recognized in 
depreciation rates and the accretion expense and depreciation expense recognized for financial reporting purposes 
is a timing difference between recovery of these costs in rates and their recognition for financial rep01ting purposes. 
Accordingly, these differences are deferred as regulat01y liabilities or regulat01y assets. In the rate setting process, 
the regulat01y liabilities or regulatory assets are excluded from the rate base upon which those utilities have the 
opportunity to earn their allowed rates of return. The costs associated with asset retirement obligations of Spire 
Missouri, Spire Alabama and Spire Gulf are either currently being recovered in rates or are probable of recovery in 
future rates. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of asset retirement obligations at 
September 30, as reported in the balance sheets. 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Asset retirement obligations, beginning of year $ 296.6 $ 206.4 $ 158.6 $ 75.2 $ 128.4 $ 120.1 

Liabilities incurred during the period 5.5 5.5 0.6 0.3 3.5 5.2 

Liabilities settled during the period (11.2) (4.6) (8.9) (1.1) (1.8) (1.9) 

Accretion 12.7 9.1 6.6 3.6 5.6 5.0 

Revisions in estimated cash flows 16.9 80.2 17.2 80.6 

Business combinations 0.6 

Asset retirement obligations, end of year $ 321.1 $ 296.6 $ 174.1 $ 158.6 $ 135.7 $ 128.4 
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REGULATED OPERATIONS - The Utilities account for their regulated operations in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 980, Regulated 
Operations. This Topic sets forth the application of GAAP for those companies whose rates are established by or are 
subject to approval by an independent third-party regulator. The provisions of this accounting guidance require, 
among other things, that financial statements of a regulated enterprise retlect the actions of regulators, where 
appropriate. These actions may result in the recognition of revenues and expenses in time periods that are different 
than non-regulated enterprises. When this occurs, costs are deferred as assets in the balance sheet (regulato1y 
assets) and recorded as expenses when those amounts are retlected in rates. In addition, regulators can impose 
liabilities upon a regulated company for amounts previously collected from customers and for recove1y of costs that 
are expected to be incurred in the future (regulatmy liabilities). Management believes that the current regulato1y 
environment supports the continued use of these regulatmy accounting principles and that all regulat01y assets and 
regulatmy liabilities are recoverable or refundable through the regulatory process. See additional discussion on 
regulated operations in Note 14, Regulato1y Matters. 

NATURAL GAS AND PROPANE GAS - For Spire Missouri East, inventory of natural gas in storage is priced on 
a last in, first out ("LIFO") basis and inventmy of propane gas in storage is priced on a first in, first out ("FIFO") 
basis. For the rest of the Gas Utility segment, inventmy of natural gas in storage is p1iced on the weighted average 
cost basis. The replacement cost of Spire Missouri's natural gas for current use in eastern Missouri at September 30, 
2018 and September 30, 2017 was less than the LIFO cost by $14.5 and $20.8, respectively. The canying value of 
the Utilities' inventory is not adjusted to the lower of net realizable value or market p1ices because, pursuant to 
Purchased Gas Adjustment ("PGA") clauses or a Gas Supply Adjustment ("GSA") rider, actual gas costs are 
recovered in customer rates. Natural gas and propane gas storage inventory in Spire's other operating segments is 
recorded at the lower of average cost or market. 

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - Spire's acquisitions, including the recent transactions described below, were 
accounted for using business combination accounting. Under this method, the purchase price paid by the acquirer is 
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date based on their fair value. 

Effective September 12, 2016, Spire completed the acquisition of 100% of the common stock of Spire EnergySouth. 
Total cash consideration paid, net of cash acquired, debt assumed and a wortJng capital settlement payment 
received, was $313.9. Spire EnergySouth's results of operations are included in the Spire statements of income from 
the date of acquisition, as shown in the following table. 

Total Operating Revenues 

Net Income (Loss) 

2018 

$ 102.1 

13.8 

2017 
$ 95.5 

9.4 

2016 

$ 3.3 

(0.2) 

The following unaudited proforma financial information presents Spire's combined results of operations as though 
the Spire EnergySouth acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2016. The unaudited proforma 
financial information is not necessarily indicative of either future results of operations or results that would have 
been achieved if the acquisition had occurred as of the earlier date. It includes estimates and assumptions which 
management believes are reasonable. The timing of integration costs was not changed. 

2018 2017 2016 

Total Operating Revenues $ 1,965.0 $ 1,740.7 $ 1,632.4 

Net Income 214,2 161.6 153.9 

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 4.35 $ 3.44 $ 3.48 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 4.33 3.43 3.46 

In December 2017, the Company acquired an 80% voting interest in a natural gas storage facility in Wyoming. The 
transaction was valued at $24,8, consisting of $16.0 in cash and a $10.0 non-interest-bearing note valued at $8.8. 
In October 2018, the Company completed the exercise of its right to call the remaining 20% voting interest in that 
facility and settled the related note for a combined total of $17.0. In May 2018, the Company expanded its 
operations by acquhing 100% of a neighboring natural gas storage facility for $12.2 in cash. Together, these storage 
operations are referred to herein as "Spire Storage." 
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GOODWILL - Goodwill is measured as the excess of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration 
transferred over the amount of acquisition-date identifiable assets acquired net of assumed liabilities. Spire and 
Spire Missouri evaluate goodwill for impairment as of July 1 of each year, or more frequently if events and 
circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. At July 1, 2018, 2017 and 2016, Spire and Spire Missouri 
each applied a quantitative goodwill evaluation model to their reporting units and concluded goodwill was not 
impaired because the fair value exceeded the canying amount. The changes in the canying amount of goodwill by 
reportable segment were as follows: 

Gas Gas 
Utility Marketing Other Total 

Balance as of September 30, 2015 $ 210.2 $ - $ 735.8 $ 946.0 
Acquisition of Spire EnergySouth - - 218.9 218.9 

Balance as of September 30, 2016 210.2 - 954.7 1,164.9 

Adjustments to finalize the acquisition of Spire EnergySouth - - 6.7 6.7 
Balance as of September 30, 2017 $ 210.2 $ - $ 961.4 $ 1,171.6 
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 210.2 $ - $ 961.4 $ 1,171.6 

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS - Long-lived assets classified as held and used are evaluated for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying value of such assets may not be 
recoverable. Whether impairment has occurred is determined by comparing the estimated undiscounted cash flows 
attributable to the assets with the carrying value of the assets. If the canying value exceeds the undiscounted cash 
flows, the Company recognizes an impairment charge equal to the amount of the canying value that exceeds the 
estimated fair value of the assets. In the period in which the Company determines an asset meets held-for-sale 
criteria, an impairment charge is recorded to the extent the book value exceeds its fair value less cost to sell. 

REVENUE RECOGNITION -The Utilities read meters and bill customers on monthly cycles. The Missouri 
Utilities, Spire Gulf and Spire Mississippi record their gas utility revenues from gas sales and transportation services 
on an accrual basis that includes estimated amounts for gas delivered, but not yet billed. The accruals for unbilled 
revenues are reversed in the subsequent accounting period when meters are actually read and customers are billed. 
The amounts of accrued unbilled revenues for Spire Missouri at September 30, 2018 and 2017 were $29.7 and 
$30.1, respectively. Spire Alabama records natural gas distribution revenues in accordance with the tariff 
established by the APSC. Unbilled revenue is accrued in an amount equal to the related gas cost, as profit margin is 
not considered earned until billed. The amount of accrued unbilled revenues for Spire Alabama was $1.9 at both 
September 30, 2018 and 2017. Spire's other subsidiaries, including Spire Marketing, record revenues when earned, 
either when the product is delivered or when services are pe1formed. 

In the course of their business, ce1tain subsidiaries of the Company enter into commitments associated with the 
purchase or sale of natural gas. Ce1tain of its derivative natural gas contracts are designated as normal purchases or 
normal sales and, as such, are excluded from the scope of ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Those contracts 
are accounted for as executo1y contracts and recorded on an accrual basis. Revenues and expenses from such 
contracts are recorded using a gross presentation. Contracts not designated as normal purchases or normal sales are 
recorded as derivatives with changes in fair value recognized in earnings in the periods prior to physical delive1y. 
For additional information on derivative instruments, refer to Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities. Certain of Spire Marketing's wholesale purchase and sale transactions are classified as trading activities 
for financial repmting purposes. Under GAAP, revenues and expenses associated with trading activities are 
presented on a net basis in Gas Marketing operating revenues (or expenses, if negative) in the Consolidated 
Statements ofincome. This net presentation has no effect on operating income or net income. 

INCOME TAXES - Spire and its subsidiaries account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences behveen 
the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and the respective tax basis and for tax 
credit canyfonvards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those tempora1y differences are expected to be realized or settled. The effects 
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in enacted tax rates is recognized in income or loss for non­
regulated operations, and in a regulatmy asset or regulato1y liability for regulated operations. A valuation allowance 
is established when it is more likely than not that some pmtion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
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The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with authoritative guidance, The authoritative 
guidance addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed, or expected to be claimed, on a tax return 
should be recorded in the financial statements. Spire may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position 
only if it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority, based 
on the technical merits of the position. Tax-related interest and penalties, if any, are classified as a liability on the 
balance sheets. For additional information on the accounting for income taxes, refer to Note 11, Income Taxes. 

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH -All highly liquid debt instruments purchased 
with original maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Such instruments are carried 
at cost, which approximates market value. Outstanding checks on the Company's and Utilities' bank accounts in 
excess of funds on deposit create book overdrafts (which are funded at the time checks are presented for payment) 
and are classified as Other in the Current Liabilities section of the balance sheets. Changes in book overdrafts are 
reflected as Operating Activities in the statements of cash flows. In Spire's statements of cash flows, total cash, cash 
equivalents, and restricted cash included $17.0 of restricted cash reported in "Other" current assets on Spire's 
balance sheet as of September 30, 2018 (in addition to amounts shown as "Cash and cash equivalents"). This 
restricted cash was an escrow deposit for the purchase of the remaining 20% interest in a natural gas storage 
business and the settlement of the related note payable, and the transaction was completed on October 25, 2018. 

NATURAL GAS RECEIVABLE - Spire Marketing enters into natural gas transactions with natural gas pipeline 
companies known as park and loan arrangements. Under the terms of the arrangements, Spire Marketing pmchases 
natural gas from a third party and delivers that natural gas to the pipeline company for the right to receive the same 
quantity of natural gas from the pipeline company at the same location in a future period. These arrangements are 
accounted for as non-monetary transactions under GAAP and are recorded at the carrying amount. As such, natural 
gas receivables are reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at cost, which includes related pipeline fees 
associated with the transactions. In the period that the natural gas is returned to Spire Marketing, concurrent with 
the sale of the natural gas to a third party, the related natural gas receivable is expensed in the Consolidated 
Statements oflncome. In conjunction with these transactions, Spire Marketing usually enters into New York 
Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") and Intercontinental Exchange ("ICE") natural gas futures, options, and swap 
contracts or fixed price sales agreements to protect against market changes in future sales prices. 

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - GAAP requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share 
("EPS"). EPS is computed using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation method for computing EPS 
that treats a pmticipating security as having rights to earnings that would otherwise have been available to common 
shareholders. Ce1tain of the Company's stock-based compensation awards pay non-fmfeitable dividends to the 
pa1ticipants during the vesting period and, as such, are deemed pa1ticipating securities. Basic EPS is computed by 
dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dh~ding net income available to common shareholders 
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding that are increased for additional shares that would 
be outstanding if potentially dilutive non-pa1ticipating securities were converted to common shares, pursuant to the 
treasmy stock method. Shares attributable to equity units, 11011-pa1ticipating stock options and time-vested 
restricted stock/units are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share if the effect would be 
antidilutive. Shares attributable to non-participating performance-contingent restricted stock awards are only 
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share to the extent the underlying performance and/ or market 
conditions are satisfied (a) prior to the end of the reporting period or (b) would be satisfied if the end of the 
repmting period were the end of the related contingency period and the result would be dilutive. The Company's 
EPS computations are presented in Note 3, Earnings Per Common Share. 

GROSS RECEIPTS AND SALES TAXES - Gross receipts taxes associated with the Company's natural gas 
utility services are imposed on the Company, Spire Missouri, and Spire Alabama and billed to its customers. The 
revenue and expense amounts are recorded gross in the "Operating Revenues" and "Taxes, other than incmne taxes" 
lines, respectively, in the statements of income. 

The following table presents gross receipts taxes recorded as revenues: 

2018 2017 2016 

Spire $ 98.2 $ 84.6 $ 75.5 

Spire Missouri 68.9 60.7 57.4 

Spire Alabama 25.4 19.5 17.9 
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Sales taxes imposed on applicable Spire Alabama and Spire Missouri sales are billed to customers. These amounts 
are not recorded in the statements of income but are recorded as tax collections payable and included in the "Other" 
line of the Current Liabilities section of the balance sheets. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES - Transactions between affiliates of the Company have been eliminated 
from the consolidated financial statements of Spire. Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama borrowed funds from the 
Company and incurred related interest, as reflected in their separate financial statements, and they participated in 
normal intercompany shared sen~ces transactions. In addition, Spire Missouri's other transactions with affiliates 
included: 

2018 2017 2016 

Purchases of natural gas from Spire Marketing $ 71.5 $ 74.4 $ 46.3 

Sales of natural gas to Spire Marketing 0.3 7.8 1.9 

Transportation seMces received from Spire NGL Inc. 1.0 1.0 1.0 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS -Trade accounts receivable 
are recorded at the amounts due from customers, including unbilled amounts. Estimates of the collectability of 
trade accounts receivable are based on historical trends, age of receivables, economic conditions, credit risk of 
specific customers, and other factors. Accounts receivable are written off against the allowance for doubtful 
accounts when they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 

Allowance at beginning of year $ 18.3 $ 20.S $ 14.2 $ 14.1 $ 16.1 $ 10.0 $ 2.6 $ 3.3 $ 4.2 

Additions charged to expense 14.6 10.6 6.5 11.9 10.1 6.2 2.1 0.2 0.6 

Net deductions (10.5) (12.8) (0.2) (10.0) (12.1) (0.1) (0.8) (0.9) (1.5) 

Allowance at end of year $ 22.4 $ 18.3 $ 20.5 $ 16.0 $ 14.1 $ 16.1 $ 3.9 $ 2.6 $ 3.3 

FINANCE RECEIVABLES - Spire Alabama finances third party contractor sales of merchandise including gas 
furnaces and appliances. At September 30, 2018 and September 30, 2017, the Company's finance receivable totaled 
approximately $13.1 and $12.5, respectively. Financing is available only to qualified customers who meet 
creditworthiness thresholds for customer payment history and external agency credit reports. Spire Alabama relies 
upon ongoing payments as the primary indicator of credit quality during the term of each contract. The allowance 
for credit losses is recognized using an estimate of wiite-off percentages based on historical expe1ience. Delinquent 
accounts are evaluated on a case-by-case basis and, absent evidence of debt repayment, after 90 days are due in full 
and assigned to a third-party collection agency. The remaining finance receivable is written off approximately 12 
months after being assigned to the third-party collection agency. Spire Alabama had finance receivables past due 90 
days or more of $0.4 at September 30, 2018 and September 30, 2017. 

GROUP MEDICAL AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION RESERVES -The Company self-insures its group 
medical and workers' compensation costs and carries stop-loss coverage in relation to medical claims and workers' 
compensation claims. Reserves for amounts incurred but not reported are established based on historical cost levels 
and lags between occurrences and reporting. 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - Ce1tain assets and liabilities are recognized or disclosed at fair value, which 
is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market pa1ticipants at the measurement date (exit price). GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that 
pri01itizes the inputs used to measure fair value. 

The levels of the hierarchy are described below: 
Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Pdcing inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, which are either directly or 
indirectly observable for the asset or liability as of the reporting date. These inputs are derived principally 
from, or corroborated by, observable market data. 
Level 3 - Pricing that is based upon inputs that are generally unobservable that are based on the best 
information available and reflect management's assumptions about how market participants would price 
the asset or liability. 
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Assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurements may require judgment and may 
affect the valuation of the asset or liability and its placement within the fair value hierarchy. Additional information 
about fair value measurements is provided in Note 7, Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Note 8, Fair Value 
Measurements, and Note 12, Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits. 

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION -The Company accounts for share-based compensation arrangements in 
accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. The Company measures stock-based 
compensation awards at fair value at the date of grant and recognizes the compensation cost of the awards over the 
requisite service period. Effective with the adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-09 at the beginning 
of fiscal 2017, forfeitures are recognized in the period they occur. Prior to fiscal 2017, fotfeitures were estimated at 
the time of grant and revised, when necessary, in subsequent periods when the actual forfeitures differed from those 
estimates. Refer to Note 2, Stock-Based Compensation, for f111ther discussion of the accounting for the Company's 
stock-based compensation plans. 

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - In November 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards 
Update ("ASU") 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted Cash. This guidance requires the statement of cash 
flows to present changes in the total of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash. Prior to the adoption of this ASU, 
the relevant accounting guidance did not require the statement of cash flows to include changes in restricted cash. 
The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama adopted the standard retrospectively in 2018 with no impact to 
2017 or 2016. 

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income. This guidance permits companies to make an election to reclassify stranded income tax 
effects from the recently enacted Tax Cuts and Jobs Act included in accumulated other comprehensive income or 
loss ("AOCI") to retained earnings. ASU 2018-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, 

including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company, Spire Missouri 
and Spire Alabama elected to early adopt this guidance in the qua1ter ended September 30, 2018. The 
reclassifications from the adoption of this standard are shown on the statements of shareholders' equity of the 
Company and Spire Missouri. There was no effect for Spire Alabama. 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenuefmm Contracts with Customers. Under the new 
standard, an entity will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
In doing so, companies may need to use more judgment and make more estimates than under previous guidance. 
ASU No. 2014-09 also requires disclosures that will enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, 
amount, timing and unce1tainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Existing 
alternative revenue program guidance, though excluded by the F ASB in updating specific guidance associated with 
revenue from contracts with customers, was relocated without substantial modification to accounting guidance for 
rate-regulated entities. It will require separate presentation of such revenues in the statement of income. Entities 
have the option of using either a full retrospective or modified retrospective approach in adopting this guidance. In 
August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, which made the guidance in ASU No. 2014-09 effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those years. In 2016 and 2017, the FASB 
issued relatedASU Nos. 2016-08, 2016-10, 2016-11, 2016-12, 2016-20, and 2017-14, which fu1ther modified the 
standards for accounting for revenue. The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama have completed their 
evaluation of their sources of revenue and related contracts and plan to adopt the new guidance in the first quaiter 
of fiscal 2019 using the modified retrospective approach with no material effect on their financial position, results of 
operations, or cash flows. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The new standard requires lessees to recognize a 
right-of-use asset and lease liability for almost all lease contracts based on the present value oflease payments. 
There is an exemption for short-term leases. The ASU provides new guidelines for identifying and classifying a 
lease, and classification affects the pattern and income statement line item for the related expense. ASU Nos. 
2018-01, 2018-10, and 2018-11, issued in January and July of 2018, amended several aspects of the new lease 
guidance, including pro,~ding an additional practical expedient, an additional transition method, and clarification 
of the related transition and accounting for land easements. The updates may be applied using a modified 
retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of (1) the earliest 
comparative period presented in the financial statements or (2) the period of adoption. The ASUs are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company, 
Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are currently assessing the impacts of adopting these standards in the first 
quaiter of fiscal 2020. 
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit 
Losses on Financial Instruments. The standard introduces new guidance for the accounting for credit losses on 
instruments within its scope, including trade receivables. It is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 

2019, including intedm periods within those fiscal years, and may be adopted a year earlier, The new guidance will 
be initially applied through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the period of 
adoption. The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are currently assessing the timing and impacts of 
adopting this standard, which must be adopted by the first qua1ter of fiscal 2021. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, Compensation - Retirement Benefits: Improving the 
Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost. The amended guidance 
requires that the service cost component of pension and postretirement benefit costs be presented within the same 
line item in the income statement as other compensation costs (except for the amount being capitalized), while 
other components are to be presented outside the subtotal of operating income and are no longer eligible for 
capitalization. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods 
within those annual periods. The amended guidance will be applied retrospectively for income statement 
presentation and prospectively for capitalization. The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama will adopt this 
standard in the first qua1ter of fiscal 2019 using a practical expedient permitting the use of the amounts disclosed in 
its pension and other postretirement benefit plan note for the prior comparative periods as the estimation basis for 
applying the retrospective presentation requirements. They will continue to capitalize the non-service cost 
components as allowed for regulatory reporting, but those capitalized amonnts will be rep01ted as regulatmy assets 
rather than plant. 

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Impmvements to 
Accounting for Hedging Activities. The amendments in this ASU more closely align the resnlts of hedge accounting 
with risk management activities through changes to both the designation and measurement guidance for qualifying 
hedging relationships and the presentation of hedge results in the financial statements. They are effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years, and early application is 
permitted. The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are cnrrently assessing the effects of this new guidance, 
as well as the timing of adoption. 

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software: 
Customer's Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service 
Contract. Previous GAAP did not specifically address the accounting for implementation costs of a hosting 
arrangement that is a service contract. The amendments in this update cla1ify that accounting and align the 
accounting for implementation costs for hosting arrangements, regardless of whether they convey a license to the 
hosted software. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim 
pedods ,vithin those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in any interim period. The 
amendments in this ASU may be applied either retrospectively or prospectively to all implementation costs incurred 
after the date of adoption. The Company, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama are still assessing the effects of this new 
guidance but currently expect early adoption. 

2. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

The Spire 2015 Equity Incentive Plan ("EIP") was approved by shareholders of Spire on Janua1y 29, 2015 and 
amended on November 9, 2017. The purpose of the EIP is to encourage directors, officers, and key employees of the 
Company and its subsidiades to contribute to the Company's success and align their interests with that of 
shareholders. To accomplish this purpose, the Compensation Committee ("Committee") of the Board of Directors 
may grant awards under the EIP that may be earned by achieving pe1formance objectives and/or other cdteria as 
determined by the Committee. Under the terms of the EIP, officers and employees of the Company and its 
subsidiaries, as determined by the Committee, are eligible to be selected for awards. The EIP provides for restdcted 
stock, restricted stock units, qualified and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, and pe1formance 
shares payable in stock, cash, or a combination of both. The EIP generally provides a minimum vesting period of at 
least three years for each type of award, with pro rata vesting permitted dming the minimum three-year vesting 
period. The maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under the EIP is 1,000,000. 

The Company issues new shares to satisfy employee restricted stock awards and stock option exercises. 
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Restricted Stock Awards 

Duriug fiscal 2018, the Company granted 87,960 performance-contingent restricted share units to executive officers 
and key employees at a weighted average grant date fair value of $79.88 per share. This number represents the 
target shares that can be earned pursuant to the terms of the awards. The share units have a performance period 
ending September 30, 2021. While the pa1ticipants have no interim voting tights on these share units, dividends 
accrue during the pedormance period and are paid to the participants upon vestiug, bnt are subject to fo1feiture if 
the underlying share units do not vest. 

The number of share units that ,viii ultimately vest is dependent upon the attainment of ce1tain levels of earnings 
and other strategic goals, as well as the Company's level of total shareholder return ("TSR") during the pe1formance 
period relative to a comparator group of companies. This TSR provision is considered a market condition under 
GAAP and is discussed further below. The maximum amount of shares that can be earned pursuant to the terms of 
the awards is 200% of the target units granted. 

The weighted average grant date fair value of pe1formance-contingent restricted share units granted during fiscal 
years 2017 and 2016 was $58-45 and $62.38 per share, respectively. 

Fiscal 2018 activity of restricted stock units subject to performance and/or market conditions is presented below: 

Weighted 
Ave1•age 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

Units Per Unit 

Nonvested at September 30, 2017 282,015 $ 56.32 

Granted 87,960 $ 79.88 

Vested (81,933) $ 47.80 

Forfeited (21,960) $ 56.73 

Nonvested at September 30, 2018 266,082 $ 66.69 

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the total number of shares that could be issued if all outstanding award 
grants attain maximum pedormance payout is 532,164. 

During fiscal 2018, the Company granted 37,980 shares of time-vested restricted stock to executive officers and key 
employees at a weighted average grant date fair value of $76.60 per share. Unless fmfeited based on terms of the 
agreements, these shares will vest in fiscal 2021. In the interim, pa1ticipants receive full voting rights and dividends, 
which are not subject to fodeiture. The weighted average grant date fair value of time-vested restricted stock and 
restdcted stock units awarded to employees dudng fiscal years 2017 and 2016 was $63.05 and $59-40 per share, 
respectively. 

During fiscal 2018, the Company granted 9,800 shares of time-vested restricted stock to non-employee directors at 
a weighted average grant date fair value of $63.20 per share. These shares vested in fiscal 2018, six months after the 
grant date. The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awarded to non-employee directors during 
fiscal years 2017 and 2016 was $63-45 and $63.93 per share, respectively. 

Time-vested restricted stock and stock unit activity for fiscal 2018 is presented below: 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Shares/ Fair Value 

Units Per Share 

Nonvested at September 30, 2017 110,940 $ 55.85 

Granted 47,780 $ 73.85 

Vested (47,928) $ 53.48 

Forfeited (7,192) $ 65.25 

Nonvested at September 30, 2018 103,600 $ 64.60 
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For restricted stock and stock units (pe1formance-contingent and time-vested) that vested during fiscal years 2018, 
2017, and 2016, the Company withheld 34,922 shares, 35,514 shares and 30,712 shares, respectively, at weighted 
average prices of $81.65, $63.83 and $57.29 per share, respectively, pursuant to elections by employees to satisfy 
tax withholding obligations. The total fair value of restricted stock (pe1formance-contingent and time-ve-sted) that 
vested during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $10.5, $8.9, and $6.3, respectively, and the related tax benefit 
was $4.0, $3.3, and $2.4, respectively. None of the tax benefits have been realized. 

Stock Option Awards 

No stock options were granted during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016. There was no stock option activity in fiscal 
2018 or fiscal 2017, as all outstanding stock options either vested or fo1feited in fiscal 2016. During fiscal 2016, cash 
received from the exercise of stock options was $0.7 and the related intrinsic value was $0.7. Related tax benefits 
were not material in any of those years. 

Equity Compensation Costs 

Compensation cost for performance-contingent restricted stock and stock unit awards is based upon the probable 
outcome of the pe1formance conditions. For shares or units that do not vest or that are not expected to vest due to 
the outcome of the pe1formance conditions (excluding market conditions), no compensation cost is recognized and 
any previously recognized compensation cost is reversed. 

The fair value of awards of performance-contingent and time-vested restricted stock and restricted stock units, not 
subject to the TSR provision, are estimated using the closing price of the Company's stock on the grant date. For 
those awards that do not pay dividends during the vesting period, the estimate of fair value is reduced by the 
present value of the dividends expected to be paid on the Company's common stock during the performance period, 
discounted using an appropriate United States ("U.S.") Treasmyyield. For shares subject to the TSR provision, the 
estimated impact of this market condition is reflected in the grant date fair value per share of the awards. 
Accordingly, compensation cost is not reversed to reflect any actual reductions in the awards that may result from 
the TSR provision. However, if the Company's TSR during the performance period ranks below the level specified in 
the award agreements, relative to a comparator group of companies, and the Committee elects not to reduce the 
award (or reduce by a lesser amount), this election would be accounted for as a modification of the original award 
and additional compensation cost would be recognized at that time. The grant date fair value of the awards subject 
to the TSR provision awarded during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 was valued by a Monte Carlo simulation 
model that assessed the probabilities of various TSR outcomes. The significant assumptions used in the Monte 
Carlo simulations are as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 

Risk-free interest rate 1.76% 1.39% 1.14% 
Expected dividend yield of stock 
Expected volatility of stock 16.0% 16.3% 15.0% 
Vesting period 2.9 years 2.8 years 2.8 years 

The risk-free interest rate was based on the yield on U.S. Treasury securities matching the vesting period. A zero 
percent dividend yield was used, which is mathematically equivalent to the assumption that dividends are 
reinvested as they are paid. The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company's stock. 
Volatility assumptions were also made for each of the companies included in the comparator group. The vesting 
period is equal to the performauce period set fmth iu the terms of the award. 

The amounts of compensation cost recognized for share-based compensation arrangements are presented below: 

2018 2017 2016 

Total compensation cost $ 6.9 $ 7.4 $ 6.7 
Compens.ation cost capitalized (1.3) (3.3) (2.2) 

Prior period disa11owed stock compensation capitalization $ 6.9 $ - $ 
Compensation cost recognized in net income 12.5 4.1 

-
4.5 

Income tax benefit recognized in net income (4.0) (1.5) (1.7) 

Compensation cost recognized in net income, net of income tax $ 8.5 $ 2.6 $ 2.8 

As of September 30, 2018, there was $9.4 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share­
based compensation arrangements, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years. 
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3. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 

2018 2017 2016 

Basic Earnings Per Share: 

Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 
Less: Income allocated to pa1ticipating securities 0.5 0.4 0.5 

Net Income Available to Common Shareholders $ 213.7 $ 161.2 $ 143.7 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding (in millions) 49.1 46.9 44.1 
Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $ 4.35 $ 3.44 $ 3.26 

Diluted Earnings per Share: 
Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 

Less: Income allocated to participating securities 0.5 0.4 0.5 
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders $ 213.7 $ 161.2 $ 143.7 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding (in millions) 49.1 46.9 44.1 
Dilutive Effect of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (in millions)* 0.2 0.1 0.2 
Weighted Average Diluted Shares (in millions) 49.3 47.0 44.3 
Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $ 4.33 $ 3.43 $ 3.24 

* Calculation excludes certain outstanding shares (shown in millions by aeriod at the right? attributable to 
stock units subject to performance or market conditions and restricte stock, which cou d have a dilutive 
effect in the future 0.4 0.5 0.3 

Spire's 2.875 million equity units issued in June 2014 were anti-dilutive for the periods they were outstanding. 
Accordingly, they were also excluded from the calculation of weighted average diluted shares for those periods. On 
April 3, 2017, Spire settled the purchase contracts underlying those equity units by issuing approximately 2.5 
million shares of its common stock. 

4. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Spire 

On May 17, 2016, Spire completed a public offering of 2,185,000 shares of its common stock, generating $133.2 of 
proceeds net of issuance costs. 

On April 3, 2017, Spire settled purchase contracts underlying equity units issued in 2014 by issuing 2,504,684 
shares of its common stock, generating net cash proceeds of approximately $142.0. 

Spire has a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") for the issuance of equity and debt securities, which expires September 23, 2019. Under that registration 
statement, on May 10, 2018, Spire issued and sold 2,300,000 shares of its common stock at a public offering price 
of $68.75 per share. 

Spire filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC on June 15, 2017 for the issuance and sale of up to 
250,000 shares of its common stock under its Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan. There were 
221,107 and 216,678 shares at September 30, 2018 and November 12, 2018, respectively, remaining available for 
issuance under this Form S-3. 

At September 30, 2018 and 2017, Spire had authorized 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, but none were issued 
and outstanding. 
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Spire Missouri 

Substantially all of Spire Missouri's plant is subject to the liens of its first mortgage bonds. The mo1tgage contains 
several restrictions on Spire Missouri's ability to pay cash dividends on its common stock or to make loans to its 
parent company. These mortgage restriciions are applicable reganlless uf whether the stock is publicly held or held 
solely by Spire Missouri's parent company. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, no cash dividend may be 
declared or paid if, after the dividend, the aggregate net amount spent for all dividends after September 30, 1953 
would exceed a maximum amount determined by a formula set out in the mortgage. Under that formula, the 
maximum amount is the sum of $8.o plus earnings applicable to common stock (adjusted for stock repurchases and 
issuances) for the period from September 30, 1953 to the last day of the quarter before the declaration or payment 
date for the dividends. AB of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the amount under the mortgage's formula that was 
available to pay dividends was $1,097.6 and $1,010.8, respectively. Thus, all of Spire Missouri's retained earnings 
were free from such dividend restrictions as of those dates. 

Spire Missouri is authorized by the MoPSC to issue registered securities (first mo1tgage bonds, unsecured debt and 
preferred stock), issue common stock, and issue private placement debt in an aggregate amount of up to $500.0 for 
financings placed any time before September 30, 2021. 

At September 30, 2018 and 2017, Spire Missouri had authorized 1,480,000 shares of preferred stock, but none were 
issued and outstanding. 

Spire Alabama 

At September 30, 2018 and 2017, Spire Alabama had authorized 120,000 shares of preferred stock, but none were 
issued and outstanding. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

The components of AOCI, net of income taxes, recognized in the balance sheets at September 30 were as follows: 

Net Defined Benefit Net Unrealized 
Unrealized Pension and Losses on 

Gains (Losses) Other Available-for-
on Cash Flow Postretirement Sale Debt 

Hedges Benefit Plans Securities Total 

Spire 

Balance at September 30, 2016 $ (2.3) $ (1.8) $ (0.1) $ (4.2) 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 7.2 0.3 (0.1) 7.4 

Balance at September 30, 2017 4.9 (1.5) (0.2) 3.2 

Other comprehensive income 2.0 0.3 0.2 2.5 

Reclassification of certain income tax effects 1.0 (0.3) - 0.7 

Balance at September 30, 2018 $ 7.9 $ (1.5) $ - $ 6.4 

Spb-e Missouri 
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 0.1 $ (1.8) $ (0.1) $ (1.8) 

Other comprehensive income (loss) - 0.2 (0.1) 0.1 

Balance at September 30, 2017 0.1 (1.6) (0.2) (1.7) 

Other comprehensive (loss) income (0.1) 0.3 0.2 0.4 

Reclassification of certain income tax effects - (0.3) - (0.3) 

Balance at September 30, 2018 $ - $ (1.6) $ - $ (1.6) 

Income tax expense (benefit) recorded for items of other comprehensive income (loss) reported in the statements of 
comprehensive income is calculated by applying statut01y federal, state, and local income tax rates applicable to 
ordinaiy income. The tax rates applied to individual items of other comprehensive income (loss) are similar within 
each reporting period. For the periods presented, Spire Alabama had no AOCI balances. 
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5, LONG-TERM DEBT 

The composition oflong-term debt for Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama is shown in each registrant's 
statements of capitalization. Maturities of long-term debt for Spire on a consolidated basis, Spire Missouri and Spire 
Alabama for the five fiscal years after September 30, 2018 are as follows: 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Spire $ 175.5 $ 43._2 $ 57.0 $ 52.0 $ 332.3 

Spire Missouri 50.0 - - - 305.0 

Spire Alabama - 40.0 - 50.0 

Spire's, Spire Missouri's and Spire Alabama's long-term debt agreements contain customa1y covenants and default 
provisions. As of September 30, 2018, there were no events of default under these covenants. 

Spire 

At September 30, 2018, including the current portion bnt excluding unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs, 
Spire had long-term debt totaling $2,092.0, of which $880.0 was issued by Spire Missouri, $325.0 was issued by 
Spire Alabama and $72.0 was issued by other subsidiaries. All long-term debt bears fixed rates and is subject to 
changes in fair value as market interest rates change. However, increases and decreases in fair value would impact 
earnings and cash flows only if the Company were to reacquire any of these issues in the open market prior to 
maturity. Under GMP applicable to the Utilities' regulated operations, losses or gains on early redemption oflong­
term debt would typically be deferred as regulat01y assets or regulato1y liabilities and amortized over a future 
period. 

Interest expense shown on Spire's consolidated statement of income is net of capitalized interest totaling $2.6, $0.8 
and $0.2 for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

As indicated in Note 4, Shareholders' Equity, Spire has a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 on file with the 
SEC for the issuance of equity and debt securities. 

Spire _1'-yfissoui'i 

At September 30, 2018, including the current portion but excluding unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs, 
Spire Missouri had long-term debt totaling $880.0. While these long-term debt issues are fixed-rate, they are 
subject to changes in fair value as market interest rates change. 

Interest expense shown on Spire Missouri's statement of income is net of capitalized interest totaling $0.9, $0.5 and 
$0.2 for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Spire Missouri is authorized by the MoPSC to issue registered securities (first mortgage bonds, unsecured debt and 
preferred stock), ·issue common stock and issue private placement debt in an aggregate amount of up to $500.0 for 
financings placed any time before September 30, 2021. 

As indicated in Note 4, Shareholders' Equity, Spire Missouri has a shelf registration on Form S-3 on file with the 
SEC for issuance of first m01tgage bonds, unsecured debt and preferred stock, which expires on September 22, 
2019, 

Substantially all of Spire Missomi's plant is subject to the liens of its first mortgage bonds. The mortgage contains 
several restrictions on Spire Missouri's ability to pay cash dividends on its common stock, which are described in 
Note 4, Shareholders' Equity. 

Spire Alabama 

At September 30, 2018, excluding unamortized debt issuance costs, Spire Alabama had fixed-rate long-term debt 
totaling $325.0. While these long-term debt issues are fixed-rate, they are subject to changes in fair value as market 
interest rates change. 

Because Spire Alabama has no standing authority to issue long-term debt, it must petition the APSC for each 
planned issuance. 
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6. NOTES PAYABLE AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS 

Spire, Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama have a syndicated revoh1ng credit facility pursuant to a loan agreement 
with 11 banks. expiring October 31, 2023, The loan agreement has an aggregate credit commitment of $975.0, 
including sublimits of $300.0 for Spire, $475.0 for Spire Missouri and $200,0 for Spire Alabama. These snblimits 
may be reallocated from time to time among the three borrowers within the $975.0 aggregate commitment, with 
commitment fees applied for each borrower relative to its credit rating. Spire may nse its line to prm1de for the 
funding needs of various subsidiaries. The agreement also contains financial covenants limiting each borrower's 
consolidated total debt, including short-term debt, to no more than 70% ofits total capitalization. As defined in the 
line of credit, on September 30, 2018, total debt was 54% of total capitalization for the consolidated Company, 49% 
for Spire Missouri and 37% for Spire Alabama, 

Spire has a commercial paper program ("Program") pursuant to which it may issue short-term, unsecured 
commercial paper notes ("Notes"). Amounts available under the Program may be borrowed, repaid and re­
borrowed from time to time, with the aggregate face or principal amount of the Notes outstanding under the 
Program at anytime not to exceed $975.0. The Notes may have maturities ofup to 365 days from date of issue. 

Information about Spire's consolidated sh01t-te1m borrowings is presented in the following table. 

Commercial Revolvinli Credit Total 
Paper Faci ity Short-term 

Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings 
Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Weighted average borrowings outstanding $408.5 $0.1 $408.6 

Weighted average interest rate 2.0% 2.8% 2.0% 

Range of borrowings outstanding $146.0 -$632.9 $0.0 · $25.0 $146.0 · $632.9 

As of September 30, 2018 

Borrowings outstanding $553.6 $- $553.6 

Weighted average interest rate 2.4% -% 2.4% 

As of September 30, 2017 

Borrowings outstanding $477.3 $- $477.3 

Weighted average interest rate 1.5% -% 1.5% 

From the total sh01t-term borrowings as of September 30, 2018, Spire used $540.5 to provide funding to the 
Utilities and Spire Storage. Information about Spire Missouri's and Spire Alabama's borrowings from Spire is 
presented in the following table. 

Year Ended September 30, 2018 

Weighted average borrowings outstanding 

Weighted average interest rate 

Range of borrowings outstanding 

As of September 30, 2018 

Borrowings outstanding 

Weighted average interest rate 

As of September 30, 2017 

Borrowings outstanding 

Weighted average interest rate 
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Spire Missouri 

$210.5 

2.1% 

$101.5 -$345.3 

$345.3 

2.3% 

$203.0 

1.5% 

· Spire Alabama 

$103.9 

2.0% 

$33.6 · $188.6 

$142.5 

2.3% 

$169.9 

1.5% 



7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The canying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis were as follows: 

Classification of Estimated Fair Value 

Quoted Prices in Sife1ificant 
Carrying Fair Active Markets Observab e Inputs 
Amount Value (Level 1) (Level 2) 

Spire 
As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4.4 $ 4.4 $ 4.4 $ 

Short-term debt 553.6 553.6 - 553.6 

Long-term debt, including current portion 2,075.6 2,074.0 - 2,074.0 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7.4 $ 7.4 $ 7.4 $ 

Short-term debt 477.3 477.3 - 477.3 

Long-term debt, inc1uding current portion 2,095.0 2,210.3 - 2,210.3 

Spire Missouri 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2.0 $ 2.0 $ 2.0 $ 

Short-term debt 345.3 345.3 - 345.3 

Long-term debt, including current portion 874.4 906.6 - 906.6 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2.5 $ 2.5 $ 2.5 $ 

Sh01t-term debt 203.0 203.0 - 203.0 

Long-term debt, including current portion 973.9 1,056.9 - 1,056.9 

Spire Alabama 
As of September 30, 2018 

Sh01t-term debt $ 142.5 $ 142.5 $ - $ 142.5 

Long-term debt 322.6 321.7 - 321.7 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 

Sho1t-term debt 169.9 169.9 - 169.9 

Long-term debt 247.8 269.4 - 269.4 
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Spire 

The informaiion presented below categotizes the assets and iiabiiities in the balance sheets that are accounted for at 
fair value on a recurting basis in periods subsequent to initial recognition. 

The mutual funds included in Level 1 are valued based on exchange-quoted market prices of individual securities. 
The mutual funds included in Level 2 are valued based on the closing net asset value per unit. 

Derivative instruments included in Level 1 are valued using quoted market prices on the NYMEX. Derivative 
instruments classified as Level 2 include physical commodity derivatives that are valued using Over-the-Counter 
Bulletin Board, broker or dealer quotation sen-ices whose prices are derived principally from, or are corroborated 
by, observable market inputs. Also included in Level 2 are certain derivative instruments that have values that are 
similar to, and correlate with, quoted prices for exchange-traded instruments in active markets. Derivative 
instruments included in Level 3 are valued using generally unobservable inputs that are based upon the best 
information available and reflect management's assumptions about how market pa1iicipants would price the asset 
or liability. There were no material Level 3 balances as of September 30, 2018 or 2017. The Company's and the 
Utilities' policy is to recognize transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy, if any, as of the beginning of 
the interim repo1iing period in which circumstances change or events occur to cause the transfer. 

The mutual funds are included in "Other investments" on the Company's balance sheets and in "Other Prope1iy and 
Investments" on Spire Missouri's balance sheets. Derivative assets and liabilities, including receivables and payables 
associated with cash margin requirements, are presented net on the balance sheets when a legally enforceable 
netting agreement exist between the Company or Spire Missouri and the counterpa1iy to the derivative contract. For 
additional information on derivative instruments, see Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Acthities. 
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Quoted Effects of 
Prices in Significant Significant Netting and 

Active Observable Unobservable Cash Marren 
Markets Inputs Inputs Receivab es 
(Level 1) (Level2) (Level!'!) /Payables Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

ASSETS 

Gas UtilitiJ: 

U.S. stock/bond nmh1al funds $ 20.3 $ - $ - $ - $ 20.3 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts 2.7 - - (2.7) 

Gas Marketing: 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts 0.2 4.0 - (4.2) 

Natural gas commodity contracts - 17.5 - (1.5) 16.0 

Other: 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds 8.9 - - - 8.9 

Interest rate swaps - 3.0 - - 3.0 

Total $ 32.1 $ 24.5 $ - $ (8.4) $ 48.2 

LIABILITIES 

Gas UtilitiJ: 

NYMEX/ICE nahiral gas contracts $ 1.9 $ - $ - $ (1.9) $ 

Gas Marketing: 

NYMEX/ICE natnral gas contracts 0.9 10.5 - (11.4) 

Natural gas commodity contracts - 7.5 0.2 (1.5) 6.2 

Total $ 2.8 $ 18.0 $ 0.2 $ (14.8) $ 6.2 

As of September 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Gas UtilitiJ: 

U.S. stock/bond mutnal funds $ 18.3 $ 4.1 $ - $ - $ 22.4 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts 3.4 - - (3.4) 

NYMEX gasoline and heating oil contracts 0.1 - - - 0.1 

Gas Marketing: 

NYMEX/ICE nahiral gas contracts 1.3 1.3 - (2.1) 0.5 

Natural gas commodity contracts - 6.8 0.1 (1.2) 5.7 

Total $ 23.1 $ 12.2 $ 0.1 $ (6.7) $ 28.7 

LIABILITIES 

Gas Utility: 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts $ 1.9 $ - $ - $ (1.9) $ 

Gas Marketing: 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts 1.8 0.3 - (2.1) 

Natural gas commodity contracts - 8.4 - (1.2) 7.2 

Other: 

Interest rate swaps - 0.9 - - 0.9 

Total $ 3.7 $ 9.6 $ - $ (5.2) $ 8.1 
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Spire Missouri 

Quoted Effects of 
Prices in Significant Significant Netting and 

Active Observable Unoh1:eT'1H1blP. CashMartn 
Markets Inputs Inputs Receivab es 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) /Payables Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

ASSETS 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds $ 20.3 $ - $ - $ - $ 20.3 

NYMEX/ICE nah1ral gas contracts 2.7 - - (2.7) 

Total $ 23.0 $ - $ - $ (2.7) $ 20.3 

LIABILITIES 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts $ 1.9 $ - $ - $ (1.9) $ 

As of September 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds $ 18.3 $ 4.1 $ - $ - $ 22.4 

NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts 3.4 - - (3.4) 

NYMEX gasoline and heating oil contracts 0.1 - - - 0.1 

Total $ 21.8 $ 4.1 $ - $ (3.4) $ 22.5 

LIABILITIES 
NYMEX/ICE natural gas contracts $ 1.9 $ - $ - $ (1.9) $ 

Spire Alabama 

Spire Alabama has a gasoline derivative program to stabilize the cost of fuel used in operations. As of September 30, 
2017, the fair value of related gasoline contracts was not significant, and there were no gasoline derivatives 
outstanding as of September 30, 2018. 
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9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

Spire 

Spire ivfissouri has a risk nianagement policy to utilize various derivatives, including futures contracts, exchange­
traded options and swaps for the explicit purpose of managing price risk associated with purchasing and delivering 
natural gas on a regular basis to customers in accordance with its tariffs. The objective of this policy is to limit Spire 
Missouri's exposure to natural gas price volatility and to manage, hedge and mitigate substantial price risk. Further 
discussion of this policy can be found in the Spire Missouri section. 

From time to time Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama purchase NYMEX futures and options contracts to help 
stabilize operating costs associated with forecasted purchases of gasoline and diesel fuels used to power vehicles and 
equipment. Further information on these derivatives can be found in the Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama 
sections, respectively. 

In the course of its business, Spire's gas marketing subsidiaiy, Spire Marketing (including a wholly owned 
subsidia1y), enters into commitments associated with the purchase or sale of natural gas. Ce1tain of Spire 
Marketing's derivative natural gas contracts are designated as normal purchases or normal sales and, as such, are 
excluded from the scope of ASC Topic 815 and are accounted for as executmy contracts on an accrual basis. Any of 
Spire Marketing's derivative natural gas contracts that are not designated as normal purchases or normal sales are 
accounted for at fair value. At September 30, 2018, the fair values of 277. 7 million MMBtu of non-exchange-traded 
natural gas commodity contracts were reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Of these contracts, 196.7 million 
MMBtu will settle during fiscal 2019, and 43.1 million MMBtu, 30.5 million MMBtu, 7.3 million MMBtu, and 0.1 
million MMBtu will settle during fiscal years 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023, respectively. These contracts have not 
been designated as hedges; therefore, changes in the fair value of these contracts are reported in earnings each 
period. 

Furthermore, Spire Marketing manages the price risk associated with its f1Xed-priced commitments by either closely 
matching the offsetting physical purchase or sale of natural gas at f1Xed prices or through the use of NYMEX or ICE 
futures, swap, and option contracts to lock in margins. 

At September 30, 2018, Spire Marketing's unmatched f1Xed-price positions were not material to Spire's financial 
position or results of operations. Spire Marketing's NYMEX and ICE natural gas futures, swap and option contracts 
used to lock in margins may be designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions for financial repmting 
purposes. 

During fiscal 2016, Spire entered into interest rate swap agreements, with a notional amount of $85.0, to effectively 
lock in interest rates on a pmtion of the long-term debt it anticipated issuing to finance its acquisition of Spire 
EnergySouth. These derivative instruments were designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions. 
Termination of the interest rate swap agreements later in fiscal 2016 resulted in a $0.4 loss recorded in 
accumulated other comprehensive loss to be amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt 
issuances. 

Also during fiscal 2016, Spire entered into interest rate swap transactions with a notional amount of $225.0 to 
protect itself against adverse movement in interest rates in anticipation of the issuance of long-term debt in fiscal 
2017. These hedge positions were settled during fiscal 2017, resulting in a gain of $14.1 which will be amortized to 
reduce interest expense over the hedged periods. Also during fiscal 2017, Spire entered into a ten-year interest rate 
swap with a fixed interest rate of 2.658% and a notional amount of $60.0 to protect itself against adverse 
movements in interest rates on future interest rate payments. The Company recorded a $2.5 mark-to-market gain 
on this swap as part of other comprehensive income for the year ended September 30, 2018. In August 2018, Spire 
entered into a three-year interest rate swap with a fixed interest rate of 2.7675% and a notional amount of $100.0 to 
protect itself against adverse movements in interest rates on future variable interest rate payments. The Company 
recorded a $0.5 mark-to-market gain on this swap as part of other comprehensive income for the year ended 
September 30, 2018. 
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The Company's and Spire Missouri's exchange-traded/cleared derivative instruments consist primarily ofNYMEX 
and ICE positions. The NYMEX is the prima,y national commodities exchange on which natural gas derivatives are 
traded. Open NYMEX and ICE natural gas futures and swap positions at September 30, 2018 were as follows: 

NYMEX/ICE open short futures positions/s\vap positions 
Fiscal 2019 

Fiscal 2020 

Fiscal 2021 

NYMEX/ICE open long futures/swap positions 
Fiscal 2019 

Fiscal 2020 

Fiscal 2021 

Fiscal 2022 

Fiscal 2023 

ICE open short daily swap positions 

Fiscal 2019 

ICE open long daily swap positions 

Fiscal 2019 

ICE open short basis swap positions 

Fiscal 2019 

Fiscal 2020 

ICE open long basis swap positions 

Fiscal 2019 

Fiscal 2020 

Fiscal 2022 

Fiscal 2023 

Gas Utility 

MMBtu 
(millions) 

24.12 

2.68 

Avg. Price 
Per 

MMBh1 

$ 

2.80 

2.69 

Gas Ma1•keting 

Avg. Price 
MMBtu Per 

(millions) MMBht 

7.87 $ 3.04 

2.00 2.93 

0.14 2.94 

9.27 2.89 

2.11 2.85 

0.55 2.87 

0.25 2.98 

0.01 2.86 

2.54 2.95 

0.57 2.92 

52.48 0.23 

3.80 0.25 

49.99 0.64 

3.18 0.68 

0.92 0.52 

0.16 0.52 

At September 30, 2018, Spire Missouri also had 38.4 million MMBtu of other price mitigation in place through the 
use ofNYMEX natural gas option-based strategies while Spire Marketing had none. 

Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions are recognized on the balance 
sheets of the Company at fair value, and the change in fair value of the effective po11ion of these hedge instruments 
is recorded, net of income tax, in other comprehensive income or loss ("OCI"). Accumulated other comprehensive 
income or loss ("AOC!") is a component of Total Common Stock Equity. Amounts are reclassified from AOCI into 
earnings when the hedged items affect net income, using the same revenue or expense category that the hedged 
item impacts. Based on market prices at September 30, 2018, it is expected that an immaterial amount of unrealized 
gains will be reclassified into the Consolidated Statements of Income of the Company during the next twelve 
months. Cash flows from hedging transactions are classified in the same category as the cash flows from the items 
that are being hedged in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 
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Effect of Derivative Instru1nents on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Inco1ne 

Location of Gain (Loss) 

Recorded in Income 2018 2017 2016 

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships 

Effective portion of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivatives: 

Gas Marketing natural gas contracts $ - $ - $ (0.6) 

Gas Utility gasoline and heating oil contracts - 0.1 

Interest rate swaps 3.9 11.4 (3.4) 

Total $ 3.9 $ 11.5 $ (4.0) 

Effective portion of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI to income: 

Natural gas contracts Gas Marketing Operating Revenues $ - $ (0.4) $ 4.3 

Gas Marketing Operating Expenses - 0.1 (4.9) 

Subtotal - (0.3) (0.6) 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Gas Utility Other Operating Expenses 0.1 0.2 (0.5) 

Interest rate swaps Interest Expense 1.4 0.1 

Total $ 1.5 $ - $ (1.1) 

Ineffective p01tion of gain (loss) on derivatives recognized in income: 

Natural gas contracts Gas Marketing Operating Revenues $ - $ - $ 0.1 

Gas Marketing Operating Expenses - - 0.1 

Subtotal - - 0.2 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Gas Utility Other Operating Expenses - - 0.1 

Interest rate swaps Interest Expense - 0.5 

Total $ - $ 0.5 $ 0.3 

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments* 

Gain (loss) recognized in income on derivatives: 

Natural gas commodity contracts Gas Marketing Operating Revenues $ 10.2 $ 0.7 $ 12.3 

Gas Marketing Operating Expenses (8.1) 

NYMEX / ICE natural gas contracts Gas Marketing Operating Revenues - (4.4) (1.7) 

Total $ 2.1 $ (3.7) $ 10.6 

* Gains and losses on Spire Missouri's natural gas derivative instruments, which are not designated as hedging instruments 
for financial reporting purposes, are deferred pursuant to the Missouri Utilities' PGA clauses and initially recorded as 
regulato1y assets or regulatory liabilities. These gains and losses are excluded from the table above because they have no 
direct impact on the statements of income. Such amounts are recognized in the statements of income as a component of 
Regulated Gas Distribution Natural and Propane Gas operating expenses when they are recovered through the PGA clause 
and reflected in customer billings. 
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Fair Value of Derivative Instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Asset Derivatives* Liability Derivatives* 

Fair Fair 
Septen1ber 30, 2018 Balance Sheet Location Value Balance Sheet Location Value 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

Other: Interest rate swaps Derivative Instrument Assets 3.0 Derivative Instrument Assets 

Subtotal 3.0 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

Gas UtilihJ: 

Natural gas contracts Accounts Receivable - Other 2.7 Accounts Receivable - Other l.9 

GasMal'keting: 

NYMEX / ICE natural gas contracts Derivative Instrument Assets 3.8 Derivative Instrument Assets 10.7 

Deferred Charges - Other 0.4 Deferred Charges - Other 0.7 

Natural gas commodity Derivative Instrument Assets 10.9 Derivative Instrument Assets 1.0 

Deferred Charges - Other 6.3 Deferred Charges - Other 0.2 

Current Liabi1ities - Other 0.3 Current Liabilities - Other 6.3 

Deferred Credits - Other - Deferred Credits - Other 0.2 

Subtotal 24.4 21.0 

Total derivatives $ 27.4 $ 21.0 

September 30, 2017 

Derivatives designated as hedging instrun1ents 

Gas Utility: 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Derivative Instrument Assets $ 0.1 Derivative Instrument Assets $ 
Gas Mal'keting: 

Natural gas contracts Derivative Instrument Assets 0.3 Derivative Instrument Assets 0.2 

Deferred Charges - Other 0.3 Deferred Charges - Other 

Other: Interest rate swaps Derivative Instrument Assets - Derivative Instrument Assets 0.9 

Subtotal 0.7 1.1 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

Gas UtilihJ: 

Natural gas contracts Accounts Receivable - Other 3.4 Accounts Receivable - Other 1.9 

Gas Mal'keting: 

NYMEX / ICE natural gas contracts Derivative Instrument Assets 1.7 Derivative Instrument Assets 1.4 

Deferred Charges - Other 0.3 Deferred Charges - Other 0.5 

Natural gas commodity Derivative Instrument Assets 5.3 Derivative Instrument Assets 0.1 

Deferred Charges - Other 0.4 Deferred Charges - Other 

Current Liabilities - Other 0.8 Current Liabilities - Other 5.0 

Deferred Credits - Other 0.4 Deferred Credits - Other 3.3 

Subtotal 12.3 12.2 

Total derivatives $ 13.0 $ 13.3 

* The fair values of Asset Derivatives and Liability Derivatives exclude the fair value of cash margin receivables or payables 
with counterparties subject to netting arrangements. Fair value amounts of derivative contracts (including the fair value 
amounts of cash margin receivables and payables) for which there is a legal right to set off are presented net on the balance 
sheets. As such, the gross balances presented in the table above are not indicative of the Company's net economic exposure. 
Refer to Note 8, Fair Value Measurements, for information on the valuation of derivative instniments. 
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Following is a reconciliation of the amounts in the tables above to the amounts presented iu the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets: 

Fair value of asset derivatives presented above 

Fair value of cash margin (payable) receivable offset with derivatives 

Netting of assets and liabilities with the same counterparty 

Total 
Derivative Instrument Assets, per Consolidated Balance Sheets: 

Derivative instrument assets 

Deferred Charges - Other 

Total 

Fair value of liability derivatives presented above 

Netting of assets and liabilities ,vith the same counterparty 

Total 
Derivative Instrument Liabilities, per Consolidated Balance Sheets: 

Current Liabilities - Other 

Deferred Credits - Other 

Total 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

27.4 $ 

6.4 

(14.8) --
19.0 $ 

13.3 $ 

5.7 -
19.0 $ 

21.0 $ 

(14.8) 
--

6.2 $ 

6.0 $ 

0.2 -
6.2 $ 

Additionally, at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Company had $4.1 and $4.0, respectively, in cash margin 
receivables not offset with derivatives, which are presented in Accounts Receivable - Other. 

Spire Missouri 

13.0 

(1.5) 

(5.3) 

6.2 

5.9 

0.3 

6.2 

13.3 

(5.3) 

8.0 

4.9 

3.1 

8.0 

Spire Missouri has a risk management policy to utilize various derivatives, including futures contracts, exchange­
traded options, swaps and over-the-counter instruments for the explicit purpose of managing price risk associated 
with purchasing and delivering natural gas on a regular basis to customers in accordance with its tariffs. The 
objective of this policy is to limit Spire Missouri's exposure to natural gas price volatility and to manage, hedge aud 
mitigate substantial price risk. This policy strictly prohibits speculation and permits Spire Missouri to hedge current 
physical natural gas purchase commitments or forecasted or anticipated future peak (maximum) physical need for 
natural gas delivered. Costs and cost reductions, including carrying costs, associated with Spire Missouri's use of 
natural gas derivative instruments are allowed to be passed on to Spire Missouri customers through the operation of 
its PGA clause, through which the MoPSC allows Spire Missouri to recover gas supply costs, subject to prudence 
review by the MoPSC. Accordingly, Spire Missouri does not expect any adverse earnings impact as a result of the use 
of these derivative instruments. 

Spire Missouri does not designate these instruments as hedging instruments for financial reporting purposes 
because gains or losses associated with the use of these derivative instruments are deferred and recorded as 
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities pursuant to ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations, and, as a result, have 
no direct impact on the statements ofiucome. 

The timing of the operation of the PGA clause may cause interim variations in short-term cash flows, because Spire 
Missouri is subject to cash margin requirements associated with changes in the values of these instruments. 
Nevertheless, carrying costs associated with such requirements are recovered through the PGA clause. 

From time to time, Spire Missouri purchases NYMEX futures and options contracts to help stabilize operating costs 
associated with forecasted purchases of gasoline and diesel fuels used to power vehicles and equipment used in the 
course of its business. These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions pursuant to 
ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. The gains or losses on these derivative instruments are not subject to 
Spire Missouri's PGA clause. At September 30, 2018, Spire Missomi had no gasoline futures contracts outstanding. 
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Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions are recognized on the balance 
sheets at fair value and the change in the fair value of the effective portion of these hedge instruments is recorded, 
net of income tax, in OCI. AOC! is a component of Total Common Stock Equity. Amounts are reclassified from AOCI 
into earnings when the hedged items affect net income, using the same revenue or expense categmy that the hedged 
item impacts. Based on market prices at September 30, 2018, it is expected that an immaterial amount of pre-tax 
gains will be reclassified into the statements of income during fiscal 2019. Cash flows from hedging transactions are 
classified in the same catego1y as the cash flows from the items that are being hedged in the statements of cash 
flows. 

Spire Missouri's derivative instruments consist primarily of NYMEX positions. The NYMEX is the prima1y national 
commodities exchange on which natural gas derivatives are traded. Open NYMEX natural gas futures positions at 
September 30, 2018 were as follows: 

NYMEX/ICE open long futures/swap positions 

Fiscal 2019 

Fiscal 2020 

MMBtu 
(millions) 

Avg, Price 
PerMMBtu 

24.12 $ 2.80 

2.69 2.68 

At September 30, 2018, Spire Missouri also had 38.4 million MMBtu of other price mitigation in place through the 
use of NYMEX natural gas option-based strategies. 

Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Location of Gain (Loss) 

Recorded in Income 2018 2017 2016 

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships 

Effective portion of gain (loss) recognized in OCI on derivatives: 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts $ - $ 0.1 $ 
Effective portion of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCI to income: 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Gas Utility Other Operating Expenses $ 0.1 $ 0.2 $ (0.5) 

Ineffective portion of gain (loss) on derivatives recognized in income: 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Gas Utility Other Operating Expenses $ - $ - $ 0.1 

* Gains and losses on Spire Missouri's natural gas derivative instruments, which are not designated as hedging instruments 
for financial reporting purposes, are deferred pursuant to the Spire Missouri's PGA clauses and initially recorded as 
regulatory assets or regulat01y liabilities. These gains and losses are excluded from the table above because they have no 
direct impact on the Statements oflncome. Such amounts are recognized in the Statements of Income as a component of 
Regulated Gas Distribution Natural and Propane Gas operating expenses when they are recovered through the PGA clause 
and reflected in customer billings. 
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Fair Value of Derivative Instrmnents in the Balance Sheets 

Asset Derivatives* 

Septen1ber 30; 2018 Balance Sheet Location 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instru1nents 

Natural gas contracts Accounts Receivable - Other 
Total derivatives 

September 30, 2017 

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 

Gasoline and heating oil contracts Derivative Instrument Assets 

Subtotal 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

Natural gas contracts Accounts Receivable - Other 
Total derivatives 

Fair 
Value 

2.7 

$ 2.7 

$ 0.1 

0.1 

3.4 

$ 3.5 

Liability Derivatives* 

Balance Sheet Location 

Accounts Receivable - Other 

$ 

Derivative Instrument Assets $ 
-

Accounts Receivable - Other 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

1.9 

1.9 

1.9 

1.9 

* The fair values of Asset Derivatives and Liability Derivatives exclude the fair value of cash margin receivables or payables 
with counterparties subject to netting arrangements. Fair value amounts of derivative contracts (including the fair value 
amounts of cash margin receivables and payables) for which there is a legal right to set off are presented net on the Balance 
Sheets. As such, the gross balances presented in the table above are not indicative of Spire Missouri1s net economic 
exposure. Refer to Note 8, Fair Value Measurements, for information on the valuation of derivative instruments. 

Following is a reconciliation of the amounts in the tables above to the amounts presented in Spire Missouri's 
Balance Sheets: 

2018 2017 
Fair value of asset derivatives presented above $ 2.7 $ 
Fair value of cash margin (payable) receivable offset with derivatives (0.8) 

Netting of assets and liabilities with the same counterparty (1.9) 

Total $ - $ 
Derivative Instrument Assets, per Balance Sheets: 

Derivative instrument assets $ - $ 
Total $ - $ 

Fair value of liability derivatives presented above $ 1.9 $ 
Netting of assets and liabilities with the same counterparty (1.9) 

Total $ - $ 

Additionally, at September 30, 2017 and 2016, Spire Missouri had $3.8 and $4.0, respectively, in cash margin 
receivables not offset with derivatives, which are presented in Accounts Receivable - Other. 

Spi,-e Alabama 

3.5 

(1.5) 

(1.9) 

0.1 

0.1 

0.1 

1.9 

(1.9) 

During the fiscal second qua1ter of 2016, Spire Alabama commenced a gasoline derivative program to help stabilize 
operating costs associated with forecasted purchases of gasoline and diesel fuels used to power vehicles and 
equipment used in the course of its business. Most of these contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of 
forecasted transactions pursuant to ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. The gains or losses on these 
derivative instmments are not subject to Spire Alabama's GSA rider. There were no contracts outstanding as of 
September 30, 2018, and the fair value of gasoline contracts as of September 30, 2017 was not significant. 
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10. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Other than in Spire Marketing, Spire has no significant concentration of credit risk. 

A significanl putiiun of Spire :Marketing's transaciiuns are with (or are associated with) energy producers, utility 
companies, and pipelines. The concentration of transactions with these counterparties has the potential to affect the 
Company's overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that each of these three groups may be 
affected similarly by changes in economic, induslly, or other conditions. To manage this risk, as well as credit risk 
from significant counterparties in these and other industries, Spire Marketing has established procedures to 
determine the creditw01thiness of its counterpa1ties. These procedures include obtaining credit ratings and credit 
rep01ts, analyzing counterpa1ty financial statements to assess financial condition, and considering the industry 
environment in which the counterpa1ty operates. This information is monitored on an ongoing basis. In some 
instances, Spire Marketing may require credit assurances such as prepayments, letters of credit, or parental 
guaranties. In addition, Spire Marketing may enter into netting arrangements to mitigate credit risk with 
counterparties in the energy induslly with whom it conducts both sales and purchases of natural gas. Sales are 
typically made on an unsecured credit basis with payment due the month following delive1y. Accounts receivable 
amounts are closely monitored and provisions for uncollectible amounts are accrued when losses are probable. 
Spire Marketing records accounts receivable, accounts payable, and prepayments for physical sales and purchases 
of natural gas on a gross basis. The amount included in accounts receivable attributable to energy producers and 
their marketing affiliates amounted to $11.2 at September 30, 2018 ($3,7 reflecting netting arrangements). Spire 
Marketing's accounts receivable attributable to utility companies and their marketing affiliates comprised $96.1 of 
total accounts receivable at September 30, 2018 ($89.7 reflecting netting arrangements). 

Spire Marketing also has concentrations of credit risk with certain individually significant counterpatties and with 
pipeline companies associated with its natural gas receivable amount. At September 30, 2018, the amounts included 
in accounts receivable from Spire Marketing's five largest counterpa1ties (in terms of net accounts receivable 
exposure) totaled $51.3 ($50.6 reflecting netting arrangements). Three of these five counterparties are investment­
grade rated integrated utilities. The fourth is an investment-grade rated wholesale power provider. The fifth is not 
rated, but each of its owners is investment-grade. 
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11. INCOME TAXES 

Spire 

The Company's provision (benefit) for income taxes during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016 was as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 

Federal 

Current $ - $ 0.1 $ 0.1 

Deferred (22.7) 67.7 62.0 

Investment tax credits (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 

State and local 

Current 2.2 0.5 0.6 

Deferred (5.8) 9.5 7.0 

Total income tax (benefit) expense _$ __ (26.5J $ 77.6 $ 69.5 

The Company's effective income tax rate varied from the federal statuto1y income tax rate for each year due to the 
following: 

Federal income tax statutory rate 

State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits 

Certain expenses capitalized on books and deducted on tax return 

Taxes related to prior years 

Tax law changes 

Amortization of excess deferred taxes 

Other items - net* 

Effective income tax rate 

* Other consists primarily of property adjustments. 

2018 

24.5 % 

3.4 

(2.3) 

(0.4) 

(35.9) 

(1.8) 

(1.6) 

(14.1)% 

2017 2016 

35.0% 35.0% 

2.8 2.8 

(2.3) (3.4) 

(0.9) (0.2) 

(2.2) (1.7) 

32.4% 32.5% 

The Company's significant items comprising the net deferred tax liability recorded in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as of September 30 were as follows: 

2018 2017 

Deferred tax assets: 

Reserves not currently deductible $ 25.9 $ 31.5 

Pension and other postretirement benefits 75.6 58.6 

Operating losses 162.7 169.6 

Regulatocy amount due to customers, net 41.8 

Other 8.2 26.0 

Deferred tax assets 314.2 285.7 

Less: valuation allowance 1.4 0.5 

Total deferred tax assets 312.8 285.2 

Deferred tax liabilities: 

Relating to property 518.3 728.3 

Regulatocy pension and other postretirement benefits 117.1 108.0 

Deferred gas costs 2.3 30.6 

Other** 110.9 125.8 

Total deferred tax liabilities 748.6 992.7 

Net deferred tax liability $ 435.8 $ 707.5 

** Other consists primarily of Goodwill related liabilities. 
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The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TCJA") was signed into law on December 22, 2017, with an effective date of Januaiy 1, 
2018, for substantially all of the provisions. This comprehensive act includes significant reform of the current 
income tax code including changes in the calculation for business entities and a reduction in the corporate federal 
income tax rate from 35% to 21%. The specific provisions related to regulated public utilitie-S in the TGJA generally 
allow for the continued deductibility of interest expense, the elimination of full expensing for tax purposes of certain 
property acquired in tax years beginning after Janua1y 1, 2018, and the continuation of ce11ain rate normalization 
requirements for accelerated depreciation benefits. 

Missouri Senate Bill ("S.B.") 884 was signed into law on June 1, 2018. S.B. 884 reduces the corporate income tax 
rate from 6.25% to 4.0% for tax years beginning on or after Janua1y 1, 2020, among other legislative chai1ges. The 
impact of S.B. 884 is not material to the consolidated financial statements. 

ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, requires that the effects of changes in tax laws be recognized in the period in which 
the new law is enacted, It also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be measured at the enacted tax rate 
expected to apply when temporaty differences are to be realized or settled. For the Company's regulated entities, the 
changes in deferred taxes related to the regulated operations are recorded as either an offset to or creation of a 
regulatory asset or liability and may be subject to refund to customers in future pe1iods. The changes in deferred 
taxes that are not associated with rate making (including all changes for the Company's non-regulated operations) 
are recorded as adjustments to deferred tax expense or benefit. 

The Company has recorded TCJA impacts and reflected those amounts in the September 30, 2018 financial 
statements. The amounts recorded are based on information known and reasonable estimates used as of that date, 
but are subject to change based on further actions of regulators. The items recorded include the impact of the 
federal income tax rate reduction and the revaluation of the deferred tax assets and liabilities. In fiscal 2018, the 
MoPSC Amended Rep011 and Order took effect and the estimated excess accumulated deferred income tax began to 
be returned to customers in rates. The amount being returned is estimated with a tracker established to defer the 
difference from the estimated amounts to the actual amounts once the actual amounts have been calculated, During 
fiscal 2018, excess accumulated deferred taxes of $3.5 were returned, 

The total amounts recorded, before reduction for amounts returned to customers, for the year ended September 30, 
2018, are presentecl in the table below. 

Adjustment to deferred tax liabilities 

Adjustment to deferred income tax expense 

Adjustment to regulato1y assets 

Adjustment to regu]atmy liabilities 

$ (318.3) 

(75.0) 

(75.9) 

167.4 

As indicated in Note 1, Summa1y of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company's regulated operations accounting 
for income taxes is impacted by ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations. Reductions in deferred income tax balances 
due to the reduction in the corporate income tax rate will result in amounts previously collected from utility 
customers for these deferred taxes to be refundable to such customers, generally through reductions in future rates. 
The TCJA includes provisions that stipulate how these excess deferred taxes are to be passed back to customers for 
certain accelerated tax depreciation benefits. Potential refunds of other deferred taxes will be determined by state 
regulators. 

In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable, management considers whether it is more likely than not 
that some p011ion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management considers all significant 
available positive and negative evidence, including the existence oflosses in recent years, the timing of deferred tax 
liability reversals, projected future taxable income, taxable income in canybackyears, and tax planning strategies to 
assess the need for a valuation allowance. Based upon this evidence, management believes it is more likely than not 
the Company will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets, except for the contribution carryforward valuation 
allowance noted below. 

The Company had federal and state loss car1yforwards of approximately $711.9 at September 30, 2018. The 
Company also had contribution canyfo1wards of approximately $12,9 at September 30, 2018. The loss 
canyfo1wards begin to expire in fiscal 2030 for cetiain state purposes and fiscal 2035 for federal and other states 
purposes. The contribution carryforwards begin to expire in fiscal 2019, The Company had a valuation allowance of 
$1.4, as a p011ion of the contribution canyfonvard will not be realized prior to its expiration. The Company also has 
va1ious tax credit canyfonvards of approximately $2.4 that begin to expire in 2020, as well as a capital loss 
carryfonvard of $0.4 that expires in 2022. 
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The Company recognizes the tax benefit from a tax position only if it is at least more likely than not that the tax 
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authodties, based on the technical merits of the position. 
The Company records potential interest and penalties related to its uncertain tax positions as interest expense and 
other income deductions, respectively. Unrecognized tax benefits are repmted as a reduction of a deferred tax asset 
for an operating loss canyforward to the extent the recognition of the benefit would impact the operating loss 
carryfo1ward, pursuant to ASU 2013-11. In addition, pursuant to the TCJA, the deferred tax asset for a net operating 
loss car1yforward was revalued based on the federal tax law change. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the Company's unrecognized 
tax benefits: 

2018 2017 2016 

Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of year $ 11.0 $ 10.0 $ 7.1 

Decrease related to tax law changes (4.0) 

Increases related to tax positions taken in current year 1.2 2.4 3.4 

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute oflimitations (0.1) (1.4) (0.5) 

Unrecognized tax benefits, end of year $ 8.1 $ 11.0 $ 10.0 

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits which, if recognized, would affect the Company's effective tax rate were 
$3.9 and $5.1 as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. It is reasonably possible that events will occur in the 
next 12 months that could increase or decrease the amount of the Company's unrecognized tax benefits. The 
Company does not expect that any such change will be significant to the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, interest accrued associated with the Company's unce1tain tax positions was 
de minimis, and no penalties were accrued. 

The Company is subject to federal income tax as well as income tax in various state and local jurisdictions. The 
Company is no longer subject to examination for fiscal years prior to 2014. 

Regarding the Company's Spire EnergySouth acquisition, tax returns for calendar years 2014 and 2015 remain open 
and subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and state taxing jurisdictions. These returns cover 
periods dming which Spire EnergySouth was owned by Sempra Global. The impact of any adjustments made to 
these returns by the relevant taxing authorities would be addressed by the indemnification provisions of the stock 
purchase agreement with Sempra Global. 

Spil'e Missoul'i 

Spire Missouri's provision (benefit) for income taxes during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016 was as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 

Federal 
Current $ - $ - $ 

Deferred (26.1) 42.0 37.5 

Investment tax credits (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 

State and local 
Current - - 0.1 

Deferred (6.3) 5.7 8.0 

Total income tax (benefit) expense $ (32.6) j_ 47.5 $ 45.4 

102 



Spire Missouri's effective income tax rate varied from the federal statuto1y income tax rate for each year due to the 
following: 

2018 2017 2016 

Federal income tax stahtto:ry rate 24.5 % 35.0% 35.0% 

State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits 3.4 2.8 2.8 
Certain expenses capitalized on books and deducted on tax return (4.6) (3.5) (4.8) 
Taxes related to prior years (0.7) (1.4) (0.2) 
Tax 1aw changes (50.3) 

Amortization of excess deferred taxes (3.6) 
Other items - net* (2.5) (3.3) (2.8) 
Effective income tax rate (33.8)% 29.6% 30.0% 

* Other consists primarily of property adjustments. 

Spire Missouri's significant items comprising the net deferred tax liability rep01ted in the Balance Sheets as of 
September 30 were as follows: 

2018 2017 

Deferred tax assets: 
Reserves not currently deductible $ 20.0 $ 25.3 
Pension and other postretirement benefits 71.9 52.7 
Deferred gas costs 0.5 
Operating losses 65.2 52.0 
Regulatory amount due to customers 38.0 

Deferred tax assets 195.6 130.0 
Less: valuation allowance 1.4 0.5 

Total deferred tax assets 194.2 129.5 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Relating to utility property 372.6 563.2 
Regulatory pension and other postretirement benefits 113.4 108.0 
Deferred gas costs - 25.0 
Other 69.2 57.1 

Total deferred tax liabilities 555.2 753.3 
Net deferred tax liability $ 361.0 $ 623.8 

Spire files a consolidated federal income tax return and various state income tax returns and allocates income taxes 
to Spire Missomi and its other subsidiaries as if each entity were a separate taxpayer. 

Spire Missouri has recorded TCJA impacts and reflected those amounts in the September 30, 2018 financial 
statements. The amounts recorded are based on information known and reasonable estimates used as of that date, 
but are subject to change based on further actions ofregulators. The items recorded include the impact of the 
federal income tax rate reduction and the revaluation of the deferred tax assets and liabilities. In fiscal 2018, the 
MoPSC Amended Rep01t and Order took effect and the estimated excess accumulated deferred income tax began to 
be returned to customers in rates. The amount being returned is estimated with a tracker established to defer the 
difference from the estimated amounts to the actual amounts once the actual amounts have been calculated. Dming 
fiscal 2018, excess accumulated deferred taxes of $3.5 were returned. 

S.B. 884, signed into law on June 1, 2018, reduces the corporate income tax rate from 6.25% to 4.0% for tax years 
beginning on or after Janua1y 1, 2020, among other legislative changes. The impact of S.B. 884 is not material to 
the financial statements. 

The total amounts recorded, before reduction for amounts returned to customers, for the year ended September 30, 
2018, are presented in the table below. 

Adjustment to deferred tax liabilities 

Adjustment to deferred income tax expense 

Adjustment to regulatory assets 

Adjustment to regulatory liabilities 

103 

$ (285.3) 
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As indicated in Note 1, Summa1y of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company's regulated operations accounting 
for income taxes is impacted by ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations. Reductions in deferred income tax balances 
due to the reduction in the corporate income tax rate will result in amounts previously collected from utility 
customers for these deferred taxes to be refundable to such customers, generally through reductions in future rates. 
The TCJA includes provisions that stipulate how these excess deferred taxes are to be passed back to customers for 
ce1tain accelerated tax depreciation benefits. Potential refunds of other deferred taxes will be determined by state 
regulators. 

In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable, management considers whether it is more likely than not 
that some p01tion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, Management considers all significant 
available positive and negative evidence, including the existence of losses in recent years, the timing of deferred tax 
liability reversals, projected future taxable income, taxable income in car1yback years, and tax planning strategies to 
assess the need for a valuation allowance, Based upon this evidence, management believes it is more likely than not 
that Spire Missouri will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets, except for the contribution car1yforward 
valuation allowance noted below. 

Spire Missouri had federal and state loss canyfonvards of approximately $309.2 at September 30, 2018 on a 
separate company basis. For federal tax purposes, these loss canyforwards may be utilized against income from 
another member of the consolidated group. Spire Missouri also had contribution canyfonvards of approximately 
$10.9 at September 30, 2018. The loss carryforwards begin to expire in fiscal 2035 for federal and state purposes. 
The contribution canyfonvards begin to expire in fiscal 2019. Spire Missomi had a valuation allowance of $1.4, as a 
portion of the contribution canyfonvard will not be realized prior to its expiration. Spire Missouri also has 
approximately $2.0 of various tax credit canyforwards with expiration dates which begin to expire in 2020. 

Spire Missouri recognizes the tax benefit from a tax position only if it is at least more likely than not that the tax 
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. 
Spire Missouri records potential interest and penalties related to its unce1tain tax positions as interest expense and 
other income deductions, respectively. Unrecognized tax benefits are rep01ted as a reduction of a deferred tax asset 
for an operating loss canyforward, pursuant to ASU 2013-11. In addition, pursuant to the TCJA, the deferred tax 
asset for a net operating loss car1yforward was revalued based on the federal tax law change. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of Spire Missouri unrecognized 
tax benefits: 

Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of year 

Decrease related to tax law changes 

Increases related to tax positions taken in current year 

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute oflimitations 

Unrecognized tax benefits, end of year 

2018 2017 2016 

$ 10.7 $ 9.7 $ 6.9 

(4.0) 

1.1 

$ 7.8 $ 

2.4 3.3 

(1.4) (0.5) 

10.7 $ 9.7 

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits, which, if recognized, would affect Spire Missouri's effective tax rate were 
$3.6 and $4.8 as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. It is reasonably possible that events will occur in the 
next 12 months that could increase or decrease the amount of Spire Missouri's unrecognized tax benefits. Spire 
Missouri does not expect that any such change will be significant to Spire Missouri's Balance Sheets. 

AB of September 30, 2018 and 2017, no interest or penalties were accrued associated with Spire Missouri's uncertain 
tax positions. 

Spire Missouri is subject to federal income tax as well as income tax in various state and local jurisdictions, and is 
no longer subject to examination for fiscal years prior to 2014. 
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Spire Alabama 

Spire Alabama's provision for income taxes charged during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016, was as follows: 

Federal 

Current 

Deferred 

State and local 

Current 

Deferred 

Total income tax expense 

$ 

$ 

2018 

$ 
81.5 

0.1 

81.6 $ 

2017 

$ 
31.6 

2016 

(0.8) 

29.4 

4.2 3.8 

35.8 $ 32.4 

Spire Alabama's effective income tax rate varied from the federal statutory income tax rate for each year due to the 
following: 

2018 2017 2016 

Federal income tax statutory rate 24.5% 35.0% 

State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits 3.8 2.8 

Tax law change 70.0 

Other items - net 0.1 0.3 

Effective income tax rate 98.4% 38.1% 

Spire Alabama's significant items comprising the net deferred tax asset repmted in the Balance Sheets as of 
September 30 were as follows: 

2018 

Deferred tax assets: 

Resenres not currently deductible $ 5.3 $ 
Pension and other postretirement benefits -

Goodwill 129.6 
Operating losses 86.0 

Total deferred tax assets 220.9 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Relating to utility property 111.9 

Pension and other postretirement benefits 1.8 
Other 5.4 

Total deferred tax liabilities 119.1 

Net deferred tax asset $ 101.8 1 

35.0% 

2.8 

0.1 

37.9% 

2017 

6.0 

4.4 

214.4 

88.3 

313.1 

119.3 

8.2 

127.5 

185.6 

Spire files a consolidated federal income tax return and various state income tax returns and allocates income taxes 
to Spire Alabama and its other subsidiaries as if each entity were a separate taxpayer. 

Spire Alabama has recorded TCJA impacts and reflected those amounts in the September 30, 2018 financial 
statements. The amounts recorded are based on information known and reasonable estimates used as of that date, 
bnt are subject to change based on ftnther actions ofregulators. The items recorded include the impact of the 
federal income tax rate reduction and the revaluation of the deferred tax assets and liabilities. 

The total amounts recorded, before reduction for amounts returned to customers, for the year ended September 30, 

2018, are presented in the table below. 

Adjustment to deferred tax assets 

Adjustment to deferred income tax expense 

Adjustment to regulatory assets 
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AB indicated in Note 1, Summa1y of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company's regulated operations accounting 
for income taxes is impacted by ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations. Reductions in deferred income tax balances 
due to the reduction in the corporate income tax rate will result in amounts previously collected from utility 
customers for the..,;;.e deferred taxes to he refundable to snch customers; generally through reductions in future rates. 
The TCJA includes provisions that stipulate how these excess deferred taxes are to be passed back to customers for 
certain accelerated tax depreciation benefits. Potential refunds of other deferred taxes will be determined by state 
regulators. 

In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable, management considers whether it is more likely than not 
that some p011ion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management considers all significant 
available positive and negative evidence, including the existence oflosses in recent years, the timing of deferred tax 
liability reversals, projected future taxable income, taxable income in canyback years, and tax planning strategies to 
assess the need for a valuation allowance. Based upon this evidence, management believes it is more likely than not 
that Spire Alabama will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets. 

On a separate company basis, Spire Alabama had federal and state loss canyforwards of approximately $342.6 at 
September 30, 2018, The loss carryforwards begin to expire in fiscal 2030 for state purposes and fiscal 2035 for 
federal purposes, For federal tax purposes, these loss canyforwards may be utilized against income from another 
member of the consolidated group. 

Spire Alabama recognizes the tax benefit from a tax position only if it is at least more likely than not that the tax 
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. 
Spire Alabama records potential interest and penalties related to its uncertain tax positions as interest expense and 
other income deductions, respectively. Spire Alabama has rep01ied no unrecognized tax benefits for fiscal years 
2018, 2017, and 2016. 

Spire Alabama is subject to federal income tax as well as income tax in various state and local jurisdictions. 
Energen's tax return for 2014, which includes Spire Alabama, remains open to the statute oflimitations for federal 
purposes as a result of an IRS examination. No state tax returns for periods in which Spire Alabama was owned by 
Energen are open to the statute oflimitations. The impact of any adjustments made to this return by the IRS would 
be addressed by the indemnification provisions of the 2014 stock purchase agreement with Energen. 

12. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The Spire information in this note reflects all plans of the Company, including information for plans covering 
employees of Spire EnergySouth since September 12, 2016. The net pension and postretirement obligations were re­
measured at that acquisition date as well as at the fiscal year end. 

Pension Plans 

The pension plans of Spire consist of plans for employees at the Missouri Utilities, the employees of Spire Alabama 
and employees of the subsidiaries of Spire EnergySouth. 

The Missouri Utilities have non-contributory, defined benefit, trusteed forms of pension plans covering the majority 
of their employees. Plan assets consist primarily of corporate and U.S. government obligations and a growth 
segment consisting of exposure to equity markets, commodities, real estate and inflation-indexed securities, 
achieved through derivative instruments. 

Spire Alabama has non-contribnt01y, defined benefit, trusteed forms of pension plans covering the majority of its 
employees. Qualified plan assets are comprised of mutual and commingled funds consisting of U.S. equities with 
varying strategies, global equities, alternative investments, and fixed income investments. 
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The net periodic pension costs include the following components: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alaban1a 
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 

Service cost - benefits earned during the period $ 20.2 $ 20.5 $ 15.3 $ 12.7 $ 12.7 $ 10.0 $ 6.4 $ 6.2 $ 5.3 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 27.4 27.9 28.0 19.5 19.5 21.7 5.5 6.1 6.3 

Expected return on p1an assets (37.0) (38.5) (34.9) (27.2) (28.1) (26.7) (6.5) (7.2) (8.2) 

Amortization of prior service cost ( credit) (0.9) 1.0 0.4 0.9 1.0 0.4 (1.8) 

Amortization of actuarial loss 10.9 12.5 8.0 9.4 10.7 7.9 1.5 1.8 0.1 

Loss on lump-sum settlements and curtailments 18.6 17.9 3.3 16.1 13.5 - 2.4 4.6 3.3 

Special termination benefits - 0.9 1.6 - - 1.6 --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Subtotal 39.2 42.2 21.7 31.4 29.3 14.9 7.5 11.5 6.8 

Regulatol)' adjustment 37.4 (2.4) 17.8 32.1 (4.1) 11.7 4.5 1.8 6.1 --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Net pension cost $~6$B8$B5$B5$2~2$2~$1W$li3$1~ ========= 
Other changes in plan assets and pension benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income or loss 
include the following: 

Current year actuarial (gain) loss 

Amortization of actuarial loss 

Acceleration of loss recognized due to settlement 

Current year service (credit) cost 

Current year prior year service cost 

Transfer due to merger 
Amortization of prior service cost 

Amortization of transition asset 

Subtotal 

Regulatol)' adjustment 

Total recognized in OCI 

2018 

$ (1.4) 

(10.9) 

(18.5) 

(0.1) 

0.1 

(2.9) 

Spire 

2017 

$ 14.1 

(12.5) 

(18.2) 

(20.7) 

(1.0) 

Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 

$ 46.8 $ 2.2 $ 14.8 $ 21.6 $ (0.6) $ 3.3 $ 25.2 

(8.0) (9.4) (10.7) (7.9) (1.5) (1.8) (0.1) 

(3.3) (16.1) (13.5) 

5.0 

(0.4) 

0.1 

(0.9) (1.0) 

(2.4) (4.5) (3.3) 

5.0 

(20.7) 

(0.4) 

1.8 - - - - - 1.8 ------------------
(31.9) (38.3) 40.1 (24.1) (10.4) 18.3 (2.7) (23.7) 21.8 

31.6 38.0 (39.8) 23.8 10.1 (18.0) 2. 7 23. 7 (21.8) ------------------
$ (0.3) $ (0.3) $ 0.3 $ (0.3) $ (0.3) $ 0.3 $ - $ - $ 
========= 

Spire pension obligations are driven by separate plan and regulatmy provisions governing Spire Missouri, Spire 
Alabama and Spire EnergySouth pension plans. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Missouri Utilities' and Spire Alabama's pension plans, pension obligations may be 
satisfied by monthly annuities, lump-sum cash payments, or special termination benefits. Lump-sum payments are 
recognized as settlements (which can result in gains or losses) only if the total of such payments exceeds the sum of 
service and interest costs in a specific year. Special termination benefits, when offered, are also recognized as 
settlements which can result in gains or losses. Two Spire Alabama plans and one Spire Missouri plan met the 
criteria for settlement recognition in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, requiring re-measurement of the 
obligation under those plans using updated census data and assumptions for discount rate and mortality. For the 
remeasurements, the discount rates for the Missouri plans were updated to 4.20% and 4.15% at June 30, 2018 
(from 3.70% and 3.75% at September 30, 2017), and the discount rate for the Alabama plan was updated to 4.20% 
(from 3.65%). Lump-sum payments recognized as settlements during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016 were $82.8 
($65.5 attributable to Spire Missouri and $17.3 to Spire Alabama), $62.2 ($43.5 attributable to Spire Missouri and 
$18. 7 to Spire Alabama), and $16.6 (attributable to Spire Alabama), respectively. 

Pursuant to a MoPSC Order, the return on plan assets is based on the market-related value of plan assets 
implemented prospectively over a four-year period. Gains or losses not yet includible in pension cost are ammtized 
only to the extent that such gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market­
related value of plan assets. Such excess is amortized over the average remaining service life of active participants. 
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Up to April 18, 2018, the recove1y in rates for Spire Missouri East's qualified pension plan was based on an annual 
allowance of $15,5 effective Janua1y 1, 2011. The recovery in rates for Spire Missouri West's qualified pension plan 
was based on an annual allowance of approximately $9.9 effective Februa1y 20, 2010. Effective April 19, 2018, the 
pension cost for Spire Missouri West included in customer rates was reduced from $9,9 to $5.5 per year, the 
pension cost included in the Spire Missouri East customer rates was increased from $15,5 to $29,0 per year. Over an 
amortization period of eight years, Spire Missouri East rates will also include the amortization of $173.0 of assets 
for pension and other postretirement benefits, and Spire Missouri West rates will be reduced by the am01tization of 
a $26.2 net liability for pension and other postretirement benefits. These changes are discussed further in Note 14, 
Regulatory Matters. 

The difference between these amounts and pension expense as calculated pursuant to the above and that otherwise 
would be included in the statements of income and statements of comprehensive income is deferred as a regulat01y 
asset or regulat01y liability. 

The following table shows the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the pension benefit obligation 
at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 748.8 $ 794.7 $ 539.6 $ 560.0 $ 148.2 $ 174.3 

Service cost 20.2 20.5 12.7 12.7 6.4 6.2 

Interest cost 27.4 27.9 19.5 19.5 5.5 6.1 

Actuarial (gain) loss (34.9) (0.9) (26.0) (0.5) (3.8) 1.6 

Plan amendments (2.0) (20.7) - - - (20.7) 

Plan mergers - - (0.3) 

Settlement loss 7.6 14.6 7.6 12.2 - 2.4 

Special termination benefits - 0.9 

Settlement benefits paid (82.8) (62.2) (65.5) (43.5) (17.3) (18.7) 

Regular benefits paid (i9.7) (26.0j {14.3j (20.8) (2.7) (3.0j 

Benefit ob1igation, end of year $ 664.6 $ 748.8 $ 473.3 $ 539.6 $ 136.3 $ 148.2 

Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year $ 636.0 $ 701.4 $ 446.5 $ 500.4 $ 134.5 $ 142.8 

The following table sets f01th the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of plan assets 
at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 531.6 $ 540.5 $ 385.9 $ 395.7 $ 97.9 $ 100.0 

Actual return on plan assets 11.2 38.0 6.4 25.1 3.3 7.7 

Employer contributions 58.9 41.3 36.9 29.4 20.1 11.9 

Divestitures - - (0.3) 

Settlement benefits paid (82.8) (62.2) (65.5) (43.5) (17.3) (18.7) 

Regular benefits paid (19.7) (26.0) (14.3) (20.8) (2.7) (3.0) 

Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 499.2 $ 531.6 $ 349.1 $ 385.9 $ 101.3 $ 97.9 

Funded status of plans, end of year $ (165.4) $ (217.2) $ (124.2) $ (153.7) $ (35.0) $ (50.3) 

The following table sets forth the amounts recognized in the balance sheets at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Current liabilities $ (0.6) $ (0.5) $ (0.6) $ (0.5) $ - $ 

Noncurrent liabilities (164.8) (216.7) (123.6) (153.2) (35.0) (50.3) 

Total $ (165.4) $ (217.2) $ (124.2) $ (153.7) $ (35.0) $ (50.3) 
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Pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss not yet recognized as components of net 
periodic pension cost consist of: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Net actuarial loss $ 132.1 $ 163.0 $ 102.8 $ 126.2 $ 36.4 $ 40.9 

Prior service (credit) cost (14.4) (13.4) 6.4 7.3 (18.8) (20.7) 

Subtotal 117.7 149.6 109.2 133.5 17.6 20.2 

Adjustments for amounts included in regulatory assets (115.5) (147.1) (107.0) (131.0) (17.6) (20.2) 

Total $ 2.2 $ 2.5 $ 2.2 $ 2.5 $ - $ 

At September 30, 2018, the following pre-tax amounts are expected to be amortized from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost during fiscal 2019: 

Amortization of net actuarial loss 

Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 

Subtotal 

Regulatory adjustment 

Total 

Spire 

$ 

$ 

9.2 

(0.9) 
-
8.3 

(8.1) 
-
0.2 

Spire 
Missouri 

$ 8.6 

0.9 

9.5 

(9.3) 

$ 0.2 

The assumptions used to calculate net periodic pension costs for Spire Missouri are as follows: 

2018 2017 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri East plan 3.75% 3.50% 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri West plan 3.70% 3.50% 

Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.75% 7.75% 

The assumptions used to calculate net periodic pension costs for Spire Alabama are as follows: 

2018 2017 

Weighted average discount rate 3.65%/3.70% 3.45%/3.50% 

Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.25% 7.25% 

Spire 
Alaban1a 

$ 0.8 

(1.8) 

(1.0) 

1.0 

$ 

2016 

4.40% 

4.50% 

3.00% 

7.75% 

2016 

4.25%/4,30% 

3.00% 

7.50% 

The weighted average discount rate is based on long-term, high quality bond indices at the measurement date. The 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and 
planned asset classes in the investment po11folio. Assumed projected rates of retum for each asset class were 
selected after analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns. The overall expected rate of 
retum for the portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each class. 

The assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligations are as follows: 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri East plan 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri West plan 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Alabama plans 

Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 
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2018 

4.30% 

4.35% 

4.35% 

3.00% 

2017 

3.75% 

3.70% 

3.65%/3. 70% 

3.00% 



Following are the year-end projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets 
for plans that have a projected benefit obligation and an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Projected benefit obligation $ 664.6 $ 748.8 $ 473.3 $ 539.6 $ 136.3 $ 148.2 

Accumulated benefit obligation 636.0 701.4 446.5 500.4 134.5 142.8 

Fair value of plan assets 499.2 531.6 349.1 385.9 101.3 97.9 

Following are the targeted and actual plan assets by catcg01y as of September 30 of each year for Spire Missouri and 
Spire Alabama: 

2018 2018 2017 2017 
Spire Missouri Target Actual Target Actual 
Equity markets 56.4% 55.3% 56.4% 56.8% 

Debt securities 43.6% 42.4% 43.6% 42.0% 
Cash equivalents -% 2.3% -% 1.2% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
--

2018 2018 2017 2017 
Spire Alabama Target Actual Target Actual 
Equity markets 60.0% 59.4% 60.0% 58.5% 
Debt securities 29.0% 28.6% 29.0% 28.7% 
Other* 11.0% 12.0% 11.0% 12.8% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

* Includes cash and funds invested in real estate, commodities, nahtral resources and inflation-protected securities. 

Spire Missouri's investment policies are designed to maximize, to the extent possible, the funded status of the plans 
over time, and minimize volatility of funding and costs. The policy seeks to maximize investment returns consistent 
with these objectives and Spire Missouri's tolerance for risk. The duration of plan liabilities and the impact of 
potential changes in asset values on the funded status are fundamental considerations in the selection of plan 
assets. Outside investment management specialists are utilized in each asset class. Such specialists are provided 
with guidelines, where appropriate, designed to ensure that the investment portfolio is managed in accordance with 
the policy. The policy seeks to avoid significant concentrations of risk by investing in a diversified portfolio of assets, 
currently including a growth (equity) component and a liability-driven (debt) component. Investments in corporate, 
U.S. government and agencies, and, to a lesser extent, international debt securities seek to provide duration 
matching with plan liabilities, and typically have investment grade ratings and reflect allocations across various 
entities and industries. There are also exposures to additional asset types in the target portfolio: commodities, real 
estate and inflation-indexed securities. For the Missouri East plan, the investment policy permits the use of 
derivative instruments, which may be used to achieve the desired market exposure of an index, adjust portfolio 
duration, or rebalance the total portfolio to the target asset allocation. The growth strategy utilizes a combination of 
derivative instruments and debt securities to achieve diversified exposure to equity and other markets while 
generating returns from the fixed-income investments and providing further duration matching with the liabilities. 
Performance and compliance with the guidelines is regularly monitored. The policy calls for increased allocations to 
debt securities as the funded status improves. 

Spire Alabama employs a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments 
are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets with a prndent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established 
through consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, corporate financial condition and market conditions. 
Spire Alabama has developed an investment strategy that focuses on asset allocation, diversification and quality 
guidelines. The investment goals are to obtain an adequate level of return to meet future obligations of the plans by 
providing above average risk-adjusted returns with a risk exposure in the mid-range of comparable funds. 
Investment managers are retained by Spire Alabama to manage separate pools of assets. Funds are allocated to such 
managers in order to achieve an appropriate, diversified, and balanced asset mix. Comparative market and peer 
group benchmarks are utilized to ensure that investment managers are performing satisfactorily. Spire Alabama 
seeks to maintain an appropriate level of diversification to minimize the risk oflarge losses in a single asset class. 
Accordingly, plan assets for the pension plans do not have a concentration of assets in a single entity, industry, 
country, commodity or class of investment fund. 
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Following are expected pension benefit payments for the succeeding five fiscal years, and in aggregate for the five 
fiscal years thereafter, for Spire, Spire Missouri, and Spire Alabama: 

2024-
2019 2.020 2021 2.022 20.23 2028 

Spire $ 63.0 $ 63.6 $ 60.0 $ 58.4 $ 57.1 $ 266.4 

Spire Missouri 50.3 50.2 46.0 43.8 41.9 184.8 

Spire Alabama 10.0 10.7 11.2 11.8 12.3 65.5 

The funding policy of Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama is to contribute an amount not less than the minimum 
required by government funding standards, nor more than the maximum deductible amount for federal income tax 
purposes. Spire Missouri contributions to the pension plans in fiscal 2019 are anticipated to be $27.1 into the 
qualified trusts, and $0.5 into the non-qualified plans. Spire Alabama had no required contributions to the qualified 
pension plans during 2018 or 2017, and it is not anticipated that the funded status of the qualified pension plans 
will fall below statutory thresholds requiring accelerated funding or constraints on benefit levels or plan 
administration. During fiscal 2018 and 2017, Spire Alabama made discretionaty contributions to the qualified 
pension plans totaling $20.1 and $11.9, respectively; none are expected in fiscal 2019. 

Postretirement Benefits 

The Utilities provide certain life insurance benefits at retirement. Spire Missouri plans provide for medical 
insurance after early retirement until age 65. For retirements prior to Januaty 1, 2015, the Spire Missouri West 
plans provided medical insurance after retirement until death. For retirements after Januaty 1, 2015, the Spire 
Missouri West plans provide medical insurance after early retirement until age 65. Under the Spire Alabama plans, 
medical insurance is currently available upon retirement until death for cettain retirees depending on the type of 
employee and the date the employee was originally hired. 

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs consist of the following components: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 

Service cost - benefits earned during the period $ 9.4 $ 11.0 $ 10.9 $ 9.0 $ 10.4 $ 10.6 $ 0.2 $ 0.3 $ 0.3 

Interest cost on accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation 8.6 8.6 10.2 6.9 6.8 8.1 1.5 1.6 2.1 

Expected return on plan assets (13.9) (13.6) (13.5) (9.6) (9.0) (8.5) (4.1) (4.4) (5.0) 

Amortization of prior service cost (credit) (0.1) - 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 (0.4) (0.2) 

Amortization ofactuarial loss (gain) 0.8 2.5 3.6 0.9 2.6 3.8 (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) 

Special termination benefits - - 2.6 - - 2.6 --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Subtotal 4.8 8.5 14.1 7.5 11.0 16.9 (2.9) (2.8) (2.8) 

Regulato1y adjustment 2.2 (3.2) (6.6) 3.9 (1.5) (4.8) (1.8) (1.8) (1.8) --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---
Net postretirement benefit cost $ 7.0 $ 5.3 $ 7.5 $ 11.4 $ 9.5 $ 12.1 $ (4.7) $ (4.6) $ (4.6) 

Other changes in plan assets and postretirement benefit obligations recognized in OCI include the following: 

Current year actuarial (gain) loss 

Ammtization of actuarial (loss) gain 

Current year prior service credit 

Amortization of prior service (cost) credit 

Subtotal 
Regulatory adjustment 

Total recognized in OCI 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alaba1na 

2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 

$(45.1) $(34.1) $ 0.8 $(47.1) $(28.5) $ 1.4 $ 1.6 $ (4.5) $ (0.6) 

(0.8) (2.5) (3.6) (0.9) (2.6) (3.8) 0.1 0.1 0.2 

(1.4) (1.8) - - - - (1.4) (1.8) 

0.1 - (0.3) (0.3) (0.2) (0.3) 0.4 0.2 
~ --------------

(45.8) (38.0) (4.9) (48.3) (31.3) (2.7) 2.1 (5.6) (2.2) 

45.8 38.0 4.9 48.3 31.3 2.7 (2.1) 5.6 2.2 ------------------
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ ========= 
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Pursuant to a MoPSC Order, the return on plan assets is based on the market-related value of plan assets 
implemented prospectively over a four-year period. Gains and losses not yet includible in postretirement benefit 
cost are amortized only to the extent that such gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation or the market-related value of plan assets. Such excess is amortized over the 
average remaining service life of active participants. Up to April 18, 2018, the recovery in rates for Spire Missouri's 
postretirement benefit plans is based on an annual allowance of $9.5 effective January 1, 2011. Effective April 19, 
2018, the allowance was reduced to $8.6. This change is discussed further in Note 14, Regulatory Matters. The 
difference between these amounts and postretirement benefit cost based on the above and that otherwise would be 
included in the statements of income and statements of comprehensive income is deferred as a regulatmy asset or 
regulatory liability. 

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the postretirement benefit 
obligation at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 238.5 $ 259.2 $ 192.5 $ 207.9 $ 40.6 $ 45.4 

Service cost 9.4 11.0 9.0 10.4 0.2 0.3 

Interest cost 8.6 8.6 6.9 6.8 1.5 1.6 

Actuarial (gain) loss (37.5) (22.1) (41.1) (20.9) 3.1 

Plan amendments - (1.4) - - - (1.4) 

Curtailments - 0.4 

Retiree drug subsidy program 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.1 

Benefits paid (11.1) (17.5) (8.6) (12.0) (2.4) (5.3) 

Benefit obligation, end of year $ 208.1 $ 238.5 $ 158.8 $ 192.5 $ 43.1 $ 40.6 

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of plan assets 
at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 265.5 $ 246.4 $ 174.9 $ 159.7 $ 86.4 $ 82.8 

Actual reh1111 on plan assets 21.5 26.2 15.6 16.8 5.6 8.9 

Employer contributions 7.6 10.4 7.6 10.4 

Benefits paid (11.1) (17.5) (8.6) (12.0) (2.4) (5.3) 

Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 283.5 $ 265.5 $ 189.5 $ 174.9 $ 89.6 $ 86.4 

Funded status of plans, end of year $ 75.4 $ 27.0 $ 30.7 $ (17.6) $ 46.5 $ 45.8 

The following table sets forth the amounts recognized in the balance sheets at September 30: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Current assets $ - $ 1.4 $ - $ 1.4 $ - $ 

Noncurrent assets 92.0 47.0 45.5 1.2 46.5 45.8 

Current liabilities (0.5) (0.4) (0.5) (0.4) 

Noncurrent liabilities (16.1) (21.0) (14.3) (19.8) 

Total $ 75.4 $ 27.0 $ 30.7 $ (17.6) $ 46.5 $ 45.8 
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Pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss not yet recognized as components of net 
periodic postretirement benefit cost consist of: 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Net actuarial loss (gain) $ (44.4) $ 1.5 $ (35.7) $ 12.3 $ (8.0) $ (9.7) 

Prior service credit (6.6) (6.6) (4.0) (3.7) (2.6) (2.9) 

Subtotal (51.0) (5.1) (39.7) 8.6 (10.6) (12.6) 

Adjustments for amounts included in regulatory assets 51.0 5.1 39.7 (8.6) 10.6 12.6 

Total $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

At September 30, 2018, the following pre-tax amounts are expected to be ammiized from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss into net periodic postretirement benefit cost during fiscal 2019: 

Amortization of net actuarial loss 
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost 

Subtotal 

Regulato1y adjustment 

Total 

Spire 
$ 

$ 

(0.5) $ 

(0.1) 

(0.6) 

0.6 

$ 

Spire 
Missouri 

Sfiire 
Ala aina 

(0.5) $ 

0.3 (0.4) 

(0.2) (0.4) 

0.2 0.4 

- $ 

The assumptions used to calculate net periodic postretirement benefit costs for Spire Missouri are as follows: 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri East plans 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri West plans 

Weighted average rate of future compensation increase 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets - Spire Missouri East plans 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets - Spire Missouri West plans 

2018 

3.60% 

3.60% 

~.00% 

S.75%/7.75% 

5.75% 

2017 2016 

3.15% 4.00% 

3.45% 4.30% 

3.00% 3.00% 

5.75%/7.75% 6.00%/7. 75% 

5.50% 4.75% 

The assumptions used to calculate net pe1iodic postretirement benefit costs for Spire Alabama are as follows: 

Weighted average discount rate 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 

2018 

3.80% 

3.75%/6.00% 

2017 

3.60% 

4.00%/6.25% 

2016 

4.50% 

4.50%/7.25% 

The weighted average discount rate is based on long-term, high quality bond indices at the measurement date. The 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and 
planned asset classes in the investment potifolio. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were 
selected after analyzing historical experience and future expectations of the returns. The overall expected rate of 
return for the portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each class. 

The assumptions used to calculate the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations are as follows: 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Alabama plans 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri East plans 

Weighted average discount rate - Spire Missouri West plans 

Weighted average rate of future compensation increase - Spire Missouri East plans 
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2018 2017 

4.30% 

4.30% 

4.30% 

3.00% 

3.80% 

3.60% 

3.60% 

3.00% 



The assumed medical cost trend rates at September 30 are as follows: 

Medical cost trend assumed for next year - Spire Missouri 

Medical cost trend assumed for next year - Spire A1abarna 
Rate to which the medical cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate medical cost trend rate) 

Year the rate reaches the ultimate trend 

2018 2017 

7.00% 

7.00% 

5.00% 

2025 

7.25% 

7.25% 

5.00% 

2023 

The following table presents the effects of an assumed 1% change in the assumed medical cost trend rate: 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 

Spire Spire Missouri Spire Alabama 

1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

$ 1.4 $ 
8.4 

(1.3) $ 
(7.7) 

1.2 $ 
6.0 

(1.1) $ 
(5.6) 

0.1 $ 

1.6 

(0.1) 

(1.5) 

Following are the targeted and actual plan assets by catego1y as of September 30 of each year for Spire Missouri and 
Spire Alabama: 

2018 2017 
Spire Missouri Target Actual Actual 

Equity securities 60.0% 58.8% 59.0% 

Debt securities 40.0% 39.1% 39.4% 

Other (cash and cash equivalents held to make benefit payments) -% 2.1% 1.6% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

2018 2017 
Spire Alabama Target Actual Achrnl 

Equity securities 60.0% 60.0% 60.1% 

Debt securities 40.0% 40.0% 39.9% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Missouri and Alabama state laws provide for the recove1y in rates of costs accrued pursuant to GAAP provided that 
such costs are funded through an independent, external funding mechanism. The Utilities have established 
Volunta1y Employees' Beneficiary Association and Rabbi Trusts as external funding mechanisms. Their investment 
policies seek to maximize investment returns consistent with their tolerance for risk. Outside investment 
management specialists are utilized in each asset class. Such specialists are provided with guidelines, where 
appropriate, designed to ensure that the investment portfolio is managed in accordance with policy. Performance 
and compliance with the guidelines is regularly monitored. Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama currently invest in 
mutual funds which are rebalanced periodically to the target allocation. The mutual funds are diversified across U.S. 
stock and bond markets, and for Spire Alabama, international stock markets. 

Following are expected postretirement benefit payments for the succeeding five fiscal years, and in aggregate for the 
five fiscal years thereafter for Spire, Spire Missouri, and Spire Alabama: 

2024-
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2028 

Spire $ 14.2 $ 15.3 $ 16.3 $ 16.9 $ 17.9 $ 93.9 

Spire Missouri 10.8 11.8 12.8 13.4 14.3 76.4 

Spire Alabama 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2 15.1 

The Utilities' funding policy is to contribute amounts to the trusts equal to the periodic benefit cost calculated 
pursuant to GAAP as recovered in rates. For Spire Missouri, contributions to the postretirement plans in fiscal 2019 
are anticipated to be $1.9 to the qualified trusts and $0.5 paid directly to pa1ticipants from Spire Missouri funds. It 
is not anticipated that contributions will be made to the Spire Alabama postretirement plans in fiscal 2019. 
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Other Plans 

Spire Services Inc. sponsors a 401(k) plan that cover substantially all employees of Spire Inc. and its subsidiaries. 
The plan allows employees to contribute a portion of their base pay in accordance with specific guidelines. The cost 
of the defined contribution pian for Spire Inc. totaled $12.2, $11.5, and $10.5 for fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, 
respectively. Spire Missouri provides a match of such contributions within specific limits. The cost of the defined 
contribution plan for Spire Missouri amounted to $9.0, $8.4, and $8.2 for fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, 
respectively. Spire Alabama also provides a match of employee contributions within specific limits. The cost of the 
defined contribution plan for Spire Alabama amounted to $3.0, $2.7, and $2.3 for fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, 
respectively. 

Fair Value Measm·ements of Pension and Other Posh·etirement Plan Assets 

Spire 

The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of the Spire pension plan assets: 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant 
in Active Observable Unobservable 
Markets Inputs Inputs 
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50.6 $ - $ - $ 50.6 

Equity mutual funds - U.S. 42.7 21.2 - 63.9 

Equity mutual funds - international 20.7 4.1 - 24.8 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds 35.8 64.9 - 100.7 

U.S. government 31.7 5.6 - 37.3 

U.S. corporate 152.1 - - 152.1 

U.S. municipal 3.6 3.0 6.6 

International 43.9 7.0 - 50.9 

Derivatives and margin (payable) (0.8) - - (0.8) 

103-12 Direct Fi1ing Entities - 13.1 - 13.1 

Total $ 380.3 $ 118.9 $ - $ 499.2 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 37.3 $ - $ - $ 37.3 

Equity mutual funds - U.S. 42.1 25.4 - 67.5 

Equity muhial funds_ - international 37.4 11.2 - 48.6 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds 34.4 68.5 - 102.9 

U.S. government 33.2 4.5 - 37.7 

U.S. corporate 183.7 - - 183.7 

U.S. municipal 4.2 - - 4.2 

International 45.1 7.2 - 52.3 

Derivatives and margin (payable) (2.6) - - (2.6) 

Total $ 414.8 $ 116.8 $ - $ 531.6 
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The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of Spire's postretirement plan assets: 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant 
in Active Observable Unobservable 
Markets Inputs Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3.7 $ - $ - $ 3.7 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds 190.2 74.5 - 264.7 

International fund - 15.1 - 15.1 

Total $ 193.9 $ 89.6 $ - $ 283.5 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4.0 $ - $ - $ 4.0 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds 174.1 71.7 - 245.8 

International fund 1.0 14.7 - 15.7 

Total $ 179.1 $ 86.4 $ - $ 265.5 

Cash and cash equivalents include money market mutual funds valued based on quoted market prices. Fair values 
of derivative instruments are calculated by investment managers who nse valuation models that incorporate 
observable market inputs. Debt securities are valued based on broker/dealer quotations or by using observable 
market inputs. The stock and bond mutual funds are valued at the quoted market price of the identical securities. 

Spire Missouri 

The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of Spire Missouri's pension plan assets: 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Significant 
Observable 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Markets Inputs Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 35.2 $ - $ - $ 35.2 

Equity muhml funds - U.S. - 8.4 - 8.4 

Equity mutual funds - international - 4.1 - 4.1 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds - 64.9 - 64.9 

U.S. government 31.7 3.0 - 34.7 

U.S. corporate 152.1 - - 152.1 

U.S. municipal 3.6 3.0 - 6.6 

International 43.9 - - 43.9 

Derivatives and margin (payable) (0.8) - - (0.8) 

Total $ 265.7 $ 83.4 $ - $ 349.1 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 31.7 $ - $ - $ 31.7 

Equity mutual funds - U.S. - 11.9 - 11.9 

Equity mutual funds - international - 5.7 - 5.7 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds - 68.5 - 68.5 

U.S. government 33.2 4.5 - 37.7 

U.S. corporate 183.7 - - 183.7 

U.S. municipal 4.2 - - 4.2 

International 45.1 - - 45.1 

Derivatives and margin (payable) (2.6) - - (2.6) 

Total $ 295.3 $ 90.6 $ - $ 385.9 
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The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of Spire Missouri's postretirement plan assets: 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant 
in Active Observable Unobservable 
l\Iarkets Inputs Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3.5 $ - $ - $ 3.5 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds 186.0 - - 186.0 

Total $ 189.5 $ - $ - $ 189.5 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3.9 $ - $ - $ 3.9 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds 171.0 - - 171.0 

Total $ 174.9 $ - $ - $ 174.9 

Cash and cash equivalents include money market mutual funds valued based on quoted market prices. Fair values 
of derivative instruments are calculated by investment managers who use valuation models that incorporate 
observable market inputs. Debt securities are valued based on broker/dealer quotations or by using observable 
market inputs. The stock and bond mutual funds are valued at the quoted market price of the identical securities. 

Spire Alabama 

The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of Spire Alabama's pension plan assets: 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant 
in Active Obsen•able Unobservable 
Markets Inputs Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10.'1 < - < $ 10.4 • • 
Equity mutual funds - U.S. 28.8 8.6 - 37.4 

Equity mutual funds - international 14.0 - - 14.0 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds 24.2 - - 24.2 

U.S. government - 1.8 - 1.8 

International - 4.7 - 4.7 

103-12 Direct Filing Entities - 8.8 - 8.8 

Total $ 77.4 $ 23.9 $ - $ 101.3 

As of September 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3.4 $ - $ - $ 3.4 

Equity mutual funds - U.S. 28.4 9.1 - 37.5 

Equity mutual funds - international 25.2 3.7 - 28.9 

Debt securities: 

U.S. bond mutual funds 23.2 - - 23.2 

International - 4.9 - 4.9 

Total $ 80.2 $ 17.7 $ - $ 97.9 
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The table below categorizes the fair value measurements of Spire Alabama's postretirement plan assets: 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Significant 
Observable 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Markets 
(Level 1) 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

Inputs 
(Level3) Total 

As of September 30, 2018 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds $ - $ 74.5 $ - $ 74.5 

International fund - 15.1 - 15.1 

Total $ - $ 89.6 $ - $ 89.6 

As of September 30, 2017 

U.S. stock/bond mutual funds $ - $ 71.7 $ - $ 71.7 

International fund - 14.7 - 14.7 

Total $ - $ 86.4 $ - $ 86.4 

Cash and cash equivalents include money market mutual funds valued based on quoted market prices. Fair values 
of derivative instruments are calculated by investment managers who use valuation models that incorporate 
observable market inputs. Debt securities are valued based on broker/dealer quotations or by using observable 
market inputs. The stock and bond mutual funds are valued at the quoted market p1ice of the identical secmities. 

13. INFORMATION BY OPERATING SEGMENT 

The Company has two rep011able segments: Gas Utility and Gas Marketing. The Gas Utility segment is the 
aggregation of the operations of the Utilities. The Gas Marketing segment includes the results of Spire Marketing, a 
subsidiary engaged in the non-regulated marketing of natural gas and related activities, including utilizing natural 
gas storage contracts for providing natural gas sales. Other includes: 

unallocated corporate items, including ce11ain debt and associated interest costs; 
Spire STL Pipeline, a subsidiary of Spire planning the construction and operation of a 65-milc FERC­
regulated pipeline to deliver natural gas into eastern Missomi; 
Spire Storage, providing physical natural gas storage services; and 
Spire's subsidiaries engaged in the operation of a propane pipeline, compression of natural gas, and risk 
management, among other activities. 

Accounting policies are described in Note 1, Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies. Intersegment transactions 
include sales of natural gas from Spire Marketing to Spire Missouri, sales of natural gas from Spire Missouri to Spire 
Marketing, propane transportation se1vices provided by Spire NGL Inc. to Spire Missouri, and propane storage 
services provided by Spire Missouri to Spire NGL Inc. 

Management evaluates the pe1formance of the operating segments based on the computation of net economic 
earnings. Net economic earnings exclude from reported net income the after-tax impacts of fair value accounting 
and timing adjustments associated with energy-related transactions, the impacts of acquisition, divestiture and 
restructuring activities, and the largely non-cash impacts of other non-recurring or unusual items such as ce11ain 
regulato1y, legislative or GAAP standard-setting actions. In fiscal 2018, these items include the revaluation of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities due to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and the wdte-off of certain long-standing assets 
as a result of disallowances in our Missouri rate proceedings. 
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Gas Gas 
2018 Utility Marketing Other Eliminations Consolidated 
Revenues from external customers $ 1,888.0 $ 71.6 $ 5.4 $ - $ 1,965.0 

Intersegment revenues 0.4 - li.1 (ii.Sj 

Total Operating Revenues 1,888.4 71.6 16.5 (11.5) 1,965.0 

Operating Expenses 

Gas Utility 

Natural and propane gas 842.6 - - (72.5) 770.1 

Other operation and maintenance 464.1 - - (8.5) 455.6 

Depreciation and amortization 167.0 - - - 167.0 

Taxes, other than income taxes 152.5 - - - 152.5 

Total Gas Utility Operating Expenses 1,626.2 - - (81.0) 1,545.2 

Gas Marketing and Other* - 37.8 32.8 69.5 140.1 

Total Operating Expenses 1,626.2 37.8 32.8 (11.5) 1,685.3 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 262.2 $ 33.8 $ (16.3) $ - $ 279.7 

Net Economic Earnings (Loss) $ 183.1 $ 22.9 $ (22.3) $ - $ 183.7 

Capital Expenditures $ 457.7 $ - $ 41.7 $ - $ 499.4 

Gas Gas 
2017 Utility Marketing Other Eliminations Consolidated 
Revenues from external customers $ 1,660.0 $ 79.3 $ 1.4 $ - $ 1,740.7 

Intersegment revenues 7.9 - 6.3 (14.2) 

Total Operating Revenues 1,667.9 79.3 7.7 (14.2) 1,740.7 

Operating Expenses 

Gas Utility 

Natural and propane gas 645.9 - - (75.4) 570.5 
Other o·peration and maintenance 409.1 - - (4.1) 405.0 

Depreciation and amortization 153.5 - - - 153.5 

Taxes, other than income taxes 137.8 - - - 137.8 

Total Gas Utility Operating Expenses 1,346.3 - - (79.5) 1,266.8 

Gas Marketing and Other* - 74.1 12.8 65.3 152.2 

Total Operating Expenses 1,346.3 74.1 12.8 (14.2) 1,419.0 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 321.6 $ 5.2 $ (5.1) $ - $ 321.7 

Net Economic Earnings (Loss) $ 181.5 $ 6.8 $ (20.7) $ - $ 167.6 

Capital Expenditures $ 412.6 $ - $ 25.5 $ - $ 438.1 
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Gas Gas 
2016 Utility Marketing Other Eliminations Consolidated 
Revenues from external customers $ 1,457.2 $ 78.5 $ 1.6 $ - $ 1,537.3 
Intersegment revenues 2.2 - 3.2 (5.4j 

Total Operating Revenues 1,459.4 78.5 4.8 (5.4) 1,537.3 
Operating Expenses 

Gas Utility 

Natural and propane gas 539.7 - - (47.5) 492.2 
Other operation and maintenance 379.3 - - (1.8) 377.5 
Depreciation and amortization 136.9 - - - 136.9 
Taxes, other than income taxes 125.2 - - - 125.2 

Total Gas Utility Operating Expenses 1,181.1 - - (49.3) 1,131.8 
Gas Marketing and Other• - 66.7 12.6 43.9 123.2 

Total Operating Expenses 1,181.1 66.7 12.6 (5.4) 1,255.0 
Operating Income (Loss) $ 278.3 $ 11.8 $ (7.8) $ - $ 282.3 
Net Economic Earnings (Loss) $ 160.3 $ 6.4 $ (17.6) $ - $ 149.1 
Capital Expenditures $ 291.7 $ - $ 1.6 $ - $ 293.3 

* Operating Expenses for "Gas Marketing and Other" include depreciation and amortization for Gas Marketing ($0.0 for 2018, 
$0.1 for 2017, and $0.1 for 2016) and for Other ($1.4 for 2018, $0.5 for 2017, and $0.5 for 2016). 

Total Assets at End of Year 2018 2017 2016 

Gas Utility $ 5,606.7 $ 5,551.2 $ 5,184.7 
Gas Marketing 295.3 246.2 205.0 
Other 2,508.0 2,239.5 1,836.6 
Eliminations {1,566.4) (1,490.2} {1,161.9) 

Total Assets $ 6,843.6 $ 6,546.7 $ 6,064.4 

Reconciliation of Consolidated Net Income 
to Consolidated Net Economic Earnings 2018 2017 2016 

Net Income $ 214.2 $ 161.6 $ 144.2 
Adjustments, pre-tax: 

Missouri regulatory adjustments 30.6 

Unrealized (gain) loss on energy-related derivatives (4.0) 6.0 (0.1) 

Lower of cost or market inventory adjustments - - 0.2 
Realized gain on economic hedges prior 

to the sale of the physical commodity (0.3) (0.3) (1.6) 
Acquisition, divestiture and restructuring activities 13.6 4.0 9.2 

Income tax effect of adjustments (10.3) (3.7) (2.8) 
Effect of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (60.1) 

Net Economic Earnings $ 183.7 $ 167.6 $ 149.1 

14. REGULATORY MATTERS 

As discussed below for Spire Missoud and Spire Alabama, the Purchased Gas Adjustment ("PGA") clauses and Gas 
Supply Adjustment ("GSA") riders allow the Utilities to pass through to customers the cost of purchased gas 
supplies. Regulatmy assets and regulatory liabilities related to the PGA clauses and the GSA rider are both labeled 
Unamortized Purchased Gas Adjustments herein. 
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The following regulat01y assets and regulatory liabilities were reflected in the Balance Sheets as of September 30, 
2018 and 2017. Unamortized Purchased Gas Adjustments are also included below, which are reported separately in 
the current assets and liabilities sections of each balance sheet. 

September 30 
Regulato1y Assets: 

Current: 
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 

Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 
Other 

Total Current Regulato1y Assets 
Noncurrent: 

Future income taxes due from customers 
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 

Cost of removal 
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 
Energy efficiency 
Other 

Total Noncurrent Regulatory Assets 
Total Regulatory Assets 

Regulatmy Liabilities: 
Current: 

Rate Stabilization and Equalization ("RSE") 
adjustment 
Refundable negative salvage 
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 

Other 
Total Current Regulato1y Liabilities 

Non current: 
Deferred taxes due to customers 
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 
Refundable negative salvage 
Accrued cost of removal 
Unamortized purchased gas adjustments 
Other 

Total Noncurrent Regulatory Liabilities 
Total Regulatory Liabilities 

Spire 
2018 2017 

$ 30.2 $ 
8.2 

34.4 

72.8 

96.3 

364.9 

133.4 

32.8 

42.4 

669.8 

$ 742.6 $ 

$ 
5.2 

2.9 

27.6 

35.7 

178.3 

27.8 

63.6 

4.7 

80.2 

354.6 

$ 

$ 390.3 $ 

42.2 $ 
102.6 

30.7 

175.5 

170.5 

404.7 

123.3 

9.9 

29.0 

53.7 

791.1 

966.6 $ 

1.4 $ 
8.2 

1.0 

12.0 

22.6 

32.2 

4.1 

83.8 

1.9 

35.2 

157.2 

179.8 $ 

Spire Missouri 
2018 2017 

21.9 $ 
1.0 

7.8 

30.7 

94.4 

292.5 

32.8 

21.4 

441.1 

471.8 $ 

1.9 

14.8 

16.7 

161.1 

39.8 

4.7 

69.3 

274.9 

$ 

291.6 $ 

34.9 $ 
57.4 

3.3 

95.6 

170.5 

322.7 

9.9 

29.0 

25.7 

557.8 

653.4 $_ 

2.7 

2.7 

54.5 

1.9 

24.8 

81.2 

$ 

83.9 $_ 

Spire Alabama 
2018 2017 

7.3 $ 
6.4 

12.5 

26.2 

64.8 

133.4 

7.2 

45.2 

12.2 

64.6 

72.6 

123.3 

3.3 1.1 

201.5 197.0 

227.7 $ 261.6 

$ 
5.2 

2.4 

7.6 

27.8 

3.5 

31.3 

1.4 

8.2 

2.4 

12.0 

32.2 

4.1 

3.3 

39.6 

51.6 38.9 =$=== 

A po1tion of the Company's regulatory assets are not earning a return and are shown in the schedule below: 

September 30 
Pension and postretirement benefit costs 
Future income taxes due from customers 
Other 

Total Regulatory Assets Not Earning a Return 

$ 

~ 

Spire 
2018 

148.4 $ 
96.3 

15.1 

259.8 j_ 

2017 

170.5 

198.5 

11.3 

$ 

380.3 j_ 

Spire Missouri 
2018 2017 

148.4 $ 170.5 

94.4 198.5 

15.1 11.3 

J80.3 257.9 =$=== 

Like all the Company's regulato1y assets, these regulat01y assets are expected to be recovered from customers in 
future rates. The recove1y period for the future income taxes due from customers and pension and other 
postretirement benefit costs could be as long as 20 years or longer, based on current Internal Revenue Service 
guidelines and average remaining service life of active pa1ticipants, respectively. The other items not earning a 
return are expected to be recovered over a period not to exceed 15 years, consistent with precedent set by the 
MoPSC. Spire Alabama does not have any regulatory assets that are not earning a return. 
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Spire Missouri 

As authorized by the MoPSC, the PGA clause allows Spire Missouri to flow through to customers, subject to 
prndence review by the MoPSC, the cost of purchased gas supplies. To better match customer billings with market 
natural gas prices, Spire Missouri is allowed to file to modify, on a periodic basis, the level of gas costs in its PGA. 
Certain provisions of the PGA clause are included below: 

Spire Missouri has a risk management policy that allows for the purchase of natural gas derivative instruments 
with the goal of managing price risk associated with purchasing natural gas on behalf of its customers. The 
MoPSC clarified that costs, cost reductions, and canying costs associated with the Utility's use of natural gas 
derivative instruments are gas costs recoverable through the PGA mechanism. 

The tariffs allow Spire Missouri flexibility to make up to three discretionmy PGA changes during each year, in 
addition to its mandat01y November PGA change, so long as such changes are separated by at least two 
months. 

Spire Missouri is authorized to apply canying costs to all over- or under-recoveries of gas costs, including costs 
and cost reductions associated with the use of derivative instrnments, including cash payments for margin 
deposits. 

The MoPSC approved a plan applicable to Spire Missouri's gas supply commodity costs under which it retains 
a portion of cost savings associated with the acquisition of natural gas below an established benchmark level. 
This gas supply cost management program allows Spire Missouri to retain 10% of cost savings, up to a 
maximum of $3.0 annually. Spire Missouri did not record any such incentive compensation under the plan 
during the three fiscal years reported. Incentives recorded under the plan, if any, are included in Gas Utility 
Operating Revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Income and under Operating Revenues on Spire 
Missouri's Statements of Comprehensive Income. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA clause, the difference between actual costs incurred and costs recovered 
through the application of the PGA clause are reflected as a deferred charge or credit at the end of the fiscal year. At 
that time, the balance is classified as a cunent asset or current liability and recovered from, or credited to, 
customers over an annual period commencing in November. The balance in the current account is amo1tized as 
amounts are reflected in customer billings. 

The PGA clause also provides for the treatment of income from off-system sales and capacity release revenues. Pre­
tax income from off-system sales and capacity release revenues is shared with customers, with an estimated amount 
assumed in PGA rates. The difference between the actual amount allocated to customers for each fiscal year and the 
estimated amount assumed in PGA rates is recovered from, or credited to, customers over an annual period 
commencing in the subsequent November. Before April 19, 2018, the customer share of such income was 
determined in accordance with the following tables, shown for each service territory for which the PGA clauses were 
approved by the MoPSC. 

Spire Missouri East 
First $2.0 of pre-tax income* 

Next $2.0 of pre-tax income 

Customer Share 

85% 

80% 

Company Share 

15% 

20% 

Next $2.0 of pre-tax income 75% 25% 
Amounts of pre-tax income exceeding $6.o 70% 30% 
* Customer share was set to 85% and company share set to 15% in fiscal 2017. For fiscal 2016, the customer share was 100%. 

Spire Missouri West 

First $1.2 of pre-tax income 

Next $1.2 of pre-tax income 
Next $1.2 of pre-tax income 

Amounts of pre-tax income exceeding $3.6 

85% 

80% 

75% 

70% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

In the latest rate cases (discussed in the following paragraphs), the multiple sharing tiers and percentages were 
eliminated in favor of a single sharing percentage under which customers receive 75% (and Spire Missouri East and 
Spire Missouri West receive 25%) of the net margins achieved as a result of such off-system sales and capacity 
releases. 
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On March 7, 2018, the MoPSC issued an Amended Report and Order (the "Order") in two general rate cases 
(docketed as GR-2017-0215 and GR-2017-0216) approving a base rate revenue requirement increase of $18.0 for 
Spire Missouri East and $15.2 for Spire Missouri West. The annualized Infrastructure System Replacement 
Surcharge {"ISRS") mnounts of $32.6 for Spire :Missouri East and $16.4 for Spire fdissouri \Vest were reset to zero, 
resulting in a net decrease in revenues of $14.6 and $1.2, respectively. These net amounts reflect decreases totaling 
approximately $33.0 resulting from the TCJA's federal income tax rate reduction and a related allowance to return 
excess accumulated deferred income taxes to customers in accordance with Internal Revenue Service normalization 
requirements. Tariffs reflecting the Order went into effect on April 19, 2018. 

Included in the Order were updates to the treatment of pension and other postretirement benefits. Effective April 
19, 2018, the pension cost for Spire Missouri West included in customer rates was reduced from $9.9 to $5.5 per 
year, the pension cost included in the Spire Missouri East customer rates was increased from $15.5 to $29.0 per 
year, and the annual allowance for health care postretirement plans for Spire Missouri East was reduced from $9.5 
to $8.6. Over a period of eight years, Spire Missouri East rates will also include the amortization of $173.0 of assets 
for pension and other postretirement benefits, and Spire Missouri West rates were reduced by the amortization of a 
$26.2 net liability for pension and other postretirement benefits. 

Certain provisions of the Order allow less future recove1y of ce1tain deferred or capitalized costs than estimated 
based upon previous rate proceedings. The Order denied recove1y of $28.8 regulat01y asset related to certain 
pension costs incurred prior to 1997. The Order also excluded from rate base certain incentive compensation costs 
totaling $6.9, along with $1.8 of assets related to real estate sold in 2014. Rate case expenses totaling $0.9 were also 
disallowed. On April 25, 2018, Spire Missouri filed an appeal of the MoPSC's decisions on the pension asset, the real 
estate sale, and rate case expense to Missouri's Southern Disltict Court of Appeals. Spire Missouri filed its initial 
brief in that comt on October 17, 2018. Though the appeal is pending on these issues, management determined that 
the related assets, along ,vith the incentive compensation exclusion, should be written down or off in connection 
with the preparation of the financial statements for the second qumter of 2018. For both Spire and Spire Missouri, 
the charges totaled $38,4 for the year ended September 30, 2018, and are included primarily in operation and 
maintenance expense on the statements of income and in other cash flows from operating activities on the 
statements of cash flows. The after-tax reduction to net income and earnings per share was $23.6 and $0.49, 
respectively. The charges related tu the long-standing pension and real estate assets, totaling $30.6, are excluded in 
the determination of net economic earnings, as shown in Note 13, Information by Operating Segment. 

On September 30, 2016, Spire Missouri filed ISRS cases for both Spire Missomi East and Spire Missomi West (the 
"2016 ISRS Cases") and rates of $4.5 and $3.2, respectively, became effective January 28, 2017. The Missomi Office 
of the Public Counsel ("OPC") appealed the MoPSC's decisions on the 2016 ISRS Cases to Missomi's Western 
District Comt of Appeals, arguing that a p01tion of these costs were ineligible because some plastic pipe was 
replaced along with the cast iron and bare steel. On February 3, 2017, Spire Missouri filed to increase its ISRS 
revenues in both its East and West service ter1ito1ies (the "2017 ISRS Cases"). The pa1ties agreed to apply the 
outcome of the appeal in the 2016 ISRS Cases to the 2017 ISRS Cases, and $3.0 in rates for each of the two service 
territories became effective June 1, 2017. On November 21, 2017, the comt reversed the MoPSC's decision in the 
2016 ISRS Cases to the extent costs were incurred to replace ISRS-ineligible plastic pipe and remanded the case to 
the MoPSC for fu1ther proceedings. 

On June 7, 2018, Spire Missouri filed to establish new ISRS rates in both its East and West divisions (the "2018 
ISRS Cases"), requesting a $4.8 and $7.1 increase, respectively. On August 27, 2018, the MoPSC held a hearing on 
the plastics issue related to all of the above noted ISRS cases. On September 20, 2018, the MoPSC issued orders 
finding that Spire Missouri's ISRS petitions in all three ISRS cases included ineligible costs related to the 
replacement of plastic pipe components. However, the MoPSC found that it lacked statutory authority to refund 
ineligible costs in the 2016 and 2017 ISRS Cases. On September 28, 2018 the MoPSC approved rates in the 2018 
ISRS Cases of $2.6 for Spire Missouri East and $5,4 for Spire Missouri West, which became effective October 8, 
2018. Spire Missouri and the OPC have both filed applications for rehearing in all of these ISRS cases. The MoPSC 
denied the rehearing for the 2016 and 2017 ISRS Cases on October 17, 2018, which OPC has appealed to the 
Western District Court. The MoPSC has not yet made a determination in the 2018 ISRS Cases. 

On September 20, 2018, the MoPSC approved financing authority for Spire Missomi in the amount of $500.0, 
effective October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2021. 
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Spire Alabama 

Spire Alabama's rate schedules for natural gas distribution charges contain a GSA rider, established by the APSC in 
1993, which permits the pass-through to customers of changes in the cost of gas supply. Spire Alabama's tariff 
provides a temperature adjustment mechanism, also included in ihe GSA rider, which is designed to moderate the 
impact of depa1tures from normal temperatures on Spire Alabama's eamings. The temperature adjustment applies 
primarily to residential, small commercial and small industrial customers. Other non-temperature weather-related 
conditions that may affect customer usage are not included in the temperature adjustment. 

The APSC established the RSE rate-setting process in 1983. Effective Januaiy 1, 2014, Spire Alabama's allowed 
range of retum on average common equity was 10.5% to 10.95% with an adjusting point of 10.8%. Spire Alabama 
was eligible to receive a pe1formance-based adjustment of 5 basis points to the retum on equity adjusting point, 
based on meeting ce1tain customer satisfaction criteria. Under RSE, the APSC conducts quarterly reviews to 
determine whether Spire Alabama's retum on average common equity at the end of the rate year will be within the 
allowed range of retum. Reductions in rates can be made quaiterly to bring the projected return within the allowed 
range; increases, however, are allowed only once each rate year, effective December 1, and cannot exceed 4% of 
prior-year revenues. In October 2018, the APSC approved the renewal of RSE through September 30, 2022, with 
several modifications. Effective October 1, 2018, Spire Alabama's allowed range of return on average common 
equity is 10.15% to 10.65% with an adjusting point of 10,4%. Spire Alabama is eligible to receive a performance­
based adjustment of +/-10 basis point to the return on equity adjusting point, based upon the terms of the newly 
approved Accelerated Infrastructure Modernization Program tariff. The 5-basis point adjustment for ce1tain 
customer satisfaction criteria has been removed. Other modifications include an equity limitation as a percent of 
total capitalization from 56.5% to 55.5% and adjustments to the Cost Control Measure ("CCM") as noted below. 

The RSE reduction for the September 30, 2017 qnaiterly point of test was $2.7 to bring the expected rate of retum 
on average common equity at the end of the year to within the allowed range of return, effective December 1, 2017. 
As pa1t of the annual update for RSE, on November 30, 2017, Spire Alabama filed an increase for rate year 2018 of 
$8.5, which also became effective December 1, 2017. There was no RSE reduction in 2018 for the Janua1y 31, April 
30, July 31 or September 30 quarterly points oftest. Effective Februa1y 1, 2018, Spire Alabama rates were reduced 
by $12.8 to reflect the impact of tax reform under the TCJA on current income truces. 

The inflation-based CCM, established by the APSC, allows for annual increases to operation and maintenance 
("O&M") expense. For the three years ended September 30, 2018, the CCM range was Spire Alabama's 2007 actual 
rate year O&M expense inflation-adjusted using an index range based on the June Consumer Price Index For All 
Urban Consumers ("CPI-U'') each rate year plus or minus 1.75%. Ifrate year O&M expense falls within the index 
range, no adjustment is required. If rate year O&M expense exceeds the index range, three-quarters of the 
difference is returned to customers through future rate adjustments. To the extent rate year O&M is less than the 
index range, Spire Alabama benefits by one-half of the difference through future rate adjustments. Certain items 
that fluctuate based on situations demonstrated to be beyond Spire Alabama's control may be excluded from the 
CCM calculation. As of September 30, 2018, Spire Alabama recorded a CCM benefit of $9.7 for rate year 2018, 
which will be reflected in rates effective December 1, 2018. The CCM benefit was $10.7 for rate year 2017 and $7.8 
for rate year 2016. Effective October 1, 2018, the CCM will be calculated based upon O&M expense per customer 
and the O&M base year will be Spire Alabama's actual 2018 O&M expense with an adjustment to that base in 2019 
of 2/3 of the 2018 CCM differential (amount below the CCM range in 2018) aud au adjustment in 2020 of 1/3 of the 
2018 CCM differential, with uo adjustment to the base in 2021 and 2022. Spire Alabama's 2018 actual rate year 
O&M expense will be inflation adjusted using a new index range based on the June CPI-U each rate year plus or 
minus 1.50%. 

On June 28, 2010, theAPSC approved a reduction in depreciation rates, effective June 1, 2010, and a regulatory 
liability to be recorded for Spire Alabama. Refunds from such negative salvage liability are being passed back to 
eligible customers on a declining basis through lower tariff rates through rate year 2019 pursuant to the terms of the 
Negative Salvage Rebalancing ("NSR") rider. The total amount refundable to customers is subject to adjustments 
over the remaining period for charges made to the Enhanced Stability Reserve ("ESR") and other APSC-approved 
charges. The refunds are due to a re-estimation of future removal costs provided for through the prior depreciation 
rates. For fiscal 2018, 2017, and 2016, NSR amounts returned to customers were approximately $7.2, $6.3, and 
$8.3, respectively. As of September 30, 2018, $5.2 remains to be refunded through rate reductions effective 
December 1, 2018, through March 31, 2019. 
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The APSC approved an ESR in 1998, which was subsequently modified and expanded in 2010. As currently 
approved, the ESR provides deferred treatment and recove1y for the following: (1) extraordina1y O&M expenses 
related to environmental response costs; (2) extraordinaiy O&M expenses related to self-insurance costs that exceed 
$1.0 per occurrence; (3) extraordinary O&M expenses, other than envirmnnental response costs and self-insurance 
costs, resulting from a single force majeure event or multiple force majeure events greater than $0.3 and $0-4, 
respectively, during a rate year; and (4) negative individual large commercial and industrial customer budget 
revenue variances that exceed $0.4 during a rate year. Charges to the ESR are subject to ce1tain limitations which 
may disallow deferred treatment and which prescribe the timing of recove1y. Funding to the ESR is provided as a 
reduction to the refundable negative salvage balance over its nine-year term beginning December 1, 2010. 
Subsequent to the nine-year period and subject to APSC authorization, Spire Alabama expects to be able to recover 
underfunded ESR balances over a five-year amortization period with an annual limitation of $0.7. Amounts in 
excess of this limitation are deferred for recove1y in future years. 

Spire Alabama has APSC approval for an intercompany revolving credit agreement allowing Spire Alabama to 
borrow from Spire in a principal amount not to exceed $200.0 at any time outstanding in combination with its bank 
line of credit, and to loan to Spire in a principal amount not to exceed $25.0 at any time outstanding. Borrowings 
may be used for the following purposes: (a) meeting increased working capital requirements; (b) financing 
construction requirements related to additions, extensions, and replacements of the distribution systems; and (c) 
financing other expenditures that may arise from time to time in the normal course of business. On October 2, 2018, 
theAPSC approved an application for up to $90.0 oflong-term debt financing. 

Spil'e 

In addition to those discussed above for Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, Spire is affected by the following 
regulato1y matters. 

Spire Gulf has similar rate regulation to Spire Alabama. The RSE allowed range of return on average common equity 
is 10.45% to 10.95% with an adjusting point of 10.7%. The CCM has the same return and similar recove1y provisions 
when expenses exceed or are under a band of+/- 1.50% around the CPI-U inflated O&M per customer expense level 
from September 30, 2017, excluding expenses for pensions and gas bad debt. Additionally, it has a Cast Iron Main 
Replacement factor that provides an enhanced return on the pro-rata costs associated with cast iron main 
replacement for miles over 10 miles per year based on a 75% weighting for the equity content. Spire Gulf also has an 
ESR for negative revenue variances over $0.1 or a force majeure event expense of $0.1 (or two events that exceed 
$0.15), a Selflnsurance Reserve for general liability coverage, and an Environmental Cost Recoveiy Factor that 
recovers 90% of prndently incurred costs for compliance with environmental laws, rules and regulations. It also has 
an APSC-approved intercompany revolving credit agreement with Spire to borrow in a principal amount not to 
exceed $50.0, and to loan up to $25.0. 

Spire Gulfs rates were reduced $1.9 effective Februa1y 1, 2018, to reflect lower income taxes resulting from the 
TCJA. 

Spire Mississippi utilizes a formula rate-making process under the Rate Stabilization Adjustment ("RSA") Rider. It 
is based on a formulaically derived return on equity (currently 9.34%), and is updated on an annual basis if the 
equity return on an end of period rate base is beyond the allowed return on equity by 1.0%, with 75% of any shortfall 
back to the midpoint being put into a rate increase and 50% of any excess back to the midpoint resulting in a rate 
decrease. Updates may include known and measurable adjustments to historic costs from the 12 months ended 
June 30, submitted September 15 for an effective date of November 1, unless disputed by the Mississippi Public 
Utilities Staff, with any disputes to be resolved by the MSPSC by Janua1y 15 of the following year. In December 
2015, a Supplemental Growth Rider ("SGR") was approved for a 3-year period to provide recove1y of ce1tain system 
expansion projects. On September 4, 2018, the SGR was extended to October 15, 2021. 

On April 10, 2018, the MSPSC approved an agreement between Spire Mississippi and the Mississippi Public Utility 
Staff settling its Rates Stabilization and Adjustments filing that was made on September 15, 2017, and included 
adjusting the federal income tax rate for the TCJA resulting in a $0.2 reduction in the annualized revenue 
requirement. New rates were effective May 1, 2018. 

In August 2018, FERC approved an order issuing a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity for the Spire 
STL Pipeline, and in November 2018, FERC issued a Notice to Proceed, allowing construction to begin. 

In fiscal 2018, the Company acquired and began integrating two neighboring natural gas storage facilities in 
Wyoming. Both storage facilities fall under FERC jurisdiction, and on July 9, 2018, the Company submitted an 
application with the FERC to abandon the cost-based tariff of the second facility and combine the operations under 
one FERC ce1tificate with the market-based tariff of the first facility. 
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments 

The Company and the Utilities have entered into contracts with various counterpa1ties, expiring on dates through 
2032, for the storage, transpmtation, and supply of natural gas. Minimum payments required under the contracts in 
place at September 30, 2018 are estimated at $1,240.9, $572-4 and $286.5 for the Company, Spire Missouri and 
Spire Alabama, respectively. Additional contracts are generally entered into prior to or during the heating season of 
November through April. The Utilities recover their costs from customers in accordance with their PGA clauses or 
GSA riders. 

Spire NGL Inc. is providing liquid propane transpmtation service to Spire Missouri pursuant to an approved FERC 
tariff and a contractual arrangement with Spire Missouri. In accordance with the terms of that agreement, Spire 
Missouri is obligated to pay Spire NGL Inc. approximately $1.0 annually, at current rates. The agreement renews at 
the end of each contract year, unless terminated by either pa1ty upon provision of at least six months' notice. 

A consolidated subsidiary is a general partner in an unconsolidated partnership that invests in real estate 
partnerships. The subsidiary and third parties are jointly and severally liable for the payment of mortgage loans in 
the aggregate outstanding amount of approximately $1.3 incurred in connection with various real estate ventures. 
Spire has no reason to believe that the other principal liable parties will not be able to meet their proportionate 
share of these obligations. Spire further believes that the asset values of the real estate properties are sufficient to 
support these mmtgage loans. 

Leases 

The lease agreement covering the Company's primaiy office space in Missouri extends through January 2035. The 
lease agreement covering the primary office space of Spire Alabama extends through February 2020. Spire Alabama 
has an operating lease for additional office space that extends to January 31, 2024. Spire Alabama has subleased all 
of this additional office space to Energen pursuant to a sublease that expires on December 31, 2019 with an option 
to extend through January 31, 2024. Spire Missouri, Spire Alabama, Spire Marketing, and other Spire subsidiaries 
have other relatively minor rental arrangements that require minimum rental payments. Aggregate rental expense. 
and annual minimum rental commitments under all leases having an initial or remaining non-cancelable term of 
more than one year are shown below. 

Aggregate Rental Expense Minimum Rental Cmnmitments 

2018 2017 2016 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Later Total 

Spire $ 10.0 $ 9.7 $ 11.9 $ 9.7 $ 7.8 $ 6.7 $ 6.5 $ 6.5 $ 41.3 $ 78.S 

Spire Missouri 3.6 4.8 4.3 1.3 0.6 0.3 0.1 - - 2.3 

Spire Alabama 4.7 4.6 3.7 4.1 2.9 2.1 2.1 2.1 0.7 14.0 

Amounts in the table above have not been reduced for sublease rentals. For Spire Alabama and Spire, annual 
sublease rentals were $2.1 for fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, and minimum future rentals to be received in fiscal 
years 2019 and 2020 are $2.1 and $0.5, respectively. 

Contingencies 

The Company and the Utilities account for contingencies, including environmental liabilities, in accordance with 
accounting standards under the loss contingency guidance of ASC Topic 450, Contingencies, when it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

In addition to matters noted below, the Company and the Utilities are involved in other litigation, claims, and 
investigations arising in the normal course of business. Management, after discussion with counsel, believes the 
final outcome will not have a material effect on the statements of income, balance sheets, and statements of cash 
flows of the Company, Spire Missouri, or Spire Alabama. However, there is uncertainty in the valuation of pending 
claims and prediction oflitigation results. 

The Company and the Utilities own and operate natural gas distribution, transmission, and storage facilities, the 
operations of which are subject to various environmental laws, regulations, and interpretations. While 
environmental issues resulting from such operations arise in the ordinary course of business, such issues have not 
materially affected the Company's or Utilities' financial position and results of operations. As environmental laws, 
regulations, and their interpretations change, the Company or the Utilities may incur additional environmental 
liabilities that may result in additional costs, which may be material. 
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In the natural gas indust1y, many gas distribution companies have incurred environmental liabilities associated 
with sites they or their predecessor companies formerly owned or operated where manufactured gas operations took 
place. The Utilities each have former manufactured gas plant ("MGP") operations in their respective service 
territories. To the extent costs are incurred associated with environmental remediation activities, the Utilities would 
request authority from their respective regulators to defer such costs (less any amounts received from insurance 
proceeds or as contributions from other potentially responsible patties ("PRPs")) and collect them through future 
rates. 

Spire Missouri 

Spire Missouri has identified three former MGP sites in the city of St. Louis, Missouri (the "City") where costs have 
been incurred and claims have been asse1ted. Spire Missouri has enrolled hvo of the sites in the Missouri 
Depaitment of Natural Resources ("MDNR") Brownfields/Voluntaiy Cleanup Program ("BVCP"). The third site is 
the result of a relatively new claim asse1tion by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and 
such claim is currently being investigated. 

In conjunction with redevelopment of one of the sites, Spire Missouri and another fo1mer owner of the site entered 
into an agreement (the "Remediation Agreement") with the City development agencies, the developer, and an 
environmental consultant that obligates one of the City agencies and the environmental consultant to remediate the 
site and obtain a No Fmther Action letter from the MDNR. The Remediation Agreement also provides for a release 
of Spire Missouri and the other former site owner from certain liabilities related to the past and current 
environmental condition of the site and requires the developer and the environmental consultant to maintain 
certain insurance coverage, including remediation cost containment, premises pollution liability, and professional 
liability. The operative provisions of the Remediation Agreement were triggered on December 20, 2010, on which 
date Spire Missouri and the other former site owner, as full consideration under the Remediation Agreement, paid a 
small percentage of the cost of remediation of the site. The amount paid by Spire Missouri did not materially impact 
the financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows of the Company. 

Spire Missouri has not owned the second site for many years. In a letter dated June 29, 2011, the Attorney General 
for the State of Missouri informed Spire Missouri that the MDNR had completed an investigation of the site. The 
Attorney General requested that Spire rviissouri participate in the follow up investigations of the site. lu a letter 
dated Janua1y 10, 2012, Spire Missomi stated that it would pa1ticipate in future environmental response activities 
at the site in conjunction with other PRPs that are willing to contribute to such efforts in a meaningful and equitable 
fashion. Accordingly, Spire Missomi entered into a cost sharing agreement for remedial investigation with other 
PRPs. To date, MDNR has not approved the agreement, so remedial investigation has not yet occurred. 

Additionally, in correspondence dated November 30, 2016, Region 7 of the EPA has asserted that Spire Missouri is 
liable under Section 107(a) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
1980 ("CERCLA") for alleged coal gas waste contamination at a third site in the no1thern p01tion of the City on 
which Spire Missouri operated a MGP. Spire Missouri has not owned or operated the site (also known as Station 
"B") for over 70 years. Spire Missomi and the site owner have met with the EPA and reviewed its asse1tions. Both 
Spire Missouri and the site owner have notified the EPA that information and data provided by the EPA to date does 
not rise to the level of documenting a threat to the public health or environment. As such, Spire Missomi requested 
more information from the EPA, some of which would also be utilized to identify other former owners and operators 
of the site that could be added as PRPs. To date, Spire Missomi has not received a response from the EPA. 

Spire Missouri has notified its insurers that it seeks reimbursement for costs incurred in the past and future 
potential liabilities associated with the MGP sites. While some of the insurers have denied coverage and rese1ved 
their rights, Spire Missouri retains the right to seek potential reimbursements from them. 

On March 10, 2015, Spire Missouri received a Section 104(e) information request under CERCLA from EPA Region 
7 regarding the former Thompson Chemical/Superior Solvents site in the City. In turn, Spire Missomi issued a 
Freedom oflnformation Act ("FOIA") request to the EPA on April 3, 2015, in an effo1t to identify the basis of the 
inquhy. The FOIA response from the EPA was received on July 15, 2015 and a response was provided to the EPA on 
August 15, 2015. Spire Missouri has received no fmther inquhy from the EPA regarding this matter. 
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In its western service area, Spire Missomi has seven owned MGP sites enrolled in the BVCP, including Joplin MGP 
#1, St. Joseph MGP #1, Kansas City Coal Gas Station B, Kansas City Station A Railroad area, Kansas City Coal Gas 
Station A N01th, Kansas City Coal Gas Station A South, and Independence MGP #2. Source removal has been 
conducted at all of the owned sites since 2003 ,vith the exception of Joplin. On September 15, 2016, a request was 
made ,vith the MDNR for a restrictive covenant use limitation with respect to Joplin. Remediation effo1ts at the 
seven sites are at various stages of completion, ranging from groundwater monitoling and sampling following 
source removal activities to the aforementioned request in respect to Joplin. As pmt of its participation in the BVCP, 
Spire Missouri communicates regularly with the MDNR ,vith respect to its remediation efforts and monitoring 
activities at these sites. On May 11, 2015, MDNR approved the next phase of investigation at the Kansas City Station 
A North and Railroad areas. 

To date, costs incurred for all Missouri Utilities' MGP sites for investigation, remediation and monitoring these sites 
have not been material. However, the amount of costs relative to future remedial actions at these and other sites is 
unknown and may be matetial. The actual future costs that Spire Missouri may incur could be matelially higher or 
lower depending upon several factors, including whether remediation actions will be required, final selection and 
regulatory approval of any remedial actions, changing technologies and government regulations, the ultimate ability 
of other PRPs to pay, and any insurance recoveries. 

In 2013, Spire Missomi retained an outside consultant to conduct probabilistic cost modeling of 19 former MGP 
sites owned or operated by Spire Missomi. The purpose of this analysis was to develop an estimated range of 
probabilistic future liability for each site. That analysis, completed in August 2014, provided a range of 
demonstrated possible future expenditures to investigate, monitor and remediate all 19 MGP sites. Spire Missouri 
has recorded its best estimate of the probable expenditures that relate to these matters. The amount is not material. 

Spire Missouri and the Company do not expect potential liabilities that may arise from remediating these sites to 
have a material impact on their future financial condition or results of operations. 

Spire Alabama 

On December 17, 2013, an incident occurred at a Housing Authority apartment complex in Birmingham, Alabama 
that resulted in one fatality, personal injuries and property damage. Spire Alabama cooperated with the National 
Transportation Safety Board ("NTSB") which investigated the incident. The NTSB report of findings was issued on 
March 30, 2016 and no safety recommendations, fines, or penalties were contained therein. Spire Alabama has been 
named as a defendant in several lawsuits a1ising from the incident, some of which remain pending. Spire Alabama 
does not expect potential liabilities that may arise from these lawsuits to have a matetial impact on its future 
financial condition or results of operations. 

Spire Alabama is in the chain of title of nine fonner MGP sites, four of which it still owns, and five former 
manufactured gas disttibution sites, one of which it still owns. Spire Alabama does not foresee a probable or 
reasonably estimable loss associated with these sites. Spire Alabama and the Company do not expect potential 
liabilities that may alise from remediating these sites to have a material impact on their future financial condition or 
results of operations. 

In 2012, Spire Alabama responded to an EPA Request for Information Pursuant to Section 104 of CERCLA relating 
to the 35th Avenue Superfund Site located in North Birmingham, Jefferson County, Alabama. Spire Alabama was 
identified as a PRP under CERCLA for the cleanup of the site or costs the EPA incurs in cleaning up the site. At this 
point, Spire Alabama has not been provided information that would allow it to determine the extent, if any, of its 
potential liability with respect to the 35th Avenue Superfund Site and vigorously denies its inclusion as a PRP. 

Spire 

In addition to those discussed above for Spire Missouri and Spire Alabama, Spire is aware of the follmving 
contingent matters. 

Since April 2012, a total of 14 lawsuits encompassing more than 1,600 plaintiffs have been filed against Spire Gulf in 
Mobile County Circuit Comt alleging that in the first half of 2008, Spire Gulf spilled te1t-butyl mercaptan, an 
odorant added to natural gas for safety reasons, in Eight Mile, Alabama. All of the lawsuits have been substantially 
settled, with the exception of 13 individuals who rejected their settlement offers and whose claims remain pending. 
Those remaining claims allege nuisance, fraud and negligence causes of actions, and seek unspecified compensato1y 
and punitive damages. A claim has been made against the insurance carriers requesting reimbursement for costs 
accrued in respect to this spill, and a related receivable has been recorded. The Company does not expect potential 
liabilities that may arise from these lawsuits to have a matelial impact on its future financial condition or results of 
operations. 
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In February 2018, the Company was made aware of a complaint filed with the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD") by the South Alabama Center for Fair Housing and the National Community 
Reinvestment Coalition. The complaint alleges that the Company discriminated against unspecified residents of 
Eight Mile, P.Jabama, on the basis of race in violation of the Fair Housing Act by failing to adequately address the 
odorant release that occurred in 2008. The Company believes there is no basis for the complaint, HUD has no 
jurisdiction in the matter, and there will be no material impact on its future financial condition or results of 
operations. 

16. INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

Spire 

In the opinion of Spire, the quarterly information presented below for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 includes all 
adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations 
for such periods. Variations in consolidated operations reported on a quarterly basis primarily reflect the seasonal 
nature of the business of the Utilities. 

Three Months Ended Dec, 31 March31 June30 Sept. 30 

Fiscal Year 2018 

Total Operating Revenues $ 561.8 $ 813.4 $ 350.6 $ 239.2 

Operating Income (Loss) 105.1 141.8 52.4 (19.6) 

Net Income (Loss) 116.0 98.2 25.9 (25.9) 

' Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 2.40 $ 2.03 $ 0.52 $ (0.51) 

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 2.39 $ 2.03 $ 0.52 $ (0.51) 

Fiscal Year 2017 

Total Operating Revenues $ 495.1 $ 663.4 $ 323.5 $ 258.7 

Operating Income 89.1 180.4 50.3 1.9 

Net Income (Loss) 45.2 108.0 21.7 (13.3) 

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 0.99 $ 2.36 $ 0.45 $ (0.28) 

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 0.99 $ 2.36 $ 0.45 $ (0.28) 

Spire Missouri 

In the opinion of Spire Missouri, the quatterly information presented below for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 includes 
all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring accruals) necessaty for a fair statement of the results of 
operations for such periods. Variations in operations repotted on a quarterly basis primarily reflect their seasonal 
nature. 

Three Months Ended Dec. 31 March31 June30 Sept. 30 

Fiscal Year 2018 
Total Operating Revenues $ 392.3 $ 533.2 $ 215.5 $ 144.6 

Operating Income (Loss) 74.8 52.1 21.0 (6.6) 

Net Income (Loss) 89.4 38.4 11.5 (10.0) 

:Fiscal Year 2017 

Total Operating Revenues $ 363.6 $ 447.2 $ 198.5 $ 162.6 

Operating Income 64.5 90.2 30.5 11.7 

Net Income 38.0 57.0 15.S 2.5 
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Spire Alabama 

In the opinion of Spire Alabama, the quaiterly iuformation presented below for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 includes 
all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring accruals) necessa1y for a fair statement of the results of 
operations for such periods. Variaiions in operations reported on a qua1terly basis primariiy reflect their seasonal 
nature. 

Three Months Ended Dec. 31 March31 June30 Sept. 30 
Fiscal Year 2018 

Total Operating Revenues $ 120.8 $ 218.3 $ 100.3 $ 61.3 
Operating Income (Loss) 19.0 78.2 12.3 (10.9) 
Net Income (Loss) (49.6) 55.6 6.3 (11.0) 

Fiscal Year 2017 
Total Operating Revenues $ 86.7 $ 158.8 $ 90.S $ 64.S 
Operating Income (Loss) 19.8 78.9 15.5 (8.4) 
Net Income (Loss) 10.3 47.6 7.4 (7.2) 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure 

There have been no changes in or disagreen1ents on accounting and financial disclosure with Spire's, Spire 
Missouri's, or Spire Alabama's outside auditors that are required to be disclosed. 

Item 9A. Conh·ols and Procedures 

Spire 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedm·es 

AB of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with 
pmticipation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 
Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon such evaluation, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. 

Change in Internal Conh·ol over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in our intemal control over financial repmting that occurred during our fourth fiscal quaiter 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

Spire Missouri 

Evaluation of Disclosm·e Conh·ols and Procedures 

AB of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with 
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 
Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaiuation, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in our intemal control over financial repmting that occurred during our fourth fiscal quarter 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

Spire Alabama 

Evaluation of Disclosure Conh·ols and Procedm·es 

AB of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with 
pa1ticipation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 
Rule 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. 

Changes in Internal Conh·ol over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in our intemal control over financial repmting that occurred during our fourth fiscal quarter 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

The Management Repmts on Intemal Control Over Financial Repo1ting and the Reports oflndependent Registered 
Public Accounting Firm are included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 
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Item 9B. Other Information 

On August 31, 2018, Spire Alabama entered into extensions to the following firm transportation and/or storage 
agreements with Southern Natural Gas Company, LLC effective September 1, 2018: 

Firm Transpo1tation Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule FT-NN, Contract #450291-MFTSNG, 
Firm Transportation Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule FT, Contract #450292-MFTSNG, and 
Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule CSS, Contract #450293-MFTSNG. 

In each case, the prima1y term of the agreement was extended to September 1, 2021. The agreements continue to be 
snbject to automatic annual extensions unless otherwise terminated by either party. 

On Jnne 26 and 28, 2018, respectively, Spire Missouri entered into the following replacement firm transp01tation 
service agreements with Enable Mississippi River Transmission, LLC effective August 1, 2018: 

Transp01tation Service Agreement For Rate Schedule FTS, Contract #6081, and 
Transpo1tation Se1viceAgreement For Rate Schedule FTS, Contract #6082. 

In each case, the primaiy term of the agreement extends to August 1, 2019. The agreements are not subject to 
automatic annual extensions. 

PART III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Information about: 

our directors is incorporated by reference from the discussion under Proposal 1 of our proxy statement to be 
filed on or about December 14, 2018 ("2018 proxy statement"); 

our executive officers is reported in Pait I of this Form 10-K; 

comi,liance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our 
2018 proxy statement under the heading "Section 16(a) beneficial ownership repmting compliance"; 

our Financial Code of Ethics is posted on our website, www.SpireEnergy.com, under Investors/Governance/ 
Governance documents (http://investors.spireenergy.com/governance/governance-documents); and 

our Audit Committee, our Audit Committee financial experts, and submitting nominations to the Corporate 
Governance Committee is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our 2018 proxy statement under 
the heading "Corporate governance." 

In addition, our Code of Business Conduct, Corporate Govemance Guidelines, and charters for our Audit, 
Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees are available under "Governance documents" on our website, 
as indicated above, and a copy will be sent to any shareholder upon written request. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information about director and executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the discussion in our 
2018 proxy statement under the headings: "Directors' compensation," "Compensation Discussion and Analysis," 
and "Executive compensation." The 2018 proxy statement also includes the "Compensation committee rep01t," 
which is deemed fumished and not filed. 
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related 
Stockholder Matters 

Information about security· ownership of certain beneficial owners and inanageinent is incorporated by reference 
from the discussion in our 2018 proxy statement under "Beneficial ownership of Spire common stock." 

The following table sets forth aggregate information regarding the Company's equity compensation plans as of 
September 30, 2018: 

Plan category 

Equity compensation plans 
approved by security holders (1) 

Equity compensation plans not 
approved by security holders 
Total 

Nu1nber of securities to 
be issued upon exercise 
of outstanding OJ?tions, 

,varrants and rights 

(a) 

635,764 

635,764 

(1) Reflects the Company's 2015 Equity Incentive Plan. 

Weighted average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options, 
warrants and rights 

(b) 

$-

$-

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 
equity compensation 

plans ( excluding 
securities reflected in 

column (a)) 
(c) 

315,209 

315,209 

Information regarding the above referenced plan is set forth in Note 2, Stock-Based Compensation, of the Notes to 
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Information about: 

• our policy and procedures for related party transactions and 

the independence of our directors 

is included in our 2018 proxy statement under "Corporate governance" and is incorporated by reference. There were 
no related patty transactions in fiscal 2018. 

Item 14, Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

Information about fees paid to our independent registered public accountant and our policy for pre-approval of 
services provided by our independent registered public accountant is incorporated by reference from our 2018 

proxy statement under "Fees of independent registered public accountant" and "Corporate governance," 
respectively. 
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PART IV 

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

(a) (1) Financial Statements 

See Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementaiy Data, filed herewith, for a list of financial 
statements. 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules 

Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, related significance tests were not met, 
or the required data has been included in the financial statements or notes to financial statements. 

(3) Exhibits 

Exhibit 
Number 
2.01* 

3.01* 

3,02* 

3.03• 

3,04• 

3,05* 

3.06* 

4.01* 

4.02* 

4,03*3 

4,04•3 

4.05*3 

4,06*' 

4.07*3 

4,08*' 

Description 

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization; filed as Appendix A to proxy statement/ 
prospectus contained in the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed October 27, 2000, 
No. 333-48794, 

Articles oflncorporation of Spire Inc., as amended, effective as of April 28, 2016; filed as Exhibit 3.1 
to the Company's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed May 3, 2016. 

Bylaws of Spire Inc., as amended, effective as of April 28, 2016; filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's 
Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed May 3, 2016. 

Spire Missouri Inc.'s Amended Alticles oflncorporation, as amended, effective August 30, 2017; filed 
as Exhibit 3.1 to Spire Missouri's Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed September 1, 2017. 

Amended Bylaws of Spire Missouri Inc. effective as of August 30, 2017; filed as Exhibit 3,2 to Spire 
Missouri's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 1, 2017. 

A1ticles of A1nendment of the Articles of Incorporation of Spire Alabama Inc., dated September 1, 
2017; which was filed as Exhibit 3,3 to Spire Alabama's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 
1, 2017, 

Amended Bylaws of Spire Alabama Inc. effective September 1, 2017; filed as Exhibit 3,4 to Spire 
Alabama's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed September 1, 2017, 

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as ofFebruaty 1, 1945; filed as Exhibit 7-A to registration 
statement No. 2-5586, 

Fomteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 26, 1976; filed as Exhibit b-4 to registration 
statement No. 2-64857 filed June 26, 1979, 

1\venty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1999, between Laclede Gas and State 
Street Bank and Trust Company of Missouri, N.A., as trnstee; filed as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede Gas' 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 4, 1999. 

Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15, 2000, between Laclede Gas and 
State Street Bank and Trust Company of Missouri, as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede Gas' 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29, 2000. 

Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 2004, between Laclede Gas and UMB 
Bank & Trust, N.A., as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.01 to Laclede Gas' Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
April 28, 2004. 

Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 2004, between Laclede Gas and UMB 
Bank & Trust, N.A., as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.02 to Laclede Gas' Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed 
April 28, 2004. 

Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Juue 1, 2006, between Laclede Gas and UMB 
Bank and Trust, N.A., as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Laclede Gas' Current Repmt ou Form 8-K 
filed Juue 9, 2006. 

Thirty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 15, 2013, between Laclede Gas and UMB 
Bank & Trust, N.A., as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaiter 
ended March 31, 2013. 
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Exhibit 
Number 

4.09•' 

4.10*3 

4,11*3 

4.12* 

4.13* 

4.14* 

4.15•2 

4.16*' 

4.17*2 

4.18*' 

4.19* 

4.20* 

4.21* 

4,22*3 

4.23* 

10.01*t3 

10.02*3 

10.03*3 

Description 

Thirty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 13, 2013, between Laclede Gas and UMB 
Bank & Trust, N.A., as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Laclede Gas' Current Rep01t on Fonn 8-K filed 
August 13, 2013. 

Laclede Gas Board of Directors' Resolution dated August 28, 1986 which generally provides that the 
Board may delegate its authority in the adoption of ce1tain employee benefit plan amendments to 
ce1tain designated Executive Officers; filed as Exhibit 4.12 to Laclede Gas' Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1991. 

Laclede Gas' Board of Directors' Resolutions dated March 27, 2003, updating authority delegated 
pursuant to August 28, 1986 Laclede Gas resolutions; filed as Exhibit 4.19(a) to the Company's 
Annual Repo1t on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. 

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of June 11, 2014, between the Company and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Spire's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed June 
11, 2014. 

Indenture, dated as of August 19, 2014, between the Company and UMB Bank & Trust, N.A., as 
trustee; filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed August 19, 2014. 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 19, 2014, between the Company and UMB Bank & 
Trust, N.A., as trustee (including Form of Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2017, Form of 2.55% Senior 
Notes due 2019 and Form of 4.70% Senior Notes due 2044); filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's 
Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed August 19, 2014. 

Indenture dated as of November 1, 1993, between Alagasco and NationsBank of Georgia, National 
Association, Trustee, ("Alagasco 1993 Indenture"); filed as Exhibit 4(k) to Alagasco's Registration 
Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-70466). 

Officers' Certificate, dated Janumy 14, 2005, pursuant to Section 301 of the Alagasco 1993 Indenture 
setting forth the terms of the 5.20 percent Notes due Janua1y 15, 2020; filed as Exhibit 4.4 to 
Alagasco's Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed Janua1y 14, 2005. 

Officers' Ce1tificate, dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to Section 301 oftheAlagasco 1993 
Indenture setting fmth the terms of the 5.368 percent Notes due December 1, 2015; filed as Exhibit 
4.2 to Alagasco's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed November 17, 2005. 

Officers' Ceitificate, dated Janumy 16, 2007, pursuant to Section 301 of the Alagasco 1993 Indenture 
setting forth the terms of the 5.90 percent Notes due Janua1y 15, 2037; filed as Exhibit 4.2 to 
Alagasco's Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed January 16, 2007. 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofFebrua1y 27, 2017, between Spire Inc. and UMB Bank & 
Trust, N.A., as Trustee (including Form of 3.543% Senior Notes due 2024); filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the 
Company's Current Repmt on Form 8-K filed Februaiy 27, 2017. 

Master Note Purchase Agreement dated June 20, 2016, among Spire Inc. and ce1tain institutional 
purchasers pa1ty thereto; filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Qua1terly Repo1t on Form 10-Q for 
the fiscal qumter ended March 31, 2017. 

First Sup_plement to Master Note Purchase Agreement dated as of March 15, 2017, among Spire Inc. 
and ce1tam institutional purchasers party thereto; filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Quarterly 
Repmt on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaiter ended March 31, 2017. 

Bond Purchase Agreement dated March 20, 2017, among Laclede Gas Company and certain 
institutional purchasers party thereto (including Fann ofThhty-Third Supplemental Indenture); 
filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 
March 31, 2017. 

First Supplement to Master Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2017, between Spire 
Alabama Inc. and ce1tain institutional investors; filed as Exhibit 4.01 to the Company's Qua1terly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaiter ended December 31, 2017. 

Automated Meter Reading Services Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2005, between Cellnet 
Technology, Inc. and Laclede Gas; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Laclede Gas' Quarterly Repo1t on Form 10-
Q for the fiscal quaiter ended March 31, 2005. Confidential pmtions of this exhibit have been omitted 
and filed separately ,vith the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a request for 
confidential treatment. 

Restated Laclede Gas Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan, as amended and restated 
as of January 1, 200s; filed as Exhibit 10.06 to Laclede Gas' Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Deeember 31, 2008. 
Laclede Gas Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan II, effective as of January 1, 2005; 
filed as Exhibit 10,7 to Laclede Gas' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quarter ended December 31, 2008. 
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Exhibit 
Number 

10.04*3 

10.05*' 

10.06*3 

10.07*
3 

10.08*3 

10.09* 

10.10* 

10.11*3 

.10.12*3 

10.13• 

10.14*' 

10.15• 

10.16* 

10.17* 

10.18* 

10.19* 

10.20*1 

10.21*1 

Description 

Amendment and Restatement of Retirement Plan for Non-Employee Directors of 
Laclede Gas as of November 1, 2002; filed as Exhibit 10.08c to Laclede Gas' Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. 
Amendment to Terms of Retirement Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Laclede Gas 
as of October 1, 2004; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Laclede Gas' Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004. 

Salient Features of Laclede Gas' Deferred Income Plan for Directors and Selected 
Executives, including amendments adopted by the Board of Directors on July 26, 1990; 
filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Laclede Gas' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 1991. 
Amendment to Laclede Gas' Deferred Income Plan for Directors and Selected 
Executives, adopted by the Board of Directors on August 27, 1992; filed as Exhibit 
10.12a to Laclede Gas' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 1992. 
Salient Featm•es of Laclede Gas' Deferred Income Plan II for Directors and Selected 
Executives (as amended and restated effective as of January 1, 2005); filed as Exhibit 
10.1 to Laclede Gas' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 
December 31, 2008. 
Salient Features of the Company's Deferred Income Plan for Directors and Selected 
Executives (effective as of January 1, 2005); filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2008. 
The Company's Deferred Income Plan for Directors and Selected Executives, as 
Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2015; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 4, 2014, 

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Laclede Gas and its Directors and 
Officers; filed as Exhibit 10.13 to Laclede Gas' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 1990. 
The Laclede Grou~ Management Continuity Protection Plan, effective as of January :i, 
2005; filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2008. 
Form of Management Continuity Protection Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10,5a to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 
2008. 

The Laclede Group 2011 Management Continuity Protection Plan; filed as Exhibit 10.25 
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2010. 
Form of Agreement under the Company's 2011 Management Continuity Protection 
Plan; filed as Exhibit 10.25a to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. 
Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended and effective January 
29, 2009; filed as Appendix A to the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement on 
Schedule 14Afiled December 22, 2008. 
Amendment to Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors; filed as Exhibit 10.6 
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 
2011, 

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement with Mandatory Retirement 
Provisions; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
November 5, 2004, 
Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement without Mandatory Retirement 
Provisions; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
November 5, 2004. 
The Laclede Group 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended effective February 1, 2012; 
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quarter ended March 31, 2012. 

The Laclede Group 2015 Equity Incentive Plan; filed as the Appendix to the Company's 
Definitive Proxy Statement on Form DEF 14A filed December 19, 2014. 
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Exhibit 
Number 

10.22* 

10.23* 

10.24* 

10.25* 

10.26* 

10.27*3 

10.28*3 

10,29*3 

10.30*3 

10.31* 

10.32*' 

10.33*2 

10.34*' 

10.35*' 

10.36*' 

10.37*' 

l0,38*2 

10.39*2 

10-40•2 

Description 

The Company's Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscai quarter ended December 31, 
2008. 

The Company's Form of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Award Agreement; 
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quarter ended December 31, 2009. 
The Company's Form of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Unit Award 
Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2011. 

The Company's Form of Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Unit Award 
Agreement; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2012. 
Note Purchase Agreement, dated August 3, 2012, by and among the Company and the Purchasers 
listed in Schedule A thereto; filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. 

Laclede Gas Cash Balance Sur.plemental Retirement Benefit Plan, effective as of 
January 1, 2009; filed as Exlubit 10.19 to Laclede Gas' Amlual Report on Form 10-Kfor 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. 

Amended and Restated Storage Service Agreement For Rate Schedule FSS, Contract #3147, dated 
July 30, 2013, between CenterPoint Energy-Mississippi River Transmission Corporation and Laclede 
Gas; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Laclede Gas' Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2013, 

Amended and Restated Transportation Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FfS, Contract #3310, 
dated July 30, 2013, between CenterPoint Energy-Mississippi River Transmission Corporation and 
Laclede Gas; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Laclede Gas Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2013. 

Amended and Restated Transportation Se1vice Agreement for Rate Schedule FrS, Contract #3311, 
dated July 30, 2013, between CenterPoint Energy-Mississippi River Transmission Corporation and 
Laclede Gas; filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Laclede Gas' Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2013. 

Lease Agreement, dated Janua1y 21, 2014, between the Company, as Tenant, and Market 700, LLC, 
as Landlord; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Spire Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 27, 2014. 

Master Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 5, 2015, among Alagasco and certain institutional 
purchasers; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quarter ended June 30, 2015, 

Note Purchase Agreement, dated December 22, 2011, among Alagasco and the Purchasers thereto 
(theAIG purchasers) with respect to $25 million 3.86 percent Senior Notes due December 22, 2021; 
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Alagasco's Current Repo1t on Form 8-K filed December 22, 2011. 

Note Purchase Agreement, dated December 22, 2011, among Alagasco and the Purchasers thereto 
(the Prudential purchasers) with respect to $25 million 3.86 percent Senior Notes due December 22, 
2021; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Alagasco's Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 22, 2011. 

Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule CSS (No. SSNG1), between Southern Natural Gas Company 
and Alagasco, dated as of September 1, 2005; filed as Exhibit 10(a) to Alagasco's Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, 

Amended Exhibit A, effective January 15, 2014, to Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule CSS (No. 
SSNG1) between Southern Natural Gas Company andAlagasco dated September 1, 2005; filed as 
Exhibit 10(g) to Alagasco's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, 

Finn Transportation Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule Fr and/or Fr-NN (No. FSNG1), 
between Southern Natural Gas Company and Alagasco dated as of September 1, 2005; filed as 
Exhibit 10(b) to Alagasco's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

Amended Exhibit A, effective October 1, 2013, to Firm Transportation Service Agreement (No. 
FSNG1) between Southern Natural Gas Company and Alagasco; filed as Exhibit 10(i) to Alagasco's 
Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Amended Exhibit B, effective November 1, 2013, to Firm Transpmtation Service Agreement (No. 
FSNG1) between Southern Natural Gas Company and Alagasco; filed as Exhibit 10(j) to Alagasco's 
Annual Rep01t on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Amendment to Se1vice Agreement between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation and Alagasco, 
dated December 2, 2005; filed as Exhibit 10(e) to Alagasco's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 2005. 
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Exhibit 
Number 

10.41*
1 

10.42•1 

10.43*2 3 

10-44• 

10.45* 

10.46*t3 

10.47•' 

10.48* 

10.49•' 

10.50*
1 

10.51• 

10.52*
1 

10.53• 

10.54• 

10.55 

10.56* 

10.57* 

10.58 

Description 

The Laclede Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan, as Amended; filed as Appendix to the 
Compa.,y's Definitive Pro;,.y Statement on Schedule 14A filed December 18, 2015. 
The Laclede Group, Inc. Deferred Income Plan, as Amended and Restated as of 
January 1, 2016; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed November 24, 2015. 
Loan Agreement, dated December 14, 2016, by and among Spire Inc., Alabama Gas Corporation, 
Laclede Gas Company, and the several banks pa1ty thereto, including Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as Administrative Agent; JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as Co-Syndication Agents; Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners; and Bank of 
America, N.A., Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A., Regions Bank, 
Royal Bank of Canada, and TD Bank, N.A., as Documentation Agents; filed as Exhibit 99,1 to the 
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2016. 

Commercial Paper Dealer A&reement, dated December 21, 2016, between Spire Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Securities, LLC; filed as Exlnbit 10.2 to the Company's Qua1terly Repo1t on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quaiter ended December 31, 2016. 

Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated December 21, 2016, between Spire Inc. and Credit 
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC; filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quaiterly Rep01t on Form 10-Q 
for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2016. 

Precedent Agreement dated as of Janua1y 25, 2017, between Laclede Gas Company and Spire STL 
Pipeline LLC; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Laclede Gas's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal 
quarter ended March 31, 2017. 

Amendment to PrecedentAgreement dated as of April 17, 2017, between Laclede Gas Company and 
Spire STL Pipeline LLC; filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Laclede Gas's Quarterly Rep01t on Form 10-Q for the 
fiscal qua1ter ended March 31, 2017. 

Spire Inc. Executive Severance Plan; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed May 2, 2017. 
Amendment 1 to The Laclede Group Annual Incentive Plan effective January 1, 2018; 
.filed as Exhibit 10.53 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2017. 
Amendment 1 to The Laclede Group 2015 Equity Incentive Plan effective January 1, 
2018j filed as Exhibit 10.54 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 
Amendment 1 to Spire Inc. Executive Severance Plan effective January 1, 2018; filed as 
Exhibit 10.55 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2017. 
Amendment 1 to The Laclede Group 2011 Management Continui!'l Protection Plan 
effective January 18, 2018; filed as Exhibit 10.56 to the Company s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 
Amendment 2 to Spire Inc. Deferred Income Plan effective January 1, 2018; filed as 
Exhibit 10.57 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2017. 
Contract between Spire STL Pipeline LLC aud Michels Corporation for Procurement and Installation 
of Gas Pipeline for the Spire STL Pipeline, dated as of Alril 26, 2018; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fisca quaiter ended June 30, 2018. 

First Amendment to Contract between Spire STL Pipeline LLC and Michels Corporation for 
Procurement and Installation of Gas Pipeline, dated as of October 9, 2018. 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2018, by and among Spire Inc., a 
Missouri corporation, Spire Alabama Inc. (formerly Alabama Gas Corporation), an Alabama 
corporation, and Spire Missouri Inc. (formerly Laclede Gas Company), a Missouri corporation, the 
Banks from time to time party thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as 
Administrative Agent for the Banks; filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report ou Form 
8-K filed November 6, 2018. 

Amendment 3 to Spire Deferred Income Plan effective January 1, 2019; filed as Exhibit 
10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 14, 2018. 
Transportation Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FfS, Contract #6081, dated June 28, 2018, 
between Enable Mississippi River Transmission, LLC and Spire Missouri. 
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Exhibit 
Number 

10.59 

10.60 

10.61 

10.62 

21 

23.1 

23.2 

23,3 

31.1 

31.2 

31.3 
32.1 

32.2 

32.3 
101.INsl•l 

101.SCHM 

101.CALM 
101.DEF(xJ 

101.LABM 

101.PREM 

Description 

Transportation Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FTS, Contract #6082, dated June 28, 2018, 
between Enable Mississippi River Transmission, LLC and Spire Missouri. 

Firm Transportation Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule Fr-NN, Contract #450291-MFTSNG 
dated August 31, 2018, between Southern Natural Gas Company, L.L.C. and Spire Alabama. 

Firm Transportation Sen~ce Agreement Under Rate Schedule FT, Contract #450292-MFTSNG dated 
August 31, 2018, between Southern Natural Gas Company, L.L.C. and Spire Alabama. 

Service Agreement Under Rate Schedule CSS, Contract #450293-MFTSNG dated August 31, 2018, 
between Southern Natural Gas Company, L.L.C. and Spire Alabama. 

Subsidiaries of the Company. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of the Company. 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of Spire Missouri Inc. 

Consent oflndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm of Spire Alabama Inc. 

Certifications under Rule 13a-14(a) of the CEO and CFO of the Company. 

Certifications under Rule 13a-14(a) of the CEO and CFO of Spire Missouri Inc. 

Certifications under Rule 13a-14(a) of the CEO and CFO of Spire Alabama Inc. 

Section 1350 Ce1tifications under Rule 13a-14(b) of the CEO and CFO of the Company. 

Section 1350 Ce,tifications under Rule 13a-14(b) of the CEO and CFO of Spire Missouri Inc. 

Section 1350 Certifications under Rule 13a-14(b) of the CEO and CFO of Spire Alabama Inc. 

XBRL Instance Document. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase. 

XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase. 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase. 

{x) Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report are the following documents formatted in extensib}e business reporting 
language ("XBRL"): (i) Document and Entity Information; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income and Statements oflncome 
for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and 
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016; (iv) Consolidated Statements 
of Shareholders' Equity and Statements ofShareholder's Equity for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016; (v) 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016; (vi) Consolidated Balance Sheets and Balance Sheets at September 30, 2018 and 2017; (vii) Consolidated Statements of 
Capitalization and Statements of Capitalization at September 30, 2018 and 2017; and (viii) Notes to Financial Statements. We 
also make available on our website the Interactive Data Files submitted as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report. 

* Incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Spire Inc. File No. 1-16681. Spire Missouri Inc. File No. 1-1822. 
Spire Alabama Inc. File No. 2-38960. 

t Portions of this exhibit were omitted pursuant to a confidential treatment request submitted pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the 
Exchange Act. 

1 The Laclede Group, Inc. changed its name to Spire Inc. effective April 28, 2016. 
2 

Alabama Gas Corporation ("Alagasco") changed its name to Spire Alabama Inc. effective September 1, 2017. 
3 Laclede Gas Company changed its name to Spire Missouri Inc. effective August 30, 2017. 

Bold ite1ns reflect management contracts or cmnpensatory plans or arrangements. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date November 15, 2018 

Spire Inc. 

By /s/ Steven P. Rasche 
Steven P. Rasche 
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secmities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Date 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

November 15, 2018 

Signature Title 

/s/ Suzanne Sitherwood Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 
Suzanne Sitherwood (Principal Executive Officer) 

/s/ Steven P. Rasche Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Steven P. Rasche (P1incipal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

/s/ Edward L. Glotzbach Chairman of the Board 
Edward L. Glotzbach 

/s/ Mark A. Borer Director 
Mark A. Borer 

/s/ Maria V. Fogarty 
Maria V. Foga1ty 

/s/ Rob L. Jones 
Rob L. Jones 

Director 

Director 

/s/ Brenda D. Newbeny Director 
Brenda D. Newbeny 

/s/ John P. Stupp Jr. Director 
John P. Stupp Jr. 

/s/ Mary Ann Van Lokeren Director 
Ma1y Ann Van Lokeren 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this rep01t to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date November 15, 2018 

Spire Missouri Inc. 

By /s/ Steven P. Rasche 
Steven P. Rasche 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secmities Exchange Act of 1934, this rep01t has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Date Signature Title 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Suzanne Sitherwood Chairman of the Board 
Suzanne Sither-wood 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Steven P. Rasche Director and Chief Financial Officer 
Steven P. Rasche {Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Steven L. Lindsey Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 

Steven L. Lindsey (Principal Executive Officer) 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Mark C. Darrell Director 
Mark C. Darrell 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Scott R. C'.mter Director 
Scott B. Carter 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date November15, 2018 

Spire Alabama Inc. 

By /s/ Steven P. Rasche 
Steven P. Rasche 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Date Signature Title 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Suzanne Sithenvood Chairman of the Board 
Suzanne Sitherwood 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Steven P. Rasche Director and Chief Financial Officer 
Steven P. Rasche (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Steven L. Lindsey Director and Chief Executive Officer 
Steven L. Lindsey (Principal Executive Officer) 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Mark C. Darrell Director 
Mark C. Darrell 

November 15, 2018 /s/ Scott B. Carter Director 
Scott B. Carter 
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Information for 
our shareholders 

Annual meeting 
The annual meeting of shareholders of Spire Inc. will be held 
at 10 a.m. Central Standard Time on Thursday, January 31, 2019, 
at Spire's primary business office, 700 Market Street, St. Louis, 
J\-10 63101. The formal notice of the meeting, proxy statement, 
form of proxy and this annual report were made available 
to shareholders on December 14, 2018. The proxy statement 
and annual report maybe found on our website by visiting 
SpireEnergy.com. 

Transfer agent and registrar 
Spire's shareholder records are maintained by its transfer 
agent, Computers hare Trust Company, N.A. Inquiries relating 
to stockholder records, stock transfers, address changes, 
dividend payments, lost certificates and other administrative 
matters should be addressed to: 

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. 
P.O. Box 505000 
Louisville. KY 40233-5000 
800-884-4225 

Primary business ollke 
Spire Inc. 
700 Ji.larker Street 
St. Louis. MO 63101 
314-342-0500 
SpireEnergy.com 

Dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan 
Spire's dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan 
provides common shareholders the opportunity to purchase 
additional common stock by automatically reinvesting dividends 
or by making additional cash payments. Shareholders who are 
interested in obtaining more information, including an 
enrollment card, may contact: 

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. 
P.O. Box 505000 
Louisville, KY 40233-5000 
800-884-4225 

Stock and cliviclends 
Spire Inc. common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange 
(NYSE) under the symbol SR. There were 50,671,903 shares 
outstanding as of September 30, 2018. Spire has paid a cash 
dividend continuously since 1946. Dividends are typically paid 
on the second business day of January, April, July and October. 
The current annualized dividend is $2.37 per share, effective with 
the quarterly payment on January 3, 2019. 

The high and low trading prices and dividends declared on 
common stock for the past two years were: 

Dividends 
Fiscal 2018 High Low declared 

1st Quarter $ 82.85 $ 73.65 $ 0.5625 

2nd Quarter 75.25 60.09 0.5625 

3rd Quarter 74.25 64.95 0.5625 

4th Quarter 77.30 70.25 0.5625 

Dividends 
Fiscal 2017 High Low declared 

1st Quarter $ 66.65 $59.54 $ 0.525 

2nd Quarter 68.30 62.33 0.525 

3rd Quarter 72.83 63.84 0.525 

4th Quarter 78.00 68.30 0.525 

Inquiries 
Copies of Spire's Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, quarterly updates, news releases and 
other investor information are available at no charge by visiting 
SpireEnergy.com or by contacting Investor Relations: 

Scott W. Dudley Jr. 
.Managing Director, Investor Relations 
Scott.Dudley@SpireEnergy.com 
314-342-0878 

For media inquiries, contact Corporate Communications: 

JessicaB. Willingham 
Vice President, Communications and .Marketing 
Jessica.Willingham@SpireEnergy.com 
314-342-3300 
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700 Market Street 
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SpireEnergy.com 



Schedule RES-D-8 

Spire Missouri Response to OPC 

Data Request 8539 -8541 



Res)Jonsc: As stated above in res11onsc to DR 8527, unprotected steel services are 
consistently ranked among the highest items in SJJire's risk analysis. Spire works 
closely with and is heavily regulated by the Commission's Gas Safety Staff ensuring 
these risks arc effectively managed mid acldressecl 

8537. OPC DR 8517 asked if Spire believes that all of the non-protected steel mains currentlyin 
use in each service territory are worn out or in a deteriorated condition as those tenns are 
used in §393.1009(5)(a)? Spire responded "Yes to the extent this question is applicable to 
bare steel services." Please indicate whether it is Spire's position that all of the non­
cathodically protected steel~ it currently has in use in each service ten·itoiy are worn 
out or in a deteriorated condition as those terms are used in §393.1009(5)(a)? 

Res)Jonse: SJJirc does not have unprotecte1l steel mains on record in its system. 

a. If not, how does Spire distinguish which non-cathodically )ll'Otected steel 
mains are worn out from those that are not? 

Response: N/A 

8538. OPC DR 8517 asked if Spire believes that all of the non-protected steel mains currentlyin 
use in each service territory are worn out or in a deteriorated condition as those terms are 
used in §393.1009(5)(a)? Spire responded "Yes to the extent this question is applicable to 
bare steel services." Please confirm that it is Spire's position that all of the non-cathodically 
protected steel scl'yiccs it cul1'ently has in use in each service territmy are wom out or ina 
deteriorated condition as those terms are used in §393.1009(5)(a)? 

Response: Y cs, that is Spire's position. 

a. If not, how does Spire distinguish which non-cathodically protected steel 
services are worn out from those that are not? 

Response: NIA 

8539. Please provide a copy of the five most recent finical statements or other reports that Spire 
has filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission wherein Spire has 
disclosed that all of its cast iron mains are in a worn out or deteriorated condition, 

ResJJonsc: Spire has not included specific statements in its filings that its cast iron 
mains are in a worn out or deteriorated condition since there is a widespread 
undei-standing that vil'tually all facilities become worn out or deteriorate over time, 
including cast iron mains used by a utility to distribute natural gas. Investors are 
generally familial' with the basic concept of depreciation and therefore comprehend 
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are eithe1· worn out 01· in a deteriornted condition is also evident in the pertinent 
financial information associated with its JSRS mechanism and ISRS regulatory 
JJroceedings which is included in these SEC filings. 

a. Ifno such finical statement or other report exists, please confirm that Spire has 
never disclosed to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission that 
all of its non-cathodically protected steel services are in a worn out or 
deteriorated condition 

Response: Please see t11e 1·esponse to DR No, 8541. 

8542. Please identify the last year in which spire installed new non-cathmlically protected steel 
services. 

Response: SJJire is unable to identify the specific year in which Spire installed new 
non-cathodically protected steel services. 

a. If Spire is incapable of identifying a specific year, please indicate the best 
estimation for when Spire ceased Installation of new uon-cathodically 
nrotected steel services 

Response: Spire has not installed new non-catl10dically protected steel services since 
the 1950's at Spire East and since the 1970's for Spire West, 

1: 




